
 

Agenda 

 
 

 
 
 

Regular Council Meeting 
to be held at the City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
To view the Council Meeting, visit www.penticton.ca   

  
Tuesday, August 16, 2022 

at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 
1. Call Regular Council Meeting to Order 
 
2. Introduction of Late Items  
 
3. Adoption of Agenda  
 
4. Adoption of Minutes:  
 

4.1 Minutes of the July 19, 2022 Regular Council Meeting           1-7                     Adopt 
 
5. Consent Agenda: 

 
Recommendation: THAT Council approve the Consent Agenda.                      8-18 
 
Consent Agenda:  

 
1. Minutes of July 19, 2022 Public Hearings; 

 
Sentes  2.        Heritage and Museum Advisory Committee Meeting Draft Minutes of August 3, 2022. 

 
6. Staff Reports:  
 

Laven  6.1 Food Security Strategy                        19-138 
    Delegation: Alison Rustad, Urban Systems 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council endorse the ‘Penticton Food Security Strategy’ as included in 
Attachment A.  

 
Coates 6.2 In-Year Grant Request        139-140 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council approve a $10, 628 cash grant to the South Okanagan 
Similkameen Medical Foundation, funded through general surplus. 

 
Oomen 6.3 Heritage Awareness Project – Phase Two        141-142 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council support phase two of the Heritage Awareness Project and the 
installation of heritage plaques on buildings and properties currently on the City of Penticton Heritage 
Register.   

 
 
 

http://www.penticton.ca/


 
    
 

Haddad 6.4 Civic Places & Spaces Implementation - Public Safety and Protective Services Centre     143-160 
Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council endorse the proposed work plan for the Public Safety and 
Protective Services Centre; 
AND THAT Council allocate $75,000 for the commencement of the first phase of planning for the 
future Public Safety and Protective Services Centre to be funded from administrative savings for the 
purpose of project scoping, needs analysis and site selection. 

Haddad 6.5 Second Quarter 2022 Economic Development Update        161-190 
Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council receive into the record the report dated August 16, 2022 titled 
“Second Quarter 2022 Economic Development Update”. 

 
Johnson 6.6 Second Quarter 2022 Recreation and Culture Services Update        191-207 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council receive into the record the report dated August 16, 2022 titled 
“Second Quarter 2022 Recreation and Culture Services Update”. 

 
Hamming 6.7 Second Quarter 2022 Financial Update 208-218 
  Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council receive into the record the report dated August 16, 2022 titled 

“Second Quarter 2022 Financial Update”. 
 

Campbell 6.8 Second Quarter 2022 Corporate Business Plan Update        219-223 
Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council receive into the record the report dated August 16, 2022 titled 
“Second Quarter 2022 Corporate Business Plan Update”. 

 
Collison 6.9 2023 Council Meeting Schedule        224-226 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council select the following dates for the 2023 Regular Meetings of 
Council: January 17; February 7; March 7, 21; April 4, 18; May 2, 16; June 6, 20; July 18; August 1, 15; 
September 12; October 3, 17; November 7, 21; and December 5, 19; 
AND THAT Special Council meetings be held on March 14, 15, 16, 2023 for budget deliberations. 

 
Collyer 6.10 Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46       227-273 
  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47     
  Development Permit PL2022-9296 
  Re: 655 Ellis Street 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council, prior to consideration of “Official Community Plan 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46”, and in accordance with Section 475 of the Local Government Act, 
consider whether early and on-going consultation, in addition to the required Public Hearing, is 
necessary with: 

1. One or more persons, organizations or authorities; 
2. The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen; 
3. Local First Nations; 
4. School District #67; 
5. The provincial or federal government and their agencies; 

AND THAT it is determined that the community engagement period carried out from July 11, 2022 to 
August 7, 2022 is sufficient; 
AND THAT Council give first reading to “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46”, a 
bylaw that amends Map 1: Future Land Use of Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08, by 
amending the future land use designation for Lot 1 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District 
Plan EPP120346, located at 655 Ellis Street, from ‘Ground Oriented Residential’ to ‘Urban Residential’; 
AND THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47” for Lot 1 District Lot 
202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP120346, located at 655 Ellis Street, a bylaw to rezone 
the subject property from ‘P1 (Public Assembly)’ to ‘RM5 (Urban Residential)’; 
AND THAT Council forward “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46” and “Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47” to the September 6, 2022 Public Hearing; 



 
    
 

AND THAT Council require a 0.914m road dedication along the eastern property line (Ellis Street) to be 
registered with the Land Title Office prior to issuance of an Occupancy Permit; 
AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47”, approve 
“Development Permit PL2022-9296”, a permit to approve the form and character of the proposed 
three-storey, 16-unit apartment building. 

 
Collyer 6.11 Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357        274-300 
  Development Permit PL2022-9356 
  Re: 303 Nanaimo Avenue West 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357” for Lot 1 
District Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District Plan 3669, located at 
303 Nanaimo Avenue West, a permit to vary Section 10.10.2.7 of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01, to reduce the 
minimum required interior side yard setback (west) from 4.5m to 3.0m; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357”; 
AND THAT Council, subject to approval of “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357”, approve 
“Development Permit PL2022-9356”, a permit to approve the form and character of the proposed 
four-unit townhouse development. 

 
Capewell 6.12 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45        301-333 
  Re: 1603 Dartmouth Road 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45, a 
bylaw to add the following section to the M1 (General Industrial) zone: 12.1.4.4 “In the case of Lot 1 
District Lots 250, 2710, 3429S and 3821S Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 37288, located at 
1603 Dartmouth Road, an indoor amusement, entertainment and recreation facility shall be 
permitted”; 
AND THAT Council forward the bylaw to the September 6, 2022 Public Hearing. 

 
Capewell 6.13 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48        334-350 
  Development Variance Permit PL2022-9411 
  Re: 221 and 241 Nelson Avenue 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48”, 
for Lot A District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347, located at 221 Nelson 
Avenue and Lot B District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347, located at 241 
Nelson Avenue, a bylaw to rezone the subject properties from RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) to RD4 
(Low Density Cluster Housing); 
AND THAT Council forward “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48” to the September 6, 2022 Public 
Hearing; 
AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48”, consider 
“Development Variance Permit PL2022-9411”, for Lot A District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale 
District Plan EPP116347, located at 221 Nelson Avenue and Lot B District Lot 250 Similkameen Division 
Yale District Plan EPP116347, located at 241 Nelson Avenue, a permit to vary Section 10.7.3.1 of 
Zoning Bylaw No 2021-01, to allow vehicle access to be from the street. 

 
Capewell 6.14 Development Permit PL2022-9352        351-390 
  Re: 970 Dynes Avenue 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council approve “Development Permit PL2022-9352”, for Lot A District 
Lot 3 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan EPP92730, located at 970 
Dynes Avenue, a permit to allow for the construction of a 26-unit, six-storey apartment building; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Permit PL2022-9352”. 

 
 
 



 
    
 

 
Laven 6.15 Development Variance Permit PL2022-9351        391-404 
  Re: 93-3245 Paris Street 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9351” for Lot 4 
District Lots 189 and 372 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 43502, located at 93-3245 Paris 
Street, a permit to vary Section 10.13.2.7.b of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01, to reduce the minimum interior 
side yard from 6.0 m to 2.1 m, in order to facilitate the placement of a mobile home; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9351”. 

 
7. Bylaws and Permits: 

 
Capewell 7.1 Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2021-35 and  405-408     Adopt 

  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2021-36      Adopt 
  Re: 955 Timmins Street 
 

Collison 7.2 Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-07  409-433   Adopt 
   

Collison 7.3 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-10  434-435   Adopt 
  Re: 585 Jermyn Avenue 

 
Collison 7.4 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-36  436-437     Adopt 

  Re: 169 Maple Street 
 
8. Public Question Period 
 
 

9. Recess to a Closed Meeting:  
Resolution: THAT Council recess to a closed meeting of Council pursuant to the provisions of the Community 
Charter as follows:  Section 90 (1)  

(e) the acquisition, disposition or expropriation of land or improvements, if the Council considers 
that disclosure could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality. 

 
10. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting following the Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 

11.          Bylaws and Permits:      
 
Collison 11.1 Road Closure (Nanaimo Ave E between the left     438-439   Del/Sub 
  and right banks of Penticton Creek) Bylaw No. 2022-39         Adopt 

   
Collison 11.2 Road Closure (Kinney Ave between South Main St  440-447     Del/Sub 
  and Skaha Lake Rd) Bylaw No. 2022-40      Adopt 

 
Capewell 11.3 Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-41and  448-451     2nd/3rd 

  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-42      2nd/3rd  
  Re: 770 Argyle Street 
 

Laven 11.4 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43  452-453     2nd/3rd 
  Re: 747 and 755 Revelstoke Avenue 
 

Laven 11.5 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-44  454-458   2nd/3rd/Adopt 
  Development Variance Permit PL2022-9395      Approve 

  Re: 561 Jermyn Avenue 
 
 



 
    
 

 
12. Notice of Motion 
 
13. Business Arising 
 
14. Public Question Period 

 

 If you would like to ask Council a question with respect to items that are on the current agenda, please visit 
our website at www.penticton.ca to find the telephone number or Zoom link to ask your question before the 
conclusion of the meeting.  Please do not try to join the meeting early, you will not be let in to participate 
electronically until Council approaches the Public Question Period.  Watch the livestream on our website and 
prepare to call or join during the Business Arising.  

 
15. Council Round Table  
 
16. Adjournment 

http://www.penticton.ca/


 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

      Regular Council Meeting 
held at City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C.  
 

Tuesday, July 19, 2022 
at 1:00 p.m. 

   
                           Present:  Mayor Vassilaki   
   Councillor Bloomfield 

  Councillor Miller 
  Councillor Robinson  

      Councillor Sentes 
     Councillor Watt    
 
  Absent:  Councillor Regehr 
 

 Staff:   Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
     Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
     Angela Campbell, Director of Finance & Administration    
     Kristen Dixon, General Manager of Infrastructure  
     Anthony Haddad, General Manager, Community Services 
     Blake Laven, Director of Development Services  
     Paula McKinnon, Deputy Corporate Officer  
       
         
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

The Mayor called the Regular Council Meeting to order at 1:01 p.m. 
      

2. Introduction of Late Items 
 

3. Adoption of Agenda 
  

256/2022 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting held on July 19, 2022 as 
amended to include item 6.0 – Canadian Homebuilders Association and Penticton Peach 
Festival Update. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 
 

- 1 -



    
Minutes of July 19, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 2 of 7 
 
 

 
 

4. Adoption of Minutes: 
 

  4.1 Minutes of the July 5, 2022 Regular Meeting of Council  
 

257/2022 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt the Regular Council Meeting minutes of July 5, 2022 as presented.  

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

5. Consent Agenda: 
 

258/2022 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
 THAT Council approve the Consent Agenda: 
1. Minutes of the July 5, 2022 Committee of the Whole Meeting; 
2. Special Penticton and Ellis Creek Restoration Select Committee Meeting Draft Minutes of 

June 29, 2022; 
3. Arts, Creative and Cultural Innovations Advisory Committee Meeting Draft Minutes of 

July 8, 2022. 
 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
6. Staff Reports: 

 
6.0 Canadian Home Builders Association 

 
Wally James, President, South Okanagan Local of the Canadian Homebuilders Association, 
spoke to Council about how the proposed Development Cost Charges Bylaw will impact the 
building industry in Penticton and requested that Council phase in the development cost 
charges. 

 
Penticton Peach Festival Update 

 
Don Kendall, President, Penticton Peach Festival, provided Council with an overview of the 75th 
Peach Festival events taking place from August 3-7, 2022. 

 
6.1  2509 South Main Street Shovel Ready Project – Affordable Housing Reserve  
 

259/2022  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council approve the use of up to $50,000 to be funded from the City of Penticton 
Affordable Housing Reserve to get 2509 South Main Street (Lot 1 District Lot 116 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 2027 Except Plan M13339) to a shovel ready state for 
submission to a future capital grant funding program; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to work with partners to get 2509 South Main Street to a 
shovel ready state in order to support a community submission to a future capital grant 
funding program; 
AND THAT the Financial Plan be amended accordingly. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 

- 2 -



    
Minutes of July 19, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 3 of 7 
 
 

 

6.2  Short-Term (Vacation) Rental Program Update 
 

260/2022  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council receive into the record the report dated July 19, 2022 titled “Short-Term 
(Vacation) Rental Program Update”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

261/2022  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council direct staff to explore potential restrictions that may be applied to the Short-
Term Vacation Rental Program, as well as recommend which of those restrictions (if any) are 
necessary. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

6.3  Road Closure Bylaws for Nanaimo Avenue East and Kinney Avenue 
  

262/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Road Closure (Nanaimo Ave E between 
the left and right banks of Penticton Creek) Bylaw No. 2022-39”, a bylaw that closes a portion 
of Nanaimo Avenue East to all vehicular traffic. 
THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Road Closure (Kinney Ave between 
South Main St and Skaha Lake Rd) Bylaw No. 2022-40”, a bylaw that closes a portion of 
Kinney Avenue to vehicles while maintaining right-of-way for pedestrians and cyclists. 

CARRIED 
Councillor Miller, Opposed 

 
6.4  Development Cost Charges Bylaw No. 2022-38 

 
263/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Development Cost Charges Bylaw No. 
2022-38”; 
AND THAT the bylaw be submitted to the Inspector of Municipalities for approval. 

CARRIED 
Councillors Sentes and Watt, Opposed 

 
6.5  Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-41 and Zoning Amendment  

Bylaw No. 2022-42 
 Development Permit PL2021-9246 
 Re: 770 Argyle Street 

   
264/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT prior to consideration of “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-41”, 
and in accordance with Section 475 of the Local Government Act, Council consider whether 
early and on-going consultation, in addition to the required Public Hearing, is necessary 
with: 

1. One or more persons, organizations or authorities; 
2. The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen; 
3. Local First Nations; 

- 3 -



    
Minutes of July 19, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 4 of 7 
 
 

4. School District #67; 
5. The provincial or federal government and their agencies. 

AND THAT it is determined that the community engagement period carried out from April 7, 
2022 to May 15, 2022 is sufficient; 
AND THAT Council give first reading to “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 
2022-41”, a bylaw that amends Map 1: Future Land Use of Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 
2019-08, by amending the future land use designation for Lot E District Lot 202 Similkameen 
Division Yale District and of District Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale 
Lytton) District Plan 584, located at 770 Argyle Street, from ‘Detached Residential’ to ‘Ground 
Oriented Residential’; 
AND THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-42”, for Lot E 
District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District and of District Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen 
Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 584, located at 770 Argyle Street, a bylaw to 
rezone the subject property from RD1 (Duplex Housing) to RM2 (Low Density Multiple 
Housing); 
AND THAT Council forward “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-41” and 
“Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-42” to the August 16, 2022 Public Hearing; 
AND THAT Council, prior to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-42”, require a 
1.1m road dedication along the western property line (Argyle Street) to be registered with 
the Land Title Office; 
AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-42”, 
approve “Development Permit PL2021-9246”, a permit to approve the form and character of 
the proposed development consisting of 10 dwelling units.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

6.6  Development Variance Permit PL2022-9354 
 Re: 744 Ross Avenue 

 
265/2022  It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9354” for Lot 15 District Lot 
250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 8343, located at 744 Ross Avenue, a permit to 
vary Section 10.1.2.7.a of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01, to reduce the minimum exterior side yard 
from 3.0 m to 2.0 m, in order to facilitate the construction of an attached garage to the single 
family dwelling; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9354”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

6.7  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43 
 Development Permit PL2022-9335 (747 Revelstoke Avenue) 
 Development Permit PL2022-9336 (755 Revelstoke Avenue) 
 Re: 747 and 755 Revelstoke Avenue 

 
266/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43”, for Lot 49 
District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049 
and Lot 48 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District 

- 4 -



    
Minutes of July 19, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 5 of 7 
 
 

Plan 1049, located at 747 and 755 Revelstoke Avenue respectively, a bylaw to rezone the 
subject property from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane); 
AND THAT Council forward “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43” to the August 16, 2022 
Public Hearing; 
AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43”, 
approve “Development Permit PL2022-9335”, for Lot 49 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen 
Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049, located at 747 Revelstoke Avenue, a 
permit to approve the form and character of a duplex; 
AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43”, 
approve “Development Permit PL2022-9336”, for Lot 48 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen 
Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 1049, located at 755 Revelstoke Avenue, a 
permit to approve the form and character of a duplex. 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Permit PL2022-9335” and 
“Development Permit PL2022-9336”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

6.8  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-44 
 Development Variance Permit PL2022-9395 
 Development Permit PL2022-9280 
 Re: 561 Jermyn Avenue 

 
267/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-44”, for Lot 2 District 
Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 1030, located at 561 Jermyn Avenue, a bylaw 
to rezone the subject property from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM2 (Low Density Multiple 
Housing); 
AND THAT Council forward “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-44” to the August 16, 2022 
Public Hearing. 
AND THAT Council, subject to adoption “Zoning Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-44”, 
consider “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9395” for Lot 2 District Lot 249 Similkameen 
Division Yale District Plan 1030, located at 561 Jermyn Avenue, a permit to vary Section 
10.9.2.8.a of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to reduce the exterior side yard from 4.5 m to 1.8 m; 
AND THAT Council subject to approval of “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9395”, 
approve “Development Permit PL2022-9280”, for Lot 2 District Lot 249 Similkameen Division 
Yale District Plan 1030, located at 561 Jermyn Avenue, a permit to allow for the construction 
a four-unit townhouse development. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

7. Public Question Period 
 

8. Recess into a Closed Meeting 
 

268/2022  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council recess at 3:11 p.m. to a closed meeting of Council pursuant to the provisions of 
the Community Charter as follows:  Section 90(1)  
(g) litigation or potential litigation affecting the municipality; 

- 5 -



    
Minutes of July 19, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 6 of 7 
 
 

 (j) information that is prohibited, or information that if it were presented in a document 
would be prohibited, from disclosure under section 21 of the Freedom of Information and 
Protection of Privacy Act;  
(k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed provision of a municipal 
service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in the view of the council, could 
reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality if they were held in public; 
and Section 90(2) 
(b) the consideration of information received and held in confidence relating to negotiations 
between the municipality and a provincial government or the federal government or both, 
or between a provincial government or the federal government or both and a third party. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY   
 

9. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting following the Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. 
 

10. Bylaws and Permits: 
 

10.1  Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-22 and Zoning Amendment  
 Bylaw No. 2022-23 
 Re: 435 Green Avenue West 
 

269/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-22” and “Zoning  
Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-23”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

10.2  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-25 
 Re: 713, 737 and 795 Westminster Avenue West 
 

270/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-25”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

10.3  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-26 
 Re: 221 Huth Avenue 

 
271/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council adopt “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-26”. 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
10.4  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-35 
 Re: 650 and 666 Eckhardt Avenue West 

 
272/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-35”. 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 
 
 
 

- 6 -



    
Minutes of July 19, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 7 of 7 
 
 

 
10.5  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-36 
 Re: 169 Maple Street 

 
273/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-36”. 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
10.6  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-37 
 Re: 924 Fairview Road 
 

274/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-37”. 

DEFEATED 
Mayor Vassilaki and Councillors Bloomfield, Miller, Sentes and Watt, Opposed 

 
11. Notice of Motion 

 
12. Business Arising 

 
13. Public Question Period 

 
14. Council Round Table 

 
15. Adjournment  
 

275/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adjourn the July 19, 2022 Regular meeting of Council at 7:19 p.m. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 

Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 

  
 
 

____________________________ ______________________________ 
Angie Collison  John Vassilaki 
Corporate Officer  Mayor  

- 7 -



 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Public Hearing  
held electronically and at City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C.  
 

Tuesday, July 19, 2022 
at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Present:   Mayor Vassilaki 

  Councillor Bloomfield  
  Councillor Miller 
  Councillor Robinson 
  Councilllor Sentes 
  Councillor Watt  

          
         Absent:   Councillor Regehr 
 
 Staff:  Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer  
     Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
     Angela Campbell, Acting General Manager, Finance & Administration 
     Blake Laven, Director of Development Services  
     Steven Collyer, Planner II 
     Nicole Capewell, Planner II 
     Kristen Dixon, General Manager of Infrastructure  
     Anthony Haddad, General Manager, Community Services   
     Paula McKinnon, Deputy Corporate Officer 
          

1. Call to order 
 

Mayor Vassilaki called the public hearing to order at 6:00 p.m. for Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2022-35. 

 
The Corporate Officer read the opening statement and introduced the purpose of the bylaw. 
She then explained that the public hearing was being held in-person and electronically to 
afford all persons who considered themselves affected by the proposed bylaw an opportunity 
to be heard before Council.  She further indicated that the public hearing was advertised 
pursuant to the Local Government Act. 

  
2. “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-35” (650 and 666 Eckhardt Avenue West) 

 
The purpose of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-35” is to amend Zoning Bylaw  
No. 2021-01 as follows:  

 
Rezone Lot 3 District Lots 2 and 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale 
(Formerly Yale-Lytton) District Plan 1655 Except Plan B4197, located at 650 
Eckhardt Avenue West, and That Part of Lot 3 Shown on Plan B4197; District 

- 8 -



 
Minutes of July 19, 2022  Public Hearing Package No. 1  Page 2 of 3 
    
  

Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District Plan 
1655, located at 666 Eckhardt Avenue West, from C7 (Service Commercial) to 
C3 (Mixed Use Commercial). 
 
The applicant is proposing to construct a six-storey, mixed-use development, 
containing 2,600 sq. ft. of commercial retail space and 70 residential units. 

 
The Corporate Officer advised that no letters have been received since the printing of the 
agenda and distributed to Council. 

 
DELEGATIONS 

 
Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the first time if anyone wished to speak to the application. 
• Brianne McCourt, Development Manager, Mundi Construction, excited to bring project 

forward, 70 market rental accommodations, 2600sqft commercial space, all parking 
onsite and accessed via Pacific crescent. 

• Jordan Shade, Backstreet Boulevard, worried parking will be like on Churchill, busy street. 
Commented no problem with design, just parking is worrisome especially with an event, 
cluttered like Churchill. 

• Lynn Kelsey, Oakville Street, inquired about height being on the flight path, any better 
information received from Transport Canada received. Commented lives within a block, 
planes fly very low, concerned about height, would like more information about it. 

• Lori Goldman, via Zoom, Dauphin Avenue, commented great design, wonderful to see 
more rental housing coming to City, super location. Commented developer addresses a 
lot of climate issues, dealing with great deal of heat, storms and fires, concerned about 
heat in City. Inquired if planted trees will be small or really providing shade canopy, solar 
roof or community garden, solar installed on roof for electric grid. Inquired if developer 
installing heat pumps. Concerned about parking, won’t be enough for shopping, difficult 
for people to access commercial area. Guideline NF1 mentions community amenity 
space, inquired if will be provided. 

• James Brown, Brunswick Street, in favour of project, inquired if wheel chair accessibility 
has been incorporated into design. 

 
Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the second time if anyone wished to speak to the application. 
• Aleda Isaac, via Zoom, concerned about parking and extra traffic, asked what is being 

done to address traffic and resident parking. 
• Lori Goldman, via Zoom, Dauphin Avenue, inquired about EV charging stations, need to 

provide if we are moving to our climate friendly solution. 
 

Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the third and final time if anyone wished to speak to the 
application. 
• Brianne McCourt, Mundi Construction, responded 70 units proposed, providing 89 

parking spaces off-street, qualified for parking reduction of one space, providing 30 
additional bicycle spaces, paying cash in-lieu of both, bike parking help to off-set 
demand. Responded undertook traffic study to make sure existing traffic infrastructure 
wasn’t negatively impacted. Responded building height will be reviewed by applicable 
agencies. Responded ten trees proposed, mix of deciduous and coniferous trees, provide 
nice shading as they grow. Responded additional 30 bicycle stalls, light shading, double 
paned windows, reaching step 1 of BC step code, decision on EV charging not made yet 
but can be looked at. Responded private amenity included on second floor, each unit has 
private balcony. Responded grade at entrance fully accessible, elevators accessing all 
floors. 

- 9 -



 
Minutes of July 19, 2022  Public Hearing Package No. 1  Page 3 of 3 
    
  

• Ken Simpson, Braid Street, opposed to lack of parking on all projects, one per unit is not 
enough, looking at other sites in past that developers bought and allowed only one 
parking spot per unit, half units ended up with 3 cars, not enough, big problem. 

• Lori Goldman, via Zoom, Dauphin Avenue, inquired about answer for solar installation 
and heat pumps.  

• Brianne McCourt, Mundi Construction, no plan for solar installation but open to 
reviewing solar panels and heat pumps as option. 

 
The public hearing for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-35” was terminated at 6:18 p.m. 
and no new information can be received on this matter. 

 
 

Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 
 

_____________________  ________________________ 
Angie Collison   John Vassilaki   
Corporate Officer  Mayor 

- 10 -



 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Public Hearing  
held electronically and at City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C.  
 

Tuesday, July 19, 2022 
at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Present:   Mayor Vassilaki 

  Councillor Bloomfield  
  Councillor Miller 
  Councillor Robinson 
  Councilllor Sentes 
  Councillor Watt  

          
         Absent:   Councillor Regehr 
 
 Staff:  Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer  
     Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
     Angela Campbell, Acting General Manager, Finance & Administration 
     Blake Laven, Director of Development Services  
     Steven Collyer, Planner II 
     Nicole Capewell, Planner II 
     Kristen Dixon, General Manager of Infrastructure  
     Anthony Haddad, General Manager, Community Services   
     Paula McKinnon, Deputy Corporate Officer 
          

1. Call to order 
 

Mayor Vassilaki called the public hearing to order at 6:18 p.m. for Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2022-36. 

 
The Corporate Officer read the opening statement and introduced the purpose of the bylaw. 
She then explained that the public hearing was being held in-person and electronically to 
afford all persons who considered themselves affected by the proposed bylaw an opportunity 
to be heard before Council.  She further indicated that the public hearing was advertised 
pursuant to the Local Government Act. 

  
2. “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-36” (169 Maple Street) 

 
The purpose of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-36” is to amend Zoning Bylaw  
No. 2021-01 as follows:  

 
Rezone Lot B District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale 
Lytton) District Plan EPP119095, located at 169 Maple Street, from R2 (Small 
Lot Residential) to RD4 (Low Density Cluster Housing). 

- 11 -



 
Minutes of July 19, 2022  Public Hearing Package No. 2  Page 2 of 2 
    
  

 
The applicant is proposing to rezone the subject property to enable the 
construction of a four-unit cluster housing development. The proposal 
consists of two duplexes, one facing Maple Street and the other facing the 
rear lane. The buildings are two-storeys in height, with all parking off the rear 
lane. 

 
The Corporate Officer advised that two letters have been received since the printing of the 
agenda and distributed to Council. 

 
DELEGATIONS 

 
Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the first time if anyone wished to speak to the application. 
• Chris Schoenne, Applicant, 290 Abbott Street, addressed construction noise and dust, 

understands it’s a nuisance, takes neighbours experience very serious, available to 
answer any questions. 

• Lynn Kelsey, Oakville Street, commented lives close to developer’s site, compliments 
workers, respectful to neighbours, worksite very clean. 

• Lori Goldman, via Zoom, Dauphin Avenue, climate related concerns, inquired about 
plans for EV charging stations and solar installation on roof, whether will definitely put in 
heat pumps. 

Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the second time if anyone wished to speak to the application. 
• Ken Simpson, Braid Street, inquired about proposed parking stalls. 

 
Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the third and final time if anyone wished to speak to the 
application. 
• Chris Schoenne, Applicant, responded in regards to climate, trying to obtain BC step 

code four, higher level than required. Responded will not be putting in solar from get go 
but will have everything ready and in place, plan to offer as package, ductless vent units 
with heat pumps. Responded five stalls, one stall for each unit, visitor, on street parking is 
sparse, shouldn’t be an issue based on observations. 

 
The public hearing for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-36” was terminated at 6:27 p.m. 
and no new information can be received on this matter. 

 
 

Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 
 

_____________________  ________________________ 
Angie Collison   John Vassilaki   
Corporate Officer  Mayor 

- 12 -



 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Public Hearing  
held electronically and at City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C.  
 

Tuesday, July 19, 2022 
at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Present:   Mayor Vassilaki 

  Councillor Bloomfield  
  Councillor Miller 
  Councillor Robinson 
  Councilllor Sentes 
  Councillor Watt  

          
         Absent:   Councillor Regehr 
 
 Staff:  Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer  
     Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
     Angela Campbell, Acting General Manager, Finance & Administration 
     Blake Laven, Director of Development Services  
     Steven Collyer, Planner II 
     Nicole Capewell, Planner II 
     Kristen Dixon, General Manager of Infrastructure  
     Anthony Haddad, General Manager, Community Services   
     Paula McKinnon, Deputy Corporate Officer 
          

1. Call to order 
 

Mayor Vassilaki called the public hearing to order at 6:27 p.m. for Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2022-37. 

 
The Corporate Officer read the opening statement and introduced the purpose of the bylaw. 
She then explained that the public hearing was being held in-person and electronically to 
afford all persons who considered themselves affected by the proposed bylaw an opportunity 
to be heard before Council.  She further indicated that the public hearing was advertised 
pursuant to the Local Government Act. 

  
2. “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-37” (924 Fairview Road) 

 
The purpose of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-37” is to amend Zoning Bylaw  
No. 2021-01 as follows:  

 
Rezone Lot 1 District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 37914, 
located at 924 Fairview Road, from RD1 (Duplex Housing) to RM2 (Low 
Density Multiple Housing). 

- 13 -



 
Minutes of July 19, 2022  Public Hearing Package No. 3  Page 2 of 3 
    
  

 
The applicant is proposing to construct a 7-unit, three-storey townhouse 
development consisting of one fourplex and one triplex. Access will be from 
a new internal driveway and each unit will have its own garage and rear yard. 

 
The Corporate Officer advised that one letter has been received since the printing of the 
agenda and distributed to Council. 

 
DELEGATIONS 

 
Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the first time if anyone wished to speak to the application. 
• Tony Giroux, via Zoom, Giroux Design Group, representing Developer with design of 

project, met zoning requirements for parking, parking regulations have been explored 
for many years, have to find different way to deal with parking situation. Commented 
OCP allows 6-storey building, far denser scenario, on lower end of what OCP allows, feels 
it’s a fair submission. Commented City taking road allowance at front, variance 
requesting is less than road dedication being taken. Commented doing best to provide 
affordable housing, family housing, make best use for land. Commented looks forward to 
hearing positive outcome. Available to answer any questions. 

• William, lives next door to development, commented original road at end of Scott Rd., 
changed due to bike lane, lost all parking from end-to-end. Commented Scott Rd. forks, 
bike lane there, high risk for crashes. Commented overdevelopment of property, not that 
big. Lives in building next door, 28 units, only 24 parking stalls, parking already an issue. 
Commented front entrance cuts bike lane off, very damaging corner for accidents, 
watched emergency vehicles almost collide on several occasions. Commented area 
changed radically, can’t have entrance crossing bike lane, high risk corner. Commented 
biosphere over 75 years old, amount of trees taken down detrimental to biosphere. 
Commented back lane very small, legal fourplex behind property, undeveloped lane. 
Commented impact on biosphere, wildlife, community, parking issue, due to bike lane, 
high impact, dangerous corner.  

• James Brown, Brunswick Street, inquired about wheelchair accessibility. Commented 
need for market to accommodate people with barriers and disabilities. 

• Brigid Kemp, Warren Avenue W, commented on new internal driveway, inquired exit 
onto back or Fairview. 

• Lori Goldman, via Zoom, Dauphin Avenue, commented too dense with exit on 
dangerous corner and bike lane. Concerned about density, no accommodation for one 
or two bedroom, need mixed housing, building should have common space like 
community garden. Commented must consider people who live here, no affordable or 
suitable homes. Commented good to see step 3, does not see solar for roof, EV charging 
stations or heat pumps. Inquired if trees will be tall shade trees. Inquired about waste 
solutions, seeking clarity. Concerned about safety, great on bike route and providing 
housing. Inquired if they will be rented or for sale. 

 
Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the second time if anyone wished to speak to the application. 
• No one spoke. 

 
Mayor Vassilaki asked the public for the third and final time if anyone wished to speak to the 
application. 
• Jordan Shade, Blackstreet Boulevard, inquired about cost of rent, if building materials will 

be local or imported. 
• Ken Simpson, Braid Street, inquired about parking, need more parking, not everyone will 

be riding bikes, thousands of people with mobility issues, likes to be able to get to front 

- 14 -



 
Minutes of July 19, 2022  Public Hearing Package No. 3  Page 3 of 3 
    
  

door. Commented we need more parking. 
• Tony Giroux, via Zoom, Giroux Design Group, responded role of developers to be 

profitable or won’t develop. Commented put forward profitable project while addressing 
social housing, accessibility, energy efficiency concerns, affordable housing concerns, 
can’t address all concerns with one development. Responded providing family housing, 
not for seniors, not one or two-bedroom housing, only way to be profitable is 7-family 
units on property to make development worthwhile. Commented complex discussion, 
everything adds money to development.  Commented everyone attends with important 
specific agendas, putting forward fair project that will provide housing. Responded heat 
pumps, solar panels depend if developer can be profitable and afforded, must be 
cautious with how money is spent. Commented presenting solid development for this 
property. 

 
The public hearing for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-37” was terminated at 6:48 p.m. 
and no new information can be received on this matter. 

 
 

Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 
 

_____________________  ________________________ 
Angie Collison   John Vassilaki   
Corporate Officer  Mayo 

- 15 -



 

Minutes 
 
 
 

Heritage & Museum Advisory Committee Meeting  
held via Zoom 

Wednesday, August 3, 2022 
at 1:00 p.m. 

 
Present: Brad Hillis, Chair 
 Karen Collins, Vice Chair 
 Peter Achtem 
 Emily Fitzowich 
 Anne Hargrave  
 Viv Lieskovsky 
 
Council Liaison: Judy Sentes, Councillor 
   
Staff: Anthony Haddad, General Manager of Community Services 
 Kelsey Johnson, Manager of Recreation, Arts and Culture  
 Dennis Oomen, Museum Manager 
 Hayley Anderson, Legislative Assistant 
  
Regrets: Blake Allen 
 Jeanette Beaven 
 Nicole Ensing 
 Blake Laven, Director of Development Services 
 
1. Call to Order 
 

The Heritage & Museum Advisory Committee was called to order by the Chair at 1:03 pm.  
 
2. Adoption of Agenda 

 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Heritage and Museum Advisory Committee adopt the agenda for the meeting held 
on August 3, 2022 as amended by adding item 4.3 – Heritage Register Update.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
3. Adoption of Minutes 

 
3.1 Minutes of the June 8, 2022 Heritage and Museum Advisory Committee 
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Heritage and Museum Advisory Committee adopt the minutes of the June 8, 2022 
meeting as presented. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

- 16 -



 

Page 2 of 3 
Minutes of the June 8, 2022 Heritage & Museum Advisory Committee 

 

4. New Business 
 

4.1 Light Scroll Update – Kelsey Johnson, Manager of Recreation, Arts and Culture 
 
The Manager of Recreation, Arts and Culture provided the Committee with an update on 
behalf of the Public Works Manager. It was determined that the most suitable location 
for the light scroll be the intersection of Power Street and Lakeshore Drive. This was 
based on sightlines from the highway and Lakeshore Dr, available electrical 
infrastructure and stakeholder engagement. A budget amendment will be required as 
the cost estimate for the new light scroll exceeds the current budget. Fabrication and 
installation will be complete in 2023. 

 
A member of the Committee asked if the lights would be static white or if they would 
have the ability to change color. The Manager of Recreation, Arts and Culture will update 
the Committee when that information is available. A Committee member suggested 
there be an installation with the history of the light scrolls in Penticton with a photo from 
the archives. Staff will take this suggestion into consideration. 
 

4.2 Heritage Signage Project Update – Dennis Oomen, Manager/Curator, Penticton Museum 
and Archives 

 
The Manager/Curator, Penticton Museum and Archives provided the Committee with an 
update on the Heritage Signage Project. The report is going forward to Council for 
consideration on August 16, 2022. After the Council meeting, public education on the 
project will start, with a series of articles going into the local newspaper.  
 

4.3 Update on Heritage Register 
 

Information to come forward at a later date.  
 

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Heritage & Museum Advisory Committee recommend that Council consider a two to four year 
term for future Heritage & Museum Advisory Committees. 
                  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
5. Public Question Period 
 
6. Adjournment 
  
 It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT the Heritage and Museum Advisory Committee adjourn the meeting held on August 3, 
2022 at 1:22 pm. 

                  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

- 17 -



 

Page 3 of 3 
Minutes of the June 8, 2022 Heritage & Museum Advisory Committee 

 

 
 
Certified Correct: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Hayley Anderson 
Legislative Assistant 

- 18 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022      File No:  RMS 6440-01 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Blake Laven, Director of Development Services   
 
Subject: Penticton Food Security Strategy  

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council endorse the ‘Penticton Food Security Strategy’ as included in Attachment A.  

Strategic priority objective 

Vision: A vibrant, innovative, healthy waterfront city focused on sustainability, community and economic 
opportunity.  

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Background  

Council adopted Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 2019-08 in August 2019. The OCP included the 
development of a ‘food system strategy’ as a mid-term (3-5 year) implementation goal. Shortly after the 
adoption of the OCP, the City was invited to apply for a grant through the Ministry of Health’s ‘Community 
Food Action Initiative’ (CFAI) granting program. Council at the November 11, 2019 meeting, passed a 
resolution directing staff to apply for the grant for the development of a food security plan for Penticton and 
for budgetary commitment to the City’s matching contribution to the grant (Council resolution 498/2019). 

The City was successful in the grant application and has been working on the development of the strategy 
over the past 18 months. The strategy is now complete and this report is recommending that Council 
endorse the finalized plan and support implementation of the plan.      

Plan development  

As outlined in the grant application, this strategy has been developed with the assistance of outside 
consultants and was guided by an advisory group of industry professionals and interested community 
members. This advisory group, called the Food Security Working Group, includes members of various food 
related organizations and governmental representatives and met on a regular basis to guide the creation of 
the RFP that led to the hiring of Urban Systems, the consulting firm that developed the plan, and on the plan 
development itself.  

- 19 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 3 

The development of the plan included a significant amount of background research, including reviewing 
Penticton policies and practices and identifying gaps in our current approach to food system policy. Asset 
and inventory mapping was completed to understand spatially what was occurring in Penticton and what 
was possible, given our ample agricultural land base. A review of best practices and research into other 
communities was done. And a significant amount of public and stakeholder engagement was done to 
develop the draft plan.  

The draft plan went through several rounds of edits and was reviewed both publically through the shape 
your City portal and media attention, but also through in-depth review by the Working Group.     

Indigenous food sovereignty and Penticton Indian Band (PIB) involvement 

The plan has a specific section dealing with indigenous food sovereignty and involvement of the Penticton 
Indian Band was sought throughout the development of the plan and in review of the final plan. The 
Working Group had PIB representation. The final plan acknowledges the importance of the natural food 
systems that historically have nourished and sustained the local first nations and the negative impact and 
disruption that settlement has had on those traditional food systems. The Strategy and its Action Plan 
includes a commitment to develop and maintain collaborative relationships with local Indigenous Nations, 
organizations, and individuals to promote Indigenous food sovereignty and food security. 

Plan details 

The plan is broken up into the following four main sections: 

Section 1: An introduction of food security, key concepts used in the Strategy, and a summary of 
methodology used.  

Section 2: Background context for understanding food security and food systems in Penticton.  

Section 3: Outcomes of the research and community engagement process: the vision statement, objectives, 
strategies and initiatives, as well as other aspects of implementation.   

Section 4: A description of the pilot projects that could be implemented on adoption of the Strategy by 
Penticton City Council, which include: 

- Creation of a food security Council 
- Promoting the use of agricultural lands for food productions  
- Soil protection bylaw  
- Animal husbandry policies and regulations (urban hen, bees etc.)   
- Zoning to promote food retail (food stands in residential areas etc.) 
- Penticton to lead or participate in a larger regional food security plan  

The plan also has a number of appendices, including mapping, research of food security approaches from 
other communities and engagement results.  

Financial implication 

The development of the Food Security Strategy was supported through grant funding by the Community 
Food Action Initiative (CFAI), a program run through the provincial Ministry of Health. The total project cost 

- 20 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 3 

was $90,000 and budgeted over three years, with matching City contributions ($15K in 2019, $15k in 2020 
and $15K in 2021).  

Climate Action  

The City of Penticton Community Climate Action Plan (CCAP) outlines a path towards a low carbon future: A 
future where City residents experience the benefits of a connected, healthy and economically prosperous 
community while taking action on climate change and adapting to climate impacts.  

Penticton’s Community Climate Action Plan identifies the importance of local food to support climate 
change ‘mitigation’. Supporting local agriculture and soil building are listed at the intersection of climate 
change ‘mitigation’ and ‘adaption’.  

Analysis 

The development of the Food Security Strategy was an objective of the Official Community Plan. The plan 
was developed with extensive oversight and involvement of the community and is reflective of a broad 
range of inputs.   

Next steps 

The strategy outlines several early implementation goals. The first of which is the creation of a food security 
council and having a coordinator for the council. The idea of the food security council is to build off the 
momentum of the strategy and begin implementing the various objectives. Staff have been working closely 
with the United Way on setting up a local Food Hub with an administrator, which would act as the local 
coordinator and support the food security council. The goal is to have the council and coordinator in place 
by the end of 2022.   

Given the above, staff are recommending that Council adopt the plan.  

Attachments 

Attachment A – Penticton Food Security Strategy  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Blake Laven, 
Director of Development Services  

Concurrence  

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

 
DvD 

 
 

- 21 -



Food Security 
Strategy
AUGUST 2022

- 22 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE i 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Penticton Food Security Strategy was developed by: 

 
 
 
 

City of Penticton Development Services 
Department 

 
 

 
 

With support from Urban Systems Ltd. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 23 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE ii 

Acknowledgements 
The City of Penticton would like to thank the Penticton Food Security Strategy 
Working Group members for their involvement, support, and ongoing review; key 
stakeholders and First Nations for their feedback and consideration, and the public 
for their interest and time participating in engagement activities. The City would also 
like to acknowledge grant funding from Interior Health’s Community Food Action 
Initiative which supported this project. 

  

- 24 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE iii 

Territory Acknowledgement 
The Penticton Food Security Strategy outlines recommendations for collaborative 
action by the City of Penticton and partner organizations. The City and surrounding 
area are located within the unceded territory of the Syilx Nation who are the 
traditional and present day stewards of their territory.   

- 25 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE iv 

CONTENTS 
List of Acronyms ........................................................................................................................................................ vi 

1 Introduction: Penticton Grown Food Security ................................................................................ 1 

1.1 Strategy Outline ....................................................................................................................................... 2 

1.2 Key Concepts .............................................................................................................................................. 3 

1.2.1 Food Security .................................................................................................................................... 3 

1.2.2 Food System ..................................................................................................................................... 4 

1.2.3 Food Security Assets .................................................................................................................... 4 

1.3 Methodology .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

1.3.1 Background Research ................................................................................................................. 5 

1.3.2 Engagement .....................................................................................................................................6 

1.3.3 Develop Food Security Strategy............................................................................................ 7 

2 Community Information Overview ...................................................................................................... 8 

2.1 Community Profile..................................................................................................................................9 

2.1.1 Demographics and Housing ...................................................................................................9 

2.1.2 Agriculture ........................................................................................................................................ 10 

2.1.3 Indigenous Food Sovereignty .............................................................................................. 13 

2.1.4 Food Insecurity .............................................................................................................................. 16 

2.1.5 Community Priorities ................................................................................................................ 20 

2.2 Geographical Context ........................................................................................................................ 22 

2.2.1 Food Security Assets .................................................................................................................. 22 

2.2.2 Agricultural Land Use Designations ................................................................................ 28 

2.2.3 Local Government Policy Gap Analysis and Best Practices Review 
Summary ............................................................................................................................................................. 30 

2.3 Climate Change Impacts ................................................................................................................. 32 

3 The Strategy ...................................................................................................................................................... 34 

3.1 Vision and Objectives ......................................................................................................................... 35 

3.2 Collaboration and Community Leadership.......................................................................... 36 

3.3 Action Plan ................................................................................................................................................ 38 

3.3.1 Who ...................................................................................................................................................... 38 

3.3.2 How ...................................................................................................................................................... 38 

3.3.3 When ................................................................................................................................................... 39 

3.4 Funding Opportuities ........................................................................................................................ 54 

- 26 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE v 

4 Pilot Project Spotlight ................................................................................................................................. 56 

 

FIGURES 
Figure 1.1: Community Food Security Continuum ................................................................................ 4 
Figure 2.1: 2016 Penticton Census Profile Dwellings .......................................................................... 10 
Figure 2.2: Crop Field Production Acres in RDOS Areas D, E, F .................................................... 11 
Figure 2.3: Food Security Assets – South .................................................................................................. 26 
Figure 2.4: Food Security Assets – North .................................................................................................. 27 
Figure 2.5: Agricultural Land Use Designations ................................................................................... 29 

 
TABLES 
Table 2.1: Policy Gap Analysis and Best Practices Summary ........................................................ 30 
Table 3.1: Potential Funding Sources .......................................................................................................... 54 
Table 4.1: Pilot Project Options ....................................................................................................................... 56 
 

APPENDICES 
Appendix A – Background Report 

Appendix B – Community Engagement Results  

 

- 27 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE vi 

LIST OF ACRONYMS 

ALR - The Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) is a collection of productive land in British 
Columbia in which agriculture is recognized as the priority use. 1  

KPU – Kwantlen Polytechnic University 

OCP – An Official Community Plan (OCP) are used to describe the long-term vision for 
communities. 2 

ONA - Okanagan Nation Alliance 

PFSS – Penticton Food Security Strategy 

RDOS – Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen 

TOTA – Thompson Okanagan Tourism Association 

 
1 Provincial Agricultural Land Commission, Agricultural Land. https://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/alc/content/alr-
maps/agricultural-land 
2 Province of British Columbia, British Columbians and our Governments, “Official Community Plans for 
Local Governments”. https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/governments/local-governments/planning-
land-use/local-government-planning/official-community-plans 

- 28 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE   

 

 

- 29 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 1 

1 INTRODUCTION: PENTICTON GROWN FOOD 

SECURITY 

The City of Penticton’s Official Community Plan outlines the importance of 
agriculture, food systems, and food sustainability to the City’s economy and its 
residents’ well-being. Penticton is one of the most productive agricultural regions in 
Canada. The Penticton Food Security Strategy (‘the Strategy’/PFSS) focuses on 
understanding, assessing, and planning for food security mainly within the City of 
Penticton, with some regional information included for context. 

Penticton’s overarching goal is to work towards achieving resilient food 
systems and to ensure equitable food access for all residents.  

Food security relates to equitable and sufficient access to food. The concept also refers 
to the long-term security, resiliency, and sustainability of our food systems. Improving 
food security means more than ensuring that residents experiencing food insecurity 
have access to charitable food assistance programs. It means that improvements are 
made to the overall system to promote food access and system sustainability. The 
Penticton Food Security Strategy addresses several factors that impact food security 
locally such as the regulation of farming activities, access to public garden space, and 
access to food-related social programming. Other factors, such as the high cost of 
housing and the rising cost of food, are difficult to address locally, but are recognized 
as contributing to food insecurity.  

Progress on this issue requires an integrated and collaborative approach involving 
local government, community organizations, and provincial and federal governments. 
The Strategy brings together ideas from diverse community organizations, First 
Nations and Indigenous organizations, the City of 
Penticton, and provincial ministries to establish a 
comprehensive approach to advancing food security.  

The Strategy required community-buy in and support 
from the Penticton Food Security Strategy Working 
Group, local stakeholders, and the public.  

Key outcomes from the Strategy are a vision of food 
security in Penticton, key objectives, and strategies and 
initiatives to improve food security. 

 

The Strategy is a 
guide to promoting 
sufficient access to 
appropriate, 
affordable, and 
nutritious food and 
Penticton. 

- 30 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 2 

1.1 STRATEGY OUTLINE 

The Strategy contains four sections: 

Section 1 – An introduction of food security, key concepts used in the Strategy, and a 
summary of methodology used. 

Section 2 – Background context for understanding food security and food systems in 
Penticton. 

Section 3 – Outcomes of the research and community engagement process: the 
vision statement, objectives, strategies and initiatives, as well as other aspects of 
implementation.  

Section 4 – A description of the pilot projects, of which one will be implemented on 
adoption of the Strategy by Penticton City Council.  

- 31 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 3 

1.2 KEY CONCEPTS 

The Strategy has been developed using the following key concepts. 

1.2.1 Food Security 
The Strategy bases its definition of ‘food security’ on that put forward by Interior 
Health,5 which states: 

Food security means that everyone has equitable access to food that is affordable, 
culturally preferable, nutritious and safe. Food security includes a broad range of 
areas, including building healthy food systems, food security, and Indigenous food 
sovereignty.  

The road to food security has been illustrated as a Community Food Security 
Continuum.6 The first stage is described as “efficiency”, wherein responses to hunger 
are answered with immediate solutions such as food banks and soup kitchens. As part 
of the second stage of “participation/transition”, community organizations and actors 
come together to provide tools to address food security challenges. In the third 
“redesign” stage of the roadmap, the systems which contribute to food security are 
addressed through policy and mechanisms at different levels of government. 
Education, policy, and research take place throughout the various stages of the 
continuum. 

Although the continuum presents food security efforts as a linear progression from 
Stage 1 to Stage 3, in actual practice the work often involves efforts taking place at all 
the stages simultaneously to achieve community food security. While it is critical to 
respond to emergent food access needs in the community, this need may never 
decrease without policies that address adequate income and other system level 
supports. Local food systems can be strengthened by community capacity building 
initiatives such as food box programs, community gardens, and networks that engage 
citizens. These initiatives can help generate interest in food system issues and increase 
support for policy change at all levels of government. Conversely, supportive food 
system policies can make it easier for communities to develop projects like 
community gardens. 

Figure 1.1 shows an adapted version of the Community Food Security Continuum. 

5 Interior Health, Nutrition and Food Security. https://www.interiorhealth.ca/health-and-wellness/healthy-
living/nutrition-and-food-security?msclkid=554f1d0bb1d011eca5910ff31556bedf 
6 Figure adapted from “Making the Connection – Food Security and Public Healthy”. Ministry of Health 
Services and The Health Authorities of British Columbia, June 2004. Prepared by the Community 
Nutritionists Council of BC. 

- 32 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 4 

 

Figure 1.1: Community Food Security Continuum 

 

1.2.2 Food System 
The food system is the process that food undergoes to reach our plates. It is a series of 
interlocking processes which combine production (including hunting, fishing, 
farming, gardening, and raising animals), processing, distribution, consumption, and 
waste recovery. At present, our food system is a complex global network which, in 
Canada, is dominated by a few grocery retailers.7  

An additional aspect of a healthy food system, as noted by the Food and Agriculture 
Organization of the United Nation,8 is crop diversity and seed security. Unfortunately, 
through agricultural industrialization and modern produce distribution practices, 
much of the seed and crop diversity that used to exist has severely diminished. 
Encouraging crop diversity and farmers having control over their own seed supply will 
have positive consequences for the localized adaptation of seeds for specific 
microclimates and to changing climate conditions.  

1.2.3 Food Security Assets 
Food security assets are natural resources, infrastructure, organizations, businesses, 
and institutions which contribute to food security by providing and distributing food, 

 
7 Kwantlen Polytechnic University, Institute for Sustainable Food Systems. Bringing Our Food Systems 
Home: Report on the Okanagan Bioregion Food System Project. August 2021. 
8 Food and Agriculture Organization of the Unity Nations, NSP – Seed Security and Rehabilitation. 
https://www.fao.org/agriculture/crops/thematic-sitemap/theme/seeds-pgr/seed-
sys/security/en/#:~:text=Seed%20security%20is%20defined%20as,normal%20and%20abnormal%20weat
her%20conditions 

- 33 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 5 

increasing knowledge, and bringing people or resources together to advance food 
security.9 

1.3 METHODOLOGY 

This section summarizes the activities which comprised the development of the 
Strategy. 

1.3.1 Background Research 
The initial background research included a review of local policies and plans, policy 
gap analysis, best practices in food security review, and an inventory of food security 
assets. Key resources relating to food systems and food security in Penticton were also 
reviewed, including reports from Kwantlen Polytechnic University’s Institute for 
Sustainable Food Systems’ Okanagan Bioregion Food System Project.    

Refer to Appendix A - Background 
Report for the results of the Policy 
Review and Gap Analysis, Best 
Practices Review, and Asset 
Inventory and Mapping. 

1.3.1.1 Policy Review and Gap 
Analysis 

A review and analysis of current City 
policies was conducted as a part of 
the background review. Gaps were 
noted where policy may be lacking 
and where and how other local 
governments have addressed 
particular issues.  

1.3.1.2 Asset Inventory and 
Mapping 

To support the policy review and background research, an asset inventory was 
conducted to further understand the City’s local food system. The assets incorporated 
into mapping were grocery stores, food-related social programming, agriculture 
supply and education locations, community gardens, farmers’ markets and farm box 
programs, relevant industry associations, and wineries/vineyards.12 

9 The meaning of this term was developed through the planning process with the Working Group. 
12 Although wineries/vineyards may not contribute to food security, it is important to show where 
vineyards and wineries are located and how agricultural land is being used in Penticton. 

4 

- 34 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 6 

1.3.1.3 Best Practices Review 

A best practices review was conducted to gather inspiring ideas from other 
communities across BC and around the world. These best practices demonstrated 
different ways of addressing challenges related to food security.  

Refer Section 2.2 for a description of mapped content and to view food security assets 
in Figure 2.3 and Figure 2.4. Section 0 provides a summary of the policy gap analysis 
and best practices review. 

1.3.2 Engagement 
The community engagement process provided important local and experiential 
context. The information gathered from the engagement activities were analysed for 
key trends, gaps, and insights. Engagement included ongoing liaison with a working 
group, key stakeholder workshops, targeted interviews, and two community surveys 
(one collecting initial information in June 2021 which is referred to throughout the 
Strategy, and one during the Strategy review phase in fall 2021).  

Appendix B provides a full description of activities 
and community survey results. 

1.3.2.1 PFSS Working Group 

The Strategy was created through collaboration with 
a working group. The PFSS Working Group helped to 
provide valuable background on local food security 
issues. The working group also provided invaluable 
feedback and helped direct the process through 
regular check-ins. 

1.3.2.2 Key Stakeholder Workshops 

The stakeholder workshops took place through the summer of 2021. There were three 
focus group workshops conducted virtually with a total of 18 participants. Participants 
represented various charitable organizations within the community, local food 
producers, and community organizations. 

1.3.2.3 Community Survey 

A community survey was disseminated virtually and received 472 responses. The goal 
of the survey was to get a sense of how people access their food, community food-
related priorities, and where there may be opportunities to address current 
challenges. The survey yielded a variety of interesting opportunities, challenges, and 
ideas for local initiatives.  

While the survey responses were helpful in describing the current food security reality 
in Penticton, the results are not necessarily statistically representative of key groups, 
such as those living in low-income situations or members of the 2SLGBTQI+ 
community. Therefore, any policy or program development aimed at specific 
population groups would benefit from a more thorough, targeted research.  

5 

Engagement Activities: 

 Working Group 
 Stakeholder 

workshops 
 Community survey 

- 35 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 7 

1.3.3 Develop Food Security Strategy 
The Strategy was developed by assessing gaps and needs 
indicated by community engagement within the context 
of the policy gap analysis, best practices review, and food 
security assets review. 

The Strategy results in an Action Plan which is based on 
an overall vision and includes broad objectives, strategies, 
and initiatives which aim to result in improved food 
security and more resilient food systems in Penticton.  

- 36 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 8 

2 COMMUNITY INFORMATION OVERVIEW 

This section examines the results of all information gathered through both research 
and engagement. It supports the development of the Action Plan’s objectives 
strategies, and initiatives by identifying areas of opportunity and community needs. 

- 37 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 9 

2.1 COMMUNITY PROFILE 

Local population demographics, housing pressures, and changes in agricultural 
practices and land availability in Penticton provide the Strategy with a comprehensive 
understanding of food security experiences in the community. In addition, 
engagement results have helped to define key community priorities. These priorities 
contributed to identifying Strategy actions and pilot project options.  

Appendix A provides additional background information. 

2.1.1 Demographics and Housing 
The City of Penticton has a population of 36,885, based on census information from 
2021.13 Since 2016,14 the population has grown by 9%. Population projections from BC 
Stats suggest that, in the Penticton Local Health Area, the population could grow at a 
rate of approximately 1% per year, although if trends from the past five years continue, 
the future growth rate could be higher.15   

The 2016 census shows that the median age of Penticton’s population is 52.4 years, 
slightly lower than in the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS). The 
median age of the RDOS is higher however than the BC median age.  

Similar to other areas across BC, Penticton faces some challenges in terms of housing 
availability and affordability.16 The rental vacancy rate in the city is an average of 1.2% 
across housing types. Among both renters and owners, 58% of households fall below 
the affordability standard, paying more than 30% of their income on housing costs. 
Renter households are in a more difficult situation, with 68% spending more than 30% 
of their income on shelter.17 

In Penticton, the living wage required to address local housing costs and other 
general costs of living is $18.55. While not the highest in the province, it is higher than 
Kelowna and Kamloops, keeping in mind that these communities also have 
significant housing affordability and availability challenges at present. The relatively 
high cost of living in Penticton puts pressure on households’ finances and ability to 
buy the food they need (refer to Section 2.1.4 for more information on this issue).  

13 Statistics Canada. 2022. (table). Census Profile. 2021 Census. Statistics Canada Catalogue no. 98-316-
X2021001. Ottawa. Released February 9, 2022. 
https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2021/dp-pd/prof/index.cfm?Lang=E (accessed April 5, 
2022). 
14 At the time of developing this report, only population information from the 2021 census had been 
released, with all other information (e.g., age, dwellings, etc. from the 2016 census). 
15 Calculations based on information from BC Stats, Population Projects. 
https://bcstats.shinyapps.io/popProjApp/ 
16 Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, Housing Market Information Portal. https://www03.cmhc-
schl.gc.ca/hmip-pimh/en#Profile/5907041/4/Penticton%20(CY)%20(British%20Columbia) 
17 Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, “Core Housing Need (2016) – Penticton (CY)”. 
https://www03.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/hmip-pimh/en#Profile/5907041/4/Penticton (CY) (British Columbia) 

- 38 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 10 

Another aspect to consider about the housing situation and how it may impact food 
security in Penticton is the higher proportion of apartments and attached homes (i.e., 
multi-unit housing). This is indicated clearly by the 2016 census.  

Figure 2.1: 2016 Penticton Census Profile Dwellings 

The lack of yard space for people living in multi-unit housing means that few would 
have the opportunity to grow any of their own produce (or keep chickens) and as a 
result would rely even more heavily on grocery stores or other sources of produce. 
Community survey results saw more responses from single detached home-owners 
or renters, however they also indicate that a significant proportion of Penticton 
residents have no access to space for a garden. 

The preponderance of multi-unit housing also suggests that there may be a greater 
need for common or public gardening areas such as community gardens. This is 
discussed further in Section 2.2.1.3.  

2.1.2 Agriculture 
The City of Penticton has a considerable amount of land dedicated to agriculture, 
however in Penticton and the surrounding area much of the arable land is currently 
vineyards producing wine grapes as opposed to crops which contribute to local food 
production. There are 672 hectares irrigated using city water on 298 properties.18 Of 

18 Information provided by City of Penticton. 

Community Survey Results 

34% live in apartments or townhomes 

27% have no access to a gardening area 

- 39 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 11 

Penticton’s 4,447 hectares, there are 1,341 hectares of land zoned Agricultural, as well 
as 839 hectares within the ALR. Refer to Figure 2.5 which shows Penticton’s land base 
and agricultural land designations. There are 24 wineries in Penticton, up from 12 in 
2005, when the Penticton Agricultural Plan was done. Refer to Figure 2.3 and Figure 
2.4 which shows the number and locations of wineries in Penticton.19 

Although the Strategy does not include a thorough review of current agricultural 
production within Penticton city limits, it is possible to comment on cultivation trends 
in the surrounding electoral areas using 2016 agricultural census information. In 
Electoral Areas D, E, and F, which 
immediately border Penticton, there are 
563 farms, including livestock operations. 
Crop farming makes up 84% of all farm 
operations. Electoral Area D is to the 
southeast of Penticton and includes 
Okanagan Falls. Electoral E is to the 
northeast and includes Naramata, while Area F is to the northwest, bordering 
Penticton IR # 1 and Summerland.20   

Figure 2.2: Crop Field Production Acres in RDOS Areas D, E, F 

In Electoral Areas D, E, 
and F almost all field 
crop production by 
area is in fruit, with the 
majority of fruit 
production devoted to 
grapes. Although the 
agricultural census 
does not specify wine 
or table grapes, based 
on the number of 
wineries in the vicinity, 
it is likely that most 
grape production is in 
wine grapes.  

Between 2011 and 2016 
the number of farms 
in Areas D and E 
decreased slightly 
while in Area F the 
number increased 

 
19 Only wineries with attached vineyards have been included as the analysis relates to agricultural land 
use. 
20 There was no information available for Area I to the southwest. 

Many farms grow fruit 
while only about one fifth 
of farms raise livestock or 
grow vegetables. 

Fruits Vegetables (non-greenhouse) Sod and nursery products

Grapes: 1,821 acres
Apples: 995 acres
Cherries: 597 acres
Peaches: 176 acres

Pears: 90 acres 
Blueberries: 41 acres 
Apricots: 37 acres 
All other: 29 acres 

Fruits: 97% 

- 40 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 12 

marginally. About 10% of farms in 2016 raised cattle, 10% grew vegetables, and a small 
number of operations raised animals, raised chickens for meat and eggs, and grew 
hay.21 Most farms however are fruit and tree nut farms, which includes vineyards.  

In both Areas D and E, most fruit and nut tree producing acres are in grape 
production.23 In Area F a larger proportion are in apple production. However, in all 
three areas the number of farms producing apples decreased. This could be due to 
very low apple prices in recent years, a challenge which has been noted in community 
engagement and by other sources.24 In Electoral Area D, the number of grape growing 
farms and acres in grape production increased significantly. At the same time the 
number of acres of apples declined by more than a quarter, and while acres of all other 
fruit or nut trees decreased by 14%.  

Fruit production in Area E has followed a very different trend. The number of 
producers and acres growing grapes dropped dramatically while the production of 
all other fruit and nut trees (except apples) increased. In Area F, grape production 
did not increase while the acres in production for all other types of fruit has 
increased by 13%. 

A notable gap in agricultural assets in the Penticton area are farms producing locally 
adapted seeds. A business dedicated to producing seed would help to protect seed 
and crop diversity and improve local adaptation. 

Based on the agricultural information gathered, the following challenges and 
opportunities are identified: 

Key challenges Opportunities 
 

 A lack of agricultural and product 
diversity with production focused 
on grapes 

 High cost of land in Penticton and 
the Okanagan 

 Low apple prices 
 Lack of aggregators for certain 

products 
 Lack of local abattoirs  
 Lack of access for small producers 

to major retail grocery stores 

 
 Focus on diversification to 

strengthen the local food system, 
including producing and saving 
locally adapted seed 

 Find alternatives to costly leases 
and land purchase 

 Support aggregation 
 Support abattoir creation 
 Support creative marketing and 

product distribution for producers 

 

  

 
21 Statistics Canada. Table 32-10-0403-01 Farms classified by farm type 
23 Statistics Canada. Table 32-10-0417-01 Fruits, berries and nuts 
24 “Last Days for BC’s Apple Industry?”. The Tyee. https://thetyee.ca/News/2021/01/08/Last-Days-BC-Apple-
Industry/  

- 41 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 13 

2.1.3 Indigenous Food Sovereignty 
Indigenous food sovereignty is a concept which is differently defined by Indigenous 
organizations, groups, and Nations depending on their geographic location, 
traditional food practices, and current context. The Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 
describes longstanding Syilx Okanagan food sovereignty as “sustainable hunting, 
fishing, and gathering practices”. These practices occur within a Syilx cultural and 
spiritual context.25 The practices which have traditionally provided sustainable food 
security to Indigenous people have been severely impacted by colonization. 
Indigenous peoples experience food insecurity as a direct consequence of the 
disconnection of kin, networks, and lack of access to healthy ecosystems. Pauline 
Terbasket, Executive Director of the ONA, has written on the importance of honouring 
the “reciprocal relationship” to the Four Food Chiefs26 by reconnecting with the land 
and traditional foods. Doing so is “actively recovering from the colonization which 
alienated” Indigenous people from their lands and foods.27 

A study undertaken by the ONA and University of Alberta researchers found there 
were direct benefits associated with eating a traditional diet among Syilx/Okanagan 
people. People who ate more traditional foods benefitted from higher levels of 
vitamins and nutrients and more balanced diets. Benefits also included mental and 
cultural well-being.28 The benefits of access to traditional foods have also been 
identified in the study Traditional Foods and Indigenous Recipes in B.C.’s Public 
Institutions.29 Key benefits were found to be promoting cultural connections, the 
nutritional value of the food, mental health benefits, connecting to the land, lower 
food costs, and supporting locally produced foods, among others. 

 

 

 
25 Okanagan National Alliance, Food Sovereignty. https://www.syilx.org/about-us/syilx-nation/food-
sovereignty/?msclkid=ef76033fb52d11ec874ed68300d759d5  
26 “Chief Skmxist, or Black Bear, is the oldest. He is chief of all the animals that walk on the earth and he 
brings the perspective of wisdom and culture. Chief Spitlem, or Bitter Root, is chief of all those who grow 
below the ground. He brings the perspective of community and interconnectedness. Chief Siya, or 
Saskatoon Berry, is chief of all who grow above the ground and brings creativity and innovation. And 
finally, Chief N’titxw, or Salmon, who is chief of all those who live in the water, brings the perspective of 
action.” From uiki?st [Terbasket, P.] (2019). Syilx perspective on original foods: Yesterday, today, and 
tomorrow. Journal of Agriculture, Food Systems, and Community Development, 9(Suppl. 1), 49–54. 
https://doi.org/10.5304/jafscd.2019.091.016  
27 uiki?st [Terbasket, P.] (2019). Syilx perspective on original foods: Yesterday, today, and tomorrow. 
Journal of Agriculture, Food Systems, and Community Development, 9(Suppl. 1), 49–54. 
https://doi.org/10.5304/jafscd.2019.091.016 
28 “Syilx/Okanagan diet quality positively impacted by increased food sovereignty, says study”, Peachland 
View. June 22nd, 2020. https://www.peachlandview.com/2020/06/22/syilx-okanagan-diet-quality-
positively-impacted-by-increased-food-sovereignty-says-study/  
29 British Columbia, feedBC. Traditional Foods and Indigenous Recipes in B.C.’s Public Institutions. 2021. 
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/farming-natural-resources-and-industry/agriculture-and-
seafood/feedbc/traditional_foods_and_indigenous_recipes_in_bcs_public_institutions.pdf  

- 42 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 14 

The BC Centre for Disease Control (BC CDC) notes that “[Indigenous food sovereignty] 
must be discussed in the context of actions and systems change.”30 To this end, the 
Penticton Food Security Strategy recognizes the importance of understanding 
Indigenous perspectives on food sovereignty and food security in order to work 
together with Indigenous Nations, organizations, and individuals to improve 
Indigenous food sovereignty in Penticton.  

Locally, Indigenous food sovereignty and food security is being actioned and 
promoted in a number of ways by the ONA33, En’owkin Centre34 and Penticton Indian 
Band. Two examples of initiatives include Bringing the Salmon Home: The Columbia 
River Salmon Reintroduction Initiative36 (led by a partnership including the ONA) and 
Penticton Indian Band’s community garden.37  

Food insecurity is a 
challenge for a number of 
Indigenous, Inuit, and Métis 
people living in Penticton. 
Métis Nation BC, through 
its local organizations 
including the South 
Okanagan and 
Similkameen Métis 
Association, is starting a 
project to help address food 
insecurity directly with 
grocery gift cards, food 
hampers, grocery delivery 
service, and a community 
fridge. There is also a pilot 
project focussed on 
encouraging gardening to 
increase food self-sufficiency.38 Ooknakane Friendship Centre is another organization 
which provides meals, a food bank service, and food delivery to Indigenous people 
(and anyone needing support) living in the Penticton area, including youth under the 
age of 18. The organization is very active in food recovery from grocery stores, storage, 
and processing (e.g., freezing, canning), and also serves as a distribution hub for other 
organizations in Penticton offering meals and other food support services.  

 
30 Draft website materials, developed by the BC Centre for Disease Control, July 29th, 2021. 
33 Refer to https://www.syilx.org/about-us/syilx-nation/food-sovereignty/ for more information. 
34 For more information about En’owkin Centre, refer to https://www.enowkincentre.ca/.  
36 Refer to https://columbiariversalmon.ca/ for more information. 
37 For more information, refer to: http://pib.ca/?page_id=917. Information on the community garden 
provided by Terry Terbasket, garden coordinator. 
38 Métis Nation BC, MNBC Launches Food Security Pilot Project. https://www.mnbc.ca/news/2021/mnbc-
launches-food-security-pilot-project/  

About Penticton Indian Band’s Community 
Garden  

 Penticton Indian Band has had a one-acre 
community garden for 15 years. The garden 
brings different generations together to share 
food and work together in the garden. It also 
provides fresh food for anyone in the 
community who needs it. They have 
commercial kitchens where they do canning 
after the harvest. The garden particularly 
supports Elders, and also serves as a platform 
to initiate conversations about the importance 
of fresh food and a healthy diet. 

- 43 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 15 

The community survey undertaken as part of this project received responses from 
Indigenous people. Some noted that they faced food security challenges due to the 
cost of food, inability to grow their own food due to lack of access to land, and 
challenges being able to practice traditional hunting and gathering practices. Due to 
the low number of responses from Indigenous participants, generalizations on 
specific priorities and needs can not be made with the survey data alone and more 
input is needed going forward. 

The Strategy and its Action Plan includes a commitment to develop and maintain 
collaborative relationships with local Indigenous Nations, organizations, and 
individuals to promote Indigenous food sovereignty and food security. 

Opportunities 
 

 Incorporate perspectives of Indigenous food sovereignty into food security 
planning by seeking out and utilizing Indigenous knowledge to understand 
and identify priorities requiring action. 

 Develop and maintain relationships to promote collaborative work with First 
Nations and Indigenous organizations on issues of Indigenous food 
sovereignty and food security. 

 

  

- 44 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 16 

2.1.4 Food Insecurity 
Food insecurity is a reality for many people 
in Penticton and in the Okanagan. The 
Canadian Community Health Survey,39 
indicates that 8.4% of the population of the 
Okanagan Health Services Delivery Area 
(HSDA) experience food insecurity.40 Of 
residents in this area, 3.6% experience 
severe food insecurity. Additional 
indicators show that 6.6% of the population 
sometimes cannot feed children balanced 
meals. The same proportion indicated that 
sometimes or often food didn’t last and 
there was no money to buy more. Almost a 
third of respondents (31%) indicated that in 
the last year they had been hungry but did 
not have money to buy more food. 

Results from the community survey undertaken for the PFSS indicate that 24% of 
respondents either sometimes or often worry that food will run out. Among 
respondents who have experienced some level of food insecurity, 80% are female, 10% 
identified as part of the 2SLGBTQI+ community (which is considerably higher than the 
rate of overall survey participation), 41% were individuals living alone or with 
roommates, and 25% and 15% were couples and lone parents with children, 
respectively. The rate of food insecurity was highest among lone parents with 
dependents, of whom 61% indicated that they often or sometimes worried that food 
would run out. Of survey respondents identifying as 2SLGBTQI+, 55% indicated the 
same concern, as well as 51% of unemployed respondents (51%).  

 

 
39 Data sourced from most recent survey from 2017/2018. 
40 Downloaded from Statistics Canada, “Canadian Community Health Survey – custom tabulations”. 
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/n1/en/catalogue/82C0022 

- 45 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 17 

Income level appears to be the greatest indicator 
of potential food insecurity. Among survey 
respondents earning up to $20,000 annually, 71% 
experienced some form of food insecurity. Those 
earning between $20,000 and $40,000 
experienced food insecurity with a rate of 49%. 
Most food insecure respondents identified income 
as being the key factor contributing to challenges 
accessing sufficient food. Lack of time, distance to 
food, and mobility (both physical and lack of 
transportation) were also significant challenges.  

For several survey respondents, simply travelling to a grocery store and navigating 
around it was a considerable challenge. Across Canada, 7% of the population 
experiences mobility challenges41 which can hamper food access depending on 
whether an individual has the support of friends or family. In BC, 51% of people over 75 
years of age have a mobility disability. Considering that Penticton has a relatively 
higher median age, with 15% of the population over 75,42 accessible food within 
walking distance would benefit a large portion of the population. 

Community survey results indicate that specific population groups (e.g., people with 
incomes less than $20,000, lone parent households) experience higher rates of food 
insecurity than others, suggesting that systemic barriers and challenges exist. While 
the Strategy may have a strong focus on food access strategies, it is important to 
recognize that changes are needed at a higher level of government. Broader systemic 
challenges, such as the rising price of food and housing, reduce households’ monthly 
budget available for food.  

The HungerCount 2021 report,43 which gathers 
information from food banks across the country, 
indicates that food bank usage in BC has increased by 
5% from 2019 to 2021. Key contributing factors which 
the report attributes to this trend are persistently low 
incomes compared to the cost of living, the increasing 
cost of food, and rising housing costs.  

The proportion of the Penticton population for 
instance which spends more than 30% of their 
income44 on housing has risen from 45% in 2006 to 

 
41 Statistics Canada, Canadian Survey on Disability, 2012. 
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/n1/en/catalogue/89-654-X 
42 Statistics Canada. 2017. Penticton, CY [Census subdivision], British Columbia and Okanagan-
Similkameen, RD [Census division], British Columbia (table). 
43 Food Banks Canada, HungerCount 2021. 
https://hungercount.foodbankscanada.ca/assets/docs/FoodBanks_HungerCount_EN_2021.pdf 
44 Standard rate of shelter affordability used by Statistics Canada. 

Stakeholder Input 

 University students 
often feel the effects of 
food insecurity due to 
high living expenses. 

 Residents facing food 
insecurity often do not 
know how to access it. 

Engagement Input 

Residents would like to 
purchase fresh produce 
but often can’t afford it. 

Residents experiencing 
food insecurity benefit 
from shopping and 
cooking education. 

- 46 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 18 

58% in 2016.45 The rate is 68% for renter households. With the release of 2021 census 
data beginning in early 2022, it is likely that these affordability statistics worsen, given 
the rising cost of rent in Penticton.46 The retail cost of food is also contributing to 
affordability challenges. Across Canada, between 2010 and 2021 food prices have 
increased by an average of nearly two dollars across a variety of standard food 
staples.47 This is an increase of an average of 19% per year, during which time the 
overall Canadian inflation rate varied between just under 1% and 3%. There are also 
alternative analyses of food inflation which suggest far greater price jumps than 
Statistics Canada indicates, particularly in the past year.48 It is in the context of these 
broader economic challenges that the Strategy’s food access related objectives have 
been developed. 

Key challenges Opportunities 
 

 Greater food insecurity challenges 
for low income households, lone 
parent households, individuals 
belonging to the 2SLGBTQI+ 
community, and unemployed. 

 Access to healthy, fresh food 
 Physical access to stores 
 Rising cost of food and housing 

 
 Develop food programs or 

distribute information which 
targets key populations more 
prone to experiencing food 
insecurity. 

 Support better access to healthy, 
fresh food. 

 Consider physical access, in terms 
of transportation and personal 
mobility, in food access 
improvements. 

 Advocate to higher levels of 
government to reduce systemic 
barriers to food security. 

 Promote food literacy to enable 
healthy, economical food choices. 

 

  

 
45 Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, “Core Housing Need (2016) – Penticton (CY)”. 
https://www03.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/hmip-pimh/en#Profile/5907041/4/Penticton (CY) (British Columbia) 
46 Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation notes consistent rental cost increases from 2017 to 2020. 
https://www03.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/hmip-pimh/en#Profile/5907041/4/Penticton (CY) (British Columbia) 
47 Statistics Canada. Table 18-10-0002-01 Monthly average retail prices for food and other selected 
products 
48 The ORCA, “How serious is food inflation in Canada”, Sylvain Charlebois. September 23, 2021. 
https://theorca.ca/visiting-pod/how-serious-is-food-inflation-in-canada/ 

- 47 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 19 

 

The Impacts of COVID-19 on Food Security 

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on food security in 
Canada and in BC. Initially, panic buying and hoarding led to shortages as people 
worried about global supply chains. Food prices also rose more than normal during 
this time, caused by supply chain disruptions, job losses, economic recession, and food 
price dynamics. People also tended to shop less frequently during the first wave of the 
pandemic to avoid contact with people in the grocery store.49 At the same time, 
COVID-19 led to business closures mainly in the retail and restaurant sector, leading 
to lower incomes for former employees of these businesses and a greater need for 
food banks.50   

Looking at ongoing impacts of COVID-19, there are indications that supply chain 
disruptions will continue. Cargo space for imported goods is at a premium and hard 
to find, pushing up prices and causing delays. Prices are unfortunately expected to 
continue rising, as food retailers and restaurants download higher transport costs on 
customers.51   

COVID-19 also led to disruptions for organizations offering food programs which had 
to find alternatives to in-person distribution. The Starfish Backpack Program for 
example, switched to a gift card system. The supply chain which the United Way and 
Ooknakane Friendship Centre in Penticton relied on saw disruptions which impacted 
their food programming.52  

Restaurants also closed at various periods during the pandemic. In March of 2020 local 
media counted 18 restaurants which were closed, with some offering take out or 
delivery through Skip the Dishes or a similar service. This would also have negatively 
impacted food security for those who eat out more often. 

A further impact of health restrictions during COVID-19 has been on the local farming 
community. During 2020, at least four farms closed or sold. The farm closures appear 
to be related to the temporary closure of the in-person farmers’ market in Penticton 
in spring 2020. 

 
49 Polasub, W., Wijekoon, M., Saugstad, L., and Mullinix, K. Food Access, Concerns and Perceptions During 
Covid-19 First Wave: British Columbia. Kwantlen Polytechnic University. 
https://www.kpu.ca/sites/default/files/Food%20access%20concerns%20and%20perceptions%20during%
20COVID-19_BC.pdf  
50 Policynote. “Food insecurity and hunger during COVID-19”. Aril 7, 2020. https://www.policynote.ca/food-
insecurity/ 
51 Retail Insider, “Pandemic to Cause Largest Increase in Grocery Prices in Canadian History”, Sylvain 
Charlebois. August 17, 2021. Pandemic to Cause Largest Increase in Grocery Prices in Canadian History: 
Sylvain Charlebois (retail-insider.com) 
52 Information provided during Community Action Team activities to Urban Matters in the spring/early 
summer of 2020. 

- 48 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 20 

2.1.5 Community Priorities 
The community survey provided a 
clear picture of respondents’ food-
related priorities. Refer to Section 1.3 
for methodology details and 
response overview and to Appendix 
B for community engagement 
results. 

Overall, what was most important to 
respondents was being able to 
access local food. Second, was being 
able to buy food at low prices, and 
third, was being able to buy food 
conveniently.  

In terms of being able to access food, 32% of respondents indicated that they face 
challenges in being able to access food in this way. For some it was an issue of 
insufficient income or the high cost of food, for others they found the distance to 
grocery stores too far, while others found buying local food inconvenient or 
impractical. For those who prefer to grow their own food, their challenges relate to 
the lack of space available to garden in multi-unit housing complexes, small yards, or 
the cost of tools, supplies, or water. Several respondents face medical or physical 
challenges which hamper their mobility and ability to go grocery shopping.  

  

Food Access Priorities 

1. That I can buy local food. 
2. That I can buy food at low prices. 
3. That I can buy food conveniently (at the nearest 

store). 
4. That I can grow my own food. 
5. That I can buy organic food. 
6. That I can buy food in bulk (e.g., making periodic 

trips to Costco). 
7. That I can hunt, fish, or wild harvest (gather from 

natural areas) at least a portion of my and my 
family's food. 

Where do people get their food? 

 1. Patio planters 
2. Convenience Store 
3. Produce box program 
4. Meal prep service 
5. Backyard chicken coops 
6. Charitable food service 
7. Community garden 
8. Fruit tree gleaning 

9. Grocery Store 
10. Restaurant take out/fast 

food 
11. Farmer's Market 
12. Backyard Garden 
13. Wholesaler/bulk 
14. Directly from farms 
15. Produce sharing 

- 49 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 21 

According to the community survey, 98% of respondents shop at grocery stores. The 
next most common places to get food were restaurant take out or fast food (50%) and 
the farmer’s market (45%). There are a variety of places and ways however that 
respondents get their food. Some buy directly from farms, others receive food from 
their family and friends, some have backyard gardens, and still others use the 
community garden or receive food through a charitable food service.  

The diversity of ways which residents of Penticton buy, grow, and receive food indicate 
that strategies to support food access need to be varied and adapted to specific 
community needs. 

Key challenges Opportunities 
 

 Buying local food is inconvenient 
or too costly. 

 Lack of space to have a garden or 
lack of funds to garden. 

 
 Develop strategies to make local 

food access more convenient. 
 Continue with farmers’ market 

coupon program and identify 
other opportunities to lower 
economic barriers. 

 Look at opportunities to have 
more public gardening space in 
Penticton. 

 

- 50 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 22 

2.2 GEOGRAPHICAL CONTEXT 

Geographical context is a key part of understanding food security. Food security is 
interconnected with the distance of one’s home to the grocery store, charitable food 
service, and/or community garden. It also refers to the proximity of where food is 
grown or raised to where food is distributed to individuals and families. When food is 
produced farther away, food is less secure due to the higher potential for supply 
chains to be disrupted. The long-term sustainability of the food system is also 
impacted by the carbon emissions from long-distance freight. 

This section reviews the geographical aspects of food security in Penticton. The focus 
is on food security assets within Penticton such as farms, organizations providing 
charitable food services, and grocery stores. Agricultural land use in Penticton is also 
discussed. 

2.2.1 Food Security Assets 
Community assets contributing to local food security include: 

 Grocery stores (including grocery distributors, convenience stores, specialty 
food stores, and bakeries);  

 Food banks; 
 Food-related social programming; 
 Community gardens; 
 Farms; 
 Farmer’s Market and farm box service; 
 Agricultural supply; and 
 Agricultural industry associations. 

Additional assets not captured in food security asset mapping are backyard gardens, 
chicken coops, beehives, and other household food security resources. However, 37%, 
or 173 community survey respondents indicated had a backyard garden, while 5%, or 
25 respondents, have chicken coops. Also, 19% of respondents benefit from produce 
sharing between neighbours. Sharing produce is an activity which helps to disperse 
produce, supports food security and strengthens social connections in the 
community. Developing a better understanding of backyard gardening in Penticton 
could be key to supporting urban agriculture and community food security overall.  

  

- 51 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 23 

2.2.1.1 Grocery Stores 

The main way that people access food is at the grocery store. In Penticton, there are 
19 grocery stores and two wholesale companies which distribute to retail stores. Stores 
selling groceries include chain grocery stores, prepared meal stores (M&M Food 
Market), convenience stores, green grocers, delicatessens, butchers, and bakeries.  

There are five full grocery stores in Penticton, however a significant gap in grocery 
store availability is in the downtown area. While there are several convenience stores 
and specialty food stores, there is no grocery store. This is a challenge for downtown 
residents, particularly those with no vehicle. A relatively high proportion of Penticton 
residents commute by walking or biking; 14% compared to 9% in Kelowna.53 Having 
more accessible grocery stores in high density and high foot traffic areas are ideal 
ways to reduce carbon emissions, reduce traffic, and improve healthy outcomes for 
those who face barriers to making the trip by vehicle to a grocery store. Ways to 
address this gap are identified as a strategic initiative in Section 3.3.  

2.2.1.2 Food-Related Social Programming 

There are several organizations offering food-related social programming (charitable 
food services) in the downtown area, mainly concentrated in the northern half of the 
residential and commercial area of Penticton (refer to Figure 2.3).  

Although it can be beneficial that food-related social programming is distributed in 
Penticton, this also creates inefficiencies in food procurement and storage. At present, 
the Salvation Army and Ooknakane Friendship Centre act as storage facilities and 
distributors to other smaller food programming organizations. The Salvation Army, for 
example, participates in a provincial program called LOOP in which grocery store 
partners distribute fresh product to other local organizations on a regular basis. A 
more detailed description of Ooknakane Friendship Centre’s services can be found in 
Section 2.1.3.  

A key idea which emerged through stakeholder engagement was to either use an 
existing or new central location to collectivize food procurement for the various social 
programs. Although the Salvation Army and Ooknakane Friendship Centre are 
currently performing an important role in centralizing food recovery, storage, and 
distribution this effort could be further concentrated to reduce duplication and 
operating costs. One central facility could collectively share one transport service and 
one storage facility. This model is used by the Kamloops Food Share, which recovers 
food and distributes it to thousands of individuals through the food bank, 52 
organizations, other regional foodbanks, a Starfish Backpack Program, and a Baby 

 
53 Statistics Canada. 2017. Penticton, CY [Census subdivision], British Columbia and Kelowna, CY [Census 
subdivision], British Columbia (table). Census Profile. 2016 Census. Statistics Canada Catalogue no. 98-316-
X2016001. Ottawa. Released November 29, 2017. 

- 52 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 24 

Bank program.54 The Salvation Army is exploring the possibility of taking on this role 
of being a food hub for the South Okanagan. 

2.2.1.3 Community Gardens 

There are three community garden locations in Penticton, although only one is an 
official public community garden, which is run by the Penticton Community Garden 
Society.55 The other two are Incredible Edible (open to the public) and the Salvation 
Army’s Martin Street Volunteer Garden (for client use). Significant input from survey 
respondents indicated support for additional community garden sites, especially in 
areas where fewer residents have yards.  

Stakeholder feedback indicated that organizations offering food-related social 
programming may benefit from having community garden space close to their 
premises for client use. The gardens could be used as an educational and/or 
therapeutic tool, as well to supply low-income individuals with fresh produce. There 
are parcels of municipal land interspersed near some organizations which may be 
suitable for communal gardening space, or there may be opportunities for 
partnerships with private owners of unused or underused properties. 

It may be possible to locate a community garden on public land. Target areas could 
be prioritized by the level of residential density, where relatively few people will have 
access to private yards. These areas can be identified using Future Land Use 
designations from the Penticton Official Community Plan (Map 1), where there are 
concentrations of “Infill Residential”, “Urban Residential”, and “Urban High Density 
Residential”. Individual site analyses would be carried out in the Action Plan 
implementation phase. 

Besides using public land, which may not be feasible in all areas, other options include 
connecting with owners of future development sites to explore using unused 
properties temporarily, or with owners of underused properties who may be willing 
provide garden space permanently or temporarily. Incredible Edible, for example, 
operates on premises owned by the Good Samaritan Society. If the land is only 
available temporarily, this can be challenging to manage as it involves moving garden 
beds from one location to another. In Vancouver, a company named Community 
Garden Builders has addressed this gap by taking on the long-term management of 
sites including moving garden beds to a new site when the first is no longer usable.  

Stratas can be used to increase access to community garden areas as part of new 
developments. For example, if a developer includes plans for a communal gardening 
area, the garden can be passed on to the strata to oversee once the development is 
complete. Another option is for a community group or the City to approach an existing 
multi-unit development which has underutilized space. An agreement could be 

 
54 Kamloops Food Bank. https://www.kamloopsfoodbank.org/programs/foodshare/ ; the Baby Bank 
provides essentials for babies regularly to families in need. 
55 City of Penticton, “Community Gardens”. https://www.penticton.ca/parks-recreation/parks/find-parks-
and-gardens/community-gardens 

- 53 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 25 

worked out which provides public access to a community garden which the 
development benefits from in terms of access and funded infrastructure. 

Refer to Section 3.3 for related initiatives.  

2.2.1.4 Farms and Distribution Assets 

There are 28 agricultural operations within the City of Penticton. The majority of these 
are vineyards or wineries. The asset inventory may have missed smaller agricultural 
operations. Refer to Section 2.1 for additional information on agricultural land use in 
Penticton. 

Penticton has one farmer’s market, which is a well known and well-attended weekly 
event running from April through October on Saturdays downtown. Community 
survey responses suggest interest in making the Penticton Farmer’s Market (and local 
produce) more accessible. Options could include holding the market two days a week, 
year-round, and/or in different parts of the city.  

There are two stores in Penticton which focus on selling local produce: Quality Greens 
Farm Market and Local Motive Market. Local Motive Community Supported 
Agriculture (CSA) is operated by the same company as the market. 

Figure 2.3 and Figure 2.4 show food security assets in Penticton.  

- 54 -



::J 
0 
Vl 

The Food Security Assets included on this figure represent a point
in time and therefore may miss newer businesses or show some 
no longer in operation. Also, smaller farms may not be shown due 
to their information being more difficult to find. Wineries have been 
included in order to show the type of agricultural production 
occurring in the area. 

-

... ------
---

) 
----- I 

------ -----
I 

' 

\ 

/I 

, 

, 

, 

, 

, 
, 

, 

, 

I 

, 

, 

, 

, 

I ..... ---
---.....

-
- ... 

- ... 
' T-Bones Fresh_, .,,_ , ' 

Tl � ' 

, ;
Meal Market Quality '\.o- , 

, 
' Greens "'o� '\ ' Farm ' 

, Market Riverside 

' (Penticton) Ltd 

Penticton
Community 

Centre
T 'i 

� 
Foodland

T 

---

-- ... 
' 

\ 

I 

I 

I 

' 

/ 
------

-,,--i--1--)-------
--- \ Okanagan Lake ' 

' 

<la '\ 
---

- I

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

--
--

--

Incredible
Edible 

--
.. __ ----- - --·-

-

-
channel Pk� I

- , , ___ _ 
., 
> 

._. SmartShopper 
0E. nt1ctc 
Farmer'c.

Walmart 
Su1ercentre

T 
I 

1 .: 

Pentictdn and :r
District Society for 
Community Living

T\ 
t 
t 

\. 

C: ,. God's Kitchen Value Variety 
Soupateria F1l1p1no • Convenience Jlarket 

Downtown Church Groupf T
'I 

T Main Street Volunteer Store l 
Garden for the T

MaharaJah SF Greek market 
Salvation Army ""a't'" s

t grocerz One Sky 

Safeway La Cuc1na T
Midey t.,,,, st 

,. T 
T Afro-Caribbean / 

Ooknakane
European Friendship 
Market Main st Grocery Store / 

Save-On-Foods LocalMotive Wholesale
M&M Food Penticton T IM t 

? F-a-� ��x Low-Waste Club Market Global f rrg ,m Market T 

T 
.,,, Centre 

I 
School District No. 

67 (Okanagan Skaha)

Penticton 
Community 
Garden Society

T Grocers
TT

Buy The Sea f 
T

NaturJ' s Fare MarketsPent1cton Seafood 
Community Food Barik Tony's Mea s & Deli 

,Salvation Army) and Woud�'s Bakery 
Growers 

T
Real Canadian Pent1cton 

Supply Superstore w Hospital 
co Ltd � Auxiliary 

T o \ j; T 
\ � �, 

? � l 
i 

-
.. / 

l',lanitob• 5t T 

IGA 
T 

0 
7 
::, 
0 
:, 

il: 

T 

Former 
Perseus
Winery 

' 
... 

\ 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

\ 
' .... -

.. T 
Sch1ll1ng 

--
-

Dartmouth Dr 

� 

i
°' 

0 

I Middle Bench Rd N 

Monster 
TVineyards

! 
' 

(__,,---, 

\ 

l:,.,,ergr� 
011 Dr 

�-
1., 

� 
0-

Da?itmouth Rd 
I 

I 

I 

., 
> 

<{ 

4.,i}' 
, . ..,"' 

f 
i 
! 

� 

� 

'it. 

! 
i" 
! 

) 
/ 

sench Rd 5 T IJl'I'•' 

Upper Bench 
Estate Winery

T
Roche Wines 

Okanagan 

T Hills Farm 
Uppe Bench 

Fruit Farm -

T 

Da Silva 
Vineyards 
& Winery 

Upper Ben h T C Rd N 

Township 7 
Vineyards & T

Winery Naramata 

Food Security Strategy 

FOOD SECURITY ASSETS 

SOUTH 

,-_ -, Municipal Boundary 

T Agriculture Supply and Education

T Community Garden

T Farmers Market/ Farm Box

T Farms

T Food Bank

T Food-Related Social Programming

T Grocery Store

T Industry Association

T Winery/Vineyard

The accuracy & completeness of information shown on this 
drawing is not guaranteed. It will be the responsibility of the user 

of the information shown on this drawing to locate & establish the 

precise location of all existing information whether shown or not. 

0 200 400 

Meters 

600 

Coordinate System: Scale: 7:78,000 

NAO 7983 CSRS UTM Zone 77N (When plotted at 77"x77") 

Data Sources: 

- Data provided by Open Data Penticton, Data BC, 
Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA 

Project#: 7077.0090.0l 

URBAN Author: KG/AK 
Checked: AR 

s y s T E M s Status: 

Revision: B 
Date: 2022/3/30 FIGURE 2.2 

- 55 -

dphillips
Text Box
2.3



- 56 -

dphillips
Text Box
2.4



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 28 

2.2.2 Agricultural Land Use Designations 
Protecting agricultural land for farm use is key to ensuring that food can be produced 
locally. The Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) designation protects land for agricultural 
uses. Agricultural zoning within a municipality or regional district also protects land 
for agricultural use. 

Within the Penticton city boundaries, 839 hectares are within the ALR, 1,341 hectares 
are zoned agricultural, and 897 hectares have Agriculture as a future land use 
according to the OCP. The number of hectares designated for future agriculture use 
in the OCP is considerably less than the area currently zoned agricultural, although it 
is still higher than the area within the ALR. Part of the reason for the reduction in 
Agriculture as a future land use is aiming to align land zoned agricultural with the 
arable land footprint. A portion of land along the eastern edge of Naramata Road 
agricultural properties is largely rocky hillside and therefore less adequate for 
agricultural activities. Much of the area has a future land use of Rural Residential in 
the OCP. Rural Residential land uses are residential and agricultural. Parcels have a 
one-hectare minimum lot size and have modified services, such as septic systems and 
wells. 

Figure 2.5 shows agricultural land use designations within the City of Penticton, 
including zoning, future land use from the Official Community Plan, and Agricultural 
Land Reserve parcels, with First Nations reserves added for context. 

 

 

- 57 -



- 58 -

dphillips
Text Box
2.5



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 30 

2.2.3 Local Government Policy Gap Analysis and Best Practices 
Review Summary 

The key planning documents used by the City of Penticton to promote and regulate 
agriculture and food security are the Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08 
(OCP) and Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08. The City of Penticton Economic Development 
Strategy also aims to promote agricultural and related activities, while the Parks and 
Recreation Master Plan considers how parks and recreational areas can support urban 
agriculture. 

Based on a review of the OCP and zoning bylaw, as well as a review of policies and 
strategies implemented in other municipalities, several ideas were identified which 
may be relevant to Penticton. The applicability of each idea will require further 
community input and discussion by Council. 

Key ideas identified through the policy gap analysis and best practices review are as 
follows in Table 2.1. 

Table 2.1: Policy Gap Analysis and Best Practices Summary 

Policy Gap Benefits Example 

Farm Home 
Plate in 
Agricultural 
Zones 

Farm Home Plate guidelines can be incorporated into 
zoning bylaws to support ALR land use regulation and 
promote productive land use on ALR land. The Farm 
Home Plate area includes driveway access, all 
residential, and regulates distances between 
buildings. 

City of Maple 
Ridge Farm 
Home Plate: 
Residential 
Development in 
the Agricultural 
Land Reserve 

Allowing Farm 
Garden Stands 
in Non-
Agricultural 
Zones 

Farm Garden Stands (produce stands), as they are 
termed in Penticton’s zoning bylaw, can benefit the 
viability of local farms. Penticton may wish to 
investigate the possibility of allowing stands in zones 
other than agricultural, as either temporary or 
permanent structures. 

Town of 
Ladysmith 
Zoning Bylaw 
2014 No. 1860 

Soil Bylaw 

Soil bylaws, in the food security planning context, are 
helpful for regulating the removal of soils and 
requirements to ensure that topsoil remains on site 
following excavation. For residential developments 
this is particularly important to allow for growing food 
in the future. Although Penticton does regulate soil 
replacement after excavation, the scope of these 
regulations could be expanded upon. 

City of Langford 
Soil Removal and 
Deposit Bylaw 
No. 1800 

 

 

 

 

 

- 59 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 31 

Animal 
Husbandry 
Related 
Regulations 

Beekeeping has become a more common urban 
hobby and contributes to the local honey supply. Bee 
keeping regulations can be a standalone bylaw, or 
part of an animal control bylaw. Regulations around 
beehives allow the municipality to require that 
homeowners register their colonies/hives, put a limit 
on the number of colonies, define hive locations 
relative to property lines, identify the zones where 
hives are allowed, and require that adequate water be 
available for bees. Any municipal regulations around 
beekeeping are in addition to those included in the 
provincial Animal Health Act.56  
 
Regulations around backyard hens help to ensure 
that poultry is kept on properties of a certain size and 
to regulate siting (i.e., rear/front yard), zones where 
coops are allowed, the size of coops, and other 
considerations. Penticton could consider adding 
more detailed regulations either to the zoning bylaw 
or to an animal control bylaw. These types of 
regulations help to discourage potential conflicts with 
neighbours or complaints. 
 
Penticton is in the process of developing an Animal 
Control Bylaw which will be addressing some of these 
items. 

City of Kamloops 
Animal Control 
Bylaw No. 34-11 

 

 
56 Animal Health Act. B.C. Reg. 3/2015, Bee Regulation. Bee Regulation (gov.bc.ca) 

- 60 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 32 

2.3 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPACTS 

Climate change impacts on agriculture and food systems need to be incorporated 
into and considered in prioritizing and developing initiatives to advance food 
insecurity.  

The summer of 2021 has provided a stark preview of what summers could increasingly 
look like in terms of temperature and precipitation patterns in the region. The heat 
dome of late June 2021 caused damage to crops in the area while the ensuing drought 
conditions put further stress on farmers.58 The City of Penticton had concerns during 
the 2021 growing season that the irrigation system would not be able to supply 
adequate water to farmers59 while the Okanagan was moved to drought level 4.60 
According to Climate Atlas Canada, the number of heat waves in Penticton is 
anticipated to increase by 2050, as are the maximum temperatures and the number 
of days over 30 degrees Celsius.  

 

According to the Climate Projections for the Okanagan Region report, precipitation 
across the region is expected to generally reduce over the summer months, with more 

 
58“Farmers say heat wave, drought show vulnerable agricultural sector needs support”. Penticton 
Western News. https://www.pentictonwesternnews.com/news/farmers-say-heat-wave-drought-show-
vulnerable-agricultural-sector-needs-support/ 
59 City of Penticton 
60 Okanagan Basin Water Board, “Okanagan Drought Bulletin #2021-2”, August 2021. 
OBWB_Drought_Info_Bulletin_12Aug2021.pdf 

- 61 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 33 

precipitation in the spring and fall, and more high-volume precipitation events. With 
less rain over the drier months of the year, irrigation will become more important to 
farmers. As a result, sufficiently sized reservoirs and adequate and well-maintained 
distribution systems will be key to successful agricultural production in the future. An 
additional measure which could help to mitigate the impact of climate change on 
regional agriculture is to producing seed locally. This helps seed stock adapt to climate 
trends and could reduce the impacts of drought or high temperatures for example. 

The provincial effort to mitigate the impacts of climate change on agriculture in BC 
have been ongoing for several years. In 2012, the BC Agriculture and Food Climate 
Action Initiative produced the BC Agriculture Climate Change Adaptation Risk and 
Opportunity Assessment Provincial Report.61 The report contains key actions 
supporting research, innovation, and knowledge sharing around adaptation 
strategies such as water saving techniques and pest monitoring and research. Further 
actions are the publishing of regional climate change reports, including Climate 
Projections for the Okanagan Region62 and the integration of agricultural adaptation 
considerations into local and regional land use planning (e.g., OCP).  

As a result of the 2012 report, strategic plans for BC regions were developed in 2016, 
including for the Okanagan.63 There could be opportunities to collaborate with 
provincial efforts, such as by sharing information about adaptation strategies with the 
agriculture sector or collaborating on future actions. Strategies which have not yet 
been addressed completely are: 64 

 Strategy 1.1: Support the agriculture sector's participation in drought planning. 
 Strategy 1.4: Undertake applied research and demonstration for practices and 

technologies to improve resilience to hot and dry conditions.  
 Strategy 4.1: Support cooperative approaches to fuel management activities. 

 
61 Climate Action Initiative: BC Agriculture & Food. BC Agriculture Climate Change Adaptation Risk + 
Opportunity Assessment: Provincial Report. March 2012. 
https://pics.uvic.ca/sites/default/files/uploads/publications/BC%20Agriculture%20Report_0.pdf  
62 Regional District of North Okanagan, Regional District of Central Okanagan, Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen, Pinna Sustainability. Climate Projections for the Okanagan Region. February 
2020. https://www.rdos.bc.ca/assets/PLANNING/AreaX/2020/ClimateProjections/FinalReport.pdf  
63 Climate & Agriculture Initiative BC. Okanagan: BC Agriculture & Climate Change regional Adaptation 
Strategies Series. 2016. https://www.climateagriculturebc.ca/library/okanagan-adaptation-strategies-
plan/  
64 Climate & Agriculture Initiative BC. Okanagan Adaptation Strategies Update: BC Agriculture & Climate 
Change regional Adaptation Strategies Series. 2016. 
https://www.climateagriculturebc.ca/library/okanagan-adaptation-strategies-plan/  

- 62 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 34 

3 THE STRATEGY 

The Penticton Food Security Strategy was developed by bringing together 
community input, data and geographical analysis, and policy gap analysis. The 
purpose is to provide an implementable Action Plan whose objectives, strategies, and 
actions improve food security in Penticton. The Action Plan will be carried out by the 
City of Penticton and key stakeholders over the next ten years.  

- 63 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 35 

3.1 VISION AND OBJECTIVES 

The vision reflects how the City of Penticton and key stakeholders see improved food 
security in Penticton. It was developed based on general community engagement 
feedback. 

Key objectives which guide the strategies and initiatives to be carried out are as 
follows. Strategies and initiatives are grouped in Section 3.3 according to objectives. 

Food Access 
• Improve physical and economic access to adequate

and appropriate food for Penticton residents.

Indigenous Food 
Sovereignty 

• Work with Indigenous organizations, Nations, and
key individuals to advance Indigenous food
sovereignty.

Urban Agriculture 

• Encourage urban agriculture by making Penticton a
city where there are opportunities to grow and raise
one's own food in backyards, patios, and communal
spaces.

Sustainable Food 
Systems 

• There is a vibrant, diverse farming economy in
Penticton which provides viable livelihoods for
farmers, contributes to environmental sustainability,
and where seed saving to increase local crop
diversity and adaptation is encouraged.

Education and 
Awareness 

• Food literacy is increased through knowledge
sharing and educational opportunities. Sustainable
farming knowledge contributes to more sustainable
food systems.

VISION 

Food systems which support Penticton area people, businesses, and First Nations are 
resilient, and equitable access to food is ensured for all residents. 

- 64 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 36 

3.2 COLLABORATION AND COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP 

A key element of successful strategy implementation is identifying which 
organizations will be involved in carrying out initiatives and how. The success of the 
Strategy depends on  different organizations coming together to collaborate and 
implement initiatives with a common vision.  

The City of Penticton aims to take on a key role in the implementation of the 
Action Plan. The City can serve as:  

 An advocate for policy and community organizations;  
 As a communicator with the community or with agencies and government; 
 A facilitator between organizations agencies, companies, or individuals; 
 A lead in policy and regulation updates; 
 A grant donor to community projects; and 
 A direct investor or organizer on certain initiatives. 

However, successful implementation is 
best served by establishing overall 
responsibility with one to two organizations 
which are dedicated to moving initiatives 
forward, coordinating between 
stakeholders, and encouraging 
collaboration.  

Food policy councils represent a successful 
model for implementing food security 
plans in communities and exist throughout 
BC. The South Okanagan previously had a 
food security coalition, however, this 
initiative lacked human resource capacity 
and was unable to continue. A food policy 
council model is a sustainable and effective approach because its sole objective is to 
support food policy and initiative implementation. It includes one or two paid 
employees acting with the support and guidance of the Council. The Council can be 
made up of representatives of different community organizations and the City.  

Penticton has two established groups which could provide support to a food policy 
council in its development stages. These are the Working Group established for the 
Penticton Food Security Strategy and the Agricultural Advisory Council. Collaborative 
efforts between the City and potentially these two groups will help to shape a format 
and name for the type of organization which will best move the Strategy forward. For 
the purposes of clarity in the Action Plan, the term “food policy council” will be used.  

In recognition of best practices across communities addressing food insecurity, and 
in order to set the Strategy up for success, a formal food policy council (or similar body) 

The Kamloops Food Policy Council 
(KFPC) is an example of what a 
council could look like in Penticton. 
Founded in 1995, the KFPC is 
Canada’s oldest independent food 
policy council. Today it has five 
employees and runs programs such 
as Gleaning Abundance, Butler 
Urban Farm, and a seed library. 
They are also spearheading the 
development of a Food Hub.  

- 65 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 37 

should be created and a paid position established to support implementation. 
Identifying funding sources for a paid employee are key to building capacity for 
implementation.  

Paid positions with food policy councils can include the following roles and 
responsibilities : 

 Maintain a list of funding opportunities and make applications to carry out 
initiatives in the Action Plan; 

 Coordinate with and involve other organizations as required; 
 Encourage stakeholders to work together and promote opportunities to bring 

them together; 
 Share relevant information with stakeholders (e.g., funding opportunities, 

collaboration opportunities, current research); 
 Represent Penticton’s food security interests at the regional or provincial level; 

and 
 Engage in monitoring the Action Plan implementation and meet with Council 

regularly to review progress. 

In addition to the food policy council and City of Penticton, other potential initiative 
proponents (e.g., Kwantlen Polytechnic University, the University of British Columbia 
Okanagan) are identified throughout the Action Plan. Based on the actor’s experience 
and potential contribution they are identified as either leads or support on various 
initiatives.  

- 66 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 38 

3.3 ACTION PLAN 

The Action Plan is organized by objective, with each encompassing several strategies 
and initiatives.  

3.3.1 Who 
Where possible, responsibility has been assigned to a lead (L) and, in some cases, one 
or more supporting organizations (S). 

Note: Supporting organizations are not necessarily confirmed and would be 
consulted at the time that each initiative is undertaken. The Strategy recognizes that 
circumstances will change both for the potential external project proponent and for 
the food policy council. 

 

3.3.2 How 
While many initiatives may only require coordination, elbow grease, or creativity, it is 
assumed that most will require some amount of funding. Therefore, seeking funding 
has not been included as an action under specific initiatives. A list of potential funding 
sources is included for reference in Section 3.4. 

There are also a number of ways in which initiatives can be moved forward. Key words 
used to indicate these are: 

Support: Directing resources (such as staff hours, capital, grants, exemptions, etc.) 
towards a project or initiative. It can also refer to concurring with a policy and 
encouraging a particular approach.  

Acronyms used in the Action Plan are as follows: 

L – Lead 
S – Support 
 
AAC – Agricultural Advisory 
Committee 
AFF – Ministry of Agriculture, Food 
and Fisheries 
COFPC – Central Okanagan Food 
Policy Council 
CoP – City of Penticton 
FPC – Food Policy Council 
IE – Incredible Edible 
KPU – Kwantlen Polytechnic 
University 
LTTN – Land to Table Network 
OC – Okanagan College 
ONA – Okanagan Nation Alliance 
OTFP – Okanagan Tree Fruit Project 

PCGS – Penticton Community Garden 
Society 
PFMS – Penticton Farmer’s Market Society 
RDOS – Regional District of Okanagan 
Similkameen 
SA – Salvation Army 
SD 67 – School District 67 
SOOPA – Similkameen Okanagan Organic 
Producers Association 
TOTA – Thompson Okanagan Tourism 
Association 
UBCO – University of British Columbia – 
Okanagan 
YA – Young Agrarians 

- 67 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 39 

Partner: Engaging with another organization to undertake an activity related to an 
initiative. This could be sharing information, researching, coordinating, or 
implementing an action. Partnership does not normally refer to investing or providing 
funds, although this could sometimes be the case.  

Encourage: Promoting actions by engaging with an organization which would lead 
the initiative. 

Engage: Connecting with an organization or individual through communications. 

Consider: Reviewing an initiative in light of key policies, bylaws, funding opportunities, 
or budget. The result of consideration would be a decision whether or not to advance 
an initiative. 

Explore or Study: Reviewing available information, policies, and documents and 
consulting with organizations or individuals to better understand a situation.  

3.3.3 When 
A timeline has been assigned to each initiative based on priority level, whether other 
initiatives need to be carried out first, and/or the level of complexity. The timeline is 
organized as follows: 

Immediate – initiative is relatively easy to do or very high priority and can be carried 
out immediately. 

Short-term – initiative can be carried out between 2022 and 2024. 

Medium-term – initiative can be carried out between 2025 and 2027. 

Long-term – initiative can be carried out between 2028 and 2031. 

Ongoing – initiative/action would be carried out continuously. 

 

- 68 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 40 

 

Food Access: Improve physical and economic access to adequate and appropriate food for Penticton 
residents. 
Strategy 1 Improve access to charitable food programs for those who need it. 
 Initiatives Timeline Responsibility 

L-Lead  S-Support 

1.1 Support youth-oriented programs such as The Foundry’s youth 
cooking and shopping programs. 
Actions: 

 Seek opportunities to support expansion of these programs. 
 Provide garden beds. 

Ongoing L – FPC 

1.2 Support the community fridge/pantry program being hosted at 
the Elks Lodge. 

Short-
term L - FPC 

1.3 Advance food access programs targeted at student populations. Short-
term L – UBCO/OC 

1.4 Support post-secondary student initiatives to improve food 
access for Penticton students (e.g., Fruit Snaps program)  Ongoing L - OC 

S – Enactus OC  
1.5 Study the possibility of creating a free grocery store with local, 
fresh produce. 

Medium-
term L - FPC 

1.6 Establish a centralized resource within the City 
organization/website that lists all the programs providing food 
access services. 

Immediate L - CoP 

1.7 Disseminate resources about food access programs through 
existing organizations who serve clients that may need food security 
supports.  

Ongoing L - FPC 

1.8 Encourage coordination and collaboration between diverse 
organizations providing food programs. 
Actions: 

Ongoing L - FPC 

- 69 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 41 

 Look at the potential of sharing some key information about 
clients (where permission is granted) to facilitate easy 
registration for different resources. 

1.9 Support the growth of food rescue programs in Penticton. 
Actions:  

 Study the feasibility of a food recovery hub that can allocate 
recovered produce to organizations in need. Refer to 
foodSHARE at the Kamloops Foodbank as an example. 

Short-
term L – FPC 

1.10 Explore potential partnerships between farmers and non-profit 
organizations to benefit from imperfect fruit that cannot be sold. 

Medium-
term 

L – FPC 
S – Salvation Army 

Strategy 2 Address systemic challenges that impact peoples access to food. 
 Initiatives Timeline Responsibility 

2.1 Develop an integrated poverty reduction strategy which 
addresses systemic barriers such as racism and other forms of 
discrimination, to understand the root causes of food insecurity and 
confirm the groups which are most vulnerable to the impacts of 
food insecurity (e.g., lone parent households, unemployed). 

Medium-
term L - CoP 

Strategy 3 Improve physical access to fresh food. 
 Initiatives Timeline Responsibility 

3.1 Consider incentivizing food retail in the downtown area through 
zoning regulations through, for example, parking requirement 
reductions, temporary or permanent property tax reductions, and 
decreasing the floor area required to qualify as a ‘Grocery Store’ as 
per Zoning Bylaw 2017-08, specifically in the downtown area.  
Options: 

 Consider a ‘healthy corner store’ program, as an interim 
measure before a grocery store is developed. This type of 
project was implemented by the Toronto Food Policy Council 
which supported corner stores in connecting with produce 
distribution networks to offer a healthier range of food. 

Short-
term L - CoP 

3.2 Explore fresh produce delivery programs for individuals with 
mobility challenges. This could mean building on existing programs 

Medium-
term L - FPC 

- 70 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 42 

 

  

and improving accessibility for people with limited access to or 
ability to use online platforms. 
3.3 Consider physical access to fresh food in future planning and 
development decisions (e.g., proximity to community garden and 
grocery store). 

Ongoing L - CoP 

3.4 Consider allowing mobile fresh food vendors at the beaches or 
around town.  

Short-
term 

L -– CoP 

3.5 Consider permitting produce stands in a broader range of zones 
and neighbourhoods. 

Short-
term 

L -– CoP 

3.6 Explore options, interest, and feasibility of holding the Farmer’s 
Market two days a week potentially in different locations to reduce 
physical access barriers. 

Short-
term 

L – CoP 

- 71 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 43 

 

Indigenous Food Sovereignty: Work with Indigenous organizations, Nations, and key individuals to 
advance Indigenous food sovereignty. 
Note: Indigenous Food Sovereignty has been considered throughout Strategy development, including in 
desktop research and the project’s community survey questions. Indigenous organizations were also 
engaged to discuss the project. The Indigenous Food Sovereignty strategies included in this Action Plan, 
instead of putting direct actions forward, focus on working with and learning from Indigenous 
organizations and Nations which are identifying IFS priorities and successfully undertaking Indigenous 
Food Sovereignty work. 
Strategy 4 Work together with local First Nations and Indigenous organizations. 
 

Initiative Timeline 
Responsibility 

L-Lead  S-
Support 

4.1 Develop and maintain relationships with First Nations and 
Indigenous organizations to facilitate meaningful communication to 
identify priorities for action and collaboration on food security and 
Indigenous food sovereignty. 

Ongoing L – FPC, CoP 

Strategy 5 Knowledge Sharing 
 Initiative Timeline Responsibility 

5.1 Promote and encourage theoretical and applied education and 
learning offered by Indigenous organizations on Indigenous food 
systems and its history in the Valley and the impacts of colonization 
(e.g., forums, classroom visitation programs, on-the-land-camps, 
webinars, festivals, cultural safety training). 

Ongoing L – FPC, CoP 

 

  

- 72 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 44 

Urban Agriculture: Encourage urban agriculture by making Penticton a city where there are 
opportunities to grow and raise one's own food in backyards, patios, and communal spaces. 
Strategy 6 Support the maintenance and creation of community gardens. 
 Initiative Timeline Responsibility 

L-Lead  S-Support 
6.1 Consider developing a Community Garden Policy (refer to the 
Winnipeg Community Garden Policy as an example) to set out 
how the City wants to approach community garden development, 
partnerships with community groups, responsibility for garden 
sites, and any other priority issues. 
Options: 

 Consider ease of access, particularly by active transportation 
for future community garden sites. 

Short-
term L - CoP 

6.2 Encourage landowners/developers to make their vacant lots 
temporarily available for community gardens in urban spaces or 
consider incentive programs if there is little interest. Refer to the 
Community Garden Builders based in Vancouver. Refer to Section 
2.2.1.3 for more information. 

Short-
term L – FPC, CoP 

6.3 Identify public land that could be made available for 
community gardens, prioritizing higher density areas with more 
multi-unit housing. 
Options: 

 Consider smaller community gardens distributed 
throughout areas of higher need, potentially as pilot project. 

 Consider community engagement to narrow down 
potential sites for future community gardens. 

 Include some higher raised beds in new gardens for those 
with mobility challenges.  

 Identify opportunities to partner with social organizations to 
allocate garden access to program clients. 

Immediate L - CoP 

- 73 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 45 

 Consider starting up a “take seeds/leave seeds” lending 
library at community garden sites to lower financial barriers 
to gardening. 

 Consider developing a tool share program for more costly 
equipment (e.g., rototiller). 

6.3 Support neighbourhood groups in establishing community 
gardens, providing grants where possible. Ongoing L - CoP 

Strategy 7 Promote edible landscaping.  
 Initiative Timeline Responsibility 

7.1 Create edible gardens on public land and divert a portion of the 
City’s landscaping budget to planting edible gardens. 
Options: 

 Consider encouraging semi-organized guerrilla gardening in 
unused public areas around the city, where people sign up 
with the city and commit to caring for their small area for 
the season. 

 Consider a project like Edible Pathways done in Oliver 
wherein flower boxes in front of commercial businesses 
were planted with herbs and vegetables. 

Short-
term L - CoP 

7.2 Consider including boulevard areas in future urban 
development plans with higher density and make these available 
for public gardening. Refer to the City of Victoria Boulevard 
Gardening Guidelines as an example. 

Long-term L - CoP 

Strategy 8 Create partnerships with local non-profits.  
 Initiative Timeline Responsibility 

8.1 Study the viability of establishing an urban farm that serves non-
profit organizations in the City. Long-term L - FPC 

8.2 Encourage partnerships between school gardens, funding 
programs such as Farm to School, School District 67, and other 
programs such as the Okanagan Tree Fruit Project to develop and 
maintain school gardens, including to continue gardens over the 
summer. 

Ongoing L - FPC 
S – SD 67 

- 74 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 46 

8.3 Encourage partnerships to leverage funding collaboratively. Ongoing L - FPC 
Strategy 9 Support independent urban agriculture. 
 Initiative Timeline Responsibility 

9.1 Study the impact of backyard gardens on food security. Medium-
term L - FPC 

9.2 Explore the need for strategies to reduce barriers to 
independent urban agriculture (e.g., community gardens, patio 
gardening, chicken coops).  
Options: 

 Create partnerships with local home and garden stores to 
subsidize urban agriculture supplies such as planter boxes, 
gardening tools, seeds, and soil. 

 Create a coupon program for homeowners to purchase fruit 
trees. 

 Create a grant program for people to access gardening and 
supplies and materials at little to no cost, potentially with an 
income requirement. 

 Explore the feasibility of an existing non-profit hosting a tool 
lending library for more expensive and less frequently used 
tools. 

 Offer support for prospective backyard chicken coop 
builders, potentially with an income requirement. 

Short-
term L – FPC, CoP 

9.3 Study the viability of a backyard sharing program to provide 
access to unused land to encourage mutually beneficial 
arrangements for home owners and gardeners/local producers. 

Medium-
term L – FPC, CoP 

9.4 Promote education around backyard composting, such as that 
currently offered by the RDOS.  Ongoing L – FPC, CoP 

Strategy 10 Strengthen urban agriculture guidance and regulation. 
 Initiative Timeline Responsibility 

10.1 Provide greater regulation around backyard chicken coops and 
creating regulations for beekeeping, in an Animal Control Bylaw for 
example. The purpose of the regulations should not be to create 

Medium-
term L - CoP 

- 75 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 47 

barriers to having chicken coops or beehives, but instead to prevent 
conflict and ensure, for example, that chickens are kept safely, or 
away from neighbours’ fences, or that beehives are provided 
sufficient resources such as water to prevent them leaving the hive.  
10.2 Consider developing and promoting guidelines for alternative 
forms of urban agriculture more often seen in high density areas, 
such as rooftop gardens. 

Medium-
term L - CoP 

10.3 Consider strengthening the existing excavation policy to require 
residential developers to replace a minimum amount of topsoil in 
yard and amenity areas. 

Short-
term L - CoP 

10.4 Consider requiring multi-unit residential development to 
reserve space for collective or individual gardening areas of a 
specified size. 
Option 

 Consider developing a parkland dedication and cash in lieu 
policy to use as leverage with developers 

Short-
term L - CoP  

10.5 Incentivize strata properties to designate an area for a 
community garden, potentially with grants for materials or fee 
reductions on utilities. 

Short-
term L - CoP 

 

  

- 76 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 48 

Sustainable Food Systems: There is a vibrant, diverse farming economy in Penticton which provides 
viable livelihoods for farmers, contributes to environmental sustainability, and where seed saving to 
increase local crop diversity and adaptation is encouraged. 
Strategy 11 Promote food production on arable land. 
 Initiatives Timeline Responsibilities 

L-Lead  S-Support 
11.1 Support the protection of agricultural practices 
which are part of the Farm Practices Protection Act. Ongoing L – CoP 

S - AFF 
11.2 Advocate to the province to create incentives for 
farmers to grow/raise produce which is sold regionally. 

Short/ Medium-
term 

L – FPC 
S - AFF 

11.3 Preserve agricultural zoning on land currently part 
of the ALR. Ongoing L – CoP 

11.4 Support efforts to acquire and protect agricultural 
land for future agricultural use. 
Actions: 

 Explore opportunities to acquire land as a 
municipality to be leased at reasonable rates to 
farming operations cultivating produce or raising 
livestock for regional consumption. 

 Encourage alternative ownership and protection 
models such as farmland or foodland trusts. 

Ongoing L – CoP, FPC 
S - AFF 

11.5 Consider creating Farm Home Plate regulations for 
residential uses on land zoned for agricultural uses. 
Farm Home Plate regulations go beyond regulating the 
size of residential buildings on agricultural land to 
include the driveway access and the area where all 
residential buildings are located. Refer to the City of 
Maple Ridge policy as an example. 

Short-term L – CoP 
S - AAC 

Strategy 12 Support farm goods post-production activities. 
 Initiatives Timeline Responsibilities 
 12.1 Consider a permissive tax exemption for properties 

producing food products or involved in post-production 
activities. 

Medium-term L - CoP 

- 77 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 49 

 12.2 To promote better access to sites for farm goods 
processing, consider adjusting zoning definitions for 
‘Agricultural Use’ to separate out processing and 
aggregation activities and explicitly include this as a 
permitted use in commercial and/or industrial zones. 

Medium-term L - CoP 

12.3 Support the development and operation of the 
Summerland Food Hub by promoting it to farmers and 
processors in Penticton. 

Ongoing L – CoP, FPC 

12.4 Consider allowing public land to be used for 
agricultural post-production activities (as part of a food 
hub) on a temporary or permanent basis for a below-
market lease rate. 

Short/ Medium- 
term L - CoP 

Strategy 13 Promote the sustainability of farming systems. 
 Initiatives Timeline Responsibility 

13.1 Stay abreast of relevant climate change research and 
share this information as needed with the City of 
Penticton and producers.  

Ongoing L – AAC 
S – FPC, AFF 

13.2 Seek opportunities for collaboration with the 
province or organizations on research or climate change 
implementation projects. 

Ongoing 
L – FPC 
S – UBCO, OC 
S - AFF 

13.3 Prioritize water conservation in local agriculture 
production (e.g., rainwater capture and wastewater 
usage) 

Ongoing 
L – CoP 
S – SOOPA 
S - AFF 

13.4 Encourage education and support for diverse 
farming systems which promote biodiversity and better 
ecological outcomes including improved carbon 
capture. Explore a partnership with Kwantlen 
Polytechnic University on this initiative. 

Ongoing 
L – FPC 
S – KPU 
S - AFF 

13.5 Explore opportunities to either start a local seed 
library or partnerships with existing libraries such as the 
Summerland Seed Library. 

  

13.6 Continue to advance the City’s organic waste 
collection program which provides an opportunity to 
produce low-cost compost for residents and free 

Immediate/ 
Short-term 

L - CoP 

- 78 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 50 

compost for community gardens to support urban food 
production. 
13.7 Work with existing organizations towards food 
system sustainability, such as the Land to Table Network, 
Similkameen Okanagan Organic Producers Association 
(SOOPA), and Certified Organic Associations of BC 
(COABC). 

Ongoing L - FPC 

Strategy 14 Enhance the economic viability of farms. 
 Initiatives Timeline Responsibility 

14.1 Consider developing an interactive and hardcopy 
map (e.g., interactive) of all produce stands and farm 
gate locations. 
Options: 

 Look at developing an app which is promoted to 
regional residents and through tourism 
marketing websites. 

Medium-term L – CoP 
S – TOTA 

14.2 Engage with producers to identify policy change 
and/or actions which would be most supportive to 
being able to sell their produce more effectively. 

Short-term L – CoP/FPC 

14.3 Explore the feasibility of a local food co-op store 
(refer to the Monashee Community Co-op as an 
example). 

Long-term L – FPC 
S – SOOPA, LTTN 

14.4 Explore ways to reduce economic barriers to 
starting up a farming operation, such as supporting a 
farm machinery loan system, in partnership with the 
Summerland Food Hub. 

Long-term L - FPC 

Strategy 15 Address aspects of sustainable food systems through policy and planning. 
 Initiatives Timeline Responsibility 

15.1 Update the City of Penticton’s Agriculture Plan 
potentially in partnership with the RDOS or nearby 
municipalities to promote a regional perspective. 

Medium-term L – CoP 

15.2 Carry out a study on local and regional cultivation 
to understand what is being grown and what Medium-term L – CoP 

S – LTTN, COFPC 

- 79 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 51 

quantities, and how much is being distributed locally or 
in BC, as part of an Agricultural Plan.  
15.3 City to review diversifying types of activities on ALR 
land which support the viability of farming operations 
and do not interfere with farm use (e.g., tourism). 

Short-term L – CoP 

15.4 Review the policy changes for secondary dwellings 
set out by the Agricultural Land Commission and 
consider making zoning amendments based on this as 
well as the need to protect agricultural land to support 
sustainable food systems. 

Short-term L – CoP 

15.5 Advocate for provincial and federal policy changes 
to make local farming more viable (e.g., small scale 
abattoirs, vegetable processing requirements). 
Actions: 

 Advocate for subsidies or action on high 
insurance costs which u-pick farms pay. 

Ongoing L- FPC 

15.6 Explore making regulatory changes and additions 
as per the Policy Gap Analysis and Best Practices 
Review Summary (Section 0) with community and 
Agricultural Advisory Committee input. 

Short-term/ 
Medium-term L - CoP 

15.7 Promote institutional policies to purchase local 
food. Ongoing L – CoP 

S - FPC 
 

  

- 80 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 52 

Education and Awareness: Food literacy is increased through knowledge sharing and educational 
opportunities. Sustainable farming knowledge contributes to more sustainable food systems. 
Strategy 16 Support food security related initiatives in schools. 
 Initiatives Timeline Responsibility 

L-Lead  S-Support 
16.1 Establish a school outreach program on food literacy, including 
sustainable food systems, seed saving, food preparation, healthy 
eating, and food production, using existing Farm to School BC 
resources as a basis. A potential model for these activities is the 
Edible Garden Project in North Vancouver or Interior Health’s “Cook 
it. Try it. Like it!” program. 
Options: 

 Partner with farms for students to see and experience farm 
operations. 

 Encourage young people to work on farms seasonally. 

Long-
term 

L – FPC 
S – SD 67, IE, OTFP 

16.2 Identify opportunities to partner with childcare centres to grow 
small gardens for educational, activity, and nutritional purposes (also 
refer to the Edible Garden Project in North Vancouver). 

Long-
term L - FPC 

16.3 Continue to establish and maintain produce gardens in local 
schools to help students learn about growing their own food.  Ongoing L – SD 67 

Strategy 17 Build food literacy in the community, or public awareness of food security and food systems 
related issues. 

 Initiatives Timeline Responsibility 

17.1 Create a food charter. Medium-
term L - FPC 

17.2 Promote educational opportunities available from Indigenous 
organizations on the valley’s Indigenous food system history and 
food sovereignty. 

 Explore educational opportunities focusing on works done on 
Penticton Creek to improve Kokanee salmon, or “ntitixw”sp?, 
habitat. 

Ongoing L – FPC 
S – CoP, EC, ONA 

- 81 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 53 

17.3 Support young people in getting engaged in urban or 
commercial agriculture. Ongoing 

L – FPC 
S – YA, LTTN, 
SOOPA 

17.4 Support eating in season by educating residents about local 
food and seasonal harvests through community celebrations or 
events.  

Medium-
term/ 
Long-
term 

L – FPC 
S – PFMS, CoP 

17.5 Support existing gardening education (e.g., Incredible Edible), 
including seed saving, and seek opportunities to expand this type of 
educational service. 

Ongoing 
L- FPC 
S – IE, SA, The 
Foundry, PCGS 

17.6 Support advocacy around promoting food as a human right and 
awareness building on the root causes of food insecurity. Ongoing 

L – FPC 
S – CoP, SA, The 
Foundry 

17.7 Continue to promote awareness around the right to breastfeed 
in public, in public buildings, and in private businesses.  
Options: 

 Create content on the City of Penticton’s website. Refer to the 
City of Toronto’s website as an example. 

Ongoing/ 
Short-
term 

L - CoP 

17.8 Support knowledge sharing with producers regarding new 
research or incentive programs on agricultural climate change 
adaptation strategies from the provincial or federal levels of 
government.  

Ongoing L - FPC 

Strategy 18 Support and collaborate with ongoing related research. 
 Initiatives Timeline Responsibility 

18.1 Collaborate with local research institutions such as Kwantlen 
Polytechnic University, Okanagan College, and University of British 
Columbia Okanagan to move key food security objectives and 
agricultural adaptations to climate change forward. 

Ongoing 
L – FPC 
S – CoP, UBCO, OC, 
KPU 

- 82 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 54 

3.4 FUNDING OPPORTUITIES 

A key part of supporting initiatives, either in the start-up phase or longer-term, is 
accessing funding. A list of funding opportunities should be maintained by the Food 
Policy Council and updated as required.  

Not all of these funds have open intakes but have been listed in case future intakes 
are announced. 

Table 3.1 provides a list of potential funding sources that could serve to advance 
initiatives. 

Table 3.1: Potential Funding Sources 

Fund Funding Agency Purpose 
Local Food 
Infrastructure Fund 

Agriculture and Agri-
food Canada 

Capital asset and infrastructure focus 

Indigenous Climate 
Health Action 
Program 

First Nations Health 
Authority 

Main objectives include food security, 
access to land, mental health, 
Traditional medicine, Traditional 
harvesting, water quality and quantity 

First Nations Well-
Being Fund 

First Nations Health 
Authority 

Planning and infrastructure projects 
related to well-being including 
nutrition and food security. 

Investing in Canada 
Infrastructure 
Program – Rural and 
Northern 
Communities Fund 

Government of 
Canada/Province of 
BC (through Ministry 
of Municipal Affairs) 

Community-oriented infrastructure, 
including agriculture focus. 

Canada Healthy 
Community 
Initiatives 

Infrastructure 
Canada – through 
Community 
Foundations 

Infrastructure for public spaces which 
encourage health and well-being.  

General Call for 
Grants 

Community 
Foundation of South 
Okanagan 
Similkameen 

Projects and programs for charitable 
organizations working in multiple 
areas including addressing food 
insecurity. 

Neighbourhood 
Small Grants 

Community 
Foundation of South 
Okanagan 
Similkameen 

Small neighbourhood grants which 
help to build community. 

Community Spaces 
Fund 

Co-op Canada 
Funds urban agriculture projects 

PC Children’s 
Charities 

President’s Choice 
Nutrition and healthy eating related 
funding for school programs. 

Community Gaming 
Grants 

Province of BC 
Ongoing operations and 
programming of charitable 
organizations. 

- 83 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 55 

Community Food 
Action Initiative Interior Health 

Support organizations and 
communities working on food security. 

Healthy Public Policy 
Grants 

PlanH 

These grants support communities as 
they take multi-sectoral action to 
create, adopt, amend, or evaluate 
public policy through a health equity 
lens to create long-term positive health 
and well-being outcomes for 
community members. 

NutritionLink 
Services Society 
Granting Program 

NutritionLink 
Services Society 

Support and sponsor food security 
projects through nutrition education 
and food skill building for vulnerable 
British Columbia residents. 

Municipal Grants City of Penticton 

Supports projects which help make 
Penticton a vibrant city with a focus on 
sustainability, community, and 
economic opportunity. 

Farm to School 
Grants/Learning 
Circles 

Farm to Cafeteria 
Canada 

Funding to implement Farm to School 
programs and engagement through 
Learning Circles. 

Indigenous 
Agriculture and Food 
Systems Initiative 

Agriculture and Agri-
Food Canada 

Economic development-oriented 
strategy, planning, and 
implementation for First Nations. 

Regional Grant-in-
Aid 

Regional District of 
Okanagan-
Similkameen 

Provides some financial assistance to 
organizations providing cultural, 
charitable,  
sporting, recreational or service 
activities that benefit the Regional 
District. 

Local Government 
Partnership Program 

Investment 
Agriculture 
Foundation of BC 

Provides funding to help regional 
districts and municipalities develop, 
update, and implement agricultural 
planning tools. 

United Way British 
Columbia Food 
Infrastructure Grant 

United Way BC & 
Ministry of Health 

Grants for community food-based 
organizations to address the unique 
food access and availability challenges 
of rural, remote, and Indigenous 
communities. The one-time grant will 
fund the development, 
implementation, or improvement of 
food infrastructure to support year-
round, long-term procurement, 
storage and distribution of fresh, 
traditional, and other food and 
enhance community well-being. 

 

- 84 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 56 

4 PILOT PROJECT SPOTLIGHT 

The City of Penticton aims to carry out a pilot project as a second phase of this project. Four projects have been included 
as potential pilot projects. The projects have been selected based on indicated need and interest communicated by 
stakeholders and community survey respondents; as well as the potential to carry out the project immediately or in 
the short-term (one to two years). 

Table 4.1 contains descriptions of key pilot projects, considerations, and information regarding financial feasibility. 

Table 4.1: Pilot Project Options 

Number Description Considerations Financial Feasibility 

1 

Food Policy Council/Staff 
Considering the great need to set up a 
Food Policy Council and find an 
employee to ensure that the Strategy 
can be implemented, the best use of 
second phase funding could be to hire 
someone and find office space, either 
donated or rented. 

Requires interested and 
supportive group to form a 
Council, to make this happen, and 
to keep employee motivated. 

F/T employee 1 year: 
~$48,000 (including 
benefits) 
Office rental: $400/month at 
co-work space, $4,800/year 
Incidentals and equipment: 
$3,500 
Total: $56,300 

2 

Backyard Sharing 
Backyard sharing is a great way to allow 
residents living in homes with no yard to 
have a garden and can also be a help to 
homeowners who would like to garden 
but lack the time or ability. This type of 
program benefits from an online app 
showing backyard locations and details, 
although it could be carried out just on a 
listing’s basis.  

The lowest cost option in terms of 
ongoing time investment would 
be to set up an automated 
interactive mapping or listings 
service, although this may exclude 
some potential users, particularly 
senior residents with larger yards 
but limited online abilities. This 
issue could be resolved by also 
advertising the service periodically 
in the newspapers and public 
buildings and having a contact 
phone number. 

Web development and 
hosting costs as low as $35-
$40/month through 
Diamond Maps (setup 
included) 

- 85 -



CITY OF PENTICTON –Food Security Strategy 

PAGE 57 

Another option could be to partner 
with an existing platform such as 
that hosted by Young Agrarians 
which matches prospective 
farmers with larger parcels of land. 

3 

Food Recovery Hub 
Several organizations engaging in food 
recovery to support charitable food 
services may benefit from a central hub 
and shared transportation for food. This 
would lower each organization’s 
ongoing transportation and organization 
costs. Salvation Army and Ooknakane 
Friendship Centre currently provide this 
type of service to local organizations, 
however there may be opportunities to 
streamline these activities and amplify 
the impacts. 

 Would require identifying an 
existing host organization 
with sufficient space or room 
to expand or identifying a 
separate space to rent for the 
purpose. 

 Would require ongoing 
collaboration on finances. 

 It may be more feasible, to 
start with, to share 
transportation which can pick 
up food at various locations 
and deliver it to each host 
organization.  

Start-up 
Used delivery van: $25,000 
Fridges (~3): $18,000 
Freezers (~2): $8,500 
Sorting: $3,500 
Total: $55,000 
 
Operating (Annual) 
Full-time Employee (1): 
$45,000 
Electricity/miscellaneous: 
$2,000 
Insurance, fuel, and repairs 
costs: $10,000 
Total: $57,000 
 

4 

Mini-Community Gardens Project 
Building small community gardens 
would be a way to test the need and 
interest in different locations in the city.  
 

Set up could be organizationally 
intensive 

Start-up (1 garden) 
Garden boxes (8): $2,000 
Soil: Free (donated by the 
City) 
Irrigation connections: $500 
 
Operating (Annual) 
Part-time coordinator (6 
months): $8,000 
Expenses (mileage, repairs): 
$1,000 
Total: $9,000 

 

- 86 -



APPENDIX A

- 87 -



Food Security Strategy
Background Report

City of Penticton

- 88 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

i 

CONTENTS 

1.0 Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................. 1 

2.0 Community Profile ............................................................................................................................................ 2 

3.0 Food Asset Inventory ....................................................................................................................................... 3 

4.0 Policy Review ........................................................................................................................................................ 3 

5.0 Inspiring Strategies ...........................................................................................................................................9 

6.0 Pilot Project Spotlight ................................................................................................................................... 12 

7.0 Conclusions and Food for Thought ...................................................................................................... 15 

- 89 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

 1 

1.0 INTRODUCTION  

This policy and background review will inform the development of the Food Security 
Strategy for the City of Penticton.  

To support the policy review and gap analysis, an asset inventory and mapping 
exercise was completed to identify current food security-related assets within the City. 
This provides a timestamp which updates to the Food Security Strategy will be able 
to use to determine impacts on the community. An overview of these assets is 
included in Section 3.   

A review of the City’s current policies was completed to understand the existing policy 
context with respect to food and food systems. A summary of the relevant policies and 
documents that were reviewed is outlined in Section 4.1 of this report.  

Building upon the policy review, best practices were identified to address gaps 
identified through the policy analysis (Section 4.1). This includes best practices 
pertaining chiefly to policies and assets. A summary of these best practices is provided 
in Section 4.2.  

For consideration by City Council, Staff, and the Food Security Working Group, a 
number of pilot projects have been profiled in Section 6.0. These profiles were 
compiled from communities across British Columbia and provide ‘food for thought’ 
when determining the desired pilot project as part of Phase II of the City’s Food 
Security Strategy.  

This review will inform upcoming public engagement sessions and development of 
the City’s Food Security Strategy.  

- 90 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

 2 

2.0 COMMUNITY PROFILE  

The City of Penticton had a total population of just under 34,000 as of 2016. This is a 
2.7% increase from 2011 indicating that the municipality has been growing at a slow 
but steady rate. According to 2016 Census data, the median age of the population is 
52.4 years. Compared to the national average of 41.2 years, Penticton has an older 
population.  About 59% of the population is working age (15-64), and 29% is of 
retirement age (65+), which is about 11% higher than the provincial average. 

A review of income statistics for the population of Penticton compared to the Regional 
District of Okanagan Similkameen (RDOS) and the rest of BC indicates that household 
incomes are relatively low. In 2015, the median household income was $54,219 in 
Penticton and $57,069 in the RDOS. This is significantly lower than the BC median 
income of $68,995.  

One method of assessing poverty is the use of the Low-Income Measure (LIM). 
Households meet the LIM threshold when their income does not meet a median 
income based on household size.1  The prevalence of low-income based on the low-
income measure after tax, is 17% in Penticton and 16.4% in the RDOS.    Additionally, 
71.5% of owner and tenant households in Penticton are spending 30% or more of their 
income on shelter costs, which is another indicator of income/cost of living challenges.  

Promoting equitable access to affordable, fresh, and nutritious food is one of the 
priorities for the Penticton Food Security Strategy. Based on this high-level population 
and income assessment, it appears that a significant proportion of the population of 
Penticton may experience challenges of food affordability.  A 2016 study by the 
Provincial Health Services Authority,2 notes that, based on 2011-2012 data, 14.1% of the 
population in the Interior Health region is food insecure to some extent.  Marginal food 
insecurity was measured at 3.7%, moderate food insecurity at 7%, and severe food 
insecurity 3.4%.  This rate of food insecurity is nearly three percent higher than the 
average for BC, which has an overall rate of 11.8%.  Indeed, the available information 
suggests that food insecurity is a concern for a portion of Penticton’s population. 

For people facing food affordability challenges, increasing food options, access to 
urban areas to grow their own food, and social food programs’ access to local food for 
emergent need would lead to increased food security. 

 

 
1 Statistics Canada. 2017. Penticton, CY [Census subdivision], British Columbia and Okanagan-Similkameen, RD [Census 
division], British Columbia (table). Census Profile. 2016 Census. Statistics Canada Catalogue no. 98-316-X2016001. Ottawa. 
Released November 29, 2017. 
https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/index.cfm?Lang=E (accessed February 5, 2021). 
2 Provincial Health Services Authority/Proof Food Insecurity Policy Research, Priority Health Equity Indicators for British 
Columbia: Household Food Insecurity Indicator Report, http://www.bccdc.ca/pop-public-
health/Documents/Household%20food%20insecurity%20in%20BC_full%20report.pdf.  

- 91 -

http://www.bccdc.ca/pop-public-health/Documents/Household%20food%20insecurity%20in%20BC_full%20report.pdf
http://www.bccdc.ca/pop-public-health/Documents/Household%20food%20insecurity%20in%20BC_full%20report.pdf


CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

3 

3.0 FOOD ASSET INVENTORY 

A helpful tool to understand the current food landscape in a community is the 
identification of current assets. Together, a community’s food security assets work 
together to make-up the local food system. The degree to which they are connected 
impacts their ability to support people across a spectrum of need and interests.  

To support the understanding of current food assets within the City, a series of maps 
was produced. The assets included in the mapping were identified by City staff and a 
Working Group with representatives from various organizations within the City that 
help promote a food-secure community.  

Found in Appendix A, the map set identifies assets within a number of categories 
which contribute to the local food system, including: 

• Grocery Stores • Community Organizations
• Community Gardens • Producer Associations
• Urban Farms • Emergency Food Providers
• Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR)

parcels
• Farmers Markets
• Local Food Processors

4.0 POLICY REVIEW 

This section provides a high-level policy and best practice review. It identifies current 
City policies and bylaws which address agriculture and food security, and a scan of 
best practices that other local governments are utilizing to address similar challenges. 

4.1 POLICY REVIEW 

The City of Penticton has a long history with localized food production and policies 
that support such efforts. Today, a number of key plans and bylaws form the 
regulatory framework which the City uses to support a dynamic, safe, food-secure 
community.   

Policy reviews allow Council, Staff and community to better understand the current 
regulatory framework pertaining to specific subject matter. It also allows for the 
identification of gaps – areas where policies or bylaws could be used to address the 
unique challenges facing a community. 

Table 1 on the following page provides an overview of City policies and bylaws that 
relate to food production and security.  

- 92 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

4 

Table 1 – Current Policies 

Plan/Bylaw Highlights 
Official Community 

Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08 
Section 4.5 contains 21 policies under the following goals: 

• Support, Protect and Enhance Agriculture;
• Food System; and
• Urban Agriculture

Policies are centred on: 
• Comprehensive agricultural land use and food

systems section with goals to increase ALR land, 
support agricultural activity within the city 
through land use policies (e.g. discouraging 
subdivision on land zoned for agriculture), and 
supporting producers through local sales options.  

• Supports the local food system, which focuses on
food distribution and availability in the city. 

• Promotes expansion of food production in urban
and suburban areas. 

Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-
08 

4.12.3 Urban Agriculture 
• Urban Agriculture permitted in all zones.

7.7 Urban Hens: 
• A max of 5 urban hens (no roosters) are allowed on

properties with one single detached dwelling 
City of Penticton 

Economic 
Development Strategy 

(2018-2022) 

Key Result Area 1: Strategic Communication  
Key Result Area 2: Collaboration  
Key Result Area 3: Retention and Expansion 
Key Result Area 4: Skilled Labour & Business Attraction 
Priority Cluster:  

• Tourism
• Agricultural Production
• Agricultural Technology
• Beer, Wine & Spirits Manufacturing

Parks and Recreation 
Master Plan (2018) 

Section 2.1 
• Support urban agriculture activities

Goal 7.3.1 
• Expand urban agriculture opportunities
• Work with the community group to identify one or

two more locations for community gardens or
other forms of urban agriculture in parks,
potentially including the ALR property at Munson
Mountain.

The bylaws, goals and policies identified above in Table 1 support Council and Staff 
engage in practices that support the community’s efforts for a food-secure 
community. How the City compares to best practices found in other British 
Columbian communities is identified in Section 3.3.   

- 93 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

5 

Other documents reviewed but not included in Table 1: 

• City of Penticton Agriculture Plan (2005)
• Kwantlen Polytechnic University (KPU) – Institute for Sustainable Food Systems

Resources:
o Building Connections: From Farm to Restaurant: Project Report May

2020 
o Okanagan Bioregion Food Systems Design Project

Okanagan Bioregion Institutional Procurement Study – Final & Summary 
Reports (April 2018)  

4.2 BEST PRACTICES REVIEW 

This best practices review provides an assessment of available strategies, policies and 
pilot projects other municipalities have used to support food security and a 
sustainable food system. The review has drawn out potentially relevant practices that 
could positively contribute to Penticton’s food system regulatory context. 

Development Permit Area Guidelines which Support Agriculture 

Development permit areas provide more control to a municipality around 
development and activities where special controls are required.  This would require 
creating a development permit area adjacent to agricultural land.  

Example: Protection of Agriculture Development Permit Guidelines – City of 
Abbottsford 

The City of Abbottsford’s relevant development permit area requires specific types of 
buffers be built between non-farm uses and agriculture.  The guidelines provide an 
illustrated guide to planting buffers between agricultural uses and other types of land 
uses.  The main purpose of these guidelines is to protect agricultural activity from 
intrusion from surrounding uses. 

Guidelines for Buffers in Zoning Bylaw 

Zoning bylaws can also provide comprehensive information about buffers between 
agricultural and non-farm uses.  This can be useful in the absence of a development 
permit area and a specific guidelines document.   

Example: City of Merritt Zoning Bylaw No. 2284 

Section 6.6 of the Merritt Zoning Bylaw have detailed guidelines for buffers between 
a parcel adjacent to the Agricultural Land Reserve.  Their buffers are required to be 8.0 
metres, regardless of the adjacent non-farm use.  This extent of buffer may be 
excessive for certain uses, such as a single-family residential lots, although it may be 
appropriate for a multi-family development or industrial use.  The bylaw further 
provides a detailed description of the composition of the buffer. 

- 94 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

6 

Promoting Agricultural Land Use within the ALR through Zoning 

A key opportunity to promote agricultural use on parcels within the ALR is to regulate 
the area of the property used for residential and other purposes.  Farm Home Plate 
guidelines can be incorporated into zoning bylaws to support ALR land use regulation. 
The Farm Home Plate area includes driveway access, all residential buildings 
(including detached suites for example), and regulates the distance of the principal 
dwelling from any other residential buildings.   

Example: City of Maple Ridge Farm Home Plate: Residential Development in the 
Agricultural Land Reserve 

The Farm Home Plate guidelines used by the City of Maple Ridge indicate the total 
maximum farm home plate area, maximum residential footprint, the depth of the 
farm home plate, among other aspects of siting.  These guidelines can support more 
robust guidelines for municipalities to protect the ALR land within their boundaries. 

Soil Bylaw 

Soil bylaws, in the food security planning context, are helpful for regulating the 
removal of soils and requirements to ensure that topsoil remains on site following 
excavation.  For residential developments this is particularly important to allow for 
growing food in the future.   

Example: City of Langford Soil Removal and Deposit Bylaw No. 1800 

The City of Langford’s soil bylaw indicates that no less than four inches of topsoil, sown 
with vegetative cover, must remain after an area has been excavated.  The bylaw 
indicates that the purpose of this is to guard against erosion. 

Animal Husbandry Related Regulations 

Beekeeping Regulations 

Beekeeping has become a more common urban hobby and contribute to the local 
honey supply.  Bee keeping regulations can be a standalone bylaw, or part of an 
animal control bylaw.  Regulations around beehives allow the municipality an 
opportunity to require that homeowners register their colonies/hives, put a limit on 
the number of colonies, location relative to property lines, identify the zones where 
hives are allowed, and other requirements.  Any municipal regulations around 
beekeeping are in addition to those included in the provincial Animal Health Act.3 

Example: City of Vernon Animal Regulation and Animal Pound Bylaw No. 5252 

The City of Vernon regulations around urban beekeeping include a number of related 
definitions and “Urban Beekeeping Regulations” as Schedule F.  Regulations indicate 
that adequate water must be kept on the beekeeper’s property to prevent bees from 
seeking water elsewhere.  The regulations also state that urban beekeeping is allowed 

3 Animal Health Act. B.C. Reg. 3/2015, Bee Regulation. Bee Regulation (gov.bc.ca) 

- 95 -

https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/3_2015


CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

7 

on residential, agricultural, comprehensive development, institutional, commercial, 
and industrial properties of at least 0.1 hectare in size.  Two hives are permitted on 
properties of at least 0.1 hectare, and four hives are permitted on properties greater 
than 0.1 hectare.  Illustrations are provided for siting beehives at the rear of properties. 

Backyard Hen Regulations 

Regulations around backyard hens help to ensure that poultry is kept on properties 
of a certain size and to regulate siting (i.e. rear/front yard), zones where coops are 
allowed, the size of coops, and other considerations.  Penticton could consider adding 
more detailed regulations either to the zoning bylaw or to an animal control bylaw. 
The regulations in place at present may be adequate for Penticton’s purposes, 
however if concerns emerge around backyard hens, then it may be helpful to refer to 
other examples of similar regulations. 

Example: City of Kamloops Animal Control Bylaw No. 34-11 

Section 9 of Bylaw No. 34-11 provides detailed regulations for backyard hens.  Property 
size and zoning indicates the number of poultry allowed on the property.  In 
residential zones, on properties of a minimum of 370 m2, a minimum of two and a 
maximum of five hens are allowed.  No roosters are permitted.  On properties until 
4,000 m2 associated structures (i.e. coops, enclosures), must be in the rear yard of the 
property and must be situated at least 1 m from the side yard line and at least 3 m 
from any door or window of a dwelling. 

Zoning to Promote Food Retail 

There is concern in Penticton around the lack of grocery stores in the downtown area. 
Inadequate food retail distribution, which can sometimes create food deserts, can be 
addressed through zoning and incentives.   

Example: Zoning Bylaws from New York City and Philadelphia4 

The report “Using Zoning to Create Healthy Food Environments in Baltimore City”, 
prepared for the Baltimore City Food Policy Task Force, identifies examples of 
jurisdictions which have used different tools to incentivize food retail outlet 
development.  Zoning incentives include, for example, allowing additional floor area 
for grocery stores in mixed use buildings and a reduction in the number of parking 
spaces in pedestrian-oriented neighbourhoods.  A report published by a collaborative 
team headed by the Massachusetts Department of Public Health,5 which looks at 
similar issues, also suggests using zoning to “prohibit ‘Negative Use Restrictions’ for 
food retail, and also including “food retail as an explicitly permitted use.”  The report 

4 Baltimore City Food Policy Task Force/Harrison Institute for Public Law, Using Zoning to Create Healthy Food 
Environments in Baltimore City, 
https://urbanhealth.jhu.edu/_PDFs/HBR_Index_Food/BaltimoreCity_2010_ZoningCreatingHealthyFoodEnvironments.
pdf   
5 Massachusetts Department of Public Health (MDPH), Pioneer Valley Planning Commission, Metropolitan Area 
Planning Council, Massachusetts Association of Health Boards (MAHB), and Massachusetts Municipal 
Association, Municipal Strategies to Increase Food Access: Volume 2 of the Healthy Community Design Toolkit.  

- 96 -

https://urbanhealth.jhu.edu/_PDFs/HBR_Index_Food/BaltimoreCity_2010_ZoningCreatingHealthyFoodEnvironments.pdf
https://urbanhealth.jhu.edu/_PDFs/HBR_Index_Food/BaltimoreCity_2010_ZoningCreatingHealthyFoodEnvironments.pdf


CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

8 

also suggests providing tax incentives for food retail development and streamlining 
food retail permitting. 

Regional/Municipal Agriculture Plan 

A regional or municipal agriculture plan can have a number of purposes.  It can 
include creating a comprehensive inventory of agricultural operations and the types 
of crops grown, identify land use concerns, uncover other issues such as unsustainable 
water use or distribution challenges.  This can be helpful for regions and municipalities 
to understand trends which may impact the economy, such as the growth of agri-
tourism, or an increase in export crops.  An agriculture plan can also help contribute 
to land use policy drafting for official community plans and zoning bylaws.   

Example: Regional District of North Okanagan Regional Agricultural Plan (2015) 

The Regional District of North Okanagan’s Agricultural Plan has a vision statement for 
agriculture in the area and key priorities and three pilot projects.  Their seven priorities 
include protecting farmland and farmers, strengthening the local agricultural 
economy, and ensuring farmland availability for emerging and multigenerational 
farmers.   

Food Policy Council 

Food policy councils serve as a means of bringing community stakeholders together 
and working to develop policy which informs community planning, as well as setting 
out the implementation of such policies.  The council can act as an advisory body for 
local government in planning processes.  Food policy councils can fill the needs which 
are most relevant for the local region or community.  Penticton currently has an 
Agricultural Advisory Committee which, as the name suggests, serves a more advisory 
purpose.  What may be helpful to support Penticton moving into the implementation 
stage of its food security priorities could be the development of a food policy council.  

Example: Comox Valley Food Policy Council 

The Comox Valley Food Policy Council was established in October 2020, under the 
umbrella of LUSH Valley.  LUSH stands for “Let Us Share the Harvest”.  The organization 
works to “help people gain local food systems skills, knowledge, and access to good 
food.”  The Comox Valley Food Policy Council works to support regional planning 
processes and act as an advisory board for local government.  Specific priorities for the 
past year were: 

1. Advocate for local food procurement policy for institutions and organizations;
2. Support planning and actions that minimizes food waste;
3. Increase local food literacy; and
4. Support the planning and/or development of a regional food hub.

- 97 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

9 

5.0 INSPIRING STRATEGIES 

A number of communities across British Columbia and other jurisdictions have plans 
and strategies that address food security  The aim of providing this information is to 
understand how regions or municipalities are perceiving food security and insecurity 
and, within their specific context, the different ways they plan on addressing these 
issues.  

The strategies and plans reviewed are recent documents from the past five years. 
They are mostly from communities or regions in BC, and have either agriculture, food 
security, or urban agriculture as a focus.  Key planning documents which provide a 
range of relevant strategies are: the Metro Vancouver Regional Food System Action 
Plan (2016), Food Secure Oliver (2018), and Kamloops Food and Urban Agriculture Plan 
(2015).  These key documents and the others included below strategize around the 
following key areas to varying degrees: 

• Protecting and expanding agricultural production locally.
• Improving the viability of food production by local farmers.
• Improving access to emergency food supports for food insecure individuals.
• Supporting and expanding urban agriculture opportunities.
• Improving food literacy among the public, particularly in educational settings.
• Identifying ways to improve food waste collection (e.g. food recovery, compost

programs).

Strategies and actions which are most relevant to Penticton have been included in 
Table 2 below.  In some cases, the language has been adjusted to improve relevancy. 

Table 2 – Food Security Strategy Best Practices  

Plan/Policy Key Highlights 
BC 

Metro Vancouver 
Regional Food System 

Action Plan (2016) 

• Strategy 1.1 Protect agricultural land for food
production

• Strategy 1.3 Enable expansion of agricultural
production

• Strategy 1.4 Invest in new generation of food
producers

• Strategy 1.5 Expand urban commercial food
production in urban areas

• Strategy 2.1 Increase the capacity to process,
warehouse and distribute local foods

• Strategy 2.2 Include local foods in purchasing
policies

• Strategy 2.3 Increase direct marketing
opportunities for local foods

- 98 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

10 

• Strategy 2.5 review government policies and
programs to ensure they enable the expansion of
the local food sector

• Strategy 3.1 Enable residents to make healthy food
choices

• Strategy 3.3 Enhance food literacy and skills in
schools

• Strategy 4.1 Improve access to nutritious food
among vulnerable groups

• Strategy 4.2 Encourage urban agriculture
• Strategy 4.3 Enable non-profit organizations to

recover nutritious food
• Strategy 5.2 Reduce waste in the food system

Food Secure Oliver 
(2018) 

• Strategy 1.1 Promote and expand the use of and
connection with urban agriculture

• Strategy 1.2 Expand edible landscaping on public
land

• Strategy 2.2 Create and support a food culture
inclusive to all residents and visitors

• Strategy 3.1 Increase access to local foods in social
services, schools, and neighbourhoods

• Strategy 3.2 Encourage local food businesses and
increase the number of places to buy local food and
drink

• Strategy 3.3 Recover high-quality food for sale
and/or donation

• Strategy 3.4 Increase community and commercial
food processing and storage capacity for securing
year-round supply

• Strategy 3.5 Increase awareness of and advocate for
food system and social policy systemic change

• Strategy 5.1 Facilitate sharing of food skills and
knowledge

• Strategy 5.2 Coordinate the sharing and use of food
preparation facilities and resources

• Strategy 6.3 Establish and enhance information
and resource sharing platforms and
communication

Kamloops 
Food and Urban 

Agriculture Plan (2015) 

• Strategy 1.1 - Utilize existing land and infrastructure
for sustainable food production.

• Strategy 1.2 - Review zoning and other regulations
to support urban and local agriculture.

• Strategy 1.3 - Support increased accessibility of local
food production.

• Strategy 2.1 - Support commercial and community-
based food processing facilities.

- 99 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

11 

• Strategy 3.1 - Review regulations and policies to
support local purchasing.

• Strategy 3.2 - Expand networks to support the
economic sustainability of the food system.

• Strategy 3.3 - Promote farmers' markets and
business models that provide fresh foods and
support local producers.

• Strategy 3.5 - Increase access to healthy local food
for food-insecure populations.

• Strategy 4.3 - Promote the local food system
through place-making efforts.

• Strategy 5.2 - Reduce and recycle food waste and
build healthy soils.

• Strategy 6.1 - Promote and facilitate knowledge
transfer and skill development.

• Strategy 6.2 - Utilize existing resources for food
system education.

• Strategy 6.3 - Utilize partnerships to build capacity
for food system health and sustainability.

• Strategy 6.4 - Promote food system education for
specific population groups.

District of Saanich 
Agriculture & Food 
Security Plan (2018) 

• Objective 2B: Enhance community capacity to
access healthy local food

• Objective 3B: Strengthen public education on the
local food system

• Objective 3C: Support promotion of local farms and
products

• Objective 4A: Minimize wildlife impacts and
address noxious weeds and invasive species
concerns

• Objective 4B: Encourage sustainable water
management

• Objective 4D: Encourage the implementation of
climate change adaptation and mitigation
measures for the local food system

• Objective 6D: Support affordable access to
farmland

- 100 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

12 

Table 2 Continued… 

Plan/Policy Key Highlights 
USA 

Santa Barbara County 
Food Action Plan (2016) 

• Priority Goal 1: Support the next generation of
farmers and food system entrepreneurs by
creating or expanding agriculture and vocational
education at the high school and community
college level.

• Goal 2: Encourage entry into the local food
economy by building access to a collaboration of
educational resources and tools that can be utilized
by new and emerging food system entrepreneurs.

• Goal 4: Strengthen distribution systems for local
produce through existing networks, food hubs, and
alternative markets.

• Goal 8: Integrate food literacy into all school
campus cultures—including in-school and out-of-
school programs.

AUSTRALIA 
City of Greater 

Bendigo’s Food System 
Strategy 2020-2030 

Selected actions: 
• Support kitchen garden programs at schools (e.g.

Farm to Cafeteria, Good Food Challenge) 
• Partner with Indigenous communities and relevant

stakeholders to develop knowledge and 
understanding of sustainable land-use practices, 
language and the cultural life of the region through 
Indigenous food plants 

• Activate the community food information portal

- 101 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

13 

6.0 PILOT PROJECT SPOTLIGHT 

Produce Stand/Street Vending 

Explore opportunities for local street vending program/produce stands – refer to Town 
of Oliver and Metro Vancouver.  Permissive regulations in practice in Ladysmith, BC. 
Refer to Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw No. 1860.   

Urban Agriculture on Public Land 

Explore opportunities for testing the feasibility of permitting new types of urban 
agriculture on public land through pilot programming (e.g. bee keeping, container 
gardening, fruit bearing trees, rooftop farming) – refer to Metro Vancouver and Town 
of Oliver. 

• Example: Edible Pathway Project (Town of Oliver)
o Involved downtown area businesses in a program to grow food in

containers in front of their business
o Promoted healthy neighbourhood design and healthy food systems by

replacing flowers in planter boxes with edible plants (herbs and
vegetables) on a main commercial street to create a network of edible
produce in the town

Food Production in Higher Density Zones 

Explore ways to promote growing food in higher density zones.  Examples include 
rooftop cultivation, regulations for developers around reserving space for a 
community garden.  Refer to Growing Food and Gardening in Mixed-Use, Multi-Unit 
Residential Developments (2019) –City of Victoria. 

Food Recovery 

Explore possibility of launching a pilot food recovery or food exchange program to 
channel surplus nutritious food to people (e.g. provides a central place for people to 
bring and take surplus garden/farm product) – refer to Town of Oliver, Metro 
Vancouver. The Lake Country Food Bank has a food recovery program as well.6 The 
City could look at engaging with Second Harvest (FoodRescue.ca) to discuss how to 
best promote this. 

6 Global News, “Lake Country Food Bank celebrates success of food recovery program”. 
https://globalnews.ca/news/5978402/lake-country-food-bank-recovery-program/ 

- 102 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

14 

Sharing Backyards Program 

The “Sharing Backyards” program was active from 2005 to about 2015.  It was initiated 
in Victoria, BC and run by the Lifecycles Project Society,7 which is still active but 
focusing on other programs.  The program used a platform much like the Young 
Agrarians’ Land Matching Program8, but at the city and backyard level.  It utilized an 
interactive mapping platform, which unfortunately became outdated when 
technology changed.  With some seed money, an existing organization or the City of 
Penticton may be able to host this program to enable people without a backyard an 
area to garden in.  

Agricultural-Urban Interface Buffer Guidelines 

Working to minimize and mitigate the recreation/agricultural interface in Delta is an 
action included in Section 1.1 of the Metro Vancouver Regional Food System Action 
Plan.  There are similar concerns in Penticton where this interface occurs.  Although 
there are guidelines in place in Penticton, these could be further developed according 
to specific local needs.  A pilot project could include planting/installing buffer areas to 
experiment with tree/plant species and width of buffer.   

7 Watershed Sentinel, “Sharing Backyard Gardens Directory in BC”. https://watershedsentinel.ca/articles/sharing-
backyard-gardens-directory-in-bc/ 
8 Young Agrarians, B.C. Land Matching Program. https://youngagrarians.org/tools/land/bc-land-matching-program/ 

- 103 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

15 

7.0 CONCLUSIONS AND FOOD FOR THOUGHT 

Food Assets 

There are a number of organizations, producers and services already existing within 
the City. Fostering their ability to meaningfully participate in the current food system 
will support the City’s desire to encourage a food-secure community.  

The food asset mapping found in Appendix A can be used as a timestamp to measure 
the evolution of organizations, producers and services that support a food-secure 
Penticton.  

Planning 

There are a number of planning, policy, and regulatory approaches that municipalities 
can take.  Considerations for Penticton moving forward could be around expanding 
opportunities for urban agriculture through increased direct sales options or 
expanding the zones in which community gardens are permitted (see Section 6.0).  A 
soils bylaw would help to ensure that a certain depth of topsoil stays on excavated 
sites, in order to protect land from erosion and improve drainage, but also to improve 
conditions for future gardening or urban agriculture on the site.  

More detailed regulations could also be introduced for buffers through Penticton’s 
zoning bylaw based on the results of similar regulations in other municipalities. 
Beekeeping regulations could also be introduced to ensure siting is appropriate (i.e. 
located in the rear yard) and that the number of colonies is tied to the size of property 
and/or zone.  To promote food retail, Penticton could assess the value of amending 
zoning to incentivize this use in certain zones or areas. 

An additional consideration for Penticton related to planning could be an update of 
the 2005 Agriculture Plan, either at a regional or municipal level, which would support 
land use planning in the future and better understanding the needs and concerns of 
farmers in the city or region. 

Food Security Strategic Direction 

Strategies and planning related to food security tend to take into account a range of 
perspectives and needs.  From increasing access to locally grown food and improving 
conditions for local agriculture, to ensuring that people in need in the community 
have consistent access to emergency food programs and improving food literacy.  All 
of these factors influence community food security.  While emergency food programs 
may seem like they serve a very different need than a farmer’s market, they both serve 
to improve nutrition by increasing options and healthy food availability.   

Taking into account the broad view which is generally taken of the causes and 
impacts of food security in a municipality or region, Penticton may consider a similar 
approach, which appears to be favoured by the initial Working Group meeting in 
December 2020.  This approach may include the following: 

- 104 -



CITY OF PENTICTON – FOOD SECURITY STRATEGY 
BACKGROUND REPORT 

16 

• Promoting urban agriculture through zoning, regulations, and helpful
programs (e.g. backyard sharing).

• Protecting and encouraging agriculture on agricultural lands through use of
zoning, level of support for subdivisions, parcel coverage (i.e. farm home plate)
guidelines, and buffering.

• Supporting the agriculture industry as it relates to distribution, aggregation,
and processing for example and promoting investment in this sector.

• Identifying opportunities to further support urban agriculture through zoning,
potential community garden areas, and direct sales opportunities.

• Supporting emergency food programs by encouraging food recovery.
• Move forward on initiatives to increase organic waste diversion and increase

affordable compost availability.

Pilot Projects 

There are a number of pilot projects which may be appropriate for Penticton.  It may 
be helpful to gather input and more ideas for pilot projects during the community 
and stakeholder engagement process to see which ideas get people excited.   

- 105 -



APPENDIX A 

Food Asset Mapping 

- 106 -



U
:\P

ro
je

ct
s_

V
IC

\1
0

17
\0

0
90

\0
1\

D
-D

es
ig

n\
G

IS
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

P
ro

_P
ro

je
ct

s\
10

17
.0

0
90

.0
1-

P
en

ti
ct

on
_F

oo
d

_S
ec

u
ri

ty
_S

tr
at

\1
0

17
.0

0
90

.a
p

rx
\F

ig
u

re
 1.

 A
g

ri
cu

lt
u

ra
l Z

on
in

g
 - 

P
en

ti
ct

on
 F

oo
d

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
 S

tr
at

eg
y

La
st

 u
p

d
at

ed
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
10

, 2
0

21
 a

t 
12

:4
1 P

M
La

st
 e

xp
or

te
d

 b
y 

kg
em

zi
k 

on
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

10
, 2

0
21

 12
:4

1 P
M

La
st

 p
ri

n
te

d
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
5,

 2
0

17
 11

:4
6 

A
M

FIGURE 1

Food Security Strategy

AGRICULTURAL ZONING

Coordinate System:

The accuracy & completeness of information shown on this
drawing is not guaranteed.  It will be the responsibility of the user
of the information shown on this drawing to locate & establish the
precise location of all existing information whether shown or not.

NAD 1983 CSRS UTM Zone 11N

1:50,000Scale:

Data Sources:

- Data provided by Open Data Penticton, DataBC,
  Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA

0 750 1,500 2,250

Meters

(When plotted at 11"x17")

¯

·

¯

N

Project #:
Author:
Checked:
Status:
Revision:
Date: 2021 / 2 / 10

B
DRAFT
ZH
KG
1017.0090.01

Okanagan Lake
Skaha Lake

J
o

h
n

so
n

R
d

Upper B e nch Rd N

Middle Bench Rd N

E vergre en Dr

W
e

st
m

in
st

e
r

A
v

e
E

W
ilson St

Lower Bench Rd

O
k

a
n

a
g

a
n

A
ve

E

La
n

e
w

ay

U
p

p
e

r Bench Rd S

D
a

w
so

n
A

v
e

Airport Rd

Manitoba St

K
in

n
e

y
A

v
e

W
a

rre
n

A
v

e
E

E
ck

h
a

rd
t 

A
v

e
 W

H
u

th
A

v
e

Y
o

rk
to

n
 A

v
e

Ellis St

M
a

ccle
a

v
e

A
v

e

W

iltse
B

lv
d

L
a

k
e

sh
o

re
D

r
W

Thre

eM
ile

R
d

Atkinson St
Martin St

Sut h er land Rd

L
a

w
r

e
n

ce
A

ve

P in

evi e
w

R
d

Winnipeg St

D
u

n
ca

n
Av e

W

Spi ller Rd

W
e

stm
in

ste
r A

v
e

 W

Re

servo
i r

Rd

S outh Main St

P
e

n
ticto

n
A

v
e

Skaha Lake Rd

D
u

n
ca

n
A

v
e

E

Government St

Main St

L akeside Rd

Valleyview Rd

Channel Pky

C
a

rm
i

A
v

e
Naramata Rd

Riversid

e
D r

Agriculture (897 ha)

OCP - Future Land Use

Agriculture (1,341 ha)

Zoning

ALR Lands (839 ha)

First Nation Reserves

Municipal Boundary

- 107 -



U
:\P

ro
je

ct
s_

V
IC

\1
0

17
\0

0
90

\0
1\

D
-D

es
ig

n\
G

IS
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

P
ro

_P
ro

je
ct

s\
10

17
.0

0
90

.0
1-

P
en

ti
ct

on
_F

oo
d

_S
ec

u
ri

ty
_S

tr
at

\1
0

17
.0

0
90

.a
p

rx
\F

ig
u

re
 2

. C
ad

as
tr

al
 - 

P
en

ti
ct

on
 F

oo
d

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
 S

tr
at

eg
y

La
st

 u
p

d
at

ed
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
10

, 2
0

21
 a

t 
12

:4
2 

P
M

La
st

 e
xp

or
te

d
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
10

, 2
0

21
 12

:4
2 

P
M

La
st

 p
ri

n
te

d
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
5,

 2
0

17
 11

:4
6 

A
M

FIGURE 2

Food Security Strategy

CADASTRAL

Coordinate System:

The accuracy & completeness of information shown on this
drawing is not guaranteed.  It will be the responsibility of the user
of the information shown on this drawing to locate & establish the
precise location of all existing information whether shown or not.

NAD 1983 CSRS UTM Zone 11N

1:50,000Scale:

Data Sources:

- Data provided by Open Data Penticton, DataBC,
  Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA

0 750 1,500 2,250

Meters

(When plotted at 11"x17")

¯

·

¯

N

Project #:
Author:
Checked:
Status:
Revision:
Date: 2021 / 2 / 10

B
DRAFT
ZH
KG
1017.0090.01

Okanagan Lake
Skaha Lake

J
o

h
n

so
n

R
d

Upper B e nch Rd N

Middle Bench Rd N

E vergre en Dr

W
e

st
m

in
st

e
r

A
v

e
E

W
ilson St

Lower Bench Rd

O
k

a
n

a
g

a
n

A
ve

E

La
n

e
w

ay

U
p

p
e

r Bench Rd S

D
a

w
so

n
A

v
e

Airport Rd

Manitoba St

K
in

n
e

y
A

v
e

W
a

rre
n

A
v

e
E

E
ck

h
a

rd
t 

A
v

e
 W

H
u

th
A

v
e

Y
o

rk
to

n
 A

v
e

Ellis St

M
a

ccle
a

v
e

A
v

e

W

iltse
B

lv
d

L
a

k
e

sh
o

re
D

r
W

Thre

eM
ile

R
d

Atkinson St
Martin St

Sut h er land Rd

L
a

w
r

e
n

ce
A

ve

P in

evi e
w

R
d

Winnipeg St

D
u

n
ca

n
Av e

W

Spi ller Rd

W
e

stm
in

ste
r A

v
e

 W

Re

servo
i r

Rd

S outh Main St

P
e

n
ticto

n
A

v
e

Skaha Lake Rd

D
u

n
ca

n
A

v
e

E

Government St

Main St

L akeside Rd

Valleyview Rd

Channel Pky

C
a

rm
i

A
v

e
Naramata Rd

Riversid

e
D r

Municipal Boundary

Owner Type

Crown Agency

Crown Provincial

Federal

First Nation

Mixed Ownership

Municipal

First Nation Reserves

- 108 -



U
:\P

ro
je

ct
s_

V
IC

\1
0

17
\0

0
90

\0
1\

D
-D

es
ig

n\
G

IS
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

P
ro

_P
ro

je
ct

s\
10

17
.0

0
90

.0
1-

P
en

ti
ct

on
_F

oo
d

_S
ec

u
ri

ty
_S

tr
at

\1
0

17
.0

0
90

.a
p

rx
\F

ig
u

re
 3

. O
C

P
 - 

Fu
tu

re
 L

an
d

 U
se

 - 
P

en
ti

ct
on

 F
oo

d
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

 S
tr

at
eg

y

La
st

 u
p

d
at

ed
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
10

, 2
0

21
 a

t 
12

:4
5 

P
M

La
st

 e
xp

or
te

d
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
10

, 2
0

21
 12

:4
5 

P
M

La
st

 p
ri

n
te

d
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
5,

 2
0

17
 11

:4
6 

A
M

FIGURE 3

Food Security Strategy

OCP - FUTURE LAND USE

Coordinate System:

The accuracy & completeness of information shown on this
drawing is not guaranteed.  It will be the responsibility of the user
of the information shown on this drawing to locate & establish the
precise location of all existing information whether shown or not.

NAD 1983 CSRS UTM Zone 11N

1:50,000Scale:

Data Sources:

- Data provided by Open Data Penticton, DataBC,
  Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA

0 750 1,500 2,250

Meters

(When plotted at 11"x17")

¯

·

¯

N

Project #:
Author:
Checked:
Status:
Revision:
Date: 2021 / 2 / 10

B
DRAFT
ZH
KG
1017.0090.01

Okanagan Lake
Skaha Lake

J
o

h
n

so
n

R
d

Upper B e nch Rd N

Middle Bench Rd N

E vergre en Dr

W
e

st
m

in
st

e
r

A
v

e
E

W
ilson St

Lower Bench Rd

O
k

a
n

a
g

a
n

A
ve

E

La
n

e
w

ay

U
p

p
e

r Bench Rd S

D
a

w
so

n
A

v
e

Airport Rd

Manitoba St

K
in

n
e

y
A

v
e

W
a

rre
n

A
v

e
E

E
ck

h
a

rd
t 

A
v

e
 W

H
u

th
A

v
e

Y
o

rk
to

n
 A

v
e

Ellis St

M
a

ccle
a

v
e

A
v

e

W

iltse
B

lv
d

L
a

k
e

sh
o

re
D

r
W

Thre

eM
ile

R
d

Atkinson St
Martin St

Sut h er land Rd

L
a

w
r

e
n

ce
A

ve

P in

evi e
w

R
d

Winnipeg St

D
u

n
ca

n
Av e

W

Spi ller Rd

W
e

stm
in

ste
r A

v
e

 W

Re

servo
i r

Rd

S outh Main St

P
e

n
ticto

n
A

v
e

Skaha Lake Rd

D
u

n
ca

n
A

v
e

E

Government St

Main St

L akeside Rd

Valleyview Rd

Channel Pky

C
a

rm
i

A
v

e
Naramata Rd

Riversid

e
D r

Municipal Boundary

Agriculture

Airport

Industrial

Landfill and Landfill Buffer

Commercial

Tourist Commercial

Urban Residential

Ground Oriented Residential

Detached Residential

Urban High Density Residential

Rural Residential

Infill Residential

Mixed Use

Downtown Mixed Use

First Nations

Institutional and Civic

Natural and Conservation Areas

Parks

- 109 -



U
:\P

ro
je

ct
s_

V
IC

\1
0

17
\0

0
90

\0
1\

D
-D

es
ig

n\
G

IS
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

P
ro

_P
ro

je
ct

s\
10

17
.0

0
90

.0
1-

P
en

ti
ct

on
_F

oo
d

_S
ec

u
ri

ty
_S

tr
at

\1
0

17
.0

0
90

.a
p

rx
\F

ig
u

re
 4

. F
oo

d
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

 A
ss

et
s 

- P
en

ti
ct

on
 F

oo
d

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
 S

tr
at

eg
y

La
st

 u
p

d
at

ed
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
10

, 2
0

21
 a

t 
12

:4
4

 P
M

La
st

 e
xp

or
te

d
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
10

, 2
0

21
 12

:4
4

 P
M

La
st

 p
ri

n
te

d
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
5,

 2
0

17
 11

:4
6 

A
M

FIGURE 4

Food Security Strategy

FOOD SECURITY ASSETS

Coordinate System:

The accuracy & completeness of information shown on this
drawing is not guaranteed.  It will be the responsibility of the user
of the information shown on this drawing to locate & establish the
precise location of all existing information whether shown or not.

NAD 1983 CSRS UTM Zone 11N

1:50,000Scale:

Data Sources:

- Data provided by Open Data Penticton, DataBC,
  Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA

0 750 1,500 2,250

Meters

(When plotted at 11"x17")

¯

·

¯

N

Project #:
Author:
Checked:
Status:
Revision:
Date: 2021 / 2 / 10

B
DRAFT
ZH
KG
1017.0090.01

Okanagan Lake
Skaha Lake

J
o

h
n

so
n

R
d

Upper Bench Rd N

Fairview Rd

Middle Bench Rd N

E vergre en Dr

W
e

st
m

in
st

e
r

A
v

e
EW ils

on St

Lower Bench Rd

Laneway

O
k

a
n

a
g

a
n

A
v

e
E

U
p

p
e

r Bench Rd S

D
a

w
so

n
A

v
e

Airport Rd

Manitoba StW
a

rre
n

A
v

e
E

E
ck

h
a

rd
t 

A
v

e
 W

Ellis St

M
a

ccle
a

v
e

A
v

e

W

iltse
B

lvd

L
a

k
e

sh
o

re
D

r
W

G
re

e
n

Ave
W

Thre

eM
ile

R
d

Atkinson St

Sut h er land Rd

L
a

w
r

e
n

ce
A

ve

P in

evi e
w

R
d

Spi ller Rd

Re

servo
i r

Rd

South Main St

P
e

ntic
to

n
A

ve

S
k

a
h

a

L ake Rd

D
u

n
ca

n
A

v
e

E

Governm en t
S

tMain St

L akeside Rd

Valleyview Rd

Channel Pky

C
a

rm
i

A
v

e
Naramata Rd

Municipal Boundary

Agriculture Supply and Education

Community Garden

Farmers Market / Farm Box

Farms

Food Bank

Food-Related Social Programming

Grocery Store

Industry Association

- 110 -



U
:\P

ro
je

ct
s_

V
IC

\1
0

17
\0

0
90

\0
1\

D
-D

es
ig

n\
G

IS
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

P
ro

_P
ro

je
ct

s\
10

17
.0

0
90

.0
1-

P
en

ti
ct

on
_F

oo
d

_S
ec

u
ri

ty
_S

tr
at

\1
0

17
.0

0
90

.a
p

rx
\F

ig
u

re
 5

. Z
on

in
g

 - 
P

en
ti

ct
on

 F
oo

d
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

 S
tr

at
eg

y

La
st

 u
p

d
at

ed
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
10

, 2
0

21
 a

t 
12

:4
4

 P
M

La
st

 e
xp

or
te

d
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
10

, 2
0

21
 12

:4
4

 P
M

La
st

 p
ri

n
te

d
 b

y 
kg

em
zi

k 
on

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
5,

 2
0

17
 11

:4
6 

A
M

FIGURE 5

Food Security Strategy

ZONING

Coordinate System:

Not for regulatory use. The accuracy & completeness of information
shown on this drawing is not guaranteed.  It will be the responsibility
of the user of the information shown on this drawing to locate &
establish the precise location of all existing information whether
shown or not.

NAD 1983 CSRS UTM Zone 11N

1:50,000Scale:

Data Sources:

- Data provided by Open Data Penticton, DataBC,
  Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA

0 750 1,500 2,250

Meters

(When plotted at 11"x17")

¯

·

¯

N

Project #:
Author:
Checked:
Status:
Revision:
Date: 2021 / 2 / 10

B
DRAFT
ZH
KG
1017.0090.01

Okanagan Lake
Skaha Lake

J
o

h
n

so
n

R
d

Upper B e nch Rd N

Middle Bench Rd N

E vergre en Dr

W
e

st
m

in
st

e
r

A
v

e
E

W
ilson St

Lower Bench Rd

O
k

a
n

a
g

a
n

A
ve

E

La
n

e
w

ay

U
p

p
e

r Bench Rd S

D
a

w
so

n
A

v
e

Airport Rd

Manitoba St

K
in

n
e

y
A

v
e

W
a

rre
n

A
v

e
E

E
ck

h
a

rd
t 

A
v

e
 W

H
u

th
A

v
e

Y
o

rk
to

n
 A

v
e

Ellis St

M
a

ccle
a

v
e

A
v

e

W

iltse
B

lv
d

L
a

k
e

sh
o

re
D

r
W

Thre

eM
ile

R
d

Atkinson St
Martin St

Sut h er land Rd

L
a

w
r

e
n

ce
A

ve

P in

evi e
w

R
d

Winnipeg St

D
u

n
ca

n
Av e

W

Spi ller Rd

W
e

stm
in

ste
r A

v
e

 W

Re

servo
i r

Rd

S outh Main St

P
e

n
ticto

n
A

v
e

Skaha Lake Rd

D
u

n
ca

n
A

v
e

E

Government St

Main St

L akeside Rd

Valleyview Rd

Channel Pky

C
a

rm
i

A
v

e
Naramata Rd

Riversid

e
D r

Municipal Boundary

Commercial Zones

Comprehensive Development

Industrial Zones

Public Assembly & Recreation Zones

Rural Zones

Urban Residential Zones

First Nation Reserves

- 111 -



APPENDIX B

- 112 -



July 2021
City of Penticton Contact: 

Blake Laven
Urban Systems Contact:
Alison Rustand

Penticton Food Security Strategy

Engagement Results and 
Next Steps

- 113 -



Meeting Agenda

1. Round table of introductions

2. Review project timeline

3. Engagement activities and outcomes

4. Key survey results

5. Stakeholder session outcomes

6. Emerging themes

7. Next steps

8. Current funding opportunities

- 114 -



Project Timeline

Fall 2020 

Project Launch

Winter 2020 

Community 

Analysis and Local 

Character Mapping

Spring 2021

Community 

Engagement

Summer 2021

Draft Food 

Security 

Strategy and 

Implementation 

Strategy

Fall 2021 

Finalize Strategy

- 115 -



Communications 
and  
Engagement 
Activities

Community Survey

• Total of 472 respondents

Stakeholder Sessions

• 3 sessions with a total of 18 participants

(including 2 working group members and 1

City of Penticton staff member)

- 116 -



Communications and Engagement 
Outcomes

Community Survey

• Total of 472 respondents

Stakeholder Sessions

• 3 sessions with a total of 18 participants

(including 2 working group members and 1

City of Penticton staff member)

- 117 -



Stakeholder Sessions: Who did we hear 
from? 

Food Program Providers

Starfish Back Pack Program

United Way

Foundry

St Saviours Church

Funding Organizations 

Valley First Credit Union

Producers

Creek and Gully Cider

Okanagan Food Hub

Local Motive Farm/Store

Educational Organizations

UBCO

School District 67

Okanagan College

Government Agency

Interior Health

City of Penticton

Local Food Promoting 

Organizations

Penticton Farmers Market

Okanagan Tree Fruit Project

- 118 -



Community Survey: Who did we hear 
from? 

• Age

• 20%: 19-39 years old

• 49%: 40-64 years old

• 30%: 65+

• 73% women

• 5% Indigenous

• 4% food producers 

• 4% members of LGBTQS+ community

• Only 2 recent immigrants

• Households: 1) Couple with no dependents, 2) Couple with dependents, 3) Individuals, 4) Lone parents with 

dependents

• Relatively even distribution of incomes

• 53% employed, 6% unemployed, 41% not participating

• 52% lived in a single family home with space for a garden, 27% lived in a multi-unit home without space for a 

garden

- 119 -



Community Survey: Food procurement 
priorities 

1 That I can buy local food. 69%

2 That I can buy food at low prices. 64%

3
That I can buy food conveniently (at the nearest 

store).
57%

4 That I can grow my own food. 31%

5 That I can buy organic food. 20%

6
That I can buy food in bulk (e.g. making periodic 

trips to Costco).
15%

7
That I can hunt, fish, or wild harvest at least a 

portion of my and my family's food.
7%

- 120 -



Community Survey: Food Procurement 
Challenges

32% of respondents have challenges accessing food in ways most appropriate for 

them.

53% for those earning up to $20,000.

61% for lone parent households.

59% for Indigenous respondents.

50% for those identifying as part of the LGBTQS+

- 121 -



Food Procurement: Comments and Ideas

“Through the COVID period, it has become increasingly difficult to find local food sources.”

“Money is tight so it’s hard to get veggies and fruit every month”

“I am a low income disabled senior who simply cannot afford to buy healthy organic food in stores 

which would be my preference.”

“Buying local is not convenient.”

“It’s hard to get fresh organic meat.”

“Not permitted to have a garden in strata”

“Development and privatization/fencing on land harvesting base for roots, berries, and medicines.”

“No freezer space for bulk buying.”

“No grocery stores in downtown core.”

- 122 -



Community Survey: Food Insecurity 
Challenges

24% of all respondents often or sometimes are worried that food will run out.

61% for lone parent households

27% for women respondents

55% for members of the LGBTQS+ community

43% for Indigenous respondents

Of those experiencing challenges:

52% - due to income

20% - due to lack of time

15% - due to distance

14% - due to mobility

- 123 -



Food Insecurity: Comments and Ideas

“More fresh food like the old days”

“Mobile veggie vendors in neighbourhoods”

“Daily markets” “I’d like to see the food system change to see more direct 

sales to customers”

“I have no space to grow healthy affordable food”

“I want to learn to grow my own food”

- 124 -



Community Survey: How people buy their 
food

1 Grocery Store 98%

2 Restaurant take out/fast food 51%

3 Farmer's Market 45%

4 Backyard Garden 38%

5 Wholesaler (e.g. Costco) 27%

6 Directly from farms outside of Farmer's Market 26%

7
Produce sharing between friends, family or 

neighbours
19%

8 Patio planters (apartments, townhouses) 13%

- 125 -



Community Survey: Buying local food

1
This is important and I try to buy locally 

produced food when possible.
46%

2
This is important but I find it difficult to buy 

local food because of the cost.
34%

3

This is important and I purchase a large part 

of my or my household’s food from local 

sources.

7%

4
This is important and I am involved in 

agriculture/grow my own food.
7%

5 I don't think this is very important. 3%

- 126 -



Community Survey: Challenges to buying 
local food

1 Lack of availability at preferred grocery store 49%

2 Price 48%

3 Unsure where or how to access 11%

I don’t encounter challenges 20%

- 127 -



Community Survey: Producers

17 Producers responded

Fruit for local distribution 6

Fruit for export to other countries 6

Fruit for export to other regions, the US 5

Wine grapes 5

Eggs for local distribution 4

Vegetables for local distribution 3

Livestock for export to other regions or countries 1

Livestock for local distribution 1

- 128 -



Community Survey: Food Production 
Challenges

“Difficult to find labour.”

“Poor apple prices.”

“Promoting and supporting the farmers market is the best way to directly connect locals and 
visitors to our local food culture.”

“Access to reasonably prices supplies for producing and growing food. Need more 
local abattoirs.”

“High cost of land.”

“I think we need to data and the ability to link up supply chains and consumers.”

- 129 -



Food Production: Ideas and Comments

“Orchardists could get reductions in things like water fees, etc”

“Provide incentives/subsidies to local businesses that make local food more convenient.”

“Stop rezoning agricultural land for non-agricultural uses on productive farm land”

“Land sharing. I have a huge backyard, and no time/ability to garden.”

“Unless farmers can make a living producing food (not grapes) then we will not be food secure. Hence, local 

food security can only come at the cost of much higher food prices for locally produced food.”

“Allowing an NGO to assist with processing food for their clients.”

“Local grants to start farm stands”

“Unused agricultural land could be leased to young aspiring farmers for local production and

distribution. I think local agriculture needs to be supported so that the producers get a fair

price, and there is ease of distribution.”

- 130 -



Community Survey: Urban Agriculture

60% of respondents engage in urban agriculture at home or elsewhere

The probability of engaging in urban agriculture increases by income bracket.

Of the 40% who said no, 45% would like to grow their own food.

What do respondents need to get started?

• Community garden

• Larger backyard/land

• Resources – time and money

• Training/guidance

- 131 -



Urban Agriculture: Comments and Ideas

“More awareness of how to prepare local foods, e.g. squash. Preserving workshops for how to make canned apple 

sauce, peaches, pears, etc.”

“More community gardens.”

“Stop building townhouses/duplexes without yards.”

“More farmer market days.”

“The city is full of seniors who live in apartments, many will enjoy gardening. It is also

excellent education for youth. Those on limited income can benefit by accessing healthier and cheaper food.

“Maybe if we had a website that showed the different farms and what they offer –

and who still has produce available etc.”

“Program to supply residents with garden boxes and soil mixes to grow their own food. program

to match landowners with available gardens with gardeners.”

“Training clinics to teach those who have zero knowledge about 

gardening.”

- 132 -



Community Survey: Store/Restaurant 
Owners

7 store/restaurant owners or managers

71% of these sold regional produce

Customers request locally grown or produced products. - 3

We offer a sufficient variety of local products. - 3

We offer a number of local products and aim to increase variety/quantity. - 2

We would like to offer more products but find it challenging to find locally grown/made products to sell. - 2

We would like to offer more products but find it challenging to find local producers who can meet certain 

contract

quotas. - 1

- 133 -



Stakeholder Sessions: Key Goals

A food strategy that is South Okanagan specific Education about food 

sustainability 

No person in Penticton is hungry 

Everyone has access to food

Decolonize our food system 

Effective food recovery

Fair pay for local food producers 

Resilient food system

Equitable distribution of food

A healthy ecosystem 

Dignity within the food system

Communication, centralization, collaboration 

Long-term food sustainability

- 134 -



Stakeholder Sessions: Opportunities

Engaging municipal bodies 

(like UBCM) to lobby the 

Province for more local food 

system support

Create a list of 

organizations that can 

benefit from food 

donations that is 

updated regularlyAllow young people 

to be able to access 

food bank resources 

and emergency food 

support

Set up foraging 

classes so people 

can access 

alternative food 

sources

Creation of a Central 

Okanagan food security 

working group to help 

implement actions that 

result from the process

Collaborate with 

Penticton Indian Band on 

food sovereignty 

initiatives and utilize 

Indigenous Knowledge

Creation of a 

community fridge

Re-allocate 

gardening 

budget to food 

sources – plant 

food not flowers

Build more 

community 

gardens

- 135 -



Emerging Themes 

Tension between the public’s desire to buy local and buy conveniently and at low prices.

Need for more community garden space and/or land linking programs.

Need to support local producers in different ways.

Continue to improve supports for food insecure individuals.

Improve efficiency of food recovery.

Continue to strengthen collaboration, avoid competition between organizations.

- 136 -



Next Steps 

1. Draft the Food Security Strategy 
• Compile list of potential initiatives

2. Go through a review process with the Working Group
• Vet and prioritize initiatives

3. Finalize the strategy

- 137 -



Current Funding Opportunities 

Local Food Infrastructure Fund – Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada

Deadline: August 13th, 2021

Purpose: Provide rapid-response grants through investments in infrastructure 
needs. The impact must be targeted and immediate and must be directly 
related to addressing food insecurities and increasing the accessibility of 
healthy, nutritious and ideally local foods within their community(ies).

Examples: Purchasing a walk-in refrigerator for a food bank or installing a 
greenhouse in a remote community. 

- 138 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022       File No:    1850-20 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Amber Coates, Financial Analyst 
Subject: In-Year Grant Request 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve a $10,628 cash grant to the South Okanagan Similkameen Medical Foundation, 
funded through general surplus. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Mission: Penticton will serve its residents, businesses and visitors through good governance, partnership and the 
provision of effective and community focused services. 

Background 

The City has received an additional in-year grant request through our grant administration program.  
Annually the City receives grant applications as part of the budget deliberation process and subsequently 
receives in-year applications from organizations that did not apply during the regular intake. 

During the 2022 budget deliberation process, the City used funding principles to determine the level of 
grant funding provided with new requests to address the increase in grant requests and to meet the budget 
allocation for grants.  These principles included: 

• Returning nominal grants from the prior year with similar requests were funded at the prior 
year levels; 

• Large grants were reviewed individually; 
• New requests under $10,000 were funded at 50%; and 
• Special events were evaluated individually. 

Financial Implication 

During the budget process an amount is allocated to ‘other’ grants to fund requests that are made during 
the year.  There is currently no budget remaining in the ‘other’ grants and amounts would require funding 
from the general surplus. 

 

 

- 139 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 2 

Analysis  

SOS Medical Foundation – Shock Pulse Urology Machine at the PRH (Project Cost $38,733; Request $21,255) 

The South Okanagan Similkameen Medical Foundation (SOS Medical Foundation) strives to support the 
Penticton Regional Hospital (PRH) to provide the best possible care to the community through purchasing 
medical equipment, funding programs and research, and enhancing the health care delivery infrastructure 
to elevate the patient experience. 

The SOS Medical Foundation is seeking a grant to assist in purchasing a shock pulse urology machine for the 
PRH at a cost of $38,733.  With this equipment PRH will gain the ability to provide enhanced and timelier 
non-invasive treatment for kidney or gall bladder stones, reducing patient complications and post-
procedure recovery time. This will allow PRH to increase the number of patients served, effectively reducing 
the wait list. Patients in the Penticton community will also no longer be required to travel to Kelowna to 
receive this care. 

The 2022 request is $21,255 cash to be used to cover the project shortfall that has been realized due to the 
loss of the foundation’s permissive tax exemption at 1748 and 1802 Camrose Street, which had not been 
forecasted in the 2022 budget year. These properties have been leased to a for-profit organization and this 
results in the properties no longer qualifying for exemption under the Community Charter. The SOS Medical 
Foundation is unable to recover the property tax expenses under their current lease agreement, which is in 
effect until 2024. 

Staff have reviewed the request and based on the positive impact to Penticton residents, support the grant 
request for this project.  Applying the same principles that were used during the regular grant process to 
evaluate grants over $10,000 individually, staff are proposing to fund the request at 50%, or $10,628. 

Alternate Recommendation 

THAT Council provide alternate direction to staff on the level of funding for the grant application from the 
South Okanagan Similkameen Medical Foundation.   

Respectfully submitted, 

   

Amber Coates, Financial Analyst   

Concurrence  
  

Director of Finance and 
Administration 

 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

AMC DvD 
 

- 140 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022                    File No:  7930-01 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Dennis Oomen, Manager/Curator - Penticton Museum & Archives 
Subject: Heritage Awareness Project - Phase Two  

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council support phase two of the Heritage Awareness Project and the installation of heritage plaques 
on buildings and properties currently on the City of Penticton Heritage Register.   

Strategic priority objective 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Vision: A vibrant, innovative, healthy waterfront city focused on sustainability, community and economic 
opportunity.  

Background 

At their meeting on May 4, 2022 the Heritage & Museum Advisory Committee was provided with an 
overview of the Heritage Awareness Project and received a progress report from the Manager of the 
Penticton Museum & Archives. Phase One of the project included the curation and hosting of a museum 
exhibit featuring Penticton’s heritage properties. This exhibit is currently on display and will run for several 
more months.  

On June 8, 2022, the Heritage and Museum Advisory Committee received into the record the report titled: 
“Phase Two of the Heritage Awareness Program”.  Phase Two involves the installation of informative heritage 
plaques on buildings and properties on the heritage register. The committee made the following 
recommendation: 

It was MOVED and SECONDED  

THAT the Heritage & Museum Advisory Committee recommend that Council proceed with phase two of the 
Heritage Awareness Project and install heritage plaques on buildings and properties currently on the City of 
Penticton Heritage Register.  
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

- 141 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 3 

Financial Implication 

The estimated costs for phase two of the heritage awareness project are as follows: 

• 40 Plaques (custom cut aluminum with printed vinyl graphics):   $2,100 
• Installation        $6,000  
• Total:                                                                                                       $8,100  

Of the 55 properties listed on the heritage register, not all of the properties are suitable for heritage plaques 
and some property owners may choose not participate. With that, staff estimate that approximately 40 
plaques will be required.  The total cost is an approximation given current volatile commodity prices. 

The Museum has been awarded a grant from Heritage BC for $2,000, making the total cost for the city 
$6,100. The Penticton Museum & Archives has funds allocated within the 2022 operational budget to cover 
the remaining costs of the project.   

Ongoing maintenance costs are expected to be minimal and could be met out of the Penticton Museum & 
Archives operational budget if necessary.  

Analysis 

This project is a good match with the Penticton Museum & Archives mandate and is a logical extension of its 
mission to interpret and expand community awareness of our common heritage. This also aligns with 
Official Community Plan goals to recognize the value of local heritage in creating a sense of place, foster a 
sense of belonging for local residences and attract visitors. The museum, along with the Heritage and 
Museum Advisory Committee, will work directly with heritage property owners to facilitate the project and 
address any questions.   

In the near future, it is hoped that the heritage signage project will expand to include indigenous heritage 
sites as well as more recent examples of distinctive mid-century building styles. Funding for this project can 
be met from the existing museum budget with help from a BC Heritage grant awarded specifically for 
increasing heritage awareness in British Columbia.         

 

Respectfully submitted,  

Dennis Oomen 
Manager/Curator, Penticton Museum & Archives 

 

Concurrence  

General Manager, 
Community Services 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

AH 
 

DvD 
 

- 142 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022        File No: 0810-20 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Anthony Haddad, General Manager of Community Services 
Subject: Civic Places & Spaces Implementation – Public Safety and Protective Services Centre 
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council endorse the proposed work plan for the Public Safety and Protective Services Centre; 

AND THAT Council allocate $75,000 for the commencement of the first phase of planning for the future 
Public Safety and Protective Services Centre to be funded from administrative savings for the purpose of 
project scoping, needs analysis and site selection. 

Strategic priority objective 

Asset & Amenity Management: The City of Penticton will ensure the services we provide to our residents and 
visitors are reliable and cost effective by proactively investing into our natural and built assets. 

Background 

On April 5, 2022, Council endorsed the process that was undertaken to complete the Asset and Amenity 
Management Plan (AAMP) and directed staff to conduct further analysis of each of the four key 
recommendations and prepare proposals to provide site alternatives, needs analysis, financial impacts, 
facility concepts and funding options for further consultation with the committees, user groups and the 
community prior to a decision by Council.   

Moving from the AAMP into the long term Civic Spaces and Places initiative for these priorities, 
Recommendation #1 was with regards to the Public Safety and Protective Services Centre (PSPSC), and at 
their meeting on April 5, 2022, Council passed the following resolution: 

AND THAT COUNCIL direct staff to develop a work plan that describes the scope, schedule, budget, 
resourcing, and community engagement required to prepare the proposal for the Public Safety and 
Protective Services Centre for review by Council prior to proceeding. 

Recommendation #1 Public Safety and Protective Services Centre - Develop a new Public Safety and 
Emergency Services Centre downtown to replace Fire Hall #1 and house the Penticton Fire 
Department, Bylaw Services, Community Policing and the City’s Emergency Operations Centre. 
Upgrade Fire Hall #2 at its current location. 

 

- 143 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 18 

AAMP Recommendation - Public Safety and Protective Services Centre 
 
Upon completion of the Civic Places and Spaces process, the main trigger for the proposed PSPSC was the 
condition of Fire Hall #1 and a significant need for reinvestment and expansion. It was identified through the 
review that the facility was unable to provide sufficient operating space for new equipment and vehicles and 
delaying the upgrade will extend the period in which older equipment can be procured / put into service.  There is 
also an identified need for a downtown location for a combined Public Safety and Emergency Operations Centre 
facility accommodating Fire and Emergency Services, Bylaw and Community Policing, based on increased demand 
for these services and opportunity for efficiencies being part of a consolidated facility.  
 
With the increase in the number of high-rise buildings (6 plus storeys) and proposals for many more within the 
City, there is requirement for the Fire Department to purchase a new 100’ ladder truck in 2023, increasing the fleet 
of ladder trucks to two (2). With this fleet expansion there will be no location to house the reserve ladder truck into 
either of the current Fire Halls.  As a result of the review completed as part of the AAMP, specific recommendations 
moving forward included the following: 
 

• Rebuilding the Fire Hall on a selected alternate site within the downtown allows for construction to 
occur with no disruptions to existing services – when the new building is done, services will 
migrate over and the old Hall will be decommissioned 

• There is an identified need for a downtown location for a combined Public Safety and Emergency 
facility accommodating Fire and Emergency Services, Bylaw and Community Policing. 

• This option then releases the existing fire hall site for sale and redevelopment after demolition, 
with financial benefit to the City. Having Bylaw Services move into the new building also alleviates 
the lease the City has with Bylaws’ current Main Street location.  

• Through sequencing of the new build, the impact on City expenditure could be managed to the 
lowest point. 

• There is no clear cost benefit to deferring reconstruction or renovation of the existing fire hall to 
provide the required amenity and service levels required by Penticton Fire Services when there is 
the possibility of a rebuild on a separate site and it is recommended that this option be funded and 
implemented within 3 years. 

• The community engagement process identified the potential for housing to be incorporated into 
this facility, working with potential housing partners to provide affordable housing and meet the 
needs of the community. 

 
 

Staff are now bringing forward the request to move forward with these recommendations. 
 
Proposed Public Safety & Protective Services Centre 

The proposal being brought forward will allow for the identification of a downtown location for the design 
and construction of a combined Public Safety and Emergency facility accommodating Fire and Emergency 
Services, Bylaw and RCMP.  The inclusion of affordable housing and potential for commercial tenants a part 
of this project will also be reviewed as part of concept development.  A summary of the high level needs of 
each user group within this facility is outlined below: 

 

 

- 144 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 18 

• Fire Services 
 
Fire Hall #1 is located at 250 Nanaimo Avenue West and includes approximately 12,500 sq/ft over 
two floors, containing space for vehicle and equipment storage, administrative offices, Emergency 
Operations Centre, meeting and training facilities.  12 staff work out of the facility.  The facility and its 
resources provide effective emergency and life safety services, promotes safe and secure conditions 
for individuals and businesses, provide training and community awareness on fire safety and 
emergency response awareness and provide support fire services to surrounding communities. 
 
Larger vehicles are expected to be located and consolidated within Fire Hall # 2, into the future, 
reducing the need for larger vehicle bays within the PSPSC, however details of vehicle use will be 
assessed as part of this process. 
 

• Emergency Management Services 

The City of Penticton Emergency Operations Centre (EOC) is located within Fire Hall #1.  Heavily 
invested in over recent years, this essential facility provides for the City’s headquarters during 
emergency events in our community.   

• Emergency Support Services 
 
Emergency Support Services (ESS) is an internal City department/team/entity/group within the 
Penticton Fire Department.  The City has legislated and regulated requirements from the Province to 
deliver ESS as a service. 

The City’s ESS facility is currently located at 199 Ellis Street. The team has an administrative office 
(inside), training room (use the fire department’s training space when ESS requires it) and storage 
(via a sea can) at the training complex at Fire Hall 202. During activations, they use the old bus barn 
at 199 Ellis Street as the City’s primary Reception Centre (approximately 7,800 sq/ft), and a high 
school gym as the designated group lodging facility should the team need to provide group lodging 
during a mass evacuation. Also, the City has agreements with Animal Lifeline Emergency Response 
Team (ALERT) to use the Penticton Animal Intake Facility at the current animal pound (2330 
Dartmouth Drive). This is to support the City with providing animal services during 
disasters/emergencies.  

• Bylaw Services 

Bylaw Services are currently located at #101-284 Main Street, within a commercial business frontage 
that contains 1,604 sq/ft.  The space contains office space, front counter space, staff amenities and 
space for the current team of 17 Bylaw members.  The existing space provides for a visible frontage 
downtown and is easily accessible by the public, however is located within a privately owned 
building. 

• RCMP 

The City’s Community Policing office is located at RCMP Headquarters at 1168 Main Street.  The 
existing RCMP facility is constrained in terms of it’s current footprint as a result of increased 

- 145 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 18 

resources and space needs.  Over the past few years the building has undergone significant 
renovations to support an increase in members and support staff, safety improvements and 
increased capacity in the forensic lab, a secure room to safely handle high potency drug exhibits, 
along with other improvements to improve the Detachment’s investigational ability to meet the 
increased demands for these resources and functions in the community. 

As part of the PSPSC the opportunity to assess the potential for new space for RCMP members and 
the Community Policing function will be an important part of the upcoming process. 

• Penticton Search & Rescue 

An opportunity that will be considered is the potential inclusion of a portion of the Penticton Search 
and Rescue operations in the new PSPSC.  While space needs may not allow, staff will work with the 
organization to identify opportunities where appropriate during the early phase of the process. 

• Affordable Housing 
 
In consideration of an eventual downtown site being home to the PSPSC, it is conceivable that the 
facility will contain 2-3 floors of space required to accommodate these uses.  However, in 
consideration of ensuring the highest and best use value for what would be very valuable 
downtown real estate and in line with the City’s need for more affordable housing, the opportunity 
presents itself to look at the viability of housing within the PSPSC.  Within a multi-storey building, in 
particularly downtown, a facility that can be home to the City’s emergency and protective services 
needs in addition to a range of affordable housing opportunities is a unique opportunity that should 
be investigated. There are several positive examples of this in other communities where BC Housing 
has partnered to utilize air space above public facilities for social housing projects.  
 

• Commercial Use 

Depending on the site conditions, financing needs and opportunities for aligned used, there may be 
the opportunity for commercial tenants within the space of the future PSPSC.  While nothing specific 
has been identified at this time, through the design and planning process, commercial opportunities 
should be considered.   Many needs in the community such as day care would warrant consideration 
as part of this process, should funding, space availability and partnerships come to fruition. 

• Additional City space needs 

There maybe opportunities within this type of facility to accommodate additional City-related space 
needs. Records management needs, for example, would align well with this type of facility, however 
these and other opportunities will be investigated as part of the planning and design process. 

Work Plan 

To commence the development of this project, the following Work Plan has been developed with 
approximate timing, in line with the Major Capital Projects – Facility Management Development Process 
developed for this project (Attachment A). 

 

- 146 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 18 

• Phase 1: Scoping & Needs Assessment (Q3-Q4 2022) 
 
The first phase of the project will involve a complete analysis of the background materials, user 
group needs, stakeholder and partnership opportunities.  A space needs analysis will be undertaken 
working with all proposed user groups to determine the space programming required within the 
facility.  Identification of required City processes, policy compliance and approval processes will also 
be identified in the first phase of the process, including the creation of a Project Steering Committee. 
 
As part of the first phase, a site analysis will be undertaken to assess potential land needs for a future 
facility.  We will look at both existing City owned land and potential opportunities for acquisition as 
part of the early stages of the process. 
 
The City will also review existing and recently constructed facilities of a similar nature to assess the 
potential for how partnership came together and the potential for multi-use space within a facility in 
Penticton.  
 
This first phase of the process will be undertaken by staff utilizing professional advice for space 
needs and site analysis assessments required to inform the next phase of the process.  Both Space 
Planning and Real Estate consultants will be engaged during this phase of the process. 
 

• Phase 2: Site Option Analysis & Program Development (Q1-Q2 2023) 

The second phase of the process will include the detailed site analysis, community engagement, 
detailed space programming and high level concept development for the project.  Selecting the 
appropriate site will be an important part of the early stages of this process and will include the 
potential use of existing city land and opportunities for future land acquisition where deemed 
appropriate. 

The identification of sustainability opportunities for the project will also be assessed in line with the 
City’s Climate Action Plans.  Initial cost estimates for the project will be developed at this stage. 

• Phase 3: Planning & Design (Q3-Q4 2023) 

The planning and design phase will involve the finalization of the space program for the facility and 
begin the building design schematics / options, including servicing and access plans.  A preliminary 
budget and schedule for completion will be identified at this stage.  Funding and financing details 
will be developed, including granting opportunities and municipal financing if required.  The 
completion of this phase will result in a Design Brief that will be provided to the project Architect so 
that the detailed design and drawings can be competed. 

• Phase 4: Detailed Design & Business Case (Q4 2023 – Q1 2024) 

This phase will involve the detailed architectural drawings for submission with the City’s 
development process.  This phase will include community engagement on the design options and 
final sign off by user groups and Council before moving into the Building Permit process.  

- 147 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 18 

A business case will be developed based off the plans completed and allow for project costing, 
financing and funding arrangements to be approved by Council.  The business base will be used to 
secure funding / financing where required. 

• Phase 5: Construction Drawings (Q2-Q3 2024) 

Once funding has been secured, this phase will commence to complete the detailed design and 
building permit process.  The construction tender process will also be part of this phase. 

• Phase 6: Construction & Completion (Q4 2024 – Q4 2025) 

The final phase of the project will include the construction commencement, all the way to 
occupancy and completion of the facility. 

Steering Committee 

The creation of a project Steering Committee involving representatives of the user groups and partners, 
including the City’s Finance Department, will help guide the project’s development and design.  For the 
PSPSC, key project stakeholder groups will include, Fire, ESS, RCMP, Bylaw, Finance, Facility Management 
and other partner groups if required.  The Committee will meet bi-monthly during the development of the 
project and will report to the Project Manager. 

Engagement Process 

At the end of the design and planning process, the City will need to make a decision on whether or not to 
proceed to build the new centre as recommended. As the decision will have significant impacts on City 
finances, lands and essential services, staff are recommending a comprehensive communications and 
engagement strategy to ensure community awareness and involvement and support an informed decision.   
A detailed communications and engagement strategy will be developed over the coming months in 
accordance with the City’s Community Engagement Framework.  Some of the key strategies will include: 

• Council will receive an update at the end of each phase of work and provide direction on the next 
phase. 

• Representatives of the key project stakeholder groups will be identified at the onset and involved in 
each phase of the process. 

• A project site will be established on shapeyourcitypenticton.ca as a central resource for all project 
information.  

• The community will receive regular updates on the process at key milestones through local media 
and the City’s communications channels.  

• Residents will be consulted on key decisions including the location, design and programming of the 
building. 

• Project communications will use the Civic Places & Spaces identity to build on the awareness 
created during the work to create the Asset and Amenity Management Plan.   

Financial Implication 

The 2022-2026 Financial Plan included an estimate of $400,000 for initial design work that was included in 
the unfunded capital.   The work planned for 2022 will cost $75,000 and be funded from administrative 

- 148 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 18 

savings.   Future costs for continuing this project will be incorporated into the 2023-2027 Financial Plan with 
funding identified through that process. 

At this early stage of the process there are a number of financial models for financing a project like this into 
the future and staff will investigate all opportunities including but not limited to grant funding, borrowing, 
public-private partnerships, and collaboration with housing providers and commercial tenants. 

Climate Action 

The City’s Corporate Energy and Emissions Plan was approved by Council in May 2022.   Direction in the Plan 
will ensure that new facilities meet certain requirements and objectives which will be implemented through 
the development of the PSPSC such as: 

• Reducing municipal energy costs, i.e. providing better value for money to taxpayers 
• Leading by example with its own assets, helping stimulate further GHG emission reductions in the 

community 
• Community economic development by leveraging infrastructure dollars  
• Helping to improve resilience to climate change 

Analysis 

In order to commence the first phase of the project, staff are requesting funding to commence the first 
phase of the project.  An allocation of $75,000 will go towards an existing space analysis and needs 
assessment and preliminary site identification process, ensuring that the subsequent phases are informed to 
enable the project to move forward.  The space planning inventory and needs assessment will be provided 
to the eventual project design team for use in the planning, design and programming of the new facility.  
Research will also be undertaken on similar types of facilities across the Province and country to look at 
lessons learned to help inform this important project for the City. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – AAMP – Public Safety & Protective Services Building Sections 

Attachment B – Detailed Capital Project Process Outline 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Anthony Haddad 
General Manager, Community Services 
 

Concurrence  

- 149 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 18 

Director of Finance & 
Administration 

 
AMC 

Director of 
Development 

Services 
 

BL 

General Manager of 
Infrastructure 

 
 

KD 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

 
 

DvD 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  

- 150 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 18 

Attachment A – AAMP – Public Safety & Protective Services Building Sections 

 

 

- 151 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 18 

 

 

 

- 152 -



 
Council Report  Page 11 of 18 

 

 

- 153 -



 
Council Report  Page 12 of 18 

 

 

- 154 -



 
Council Report  Page 13 of 18 

 

 

 

- 155 -



 
Council Report  Page 14 of 18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

- 156 -



 
Council Report  Page 15 of 18 

Attachment B – Detailed Capital Project Process Outline 

 

- 157 -



 
Council Report  Page 16 of 18 

 

 

- 158 -



 
Council Report  Page 17 of 18 

 

- 159 -



 
Council Report  Page 18 of 18 

 

- 160 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022       File No: 6750-01 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Anthony Haddad, General Manager of Community Services    
Subject: Second Quarter 2022 Economic Development Update  

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council receive into the record the report dated August 16, 2022 titled “Second Quarter 2022 
Economic Development Update”. 

Strategic priority objective 

Economic Vitality: Economic Development and Development Services supports the creation of a vibrant 
economy.  

Background 

On February 6, 2018 Council endorsed the 2018-2022 Economic Development Strategic Plan. The plan set 
the framework for goals and actions to be created within annual operation plans under the guidance of five 
Key Result Areas (KRA’s): 

1. Communication – Developing key messaging and reporting to our internal and external stakeholders.  
2. Collaboration – Identifying strategic partnerships and working towards common goals.  
3. Retention and Expansion – Focusing on businesses currently within the community. 
4. Attraction – Focusing on bringing business, investment and labour to Penticton.  
5. Organizational Excellence – Continually improving the economic development department.  

Quarterly reporting is an important component to the implementation of the Economic Development 
Strategic Plan, not only to update Council and community on the status of the operational plan, but to 
provide updates and indicators to the community on some of the key indicators of the local economy. 

Q2 2022 Update 

The second quarter of 2022 saw a renewed focus on the return to Penticton’s iconic events, after a 2-year 
hiatus resulting from the pandemic, our sports and events economy has come back with flying colours.  
While the challenge of organizing events post pandemic is there, our team in Sports and Events have been 
able to support the return of all major events to the community.  

- 161 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 2 

In the final year of the City’s 2018-2022 Economic Development Strategic Plan, continued investment in 
business support and COVID recovery has been led by the Economic development team.  Working with our 
community partners in Travel Penticton, the Penticton and Wine Country Chamber of Commerce, all City 
departments and other local organizations the following priorities were implemented over the Second 
Quarter: 

• Picnicton Street parties – June 2nd and June 18th 
• Release of the Love Local ‘Happy Dance’ business support video 
• Continues investment in ‘Start Here’ Penticton online platform 
• Release of the City’s ‘Welcome Home’ packages and data collection from new residents 
• Completion of the North Gateway Redevelopment and Investment Strategy 
• Resident & Labour Attraction Investment – AB / BC Globe & Mail 

Construction activity continues to motor along with key economic indicators such as Construction Values 
and housing starts tracking in line, if not greater than previous years.  A more cautious approach with the 
development industry is certainly on the horizon with higher interest rates and costs of construction still 
quite high. 

While the housing shortage is still the major economic crisis facing our community, it is important to 
recognize the work that has been undertaken to increase the existing housing stock in the community.  The 
following summarizes the existing and future housing numbers: 

• 459 residential units under construction 
• 840 residential units approved 
• 654 units in the development application process 

The Economic Development have also been working closely with staff in Development Services and meet 
with new investors on a weekly basis looking at opportunities for new housing and business projects.  The 
scarcity land available for new housing projects has been one of the major concerns identifies and 
consistent themes over the past few months.  Additional density requests are also being brought forward in 
response to the lack of available land and consistent need to provide more housing to meet current 
demands. 

Over the remainder of 2022, staff will be continuing to move forward with implementation of the Strategic 
Plan and approved projects for the year.  Continued focus on airport, resident and business support, 
including a focus on the manufacturing sector will be continuing for the remainder of the year. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – 2022 Q2 Economic Development Presentation  

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Anthony Haddad 
General Manager, Community Services 

Concurrence  

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

DvD 
 

- 162 -



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
QUARTERLY REPORT

2022: Q2 Update

- 163 -



Business Retention & Expansion

 Pop-Up Picnic-ton and Love Local campaigns 

- 164 -



Resident & Labour Attraction
Start Here Penticton

- 165 -



Resident & Labour Attraction

 Welcome Home Packages

- 166 -



Resident & Labour Attraction

 Welcome Home Packages

- 167 -



Resident & Labour Attraction

 Welcome Home Packages

- 168 -



Resident & Labour Attraction

 Welcome Home Packages

Why did they move here?

- 169 -



Resident & Labour Attraction - 170 -



Business Support 
Guide to Business

- 171 -



- 172 -



COVID Task Force – Recovery Projects

Focus on Manufacturing Sector

- 173 -



North Gateway Redevelopment & 
Investment Strategy
 Plan approval July 7th, 2022

 Implementation Underway

 Development Application Reviews
 Transportation Analysis
 DCC Bylaw
 2023 Capital Budget preparation

- 174 -



Sports & Events
2022 Events 2022 Event Date(s) City Park Rentals 

Ignite the Arts Festival March 25 - April 3 various 
Penticton Farmers' Market April 16-Oct 29 (Saturdays only) 100 block Main St, Link Rd
PACA Bike Valet at Market April 16-Oct 29 (Saturdays only) Gyro Park
Community Market (DPA) May 7-Sept 24 (Saturdays only) 200 block Main St, Front St
Fest of Ale (Outdoor) May 14 Okanagan Lake Park    
Penticton Bike Festival May 20-23 Poplar Grove Parking Lot/Pumptrack, Three Blind Mice 
Ha Ha Ha Kidz Festival June 9 - 11 Gyro Park
Expedition Canada Race June 8-11 TBD
National Indigenous Peoples Day  June 21 TBD
Peach City Beach Cruise June 24-26 Gyro, Rotary, Lakawanna
Elvis Festival June 24-26 Okanagan Lake Park
Rib Festival July 1-3 Skaha Lake Park East/Pavilion
Canada Day (DPA) + Lakeside Resort Fireworks July 1 Gyro Park 
Scottish Festival July 2 Kings Park
Okanagan Granfondo (Picolo on Saturday) July 9-10 Rotary Park & Gyro Park
Music in the Park (DPA) July 15, 22, 29 & Aug 12, 19 Gyro Park
Peach Classic Triathlon July 17 Rotary Park & Parking Lot, Gyro Park
BC Day (DPA) Aug 1 Gyro Park
Peach Festival Aug 3-7 various
BC Wine & Food Truck Feast Aug 13 Okanagan Lake Park
Subaru IRONMAN Canada Aug 28 Okanagan Lake Park, Gyro Park, Rotary Park
Dragon Boat Festival Sept 9-11 Skaha Lake Park, Playcourt, Pavilion
BC Bike Race - Flagship Mountain Bike Race Sept 16-22 various
BC Bike Race - Gravel One Day Sept 25 Marina Way Park or Okanagan Lake Park, KVR
BC Bike Race - Gravel Explorer Sept 24 - 29 N/A 
Truth and Reconciliation Day TBD Sept 30 TBD
Tree Light Up Festival (DPA)* Nov TBD Nanaimo Square, 200-300 block of main street
Santa Claus Parade TBD Dec TBD TBD

- 175 -



ECONOMIC INDICATORS

- 176 -



BUSINESS LICENSE STATISTICS

Total Active Business License Comparison

3,579
Total Active 

Business Licenses
as of June 30, 2022

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
(YTD)

- 177 -



BUSINESS LICENSE STATISTICS

339
Active Licensed 

Vacation Rentals 
As of June 30, 2022

Total Active Licensed Vacation Rentals Comparison

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
(YTD)

- 178 -



CONSTRUCTION VALUE: Q2 TRACKING

$0.00 $50,000,000.00 $100,000,000.00 $150,000,000.00 $200,000,000.00 $250,000,000.00

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022 (YTD) $130,691,363

- 179 -



SINGLE FAMILY HOUSE UNITS APPROVED: Q2 Tracking

0 20 40 60 80 100 120

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022 (YTD) 30

- 180 -



MULTI FAMILY UNITS APPROVED: Q2 Tracking

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022 (YTD) 227

- 181 -



SUMMARY: HOUSING UNITS TOTALS SINCE 2014

Single Family Dwellings make up 20% of housing stock approved since 2014
Multi Unit Dwelling types make up 80% of housing stock approved since 2014

3,142 Housing Units approved since 2014 (62%  of these approved since 2018)

Single Family 
Dwellings Duplex Units Multi-Family 

Units Secondary Suites Carriage Houses Annual Total

2014 92 20 42 8 2 164
2015 69 56 39 9 6 179
2016 83 50 221 34 8 396
2017 93 64 249 41 11 458
2018 98 62 254 51 26 491
2019 38 15 264 31 15 363
2020 38 26 207 43 14 328
2021 75 20 282 56 14 447

2022 (Q2) 30 12 227 36 11 316
TOTAL 616 325 1785 309 107 3142

Since 2018 279 135 1234 217 80 1945

- 182 -



Housing In Process
654 total units

 877 Westminster Avenue (El Rancho Motor Inn redevelopment): 300 units of strata rental with some ground floor 
commercial 

 650 Eckhardt Avenue: 6 storey, mixed use building with ground floor commercial and 70 units of upper floor residential 
 206 Marina Way: 10 storey building with 99 stratified residential units 
 603 Main Street: First 5 storey building on Main Street in the downtown, featuring ground floor commercial and 28 units 

of rental apartments 
 655 Ellis Street: 3 storey, 16 unit rental apartment building 
 914 Churchill Avenue: 6 storey, 16 unit residential 
 1050 Spiller Road: 111 rural residential lots 
 1530 Reservoir Road: 30 rural residential lots 

- 183 -



Housing Approved
840 total units

 880 Wiltse Boulevard: Zoning for North Wiltse Block (700 units of mixed housing, including large and small lot single family 
areas, duplex, townhouse and apartment)

 435 Green Avenue: Zoning for 88 townhomes 

 795 Westminster Avenue: Cantiro Group mixed use building with corner commercial and 22 residential units 

 154 Brunswick Street: 6 storey, 30 unit residential strata building 

- 184 -



Housing Currently Under Construction
459 total units
 3352 Hemlock Street: 6 storey, 165 unit purpose built rental building 
 3362 Skaha Lake Road: Phase III of the Skaha Lake Towers with 88 

apartment units and 10 ground floor garden suites 
 285 Westminster Avenue: Downtown mixed use building with 

ground floor commercial and 75 units of rental apartments 
 1034 Churchill Avenue: 4 storey, 13 unit apartment building 
 158 Deer Place: The Ridge 14 unit townhomes 
 726, 738 and 750 Westminster Avenue: 3 four-plex buildings 
 784 Argyle: 11 Townhouses 
 3240 Skaha Lake Road: 54 unit, recovery focused supportive housing 

facility 
 2644 South Main Street: 6 townhouse units 
 Guernsey Landing: 12 lot residential subdivision with RD3 zoning 
 253 Norton Street: 16 townhouse 
 Bluffs at Skaha: 40 single family lots 
 909 Government Street: 4 unit townhouse 
 463 Wade Avenue E: 4 unit townhouse

- 185 -



- 186 -



Key Initiatives Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

KRA. 1  
Communication

KRA. 2
Collaboration

KRA. 3
Retention & Expansion

KRA. 4
Resident & Labour Attraction

KRA. 5
Organizational Excellence

2022 WORK PLAN – Q3/Q4

Stakeholder Partnerships / Worker shortage / Housing Needs 

Business Support / Network connections / Event Preparedness / COVID Relief

Remote Worker Attraction / Airport Investment / Investment in Housing / North Gateway 

Industry best practices / Regional growth / Data collection

Business Support / Social Media / Shared Communications

- 187 -



KRA’s: 5-Year Economic Development Strategic Plan
KRA 1. Communication
Developing key messaging and reporting to our internal and external stakeholders.
Goal 1.1: Develop a clear communication strategy 
Goal 1.2: Facilitate communication between community partners and internal City departments.
Goal 1.3:  Foster active communication between businesses and the economic development department.
Goal 1.4:  Create, collect and disseminate simplified data and information for the business community.

KRA 2.  Collaboration 
Identifying strategic partnerships and working towards common goals.
Goal 2.1:  Foster a collaborative working relationship with regional, provincial and federal entities.
Goal 2.2:  Work collaboratively with other community partners to explore Penticton’s identity.
Goal 2.3:  Collaborate with the City and stakeholders to ensure plans, processes and policies support the growth of Penticton’s economy.
Goal 2.4:  Foster a collaborative working relationship with the PIB for the mutual prosperity of both communities.
Goal 2.5:  Facilitate collaboration and knowledge-sharing with both external and internal stakeholders to foster economic vitality.

KRA 3.  Retention and Expansion
Focusing on businesses currently within the community.
Goal 3.1:  Develop and implement a plan to foster an environment that develops priority industry clusters.
Goal 3.2:  Provide business succession support.
Goal 3.3:  Foster an environment that supports innovation, entrepreneurial thinking and entrepreneurial businesses.

KRA 4.  Attraction 
Focusing on bringing businesses, investment and labour to Penticton.
Goal 4.1:  Develop and implement a plan to foster an environment that attracts priority industry clusters.
Goal 4.2:  Develop and implement a plan to attract and retain skilled workers.

KRA 5. Organizational Excellence
Continually improving the economic development department.
Goal 5.1:  Work to continually improve department and staff performance and report results.
Goal 5.2:  Achieve and report key deliverables based on and informing the operational plan.

- 188 -



Economic Development – Where to next?

Chamber Corporate Office Development Services Community Services

2008       2009       2010       2011       2012       2013       2014       2015       2016       2017       2018       2019 2020      2021      2022

- 189 -



QUESTIONS?

- 190 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022        File No: 8160-20 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Kelsey Johnson, Acting General Manager, Community Services 
 
Subject: Second Quarter 2022 Recreation and Culture Services Update  

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council receives into the record the report dated August 16, 2022 titled “Second Quarter 2022 
Recreation and Culture Services Update”.  

Strategic Priority Objective 

Mission: Penticton will serve its residents, businesses and visitors through good governance, partnership 
and the provision of effective and community focused services. 

Background 

This report provides subsequent updates for the recovery of recreation and culture services that have 
evolved since the last report dated April 5, 2022.  

The attached presentation provides an update on services and highlights from April 1 – June 30, 2022.  

Financial Implication 

Staff do not forecast a significant change in the 2022 Recreation & Culture Budget.  

Analysis 

Recreation & Culture services are vital to the community’s health, well-being and resiliency. While we are not 
immune to the national shortage of staff availability, we continue to best balance our resources to ensure 
appropriate access, equity and inclusion while serving the breadth of our community. The department has 
been readying for an expanded restart of these crucial services and has been appropriately positioned to 
respond to a surge in demand across all service areas.  

Attachments 

Attachment A – Recreation & Culture 2022 Q2 Update (PowerPoint presentation) 

Attachment B – 2022 Q2 List of Events 

- 191 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 2 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kelsey Johnson 

Acting General Manager, Community Services 

 

Concurrence  

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

DvD 
 

 

- 192 -



Recreation & Culture Services 
2022 Q2 Update

August 16, 2022

- 193 -



Overview
Recreation & Culture

Aquatics Cleland 
Theatre

Community 
Centre

McLaren 
Arena

Museum & 
Archives Public Art

Recreation & 
Wellness 
Programs

Sport 
Courts, 
Fields & 

Diamonds

Sports & 
Events

In Recreation & Culture, we promote and 
contribute to a healthy community and 
enhance the quality of life for Penticton 

residents and visitors. 

- 194 -



Q2 Highlights
• Province-Wide Restrictions Lifted
• Return of Events
• Penticton Public Sculpture Exhibit Opening
• Penticton Busking Program Launch

- 195 -



Aquatics

Service Area 2021 Q2 2022 Q2 Growth

Rentals $15,552.68 $20,373.44 +31%
Public Swim* $77,943.82 $167,055.84 +114% 

Swim Lessons $7,782.17 $15,785.44 +103%
* Public Swim also includes Aqua Fitness revenues

• Year over year growth
• Service impacts continue due to staff shortage

- 196 -



Sport Fields

Rental & Usage 2021 Q2 2022 Q2 Growth

Rental Activities 909 1598 +76%
Rental Hours 7,335.25 9,472.25 +29% 

Rental Revenue $15,998.33 $29,785.16 +87%

• Opened April 1
• 12 diamonds & 7 fields

- 197 -



Museum & Archives
• 4,157 visitors 

– Average donation $2.05/person

• 1 Brown Bag Lecture Presentation
– 47 in person, 13 virtual participants

• 11 School Programs
– 222 participants

- 198 -



Cleland Theatre
• Q2 Rentals: 

– 56 Unique Bookings
• April: 22
• May: 19
• June: 15

– 331.75 Total Hours

- 199 -



Cleland Theatre
• Major Show Announcements

– Louisiana Hayride (September 14)
– Johnny Reid (September 18)
– Corb Lund (September 22)
– Begonia (November 21)
– William Prince (December 2)
– Andrew Allen (December 16)

- 200 -



Cleland Theatre
• Audio/Visual Equipment Upgrade Project Underway 

o On Track

Major Task Target Completion Status

Grant Application April 1, 2022 Completed

Phase 1: Carpentry & Electrical
Upgrades

2022 Q2-Q3 80% • Carpentry complete
• Electrical scheduled Q3

Phase 2: Audio Equipment 
Upgrade

2022 Q3 100% • Audio equipment delivered

Phase 3: Lighting Equipment 
Upgrade

2022 Q4-2023 Q1 10% • Lighting design completed.
• Proceed after grant notification 

- 201 -



Sports & Events
• Events are back!

4  Major Events    - 5 Sporting Events   - 27 Community Events

- 202 -



Financial Forecast
• Majority of revenue targets on track

o Some revenues trending higher than expected
o Swim Lessons down due to fewer offerings than expected

o Balanced by reduction in staff expense

• 2022 Recreation & Culture Budget is trending positive

- 203 -



Coming Up
• Release of Fall Recreation Guide

– Available August 17
– Registration

• Resident: August 24
• Non-Resident: August 25

- 204 -



Coming Up
• IRONMAN Canada

– IRONMAN Village: Aug 25-28
– Welcome Ceremony: Aug 26
– IRONKIDS Fun Run: Aug 27
– Race Day: Aug 28
– Award Ceremony: Aug 29 

- 205 -



Staff Recommendation

THAT Council receives into the record the report and 
accompanying presentation titled “Recreation & 
Culture Services Update – Q2 2022 Update” dated, 
August 16, 2022. 

- 206 -



Event Name Event Dates Event Location

Ignite the Arts Festival Mar 25 ‐ Apr 3 Okanagan Lake Park

Penticton Farmers' Market Apr 16‐Oct 29 100 Block Main St, Link Rd

WUI Symposium ‐ (Fire Dept.) Apr 22‐24 Rotary Park Parking/Campbell Parking

National Volunteer Week ‐ Pancake Breakfast Apr 24‐30 Gyro Park

Hepitatis C Testing and Linking to Treatment 5‐May Gyro Park

Paddling Film Fest  6‐May Marina Park

Youth Week Wrap Party 6‐May Riverside Park

May Day "Working People in our Community"  7‐May Gyro Park

Duel in the Desert Outrigger Race 7‐May Skaha Park East /Boat House

PACA Bike Valet at Market May 7‐Oct 29 Gyro Park South Lawn (City Hall)

Community Market (DPA) May 7‐Sept 24 200‐300 Blk Main St, Backstreet Blvd., Front St

Blossom 10/5 Miler 8‐May SS Sicamous Esplande/Lakeshore Drive W

La Crème de la Crème Block Party 13‐May 200 Block of Main Street

Fest of Ale (Outdoor) 14‐May Okanagan Lake Park    

The Annual Penticton Bike Festival May 20‐23  Poplar Grove Parking Lot/Pumptrack, 3BM Trails

Kwalikum Secondary Jazz Concert 21‐May Gyro Park

Vees Parade 24‐May Riverside Parking Lot to Rotary Park

Valley Wide Business Expo (Chamber) 26‐May Rotary Park

Penticton Secondary‐ Jazz in the Park! 27‐May Gyro Park

Skaha Climbers Festival May 28‐29 Evergreen Parking Lot 

Walk for Alzheimer's 29‐May Skaha Lake Pavilion

Cystic Fibrosis Walk 29‐May Okanagan Lake Park

Bike to Work Week ‐ Celebration Station 2‐Jun Grassy area of Library ‐ Fairview next to bike lane

Pop Up Picnic‐ton  4‐Jun 100 block Winnipeg Street (Westmin & Church)

Bike to Work Week Wrap Up 4‐Jun Gyro Park

Walk to End Abuse (SOWINS) 5‐Jun Rotary Park

Ha Ha Ha Kidz Festival (KidzFest Week) June 9 ‐ 11 Gyro Park

Expedition Canada Race  June 8‐11 Skaha Park Finish Line, Pavillion Area

Okanagan Super Sprints (Dragon Boat) June 10‐11 Skaha Lake Beach

Pop Up Picnic‐ton * 18‐Jun 500 Block Main Street

Discovery House Fathers Day BBQ 19‐Jun Skaha Park East play court

RASC Summer Solstice Celebration 20‐Jun Munson Mountain

White Lioness Summer Solstice Celebration 21‐Jun Marina Way Park

National Indigenous Peoples Day  21‐Jun Gyro Park

Peach City Beach Cruise June 24‐26 Gyro, Rotary, Lakawanna

Elvis Festival June 24‐26 Okanagan Lake Park

Penticton Hi Grad Parade 27‐Jun Eckhardt/Main/Front/Veteran/Lakeshore

Maggie Grad Photos (no parade this year) 30‐Jun Rose Gardens/LocoLanding Parking Lot

LEGEND

Major Event

Sporting Event

Community Event

2022 Q2 Event Listing

- 207 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022       File No:    RMS 1610 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Courtney Jones, Financial Planning and Budget Specialist 
 
Subject: Second Quarter 2022 Financial Update 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council receive into record the report dated August 16, 2022 titled “Second Quarter 2022 Financial 
Update”. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Mission:  Penticton will serve its residents, businesses and visitors through good governance, partnership 
and the provision of effective and community focused services. 

Background 

The 2022 budget was adopted December 14, 2021, and the first quarter Financial Plan update was received 
by Council on May 3, 2022. This second quarter report, which includes activities up to June 30, contains: 

• A summary of Q2 Council resolutions and other minor amendments to the 2022 budget; 
• The latest end of year 2022 forecast. 

The following financial implication and analysis sections, along with attachments to this report, outline the 
impacts to the City’s revenues and expenses as a result of the budget amendments in the second quarter of 
2022 and an end of year forecast. 

Financial Implication 

The following financial implications are expected as a result of the budget amendments and forecasts made 
during the year: 

• General Operating Fund – forecast $601,000 reduction in surplus draw  
o The adopted 2022 budget included a draw from General Operating surplus of $1.26M to 

balance the budget. As a result of the budget amendments made to date and current 
forecast updates, the anticipated draw from reserve has been reduced to $659k from the 
General Operating surplus. This substantial decrease is mainly due to staffing vacancies, 
higher sale of services and successful grant applications. 

 

- 208 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 11 

• Water Operating Fund – forecast $583,000 reduction in transfer to surplus 
o The adopted 2022 budget included a transfer to Water surplus $1.5M, which is higher than 

the current forecasted surplus of $917k, the decreased transfer is mainly due to increased 
capital costs and unexpected water main break repairs. 

 
• Sewer Operating Fund – forecast $450,000 increase in transfer to surplus 

o  The adopted 2022 budget included a Sewer surplus transfer of $1.85M, which is lower than 
the current forecasted surplus of $2.3M, the increased transfer is mainly due to the 
cancellation of a capital project, which was funded by the Sewer fund and DCC Sewer 
reserve. 

 
• Electrical Operating Fund – no change in forecast 

o  The forecasted transfer from the Electrical surplus is the same as the adopted budget of 
$2.2M. 

Analysis 

The following analysis on the City’s financial position was completed as of June 30, 2022. 

Operating Revenues 

During the second quarter, there were minimal amendments made that impacted the City’s revenues. The 
table below shows the budget amendments reflecting these changes:  

 

Q2 Budget Amendments 

Key revenue budget amendments include: 

Grants $53k 

• Building & Licensing revenue increased $11k for the 2022 portion of the Fortis Energy Code Funding. 
• Fire Services were awarded $17k for the 2022 Emergency Support Services (ESS) grant. 
• Planning/Social Development were awarded $25k for the Union of BC Municipalities (UBCM) Poverty 

Reduction Planning & Action grant.  

Taxation (62,343,532)                                    - (62,343,532) (62,243,740) 99,792
Sale of Services (11,997,941)                                    - (11,997,941) (12,485,874) (487,933)
Electric Utility Revenue (42,577,253)                                    - (42,577,253) (42,577,253)                         - 
Sewer Utility Revenue (8,567,580)                                    - (8,567,580) (8,562,580) 5,000
Water Utility Revenue (10,262,600)                                    - (10,262,600) (10,262,600)                         - 
Storm Water Utility Revenue (966,000)                                    - (966,000) (968,600) (2,600)
Fiscal Services (1,856,516)                                    - (1,856,516) (1,856,516)                         - 
Grants (4,201,862) (53,288) (4,255,150) (4,392,018) (136,869)
Other Revenues (4,682,303)                                    - (4,682,303) (4,717,677) (35,374)
Development Cost Charges (1,195,000)                                    - (1,195,000) (1,195,000)                         - 
Donations (19,500)                                    - (19,500) (19,500)                         - 
Total Revenues (148,670,087) (53,288) (148,723,375) (149,281,359) (557,983)

2022 Year End
Forecast

Forecast 
Variance

2022 Q1 
Amended 

Budget

Q2 Budget
Amendments

City Revenues
2022 Q2 

Amended 
Budget

- 209 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 11 

Q2 Forecast 

Key Forecast Changes: 

Taxation $100k 

• Staff expect to receive $100k less than budget in taxation, including $18k less revenue than 
anticipated for non-market change BC Assessment data.  

Sales of Services $488k 

• Building Permit revenues forecasted $200k higher for anticipated increased permit revenue, based 
on year to date trending. 

• Licensing revenues increased $54k for increased revenue for business licenses and liquor licenses. 
• Land Management additional revenue for new license to use and tenancy agreements combined is 

$39k. 
• Planning fees are anticipated to be $30k higher than budget and $13k additional revenue for cash in 

lieu of parking (which will be transferred to reserves). 
• Solid Waste disposal revenue is $104k higher than budget for increased usage. 
• Recreation revenue is forecasted $15k lower than budget, at this time. Swim lesson revenues have 

decreased substantially due to lifeguard availability, while Pool rental, fitness programs, and adult 
programs are recognizing higher revenue than budgeted. Overall recreation revenues are trending 
higher than budget, however with the reduction in pool hours, the revenues have been forecasted 
at budgeted levels, at this time. Staff will review revenues and adjust accordingly for the Q3 update. 

• General government revenue increased for higher utility 1% in lieu of tax franchise fees of $78k, 
offset by a decrease in other revenue of $15k. 

Grants $137k 

• Bylaw services revenues increased $43k for a 2021 carry forward grant from UBCM for Strengthening 
Communities Services. 

• Museum received increased grants of $85k from the Arts and Culture resiliency grant and the 
Department of Canadian Heritage reopening grant. 

• Planning/Social Development forecast revenue increased by $9k to reflect the carryforward from 
2021 of grants to be completed in 2022. 

Other Revenues $35k 

• The balance of the North Gateway project funding of $29k was carryforward into 2022 to complete 
the project; offsetting expenses are equivalent to revenue.  

• Other miscellaneous revenue increased $6k to match actual revenue received. 

Staff are monitoring the following revenue areas: 

• Taxation Revenue – BC Assessments should be providing appeal decisions in the 3rd quarter and any 
impacts will be reflected in the Q3 forecast. The City has been advised by BC Assessment that 75 
assessment appeals are being reviewed, however no decisions have been received to date.  Should 
all of these appeals be successful, the potential reduction in taxes equates to a range of $323,000 to 
$969,000.  This is not included in the forecast and any shortfall would be drawn from Operating 

- 210 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 11 

Surplus or the Financial Stabilization Reserve, as it represents a significant operating non-recurring 
event. 

• Recreation Fees –Staff is optimistic that revenues will be higher than budget. Year to date revenues 
are currently higher than anticipated. Forecast will be updated in Q3 if revenues continue to trend 
higher than budget.  

• Utility Fees: 
o Electrical Revenue – Sales for 2022 are trending higher than budget, which will be offset by 

increased purchases. Staff will continue to monitor and adjust forecast for Q3 accordingly.  
o Water Revenue – With the wetter spring than normal, water sales are slightly lower than 

expected, however with the higher temperatures in the summer months, revenue is 
expected to return to expected levels. Staff will monitor and adjust for the Q3 update. 
 

General Operating Expenses 

The table below shows the second quarter budget amendments made to the City’s General Fund operating 
expenses, as well as a 2022 end of year forecast:  

 

For a detailed summary of the operating expense second quarter budget amendments made to date, as well 
as detailed year end forecast commentary, please see Attachment A.  

Key General Operating Expense Budget Amendments: 

• Development Services $160k – the majority of the budget increase is for Social Development 
initiatives, and a budget transfer from Finance and Administration for restructuring of a position. 

• Finance & Administration ($35k)– the decreased budget is for the restructuring of a positon to 
Development Services and increased civic grants awarded. 

• Protective Services $17k – increased expenses related to a successful application for the 2022 
Emergency Support Services (ESS) grant. 

Preliminary Forecast of General Operating Expenses: 

• Community Services $91k – increased forecast is mainly related to additional unexpected facilities 
costs and project carryforwards from 2021, which is offset by savings in Recreation staffing for 
lifeguard vacancies. 

• Development Services ($102k)– decreased costs for timing of hiring Bylaw Officer vacancies. 
• Finance & Administration ($47k) – the variance is for savings from staff vacancies. 
• Infrastructure $175k – increased forecast over budget for anticipated additional snow removal costs, 

increased fuel costs, traffic control electricity, offset by savings for engineering staff vacancies. 

General Fund Expense 
Summary by Division

2022 Q1 
Amended 

Budget

Q2 Budget
Amendments

2022 Q2 
Amended 

Budget

2022 Year 
End

Forecast

Forecast 
Variance

Community Services 12,995,175                                    - 12,995,175 13,086,059 90,884
Development Services 5,647,124 159,776 5,806,900 5,704,826 (102,074)
Finance & Administration 32,330,101 (35,275) 32,294,826 32,248,278 (46,548)
Infrastructure 11,272,848                                    - 11,272,848 11,447,848 175,000
Protective Services 20,859,935                       17,000 20,876,935 20,376,935 (500,000)
Total General Fund Expenses 83,105,183 141,501              83,246,684 82,863,946 (382,738)

- 211 -



Council Report Page 5 of 11 

• Protective Services ($500k) – costs savings for RCMP staffing vacancies, which includes sick leave,
maternity leave, and unfilled positions.

Staff are monitoring the following expense areas: 

• Fuel prices have increased substantially since the completion of the budget. Staff have increased the
Q2 forecast by $95k and will continue to monitor costs comparative to budget and will adjust again,
if required, later in the year.

• The City continues to manage costs and project deliverables related to supply chain delays,
increased lead times and higher material costs. There are no significant impacts in operating to
report at this time.

Capital Budgets 

The 2022 Capital Budget program is underway despite impacts from supply chain delays and increased lead 
times. The below table and bullet points summarize the budget amendments in each of the City’s respective 
capital funds: 

Summary of second quarter capital budget amendments: 

• General Capital $600k 
o Increased project costs for Point Intersection Kinney & South Main $450k (Council resolution

224/2022).
o Electric Bikes purchase $32k (Council resolution 111/2022).

o Land acquisitions and dispositions a net change of $40k in revenue.

o Increase of $100k for the decorative scroll lighting project.

o There have been several other minor General capital budget amendments totalling $58k for
pivoting to electric vehicles and city yards building minor construction costs.

• Sewer Capital ($2.9M) – Decrease of $2.9M for North Penticton interceptor project which has been
cancelled at this time. Staff will have further flow monitoring studies conducted, which may result in
a different project scope.

• Water Capital $210k – Increase of $210k for Ellis Creek diversion dam bridge replacement due to
higher tender costs.

Increased costs are affecting projects which are requiring increases in budgets to maintain similar scope of 
work that was planned, which have been presented to council accordingly. City staff continue to monitor 
and evaluate projects based on updating costing and delayed timelines. 

General Capital 16,422,300 599,800 17,022,100 17,022,100 - 
Electric Capital 8,238,183 - 8,238,183 8,238,183 - 
Sewer Capital 11,004,000 (2,941,000) 8,063,000 8,063,000 - 
Water Capital 11,448,000 210,000 11,658,000 11,658,000 - 

Total Capital Expenses 47,112,483 (2,131,200) 44,981,283 44,981,283 - 

Forecast 
Variance

2022 Year End
Forecast

2022 Q2 
Amended 

Budget

Q2 Budget
Amendments

2022 Q1 
Amended 

Budget
Capital Fund

- 212 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 11 

Alternate Recommendations 

THAT Council direct staff to provide them with further information prior to receiving into record the report 
dated August 16, 2022 titled “Second Quarter 2022 Financial Update”. 

Attachments 

• Attachment A – Second Quarter 2022 Financial Update – Operating Expenses 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Courtney Jones 
Courtney Jones 
Financial Planning & Budget Specialist 

 

 
 
 
 

 

  

Director 
Finance and 

Administration 

GM Community 
Services 

GM 
Infrastructure 

Director 
Development 

Services 

Chief 
Administrative 

Officer 
 

AMC 
AH 

KD 
 

BL 
 

DvD 

- 213 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 11 

Attachment A – Second Quarter 2022 Financial Update – Operating Expenses 
 
Unless otherwise specified, the data used in this report is current as of June 30, 2022. 

Operating Expense Summary  

General Fund 

Per the below table, there has been a net increase of $142k of general fund expenses since the first quarter 
update: 

 

The budget amendments that comprise the additional expenses are summarized in the below sections.  

Community Services 

 

Q2 Forecast  

Economic Development $29k 

• The North Gateway project expenses of $29k, offset by equivalent revenue noted above. 

Facilities $115k 

• In the spring, the CN Tug’s hull was damaged and required immediate repairs to remove the 
contaminated water and repair the hull, the cost of the repairs to date are $125k.  Funding of this is 
anticipated to come from the Asset Emergency Reserve. 

• Vacant building demolition costs are $20k higher than the initial budget amendment estimates. 
• There are multiple minor increases totaling $29k for maintenance and repairs to multiple facilities, 

offset by anticipated savings of $59k for utilities, equipment and interior upgrade projects. 

General Fund Expense 
Summary by Division

2022 Q1 
Amended 

Budget

Q2 Budget
Amendments

2022 Q2 
Amended 

Budget

2022 Year 
End

Forecast

Forecast 
Variance

Community Services 12,995,175                                    - 12,995,175 13,086,059 90,884
Development Services 5,647,124 159,776 5,806,900 5,704,826 (102,074)
Finance & Administration 32,330,101 (35,275) 32,294,826 32,248,278 (46,548)
Infrastructure 11,272,848                                    - 11,272,848 11,447,848 175,000
Protective Services 20,859,935                       17,000 20,876,935 20,376,935 (500,000)
Total General Fund Expenses 83,105,183 141,501              83,246,684 82,863,946 (382,738)

Community Services
2022 Q1 

Amended 
Budget

Q2 Budget
Amendments

2022 Q2 
Amended 

Budget

2022 Year 
End

Forecast

Forecast 
Variance

Economic Development 867,000                                    - 867,000 896,374 29,374
Tourism 300,000                                    - 300,000 300,000                             - 

Library 1,686,012                                    - 1,686,012 1,686,012                             - 

Museum 408,400                                    - 408,400 408,400                             - 

Facilities 1,014,890                                    - 1,014,890 1,129,390 114,500
Recreation 4,123,770                                    - 4,123,770 4,075,520 (48,250)
SOEC 2,447,603                                    - 2,447,603 2,442,863 (4,740)
Transit 2,147,500                                    - 2,147,500 2,147,500                             - 

Total Community Services Expenses 12,995,175 -                     12,995,175 13,086,059 90,884

- 214 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 11 

Recreation ($48k) 

• Reduced costs of $50k for lifeguard shortages, which has been reflected in the reduced pool hours. 
The City offered expedited training schedules to reduce wait times between certifications, offered 
financial assistance scholarships to participants, and participants in the certification programs were 
offered interviews with the City. Staff is continuing to work with provincial organizations on the 
national lifeguard shortage. 

Development Services 

 

Q2 Budget Amendments 

Development Services $46k 

• The restructuring of a position and applicable budget moved from Finance and Administration, with 
the offsetting credit noted in the below section.  

Planning & Social Development $110k 

• Added $85k for the 100 More Homes housing and homeless initiatives. 
• Added the offsetting expenses of $25k for the Union of BC Municipalities (UBCM) Poverty Reduction 

Planning & Action grant received, as mentioned above. 

Q2 Forecast  

Bylaw Enforcement ($100k) 

• Reduced costs for timing of hiring of additional Bylaw officers. 

  

Development Services
2022 Q1 

Amended 
Budget

Q2 Budget
Amendments

2022 Q2 
Amended 

Budget

2022 Year 
End

Forecast

Forecast 
Variance

Animal Control 198,500                                    - 198,500 198,500                             - 

Building And License 1,465,152                          3,326 1,468,478 1,468,478                             - 

Bylaw Enforcement 1,793,500                                    - 1,793,500 1,693,500 (100,000)
Development Services 1,097,671                       46,450 1,144,121 1,144,121                             - 

Planning & Social Development 1,092,301                     110,000 1,202,301 1,200,227 (2,074)
Total Development Services Expenses 5,647,124 159,776              5,806,900       5,704,826 (102,074)

- 215 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 11 

Finance & Administration 

 

Q2 Budget Amendments 

Accounting & Finance $(46k) 

• As noted in the above section, a restructuring of a position with the applicable budget moved to 
Development Services.  

Civic Grants $11k 

• Increase for grants approved by Council for Penticton Cycling Association, Penticton Regional Bridge 
tournament and Okanagan Fest of Ale. 

Q2 Forecast  

Accounting and Finance ($94k) 

• Cost savings for General Manager of Finance and Administration and Manager of Finance vacancies. 
Both positions have now been filled. 

Corporate Administration $30k 

• Anticipated increase in legal costs for insurance claims, land management and general legal items. 

Purchasing $9k 

• Anticipated increase in freight costs due to increased fuel costs and supply chain delays. 

  

Finance & Administration
2022 Q1 

Amended 
Budget

Q2 Budget
Amendments

2022 Q2 
Amended 

Budget

2022 Year 
End

Forecast

Forecast 
Variance

Accounting & Finance 2,038,203 (46,450) 1,991,753 1,898,211 (93,542)
Civic Grants 1,067,714                       11,175 1,078,889 1,078,889                             - 
Communications 430,369                                    - 430,369 432,869                   2,500 
Corporate Administration 911,000                                    - 911,000 941,000                30,000 
General Government 23,633,099                                    - 23,633,099 23,633,099                             - 
Human Resources & Safety 677,191                                    - 677,191 677,191                             - 
Information Technology 2,371,148                                    - 2,371,148 2,376,642 5,494
Land Management 677,843                                    - 677,843 677,843                             - 
Mayor And Council 266,815                                    - 266,815 266,815                             - 
Purchasing 256,719                                    - 256,719 265,719                   9,000 
Revenue & Collections 318,000 269,306 269,306 0
Total Finance & Administration 32,330,101 (35,275) 32,294,826 32,248,278 (46,548)

- 216 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 11 

Infrastructure 

 

Q2 Forecast  

Engineering Services ($45k) 

• Anticipated savings for staffing vacancies year to date.  

Fleet $95k 

• Anticipated increased costs for higher fuel pricing.  

Roads $100k 

• As reported in the Q1 update, anticipated increased costs for snow removal.  

Traffic Control $26k 

• Traffic controls power usage is now being recorded based on actual usage, not based on estimated 
use, which is higher than budgeted.  
 

Protective Services 

 

Q2 Budget Amendments 

Fire $17k 

• Expenses of $17k for the 2022 Emergency Support Services (ESS) grant awarded. 

  

Infrastructure
2022 Q1 

Amended 
Budget

Q2 Budget
Amendments

2022 Q2 
Amended 

Budget

2022 Year 
End

Forecast

Forecast 
Variance

Cemetery 376,500                                    - 376,500 376,500                             - 
Engineering Services 0                                    -                               - -              45,000 (45,000)
Fleet 2,368,503                                    - 2,368,503 2,463,003                94,500 
Parks 3,340,011                                    - 3,340,011 3,340,011                             - 
Public Works - General 0                                    -                               -                             -                             - 
Roads 2,526,284                                    - 2,526,284 2,626,284              100,000 
Solid Waste 2,092,550                                    - 2,092,550 2,092,550                             - 
Street Lighting 418,000                                    - 418,000 418,000                             - 
Traffic Control 151,000                                    - 151,000 176,500                25,500 
Total Infrastructure Expenses 11,272,848 -                     11,272,848 11,447,848 175,000

Protective Services 
2022 Q1 

Amended 
Budget

Q2 Budget
Amendments

2022 Q2 
Amended 

Budget

2022 Year 
End

Forecast

Forecast 
Variance

Fire Services 8,034,935                       17,000 8,051,935 8,051,935                             - 
RCMP 12,825,000                                    - 12,825,000 12,325,000 (500,000)
Total Protective Services Expenses 20,859,935 17,000                20,876,935 20,376,935 (500,000)

- 217 -



 
Council Report  Page 11 of 11 

Q2 Forecast  

RCMP ($500k) 

• Anticipated savings for staffing vacancies year to date.  

Utility Funds 

 

Q2 Forecast 

Sewer $15k 

• Natural Gas costs have increased higher than anticipated. 

Water $350k 

• The Penticton Ave raw water main break increased costs of $100k for the water main repair, $80k in 
additional chemical usage to treat the alternative to optimal mixture of inflow water sources, offset 
by anticipated savings of $30k for Okanagan Lake pump station utilities. 

• Other unexpected water main repairs costs of $200k anticipated, partly due to colder temperatures 
for longer durations than normal over the winter increased breakage. 

Utilities
2022 Q1 

Amended 
Budget

Q2 Budget
Amendments

2022 Q2 
Amended 

Budget

2022 Year 
End

Forecast

Forecast 
Variance

Electrical Expenses 37,934,940                                    - 37,934,940 37,934,940                             - 
Sewer Expenses 5,466,637                                    - 5,466,637 5,481,637                15,000 
Water Expenses 4,977,041                                    - 4,977,041 5,327,041              350,000 
Storm Water Expenses 551,173                                    - 551,173 556,173                   5,000 
Total Utilities Expenses 48,929,791 -                     48,929,791 49,299,791 370,000        

- 218 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022       File No:    RMS / 1610 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Angela Campbell, Director Finance and Administration  
 
Subject: Second Quarter 2022 Corporate Business Plan Update 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council receive into record the report dated August 16, 2022 titled “Second Quarter 2022 Corporate 
Business Plan Update”. 

Strategic Priority Objective  

Mission:  

Penticton will serve its residents, businesses and visitors through good governance, partnership and the 
provision of effective and community focused services. 

Background 

To ensure strong public accountability each year the City publishes a Corporate Business Plan that identifies 
its major initiatives and reports quarterly on the progress of these initiatives. In 2022, there were a total of 51 
strategic priorities and initiatives outlined for completion across City divisions and departments.  

Financial Implication 

Financial impacts regarding initiatives outlined in the City’s Corporate Business Plan are included in 
department operating budgets and the 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan.  

Analysis 

Of the 51 strategic priorities and initiatives outlined, 44 are on track to complete by the end of 2022. In the 
second quarter, City divisions completed three initiatives. 

These include the Penticton Fire Department (PFD) hosting the Wildfire Training Symposium. From April 22 – 
24, 2022 the PFD hosted over 300 firefighters from over 40 jurisdictions to participate in higher level wildfire 
training. The PFD has been very successful in hosting this symposium with the result of the BC Wildfire 
Service making it a Provincial Training event.   

- 219 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 2 

Additionally, the RCMP completed their initiative to improve investigative capacity by increasing the DMFT 
(Digital Field Triage) role to two positions as well as successfully recruiting and onboarding a new 
Detachment Support Clerk.  

Finally, IT/GIS has completed its recruitment and onboarding of a new IT Operations Supervisor. This 
position is actively working to strengthen the City’s network and systems against cyber threats.  

A total of four initiatives are delayed, reasons cited for delays range from availability of staffing resources to 
contractor availability. Below is a snapshot for second quarter Corporate Business Plan initiative progress:   

Second Quarter Snapshot  

 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Second Quarter 2022 Business Plan Updates  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Angela Campbell, Director Finance and Administration  
Concurrence  

 

General 
Manager of 
Community 

Services 

General 
Manager of 

Infrastructure 

Fire Chief 
 
 

Director 
Development 

Services 

Chief 
Administrative 

Officer 

 
AH 

KD LW BL DvD 

- 220 -



Status City of Penticton Corporate Business Plan Update Q1 Update Q2 Update 

Priority Finance and Administration Legend 
Asset and Amenity Management AAMP 

Mission 
AAMP On Track Implement Asset Retirement Obligations In progress, work to resume in Q2 after annual legislated reporting completed. In progress, compilation of impacted assets and determination of responsibility is underway Safety 

Mission Vitality 

Mission On Track Conduct 2022 General Local Election Hired an election consultant and attended election training workshops and seminars hosted by LGMA
Appointed Chief Election Officer and Deputy  Chief Election Officers, adopted Election & Assent Voting Bylaw, 
adopted Political Signage Regulation Bylaw and held pre-candidate workshop in May 

Mission On Track Facilitate New Council Orientation and Strategic Planning Will occur later in 2022 Will occur later in 2022

Mission On Track Implement a City Mental Health Strategy 
Strategy drafted, shared with SLT/PLT, feedback received. Next steps compiling feedback & including in strategy, 
developing action plans. 

 Next steps compiling feedback & including in strategy, developing action plans. 

Community Safety 

Safety Completed Increase Information Technology Capacity 

IT Operations Supervisor was on boarded March 7th this new position will improve the City's detection and 
response to cyber threats as well as other IT operations. IT Manager is currently recruiting for a new Help Desk 
Analyst. 

All recruitment and onboarding is completed 

Community Services
Asset and Amenity Management 

AAMP On Track Finalize and Implement the Asset & Amenity Management Project 
AAMP presented to Council on April 5th with direction received to bring back work plan and budget for 
commencement of Public Safety and Protective Services Centre

Work plan for Public Safety and Protective Services Centre under development and scheduled for introduction 
to Council in August 2022

AAMP On Track RCMP Building Mechanical Upgrades Design/equipment replacement in progress Procurement to commence in Q3

AAMP On Track Construct New 2-Bay Storage Building at Fire Hall 202 Preliminary site analysis underway Architectural design work to commence in Q3

Mission On Track Implement IRONMAN Canada Event 
In progress, contract dates amended and planning meetings are underway. Anticipated event date is August 28, 
2022. 

Event preparation underway and on track for end of August 2022

Mission On Track Continue Rec and Culture Service Recovery Plan Services continue to adjust to changes in public health orders. Services continue to adjust to changes in public health orders. 

Mission On Track Implement Cleland Theatre Optimization Plan 
A/V Equipment upgrade project is underway. Grant application submitted. Preliminary carpentry completed. RFQ 
issued for electrical upgrades. RFP issued for audio equipment upgrades. 

A/V Equipment upgrade project under way. Grant application submitted. RFQ issued for electrical upgrades. RFP 
issued for audio equipment upgrades. 

Mission On Track Installation of Penticton Heritage Plaques 
In progress. Staff preparing to mail out the letters of interest to owners of heritage properties. Informational 
poster and brochures are in the design process. 

Staff report coming to Council in August for review.

Community Safety 

Safety On Track Community Safety Review Community stakeholder and staff consultation underway. Draft recommendations expected in early June 2022. Final phase of engagement underway

Safety On Track Evaluate Results of the DPA's Remote Guard Service Pilot Project Waiting to hear from DPA on first quarter results. Ongoing discussions with DPA around future expansion.

Safety On Track Upgrade Public Washrooms to Address Vandalism and Safety Issues Investment in washroom facilities underway to improve safety and security. Investment in washroom facilities underway to improve safety and security. 

Community Vitality 

Vitality On Track Continue COVID-19 Business Community Support and Recovery 
In progress, all remaining COVID-19 Re-Start Task Force recommendations are planned for execution 2022, in 
partnership with DPA/Chamber/Visit Penticton

Economic development work plan underway to implement action items

Vitality On Track
Support Event Portfolio and Future Destination Development 

At least ten new events are on the calendar for 2022. Continuing to build the endurance sport brand for new and 
prospective events. Working with SOEC/Visit Penticton to identify and attract new future events. 

Event season well underway with staff working closely with event organizes on implementation of 2022 events.

Vitality On Track Online Accommodation Platform (OAP) Housing Study To commence in Q3 2022 Project to commence in Q3 2022

Tracking Status

Mission 

Attachment A - Second Quarter 2022 Business Plan Update

- 221 -



Status City of Penticton Corporate Business Plan Update Q1 Update Q2 Update 

Library 
Community Vitality Legend 

AAMP 

Vitality On Track

Locker has been ordered and location for installation selected. Rough installation date planned. Graphic 
wrapping design is in-progress. 

Preliminary design underway for implementation in Q3 Mission 

Infrastructure 
Safety 

Asset and Amenity Management Vitality 

AAMP On Track Skaha Park Splash Pad Replacement 
Staff is currently working with local First Nations En'owkin Center to develop content that will be incorporated 
into the design of the new splash pad. 

Staff is currently working with local First Nations En'owkin Center to develop content that will be incorporated 
into the design of the new splash pad. Environmental management plan being developed. 

AMMP Delayed

Partnership with RDOS to Address Sanitary Sewer Plant Residuals and Organics 
Waste Management 

ALC did not approve the non-farm use of 1313 Greyback Mountain Road property and the RDOS is currently 
appealing the decision.  Pending the outcome of this decision, the RDOS will be in a positon to determine the 
potential site for this facility. 

ALC did not approve the non-farm use of 1313 Greyback Mountain Road property and the RDOS is currently 
appealing the decision.  Pending the outcome of this decision, the RDOS will be in a positon to determine the 
potential site for this facility. 

AAMP On Track
Upgrades for Dam Safety Compliance 

Detailed Design work for the 2023/24 Upgrades to Ellis 4 dam are currently under way.  The RFP to secure a 
qualified professional for the required upgrades to the Ellis 2 Dam will be advertised in the next couple of weeks. 

Detailed Design work for the 2023/24 Upgrades to Ellis 4 dam are currently under way.  The RFP to secure a 
qualified professional for the required upgrades to the Ellis 2 Dam was awarded to CIMA+ and design work is 
about to commence.

AAMP On Track Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion 
Concept design for the upgrades at the Wastewater Treatment Plant are currently underway. Concept drawings 
will be finalized by the end of April. Pre-design report to be finalized at the end of May.

Pre-design report expected at end of July.  Working with Penticton Indian Band for approvals and flows for 
design considerations. 

AAMP On Track
Penticton Creek Naturalization Project 

Discussions with adjacent landowners concerning project impacts are continuing. Still awaiting FLNRO/DFO 
regulatory approval. Tree removal prior to bird nesting season is in progress. Consultant working on completion 
of utility crossing, creek diversion and tender document details.

Contract Awarded to H&M Construction.  Construction underway

Community Safety 

Safety On Track Water Treatment Plant (WTP) Arc Flash Study Kick-off meeting occurred at the end of March. Completed and awaiting final report
Community Vitality 

Vitality Delayed Develop an Urban Forestry Master Plan Work has commenced on the development of an RFP to secure a qualified processional to undertake this project. This project is delayed due to staffing shortage and recruitment.. 

Vitality On Track Cleanliness Initiative for Parks and Core City Areas Recruitment is underway to secure the 4 staff required to enhance the current program as requested Staff Hired - program implemented 

Vitality On Track Conduct Distribution System Resiliency Study Contract has been awarded through an RFP process.  Final report is scheduled for end of May 2022. Draft report received and will be finalized by end of July. 

Vitality On Track Introduction of a Fully Electric Vehicle to Fleet Department 
Opportunities are being investigated.  Current global supply chain issues have introduced significant challenges 
into the Fleet procurement processes. 

3 EV's have been ordered,  1 scheduled for delivery in August 2022 and the remainder in 2023.

Vitality Delayed

Installation of a New Lighted Landmark for the Nighttime Landscape 

The decorative scroll project is currently underway.  Staff has sought engagement from the Arts, Creative & 
Cultural Innovation Committee as well as the Heritage and Museum Committee.  Generally the committees 
suggested designing the new piece based on the historical design of the past scrolls and have identified 3 
potential locations for consideration.  An architect has been secured to undertake work that can be used for 
public engagement and detailed engineering design work. 

Location selected is Power Street and Lakeshore Drive.  Conceptual drawings have been created, and detailed 
engineering designs are required.   Detailed design scheduled for Q3. Fabrication and installation planned for 
2023. 

Vitality On Track Completion of Section Two of the Lake-to-Lake Bike Route RFP for construction was issued on March 30, and will close on April 20, 2022. Under construction, on-schedule and on-budget. 

Vitality Delayed Create a New Point Intersection to Address Traffic Congestion RFP drawings will be finalized in April 2022, and an RFP for construction will be issued shortly after.  Scheduled to tender late summer/early fall, with construction to follow in to next year.  

Vitality On Track Refresh the Okanagan-Similkameen Transit Future Plan
This project was delayed due to limited engagement turn-out resulting from Covid-19.  Additional engagement 
is planned for this spring, with completion of the project scheduled for later this year.  

Still scheduled for completion by end of year. 

Development Services 
Community Safety 

Safety On Track

Expand Bylaw Services and Community Safety Capacity 

All new Bylaw staff that were supported through the 2022 budget process have now been recruited and are in 
training, including 1 new Bylaw Intake Administrator, 4 new Community Safety Officers, 1 new Bylaw 
Enforcement Officer and additional Relief Officers. We expect the bylaw expanded hours (7AM - 11PM, 7 days a 
week) to be operational in May. 

New bylaw staff (Bylaw Officers, Community Safety Officers and Intake) are all hired and trained. Bylaw is 
currently covering the desired 7 AM - 11 PM hours of operation. 

Safety On Track Explore City Sponsored Monitoring Devices for Repeat Offenders No progress has occurred on this initiative at this time. Scheduled for research and reporting back in Q3

Expansion of Library Holds Program to Penticton Community Centre 

- 222 -



Status City of Penticton Corporate Business Plan Update Q1 Update Q2 Update 

Safety On Track
Strengthening Penticton's Housing Response 

Development Services staff continue to process housing applications at historically high levels supporting all 
aspects of the housing spectrum. Housing policy and the City's future housing needs is planned to be reviewed in 
Q3 this year, once more of the 2021 census data is released.   

Initial research and analysis is underway for further work in Q3 - Q4

Community Vitality Legend 
AAMP 

Vitality On Track

New Online Application Software for Developers and Homeowners 

A contract has been signed with Cloud Permit, a leading software provider of on-line application software. 
Integration of Cloud Permit into the City's system is ongoing with staff training to commence after integration. 
We have also purchased Blue Beam software which allows for the digital review of pdf building plan submissions, 
further enabling fully digital application submissions.  

Work on integrating both Cloud Permit and Bluebeam into City systems is underway. On track for launch in Q4 
this year 

Mission 

Safety 
Vitality On Track Complete a Housing Policy Review This work is scheduled for Q3 when more details from the 2021 census are released. Initial research and analysis is underway for further work in Q3 - Q4 Vitality 

Vitality On Track
Implementing the Community Climate Action Plan 

Several initiatives are underway with regard to implementing the CCAP, including the development of an Electric 
Vehicle (EV) strategy and a review of development processes to increase the 'Step' level of new development.  

Recruitment underway for a Climate Action Supervisor . Several initiatives are underway with regard to 
implementing the CCAP, including the development of an Electric Vehicle (EV) strategy and a review of 
development processes to increase the 'Step' level of new development.  

Fire Department 
Community Safety 

Safety On Track
Ratify New Collective Agreement with the International Association of Fire 
Fighters, Local 1399

Planning for Bargaining in Q4. Planning for Bargaining in Q4.

Safety On Track
Continue FireSmart Penticton Program for 2022

Funding of $150,000 was approved from UBCM for continuation of the Penticton FireSmart Program.  The 
FireSmart team has been very active this spring with a lot of interest from the community completing Home 
evaluations and mitigation 

The FireSmart team has been very active this early summer with a lot of interest from the community 
completing Home evaluations and mitigation.   The team has been engaged in many public events and 
educations sessions. 

Safety Completed

Host Wildfire Training Symposium 2022
April 22-24 Penticton Fire dept. is hosting over 300 firefighters from over 40 jurisdictions and will provide wildfire 
training to promote higher level training for all provincial fire services.

April 22-24 Penticton Fire dept. is hosted over 300 firefighters from over 40 jurisdictions and provided wildfire 
training to promote higher level training for all provincial fire services.  The BC Wildfire Service will now take on 
the Penticton created symposium as a Provincial Lead Training event based o the success of Penticton.

Safety On Track Expanding Internal Training Strategy and Resources 
PFD is continuing discussion with the Justice Institute of BC to participate in a partnership in hosting Provincial 
Firefighter training at the PFD Training Grounds.

PFD is continuing discussion with the Justice Institute of BC to participate in a partnership in hosting Provincial 
Firefighter training at the PFD Training Grounds.

Safety On Track Enhancing Fire Fighting Apparatus Program Anticipating the arrival of the New Rescue Engine September 2022. Anticipating the arrival of the New Rescue Engine September 2022.

RCMP 
Mission 

Mission Complete 
Improve RCMP Investigation Capacity through Technical and Administrative 
Support 

The newly approved IT position is filled and work is being done in support of the members. We are currently in 
the midst of filling the additional Admin Support position. 

This initiative has been completed. The Penticton detachment was successful in recruiting and hiring a 
Detachment Support Clerk who will assist with administrative support to members. 

Community Safety 

Safety On Track 
Enhance Proactive Policing through Prolific Offender Management and Traffic 
Services 

Prolific Offender Management program is established and functioning as expected. Identifying and managing prolific offenders continues to be a top priority for Penticton RCMP in 2022. 

Safety On Track Crime Reduction: Property Crime and Drugs 
Work continues toward a reduction in Property Crime and Drugs in the community. This is correlated to our 
Prolific Offender Management program.

The start of 2022, shows that property crime is trending downward compared to 2021 with respect to calls for 
mischief, fraud and residential break and enters. 

Safety On Track Family and Sexual Violence Support Our Special Victims Unit continue to work with our community partners in reducing Family and Sexual violence. 
The RCMP Special Victims Unit continues work to create a supportive environment for victims of family and 
sexual violence. 

Safety On Track Mental Health and Substance Use Support for the Community 
The detachment's Mental Health Liaison Officer is working with shelter operators, Interior Health and BC Housing 
in reducing the impact of homelessness in our community. 

Mental Health Liaison Officer continues to work with community partners to reduce the impact of homelessness 
and substance use in our community. 

Safety On Track Traffic and Road Safety Enforcement 
Members are continually working with Highway Patrol (Keremeos), ensuring our roadways are safe for motorists, 
cyclists and pedestrians. 

Penticton RCMP continue to work on ensuring roadways are safe. In Q2, Penticton RCMP issued media releases 
reminding drivers to be aware of their speed in Playground Zones as spring and summer arrive. 

Safety On Track Employee Wellness Strategy We continue to focus on mental wellness amongst all employees. Penticton RCMP continues to focus on mental wellness for all employees. 

- 223 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022       File No:    0550-02 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
Subject: Council Meeting Schedule for 2023 

 
Staff Recommendation 
THAT Council select the following dates for the 2023 Regular Meetings of Council: January 17; February 7; 
March 7, 21; April 4, 18; May 2, 16; June 6, 20; July 18; August 1, 15; September 12; October 3, 17; November 7, 
21; and December 5, 19; 

AND THAT Special Council meetings be held on March 14, 15, 16, 2023 for budget deliberations. 

Background 
In accordance with the Council Procedure Bylaw, the City must make available to the public annually, a 
schedule of the dates, time and place of regular Council meetings and give notice of the availability of the 
schedule through advertising.  This report is being presented to Council now to give prospective candidates a 
better understanding of the meeting commitments for the year ahead. 

Regular Council meetings are held on the first and third Tuesdays of each month commencing at 1:00 p.m. at 
City Hall except when Council resolves to hold the meeting elsewhere.    Meeting dates are cancelled or 
moved if they fall on a week of a statutory holiday or during a conference such as UBCM, FCM or SILGA.  So far 
this year, four special meetings of Council have been held.   

For 2023, we are proposing to eliminate the first meeting in January as City Hall is closed the week prior and 
eliminate a meeting in weeks in which a statutory holiday falls on the Monday.  Special meetings can be called 
should the need arise. 

Month Meeting Date  Meeting Date  
January  17 
February 7  
March 7 21 
April 4 18 
May 2 16 
June 6 20 
July  18 
August 1 15 
September  12 
October 3 17 
November 7 21 
December  5 19 

- 224 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 3 

 

Alternate Recommendation 

THAT Council select the first and third Tuesday of each month as Regular Council meeting dates for 2023. 

Attachments: 

Attachment A – 2023 Calendar Events at a Glance 

Attachment B – 2023 Meeting Schedule 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Angie Collison 
Corporate Officer 
 

Approvals 

Director of Finance 
and Administration 

Chief 
Administrative 

Officer 
AMC 

 DvD 

 

Attachment A 

2023 Calendar Events at a Glance 

Event Date Details 
Budget deliberations March 14 – 16, 2023  
Southern Interior Local 
Government Association 
(SILGA) 

April 25 – 28, 2023 Vernon, BC 

Federation of Canadian 
Municipalities (FCM) 

May 25 – 28, 2023 Toronto, ON 

Union of British Columbia 
Municipalities (UBCM) 

September 18 – 22, 2023 Vancouver, BC 

Winter Break December 25 – January 2, 2024  
 

 

 

- 225 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 3 

 

Attachment B 

 

- 226 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022      File No:    RMS/655 Ellis St 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Steven Collyer, Planner II 
Address: 655 Ellis Street 
 
Subject: Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46  
 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47 
 Development Permit PL2022-9296 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council, prior to consideration of “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46”, and in 
accordance with Section 475 of the Local Government Act, consider whether early and on-going 
consultation, in addition to the required Public Hearing, is necessary with: 

1. One or more persons, organizations or authorities; 
2. The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen; 
3. Local First Nations; 
4. School District #67; 
5. The provincial or federal government and their agencies; 

AND THAT it is determined that the community engagement period carried out from July 11, 2022 to August 
7, 2022 is sufficient; 

AND THAT Council give first reading to “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46”, a bylaw 
that amends Map 1: Future Land Use of Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08, by amending the future 
land use designation for Lot 1 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP120346, located at 
655 Ellis Street, from ‘Ground Oriented Residential’ to ‘Urban Residential’; 

AND THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47” for Lot 1 District Lot 202 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP120346, located at 655 Ellis Street, a bylaw to rezone the subject 
property from ‘P1 (Public Assembly)’ to ‘RM5 (Urban Residential)’; 

AND THAT Council forward “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46” and “Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47” to the September 6, 2022 Public Hearing; 

AND THAT Council require a 0.914m road dedication along the eastern property line (Ellis Street) to be 
registered with the Land Title Office prior to issuance of an Occupancy Permit; 

- 227 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 14 

AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47”, approve “Development 
Permit PL2022-9296”, a permit to approve the form and character of the proposed three-storey, 16-unit 
apartment building. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing to construct a three-storey, 16-unit apartment building located at 655 Ellis Street 
(Figure 1). There are eleven 1-bedroom units and five 2-bedroom units proposed. 17 parking spaces are 
provided within an enclosed parking garage accessed from the rear lane. Bicycle storage rooms are available 
on the second and third floors providing a total of 24 secure bicycle parking spaces. The proposal is outlined 
in more detail in the letter of intent submitted by the applicant (Attachment ‘E’).  

 

Figure 1 - Rendering of proposed development 

In order to facilitate the proposed development, the following planning approvals are required: 

Application Required Description 
Approval 
Authority 

Official Community 
Plan Amendment 
Bylaw 

To change the future land use designation on the subject 
property from ‘Ground Oriented Residential’ to ‘Urban 
Residential’. 

Council 

Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw 

To change the zoning on the subject property from P1 (Public 
Assembly) to RM5 (Urban Residential). 

Council 

Development Permit 
To approve the form and character of the proposed 16-unit 
apartment building. 

Council or 
Staff 

 

  

- 228 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 14 

Background 

The subject property is located on the west side 
of Ellis Street, north of Eckhardt Avenue East 
(Figure 2). The property is currently vacant and 
used as a parking lot. Surrounding land uses 
include residential along Ellis Street, and a mix 
of institutional and commercial uses across the 
rear lane fronting onto Main Street. The 
property is within walking distance of Penticton 
Secondary School, KVR Middle School, 
downtown shops and services, the public 
library, transit routes, and the Lake to Lake bike 
route. 

The property is currently designated ‘Ground 
Oriented Residential’ by the Official Community 
Plan (OCP) and is zoned ‘P1 (Public Assembly)’ 
in the Zoning Bylaw. 

On July 5, 2022, Council directed staff to begin 
public engagement for this proposed 
development in accordance with the 
Community Engagement for OCP Amendments 
Procedure. The engagement period was carried 
out between July 11, 2022 and August 7, 2022. 
This report presents the results of the engagement period as well as staff’s detailed analysis of the proposed 
development, for Council’s consideration. 

Financial Implication 

Staff are recommending that a 0.914 m road dedication be completed prior to the issuance of Occupancy for 
any dwelling units. Normally, this type of requirement would be a condition required prior to adoption of 
the zoning bylaw. Staff are recommending that this requirement be pushed out to a later stage, to avoid 
delay in rezoning approval based on the gap in Council meetings this fall. The City will be responsible for the 
surveying and legal costs associated with obtaining this road dedication. The property owner and developer 
has agreed in writing to this arrangement.  

Climate Impact 

The Community Climate Action Plan (CCAP) was adopted by Council in 2021 and outlines various areas of 
focus to make progress towards the City’s climate change mitigation and adaptation goals. A major 
component of the CCAP is building energy efficiency. The apartment building will be required to meet Step 
1 of the Energy Step Code. 

The development plans show EV chargers for each vehicle parking space in the garage. The plans also show 
24 secure bicycle parking spaces (on the second and third floors) which exceeds the minimum 8 required by 

Figure 2 - Property Location Map 

- 229 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 14 

the Zoning Bylaw. Parking reductions for three visitor parking spaces are proposed, as allowed by the 
Zoning Bylaw. This promotes the use of active transportation as the site is within two blocks of the Lake-to-
Lake bike route and within walking distance of the downtown, schools, library, and KVR trail, and transit. 

Technical Review 

The application package was reviewed by the Technical Planning Committee, a group of internal staff who 
review development applications. Staff are recommending that a 0.914m road dedication be taken from the 
frontage of the property. The road dedication will help facilitate improved boulevard landscaping and allow 
sufficient room for new boulevard trees, where currently there are none. Other comments related to the 
future building permit application stage were provided to the applicant in the case that this land use change 
application is successful, to help expedite the future approvals process. 

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines how the proposed development meets the applicable Zoning Bylaw 
regulations:  

 RM5 Zone Requirement Provided on Plans 
Minimum Lot Width*: 10 m 28.2 m 
Minimum Lot Area*: 275 m2 857.1 m2 
Maximum Lot Coverage: 100% 88.3% 
Maximum Density: 2.0 Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 1.43 FAR 

Vehicle Parking: 

1 parking space per dwelling unit 
0.25 visitor parking spaces per 
dwelling unit 
Maximum 25% of all parking spaces 
provided may be small car 
Total: 20 parking spaces required 

1 parking space per dwelling unit 
1 visitor parking space 
23.5% of all parking spaces are small 
car 
Total: 17 parking spaces provided 
Parking reductions**: 2 spaces 
through cash-in-lieu ($26,000), 1 
space through 5 additional Class I 
bicycle parking spaces 

Bicycle Parking 
Class I (enclosed): 8 spaces required 
Class II (bike rack): 1 required 

Class I: 24 spaces provided 
Class II: 1 provided 

Required Setbacks 
Front Yard (Ellis Street): 
Side Yard (north): 
Side Yard (south): 
Rear Yard (lane): 

 
2.5 m 
0 m 
0 m 
0 m 

 
2.5 m 
0 m 
0 m 
0.9 m 

Maximum Building 
Height 

15 m 11.1 m 

Other Information 
* Lot width and lot area are only applicable at the time of subdivision. 
** Section 6.1.2 of the Zoning Bylaw allows reductions in the number of 
required parking spaces in certain circumstances. 

 

- 230 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 14 

Community Engagement Summary 

Following direction from Council, staff launched the engagement period on July 11, 2022, utilizing the 
Shape Your City Penticton webpage platform as the main tool for sharing information and gathering public 
feedback on the proposed development. An information booth was set up at the Penticton Public Library as 
an alternative option of providing feedback for those who prefer paper or do not utilize the internet.  

To advertise the engagement period, staff completed the following: 

1. Mailed notices to property owners and tenants within 100m of the subject property, 
2. Notice sign posted on the subject property, 
3. Consulted stakeholder groups, 
4. Sent referral to the Penticton Indian Band (PIB), 
5. Issued a news release, 
6. Placed advertisements in local newspapers, and 
7. Conducted two information sessions; one online and one at the Penticton Public Library. 

The City received one response to the stakeholder referrals from Interior Health, who submitted a letter of 
support citing the benefits of additional rental housing and the location which supports the use of active 
transportation (walking and bicycling) (Attachment ‘G’). 

There were no attendees for the online information session on July 21. Approximately 10 people attended 
the in-person information session at the Penticton Library on July 23.  

The City received 18 feedback form responses during the engagement period. The full results are included in 
Attachment H. Figure 3 below shows that most respondents support the proposed OCP designation change: 

 

 

Do you agree with 
changing the land use at 
655 Ellis Street from 
Ground Oriented 
Residential to Urban 
Residential? 

Figure 3 - 16 out of 18 respondents support, with or without conditions, changing the future land use 
designation to Urban Residential 

- 231 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 14 

The public feedback included supportive comments as well as concerns with the proposed development. 
Those in support noted the benefit of additional rental housing in the area, and the building’s height fitting 
in with the surrounding neighbourhood which is generally 1-3 storey buildings. The concerns with the 
proposed development were focused on parking and traffic congestion. Many respondents felt that the 17 
parking spaces provided were insufficient for 16 units, and were not satisfied that 3 required parking spaces 
were utilizing parking reductions that are permitted through the Zoning Bylaw. Other concerns were related 
to traffic congestion in the area, with some respondents concerned that the rear lane is already busy, and 
access onto Eckhardt Ave E is difficult at many times of the day as-is, implying that this would be worsened 
by the proposed development. A couple of respondents suggested that adding a front driveway on this 
property to provide vehicle access onto Ellis Street could alleviate the increased traffic in the lane. 

The development plans have not been revised after the engagement period. Many of the comments and 
concerns related to parking, which the applicant could not address through redesign unless the number of 
units was reduced to then reduce the amount of required parking. The applicant did not want to reduce the 
number of units and staff consider the addition of the new housing units in this area to have a positive 
impact to this area at the edge of the downtown and near many amenities. The comments regarding the 
front driveway were heard, however the Zoning Bylaw provisions requires vehicle access from lanes where a 
lane exists. The developer has designed the building accordingly, meeting the Zoning Bylaw provisions for 
access. The developer will be required to upgrade their laneway frontage as a condition of their building 
permit. Additionally, the rear lane vehicle access maintains an uninterrupted boulevard area along Ellis 
Street to provide an enhanced pedestrian realm without vehicles crossing over. 

Analysis 

Official Community Plan Amendment 

The OCP is a “living document” and amendments to the OCP are expected from time to time. The OCP was 
adopted in 2019 and guides land use decisions up to 2045, however it is likely that Council will consider 
amendments to the plan over that timeline. OCP amendments must respect the overall vision and goals of 
the OCP, but also allow for innovation as new opportunities arise. The OCP outlines five key considerations 
when reviewing an OCP amendment: 

1. Alignment with broad OCP vision and goals 
2. Provision of demonstrable social, economic and environmental benefits to the community 
3. Assessment of cost and other implications for infrastructure – parks, roads, utilities, water, sanitary 

and storm sewer, public facilities 
4. Suitability to context – form, character and design 
5. All proposed amendments will be accompanied by meaningful public engagement, in addition to 

the required notification, and a formal Public Hearing. 

The applicants are proposing to amend the future land use designation on the subject property from 
‘Ground Oriented Residential’ to ‘Urban Residential’ to support their proposed apartment development. 
‘Apartment’ is not one of the building forms envisioned by the current designation on the property (Figure 
4).  

- 232 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 14 

 

Figure 4 - Except from Land Use Designations table (OCP) 

The subject property is considered suitable for the proposed three storey apartment for several reasons. It is 
located close to the downtown, Penticton Secondary School, KVR Middle School, Penticton Library, bus 
routes, the KVR trail and the Lake-to-Lake bike route which runs along Martin Street two blocks away. The 
subject property previously consisted of two lots, 641 and 655 Ellis Street. Both were purchased and 
consolidated into one larger development parcel. The larger lot size facilitates an apartment-style 
development. Individually, each lot may have been better suited for ground-oriented housing given the 
smaller lot sizes. 

Staff consider the proposed development is aligned with the following OCP policies: 

OCP Reference Policy 

OCP Goal 4.1.1 

Managing Growth 
Ensure that Penticton retains its compact “footprint” to help protect natural areas and 
environmental values and agricultural lands, avoid excessive infrastructure costs and 
hazard lands, and help create conditions that support transit and active modes of 
transportation. 

Staff Comments 

The subject property is located within the existing urban area of the City, and the 
proposal is for an infill development on a vacant parking lot. Development on 
underutilized sites within the built-up core of the city helps to ease pressure of 
development on greenfield sites on the outskirts of the City. The development 
provides additional housing near bus routes and the Lake to Lake bike route.  

OCP Policy 4.1.1.1 Focus new residential development in or adjacent to existing developed areas. 

- 233 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 14 

OCP Reference Policy 

Staff Comments The subject property is located within an already developed area, and does not 
require the construction or extension of City services.  

OCP Policy 4.1.3.1 

Encourage more intensive “infill” residential development in areas close to the 
Downtown, to employment, services and shopping, through zoning amendments for 
housing types compatible with existing neighbourhood character, with form and 
character guided from Development Permit Area Guidelines. 

Staff Comments 

The subject property is located within an already developed area, near existing 
residential, institutional, commercial and public spaces. There is adequate 
opportunity for residents to access services and amenities near the proposed 
development due to its central location.  

OCP Policy 4.1.3.4 

Encourage developments that include one-bedroom and two-bedroom units in 
suitable neighbourhoods to enable people to downsize as they age and to provide 
entry-level housing for those people entering the housing market. At the same time, 
provide 3-bedroom units, or larger, to accommodate families. 

Staff Comments The proposal would provide eleven 1-bedroom units and five 2-bedroom units to the 
area, providing a housing option for a range of potential occupants.  

OCP Policy 4.1.5.1 

Recognize that some traditionally single-family neighbourhoods will see 
intensification as the city grows, but ensure that new forms of residential 
development are compatible with the neighbourhood in scale and design, and are 
appropriately located (e.g., greater density closer to collector roads, services and 
amenities). 

Staff Comments: 

Staff acknowledge that this block of Ellis Street primarily consists of single-detached 
homes, but consider the three storey building height compatible with existing 
development in the area and in keeping with the anticipated building heights of 
other potential developments on this block. The increased density from the 
apartment building is located very close to Penticton Secondary School, KVR Middle 
School, the Penticton Museum and Library, and the downtown. The close proximity 
to amenities, and given this is the only double-lot on the block, the small-scale 
apartment is considered a compatible development within the neighbourhood.  

OCP Policy 4.1.6.1 

Ensure all residential neighborhoods in Penticton provide a range of appropriately 
scaled housing types and tenures, employment opportunities such as home-based 
businesses, transportation options like walking and cycling, social supports such as 
childcare facilities, and access to green space and parks. 

Staff Comments: 

The proposed development provides market rental housing in a mix of one- and two-
bedroom units. The requested RM5 zone permits the use of home based businesses, 
which provides home owners with the opportunity to work from home, following 
regulations specified in the Zoning Bylaw. 

OCP Policy 4.2.3.8 Require adequate levels of secure bike parking in new multi-family, mixed-use and 
commercial development. 

Staff Comments 
The proposed development provides three times the minimum requirement of Class 
1 secure bicycle parking (24 spaces provided, 8 required). Further, a Class II bike rack 
is shown near the main building entry for use by either residents or visitors.  

- 234 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 14 

OCP Reference Policy 

OCP Policy 4.2.7.8 Ensure new residential developments provide an appropriate amount of parking for 
residents and their guests. 

Staff Comments: 

The proposed development has provided one parking space per dwelling unit plus 
one space for visitors. The Zoning Bylaw requires four visitor parking spaces and the 
applicant is proposing to discount 1 of those required visitor spaces by providing 
additional secure bicycle parking, and discounting 2 visitor parking spaces by paying 
cash-in-lieu of $13,000 per space. These discounts are allowed for by Section 6.1.2 of 
the Zoning Bylaw.  

OCP Policy 4.3.6.3 
Recognize that business growth is reliant on adequate housing availability, and work 
to develop policies that encourage housing development as outlined in Section 4.1 
[of the OCP]. 

Staff Comments: 
Providing additional housing units throughout the City, with a variety of types, 
tenures and sizes helps to ensure housing options for workers. The development 
would add to rental housing stock in the city. 

Given the analysis and alignment with the OCP, staff recommend that Council give first reading to “Official 
Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46” and forward the amendment bylaw to the September 6, 
2022 Public Hearing. 

Zoning Amendment 

In addition to an OCP Amendment, the applicants have also applied to rezone the property from ‘P1 (Public 
Assembly)’ to ‘RM5 (Urban Residential)’. The rezoning is to allow apartments as a permitted use on the 
property, which currently allows institutional and community uses. 

Should Council consider that amending the OCP future land use designation on the subject property to 
‘Urban Residential’ is appropriate, the requested RM5 (Urban Residential) zone would align well with that 
designation. The RM5 zone is intended for higher-density infill projects such as this proposal, with a lower 
maximum building height than other apartment zones with a maximum 12m permitted, and allowing 0m 
building setbacks from property lines at the sides and rear. This building form is considered suitable in the 
immediate area around the dense urban core. For example, Main Street runs behind the subject property 
and most buildings along the downtown section of Main Street are at 0m setbacks. The RM5 zone provisions 
allow for a built form at a similar scale envisioned along transition streets like Ellis Street, providing a 
transition to the lower density infill housing envisioned along streets further to the east (i.e. Van Horne, 
Braid, Papineau and Burns Streets). Further north on Ellis Street there have been several recent infill 
development which have utilized the RM5 zone. 

Given the alignment with OCP policies and the analysis noted above, staff recommend that Council give first 
reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47” and forward the bylaw to the September 6, 2022 Public 
Hearing. 

Development Permit 

The proposed three-storey, 16-unit apartment building is considered within the Multifamily Residential 
Development Permit Area as outlined by the OCP. The Multifamily Residential Development Permit Area is 

- 235 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 14 

established to enhance neighbourhoods and create sensitive transitions in scale and density by addressing 
issues such as privacy, landscape retention, and neighbourliness. The proposed development has been 
designed with the OCP design guidelines in mind. The development proposes a density that is considered 
suitable for the surrounding area given the proximity to the downtown while respecting surrounding built 
forms with a proposed three storey building height. 

Staff completed a development permit analysis that shows how the development conforms to the 
applicable OCP design guidelines (Attachment ‘D’). The applicant has also submitted a development permit 
analysis demonstrating alignment between their proposal and the applicable design guidelines 
(Attachment ‘F’). 

Staff consider the proposed development has been designed with alignment to the OCP design guidelines 
and with consideration to neighbourhood fit. As such, staff recommend that Council consider approving the 
Development Permit subject to adoption of the OCP and Zoning Amendment Bylaws. 

Alternate Recommendations 

Council may consider the proposed development to be undesirable at this location, or not in keeping with 
the goals and policies of the Official Community Plan. If this is the case, Council should deny first reading of 
the Official Community Plan Amendment and Zoning Bylaw Amendment. 

1. THAT Council deny first reading of “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46” and 
“Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47”. 

Council may consider the proposed land use change appropriate, however, there may be concerns with the 
development plans submitted. If this is the case, Council may choose to give first reading to the Official 
Community Plan Amendment and Zoning Bylaw Amendment, but not proceed with the Development 
Permit, and rather provide the applicant with specific direction to make revisions to the development plans 
prior to Council considering approval of the Development Permit.  

2. THAT Council give first reading to “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46” and 
“Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47”, and direct staff to work with the applicant to make design 
changes to the Development Permit plans prior to further consideration. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Current Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Current Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Photos of Property 
Attachment D – Development Permit Analysis (staff) 
Attachment E – Letter of Intent (applicant) 
Attachment F – Development Permit Analysis (applicant) 
Attachment G – Interior Health response letter 
Attachment H –Community Engagement Period Results 
Attachment I – Draft Development Permit PL2022-9296 
Attachment J – Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46 
Attachment K – Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47 

- 236 -



 
Council Report  Page 11 of 14 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Steven Collyer, RPP, MCIP 
Planner II 

 

Concurrence  

Director of 
Development Services 

General Manager 
Infrastructure  

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
  

DvD 
 

 

 

  

- 237 -



 
Council Report  Page 12 of 14 

 Attachment A – Current Zoning Map

  
  

- 238 -



 
Council Report  Page 13 of 14 

Attachment B – Current Official Community Plan Map

 
  

- 239 -



 
Council Report  Page 14 of 14 

Attachment C – Photos of Property 

 

667 Ellis St 

Penticton 
Secondary 

School 

Penticton United Church                           
696 Main St 

Development Site 

Subject Property: 
655 Ellis Street 

Ellis St 

667 Ellis St 

- 240 -



 

 

 

 



Attachment D - Development Permit Analysis (staff)- 241 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

- 242 -



 

 

 

 

 

- 243 -



 

 

 

 

 

- 244 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 245 -



 955 Timmins St. 
 Penticton, BC V2A 5V3 

 P: 250-492-0069 

 March 7, 2022 

 City of Penticton 
 Development Services 
 171 Main Street 
 Penticton, BC 
 V2A 5A9 

 RE: Letter of Intent – 641,655 Ellis Street 
 Proposed OCP Amendment, Rezoning and DP Application 

 Project Description 

 Ryzak Properties is submitting this application for an OCP Amendment, Rezoning and 
 Development Permit for 641, 655 Ellis Street. This would allow for the development of a 
 purpose-built rental apartment building in the heart of downtown. Our application proposes to 
 amend the OCP designation from Ground Oriented Residential to Urban Residential, and to 
 rezone from P1 (Public Assembly) to RM5 (Urban Residential). 

 641 and 655 Ellis Street are 0.106 acre lots that are currently vacant. This proposed 
 development will include a total of 16 rental apartments within proximity to transit, bike lanes, 
 the high school and the walkable downtown core amenities. This purpose-built (non-market) 
 rental building would provide security for long-term renters, alleviate housing pressures and 
 support the overall vision of Penticton’s Official Community Plan. 

 Our thoughtfully designed apartments include one and two bedroom housing options, geared 
 toward professionals and skilled workers. The proposed development will inject much-needed 
 rental housing into the market, which currently has a vacancy rate of less than 1%. This would 
 be yet another step toward reducing pressure on local employers who face challenges attracting 
 skilled workers due to a lack of rental housing options. 

 The building will be based on sustainable and efficient design principles, with large windows to 
 maximize light, and each unit having access to a private outdoor amenity space. This 
 development will have an emphasis on encouraging active modes of transportation, due to its 
 central location near Main Street, with easy access to transit as well as bike routes including the 
 Lake-to-Lake Bike Route. In addition to the parking stalls, each unit will have a dedicated bike 
 stall within secure, heated bike storage rooms. This location is in high demand for those who 
 appreciate the downtown lifestyle and the many benefits associated with living within a walkable 
 community, with shopping, restaurants, breweries and other amenities at your doorstep. 

 641 / 655 Ellis St - Letter of Intent  1  /3 

Attachment E - Letter of Intent (applicant) - 246 -



 955 Timmins St. 
 Penticton, BC V2A 5V3 

 P: 250-492-0069 

 OCP Amendment 

 This proposal supports sustainable growth within the City of Penticton boundaries, where 
 residents live, work, shop and play nearby, and have easy access to daily needs and activities. 

 The current OCP designation at 641 & 655 Ellis Street is Ground Oriented Residential. An 
 amendment to the OCP would change the designation to Urban Residential, allowing for an 
 apartment building. This designation is justifiable due to the parcel’s geographical location near 
 major corridors and with easy access by transit or active transportation, also being centrally 
 located. 

 This amendment, and the overall development project, would address community needs by 
 providing housing diversity within downtown Penticton, falling in line with the following Official 
 Community Plan policies, among others. 

 4.1.2.1:  “Where the need is demonstrated, partner  with senior governments, the non-profit 
 housing sector and the development community to facilitate the development and operation of 
 projects across the housing spectrum including shelters, transitional housing, supportive 
 housing, non-market housing, and affordable rental and ownership housing for singles, families 
 and seniors.” 

 Policy 4.1.3.5:  “Ensure through the use of zoning  that more-intensive forms of residential 
 development are located close to transit and amenities, such as parks, schools and shopping.” 

 This proposal also falls in line with the 2017 Housing Needs Assessment Report findings, which 
 recommended enhancing the market rate housing supply or rental and for sale units, especially 
 for affordable and higher-density housing units. 

 641 / 655 Ellis St - Letter of Intent  2  /3 

- 247 -



 955 Timmins St. 
 Penticton, BC V2A 5V3 

 P: 250-492-0069 

 Rezoning Application 

 In conjunction with the OCP amendment, Ryzak Properties is proposing to rezone the property 
 from P1 (Public Assembly) to RM5 (Urban Residential) to allow for the construction of the rental 
 apartment building. 

 We at Ryzak Properties would like to thank you for the opportunity to outline the information for 
 the proposed plan. We are confident that the OCP amendment and rezoning will support the 
 City’s ultimate vision for the future. Please contact us if you require further information regarding 
 this proposal. 

 Best regards, 

 Joe Walters 

 641 / 655 Ellis St - Letter of Intent  3  /3 

- 248 -



Attachment F - Development Permit Analysis (applicant)- 249 -



- 250 -



- 251 -



We recognize and acknowledge that we are collectively gathered on the traditional, ancestral, and unceded territories of the seven 

Interior Region First Nations. This region is also home to 15 Chartered Métis Communities. It is with humility that we continue to 
s trengthen our relationships with First Nation, Métis, and Inuit peoples across the Interior. 

INTERIOR HEALTH POPULATION HEALTH    |    505 DOYLE AVE, KELOWNA, BC  V1Y 0C5 

PHONE   250.469.7070 x 12287    C ELL   778.214.0674    EMAIL   Tanya.Osborne@interiorhealth.ca 

July 14, 2022 

Stev en Collyer, Planner II 

City of Penticton 

1 71 Main Street 

Penticton, BC 

V2A 5A9 

Sent via email: steven.collyer@penticton.ca 

RE: 655 Ellis Street: LOT 1 DISTRICT LOT 202 SIMILKAMEEN DIVISION YALE DISTRICT 

PLAN EPP120346 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments for consideration regarding the above referenced 

property. It is our understanding that the application  is to amend the OCP Future Land Use designation 

from P1  (Public Assembly) to RM5 (Urban Residential), as well as to rezone the property from Ground 

Oriented Residential to Urban Residential, to accommodate the development of a three storey, 16 unit 

apartment building. This proposed development will be fully serviced by municipal water and sewer. The 

following comments are for your consideration. 

We are pleased to see the proposed creation of additional purpose-built (non-market) rental housing for the 

community. Housing is a key determinant of health. It has a significant influence on our physical and mental 

health, social well-being, and indirectly influences many other determinants of health such as income, early 

childhood dev elopment, educational opportunities, and access to health services. Healthy housing is 

affordable, high quality, and in a location within the community that meets our needs and supports health 

and well-being. The location of this development is ideal for residents to be able to use active modes of 

transportation, which can increase their ability to be physically active and reduce their carbon footprint.   

Access to affordable rental housing can reduce stress and allow residents to take better care of themselves as 

well as their families by having more disposable income. More disposable income would allow for residents 

to spend on healthy food, medication, recreational opportunities, and educational opportunities which in 

turn can help reduce health inequities.  

As such, we are in support of this application moving forward. Interior Health is committed to improving the 

health and wellness of all by working collaboratively with local governments and community partners to 

create policies and environments that support good health.   

Attachment G - Interior Health Response Letter - 252 -

mailto:steven.collyer@penticton.ca


We recognize and acknowledge that we are collectively gathered on the traditional, ancestral, and unceded territories of the seven 

Interior Region First Nations. This region is also home to 15 Chartered Métis Communities. It is with humility that we continue to 

s trengthen our relationships with First Nation, Métis, and Inuit peoples across the Interior. 

INTERIOR HEALTH POPULATION HEALTH    |    505 DOYLE AVE, KELOWNA, BC  V1Y 0C5 

PHONE   250.469.7070 x 12287    C ELL   778.214.0674    EMAIL   Tanya.Osborne@interiorhealth.ca 

Sincerely, 

Tanya Osborne 

Community Health Facilitator  

Healthy Communities Healthy Families 

- 253 -



Q1  Do you agree with changing the land use at 655 Ellis Street from Ground Oriented

Residential to Urban Residential?

7 (38.9%)

7 (38.9%)

9 (50.0%)

9 (50.0%)

2 (11.1%)

2 (11.1%)

Yes Yes, with conditions No

Question options

Optional question (18 response(s), 0 skipped)
Question type: Radio Button Question

Feedback Form : Survey Report for 09 July 2022 to 08 August 2022

Page 2 of 9

Attachment H - Community Engagement Period Results
- 254 -



Screen Name Redacted
7/13/2022 06:41 PM

No reduction in parking spaces required

Screen Name Redacted
7/16/2022 02:08 PM

Will it provide public outdoor area/green space, trees and two ways

for egress? Fire and or escape routes example: road closures should

require two ways out. Use this opportunity to insist on greening up

this town not giving it all to developers. Three stories plus a garage is

4 stories math is math.

Screen Name Redacted
7/18/2022 09:55 AM

The usual caveats to a building project would apply. Do the builders

have a track record of completing quality projects on time? Are these

units relatively affordable for Penticton residents.

Screen Name Redacted
7/18/2022 10:38 AM

It is too much of a dramatic change. Perhaps 12 or 14 units stepped

back to better blend and have less of a dramatic impact with the

neighbourhood and traffic. There should also be a few visitor parking

spots available to help reduce the pressure on street parking.

Screen Name Redacted
7/18/2022 12:20 PM

This is across from Pen High, I will not approve it if it any sort of

recovery, shelter, wet/dry facility, but its a great place for family

oriented, regular appartment development.

Screen Name Redacted
7/18/2022 12:28 PM

Densification is important.

Screen Name Redacted
7/18/2022 03:55 PM

100% support density and this is a great location for it. However the

last thing Penticton needs is rich investors buying these properties

and using them for short term rentals. We should have a convenant

on these properties that they be owner occupied or long term rentals.

Screen Name Redacted
7/19/2022 03:35 AM

I support - increased density in this part of the city is a great idea.

BUT I believe the first (ground) floor should be for commercial use.

Although this is a residential street, it is right on the edge of

downtown and increased height, density, and commercial

development are the future for this part of town.

Screen Name Redacted Is there going to be PV Solar panels installed to reduce city costs of

Q2  If you answered 'No' or 'Yes, with conditions', please describe.

Feedback Form : Survey Report for 09 July 2022 to 08 August 2022

Page 3 of 9

- 255 -



7/19/2022 07:01 AM purchasing power and provide power to the EV charging stations and

other electrical needs of the residents? Is EV charging included? Will

they have electric heat pumps for heating and cooling and hot water?

No Natural Gas hookups. Will this be a passive building built to Step

5 to help Penticton achieve its emission reductions by 2030 in the

CCAP? Our city planners have to realize that the heat dome we

experienced last year will become more prevalent and our demands

on developers has to be much more stringent to protect us in the

future. Look to all the climate solutions and require developers to

follow them. It is not more expensive to build well for our safety and

our city must consider these new ways of building.

Screen Name Redacted
7/21/2022 01:48 PM

Developers should be required to meet Penticton's Climate Action

Plan goals/targets and be able to prove adherence to Universal

Design Priniciples.

Screen Name Redacted
7/30/2022 08:49 PM

Access need to be from ellis with back alley access also. All parking

stalls no exclusions

Screen Name Redacted
7/30/2022 09:24 PM

There needs to be adequate parking for each unit( as per city code) ,

. Ellis street already has heavy traffic . There needs to be access to

the back of the building from Ellis street. The back alley access to the

parking spaces of new development will not be adequate. Thus alley

is narrow. There is a daycare , dental office, lawyers office, and

church that use the back alley daily. The alley is currently one way

traffic onto a very busy Eckhart Ave. Pen High school traffic is crazy

busy on Eckhart Ave from 8 am- 5 pm .and access out of the alley

onto Eckhart is difficult already due to heaven traffic during school

hours. Ellis street has tons of people speeding and it need speed

bumps and also speed limit signs on street. Currently neither of these

things exist on upper part of Ellis off of Eckhart.

Screen Name Redacted
7/31/2022 08:33 PM

Loss of a well used and appreciated business and church related

parking lot. Horrendous exit out of the alley onto Eckhardt Avenue.

Super bottle neck just for the business traffic. Adding all those

residential vehicles will be untenable and create further headaches

and accidenypts to everyone exiting the alley. Traffic flow will be a

real concern.

Optional question (13 response(s), 5 skipped)

Question type: Essay Question

Feedback Form : Survey Report for 09 July 2022 to 08 August 2022

Page 4 of 9

- 256 -



Q3  Based on the information provided, would you have any concerns about what is being

considered for this site?

12 (66.7%)

12 (66.7%)

6 (33.3%)

6 (33.3%)

Yes No

Question options

Optional question (18 response(s), 0 skipped)
Question type: Radio Button Question

Feedback Form : Survey Report for 09 July 2022 to 08 August 2022

Page 5 of 9

- 257 -



Screen Name Redacted
7/13/2022 06:41 PM

I am concerned about the current one way traffic in the lane between

Ellis and Main especially access onto Eckhardt St. which can be next

to impossible. I suggest reversing the one way so that traffic moves

off Ekhardt to the much quieter White Ave.

Screen Name Redacted
7/13/2022 09:54 PM

There are only 17 parking spaces...but the residents will have more

than 17 cars. Where will the overflow park? Only three trees are

going to be planted? There should be more greenery on the street

side. The gray/black/white color scheme is WAY overdone in

Penticton...it's a horrible fad that we'll be stuck with for decades. The

town is gray from Nov to March...we don't need gray/black buildings.

Screen Name Redacted
7/16/2022 02:08 PM

16 units with 17 parking stalls one of which is for handicap. SO 16

units 16 parking stalls. That will make for fights on the street for

parking. Please don't say you've studied that because we all know it

happens. It is so bad at one condo in Kelowna that taxis won't even

go to that address. Penticton is headed in that direction. Plugged

streets don't make for good neighbors. Don't be bought off again to

lower parking requirements, bike storage units DO NOT replace

parking. Try getting to work on the bus. Traffic congestion is a

concern as well.

Screen Name Redacted
7/18/2022 10:38 AM

The developer has maxed out every square inch of property and I

believe there should be a little more set back and green space.

Perhaps step the building back for less of "a wall of concrete" for a

less dramatic transition in the neighbourhood. It lacks imagination and

throws a large shadow on the rest of the single family homes on the

street.

Screen Name Redacted
7/18/2022 03:37 PM

I think it would be prudent to keep the parking / number of suites ratio

as proposed in the plan.

Screen Name Redacted
7/18/2022 03:55 PM

Concern that they will be used for short term rentals, not contributing

to housing supply for Penticton residents.

Screen Name Redacted
7/19/2022 07:01 AM

The information provided does not show how the developer plans to

create a building built to Step 5 to help Penticton achieve its emission

reductions by 2030 in the CCAP

Q4  If you answered Yes, please describe.

Feedback Form : Survey Report for 09 July 2022 to 08 August 2022

Page 6 of 9

- 258 -



Screen Name Redacted
7/21/2022 01:48 PM

As much as possible, tree canopy must be planted to ensure usable

shade on Ellis St.

Screen Name Redacted
7/30/2022 08:49 PM

Back alley access only. Exits onto narrow main street. dangerous exit

pointThere is also a daycare center there.

Screen Name Redacted
7/30/2022 09:24 PM

No vacation rentals should be allowed . There should be a reasonable

setback on the front of the building on Ellis to ensure green space/

landscaping . This will ensure a visually appealing building overall

Screen Name Redacted
7/31/2022 08:33 PM

Loss of parking for 600 block businesses. Unbelievable traffic

problems with exiting from the alley to the street. This is NOT a well

thought out plan.

Optional question (11 response(s), 7 skipped)

Question type: Essay Question

Feedback Form : Survey Report for 09 July 2022 to 08 August 2022

Page 7 of 9

- 259 -



Q5  Rate your level of support for the development that is being proposed for this site.

1 (5.9%)

1 (5.9%)

2 (11.8%)

2 (11.8%)

7 (41.2%)

7 (41.2%)

7 (41.2%)

7 (41.2%)

0 (0.0%)

0 (0.0%)

Strongly Oppose Somewhat Oppose Somewhat Support Strongly Support Neutral

Question options

Optional question (17 response(s), 1 skipped)
Question type: Radio Button Question

Feedback Form : Survey Report for 09 July 2022 to 08 August 2022

Page 8 of 9

- 260 -



Q6  Which best describes your interest in providing feedback?

6 (33.3%)

6 (33.3%)

1 (5.6%)

1 (5.6%)10 (55.6%)

10 (55.6%)

1 (5.6%)

1 (5.6%) 0 (0.0%)

0 (0.0%)

I live/own a property near 655 Ellis Street I own a business near 655 Ellis Street

I am a resident of Penticton, but I do not live near 655 Ellis Street Other (please specify)

I am a business owner in Penticton, but my business is not near 655 Ellis Street

Question options

Optional question (18 response(s), 0 skipped)
Question type: Radio Button Question

Feedback Form : Survey Report for 09 July 2022 to 08 August 2022

Page 9 of 9

- 261 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DP PL2022-9296 Page 1 of 8

DRAFT

- 262 -



 

 

 

 

 

DP PL2022-9296 Page 2 of 8

DRAFT

- 263 -



Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9296

DP PL2022-9296 Page 3 of 8

- 264 -



Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9296

DP PL2022-9296 Page 4 of 8

- 265 -



Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9296

DP PL2022-9296 Page 5 of 8

- 266 -



Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9296

DP PL2022-9296 Page 6 of 8

- 267 -



Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9296

DP PL2022-9296 Page 7 of 8

- 268 -



Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9296

DP PL2022-9296 Page 8 of 8

- 269 -



 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-46 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted an Official Community Plan Bylaw pursuant to the Local 
Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend “Official Community Bylaw No. 2019-08”;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting assembled, 
hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-46.” 
 
2. Amendment: 

 
“Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08” is hereby amended as follows: 

 
2.1 To change the following designations as follows:    

 
Amend Map 1: Future Land Use, to change future land use designation for Lot 1 District Lot 202 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP120346, located at 655 Ellis Street from ‘Ground 
Oriented Residential’ to ‘Urban Residential’ as shown on Schedule ‘A’. 
 

2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 

READ A FIRST time this  day of , 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this  day of , 2022 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2022 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the __ day of ____, 2022 and the __ day of ____, 2022 in an online news 
source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  
 
 
 

       
John Vassilaki, Mayor 

 
 

       
Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 

- 270 -



�����
���	
��	�������	�
�	��������������

�	 �!"#$!	�%&'()*+,-.'/*)0*,/)123'4,1)*,5+,-4678)0)/-,592*),/)/7,*&45)/*'32/33):)*28-,59;%&'1,650'<2006520+2/30,948'*'/'11,-*&)1)/-,592*),/=25)'1;>125'168*<*&'()*+3,'1/,*?2552/*)/2/+?2+*&'9244)/:)/-,592*),/)/0863)/:*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-;%&'61'5,-*&)1)/-,592*),/3,'11,2**&')5,?/5)1@2/31&,683/,*5'8+64,/*&')/-,592*),/?)*&,6*)/3'4'/3'/*='5)-)02*),/21*,*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-; ABCDD D EDFDG'*'51��H�!�I�J����II�I��KL�M �"" 
N���	��!�	��O�PIQRL��S�$�MT"�	IIO

- 271 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                        Corporate Officer: 



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-47 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-47”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot 1 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP120346, located at 655 
Ellis Street from P1 (Public Assembly) to RM5 (Urban Residential) as shown on Schedule ‘A’. 

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this  day of , 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this  day of , 2022 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2022 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the __ day of ____, 2022 and the __ day of ____, 2022 in an online news 
source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

 
 
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
      

 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
 
  

- 272 -



�����
���	
��	����������	�
�	��������������

 	!�"�#$"	�%&'()*+,-.'/*)0*,/)123'4,1)*,5+,-4678)0)/-,592*),/)/7,*&45)/*'32/33):)*28-,59;%&'1,650'<2006520+2/30,948'*'/'11,-*&)1)/-,592*),/=25)'1;>125'168*<*&'()*+3,'1/,*?2552/*)/2/+?2+*&'9244)/:)/-,592*),/)/0863)/:*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-;%&'61'5,-*&)1)/-,592*),/3,'11,2**&')5,?/5)1@2/31&,683/,*5'8+64,/*&')/-,592*),/?)*&,6*)/3'4'/3'/*='5)-)02*),/21*,*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-; ABCDD D EDFDG'*'51����"�H�I����HH�H���J�K L��!
����	��"�	��M�NHOJPL�Q�$ K���	HHM

- 273 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                               Corporate Officer:



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022     File No:    RMS/303 Nanaimo Ave W 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Steven Collyer, Planner II 
Address: 303 Nanaimo Avenue West  
 
Subject: Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357 
 Development Permit PL2022-9356 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357” for Lot 1 District Lot 4 Group 7 
Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District Plan 3669, located at 303 Nanaimo Avenue West, a 
permit to vary Section 10.10.2.7 of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01, to reduce the minimum required interior side yard 
setback (west) from 4.5m to 3.0m; 

AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357”; 

AND THAT Council, subject to approval of “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357”, approve 
“Development Permit PL2022-9356”, a permit to approve the form and character of the proposed four-unit 
townhouse development. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing to construct a four-
unit townhouse development on the subject 
property (Figure 1). The building is three 
storeys in height, with rooftop patios. Each unit 
has its own driveway accessed from Brunswick 
Street. The property is already zoned for 
multifamily, however to proceed with the 
proposal the applicant is requesting one 
variance to the interior side yard setback (west) 
to reduce it from 4.5m to 3.0m. The applicant Figure 1 - Rendering of proposed development 

- 274 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 8 

has also submitted their development permit application for approval of the form and character of the 
proposed development, which staff have included for Council’s consideration. 

Background 

The subject property is located at the corner of Nanaimo 
Avenue West and Brunswick Street (Figure 2). The property 
contains a single detached dwelling, which is proposed to 
be demolished. Surrounding uses include a mix of 
residential and commercial, including single detached 
homes, apartment buildings (including the Rise on 
Nanaimo across the street), offices, shops and services. The 
property is within walking distance of the downtown, 
Okanagan Lake, and within one block of three different 
bus routes. 

The subject property is currently zoned RM3 (Medium 
Density Multiple Housing) and is designated ‘Ground 
Oriented Residential’ by the Official Community Plan 
(OCP). 

Climate Impact 

The Community Climate Action Plan (CCAP) was adopted 
by Council in 2021 and outlines various areas of focus to 
make progress towards the City’s climate change mitigation and adaptation goals. The new building will be 
required to meet Step 3 of the Energy Step Code. The building permit plans will be reviewed once the 
application is made to ensure the new buildings comply with Step 3 requirements.  

The property is located within 2 blocks of the Lake-to-Lake bike route along Martin Street. Adding additional 
homes near the bike route helps to support active transportation as an alternative to driving. The plans 
include a secure storage space for bicycles at the front of each unit. There is also a bike rack proposed on the 
property for visitors. Four of the parking spaces will be Electric Vehicle (EV) ready, allowing potential users an 
easier option to install EV chargers in the future. In addition, the applicant intends to use electrical 
appliances and heat pumps for heating. 

Technical Review 

The proposed development was reviewed by the Technical Planning Committee (TPC), a group of internal 
staff from various departments who review development applications. The committee raised comments 
related to the development plans which the applicant addressed on a revised set of plans. The variance 
request was discussed and no concerns with the west setback reduction were raised by the committee. Staff 
noted that this is a corner lot and worked with the applicant to keep the southwest corner of the property 
obstacle-free to ensure visibility at the intersection. Additional comments related to the future building 
permit stage were provided to the applicant for information, should Council ultimately approve the 
development variance permit and development permit applications. 

Figure 2 - Property location map 

- 275 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 8 

 

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines how the proposed development meets the applicable Zoning Bylaw 
regulations: 

 RM3 Zone Requirement  Provided on Plans 
Minimum Lot Width*: 25 m 17.4 m 
Minimum Lot Area*: 1,400 m2 668.5 m2 
Maximum Lot Coverage: 50% 41% 
Maximum Hard Surfacing: 60% 60% 
Maximum Density: 1.6 Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 0.95 FAR 

Vehicle Parking: 
1 parking space per unit 
0.25 visitor parking spaces per unit 
Total: 5 parking spaces required 

7 parking spaces for units 
1 visitor parking spaces 
Total: 8 parking spaces provided 

Bicycle Parking: 

0.5 Class I spaces per unit  
(2 required)  
0.1 Class II spaces per unit  
(1 required) 

4 Class I (secure) spaces provided 
 
1 Class II (bicycle rack) spaces 
provided 

Required Setbacks 
Front Yard (Nanaimo Ave W): 
Side Yard (west): 
Side Yard (Brunswick St): 
Rear Yard (lane): 

 
3.0 m 
4.5 m 
4.5 m 
6.0 m 

 
3.1 m 
3.0 m – Variance Requested 
4.5 m  
8.2 m 

Maximum Building Height: 24 m 12.4 m 

Minimum Amenity Space: 

20 m2 per unit 
Total Required: 80m2 

Minimum 25% of requirement 
must be provided at grade (20m2) 

82 m2 per unit 
Total Provided: 327m2 - plus rear 
common amenity area 
100% of required amount 
provided at grade (80m2) 

Landscape Buffers: 
3.0 m width along all south, east, 
and west property lines 

3.0m width along all south, east, 
and west property lines 

Other Information: *Lot width and lot area are only applicable at the time of subdivision. 

Analysis 

Development Variance Permit 

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourages Council to consider whether approval of the 
variance would cause a negative impact on neighbouring properties, and if the variance request is 
reasonable. Staff have reviewed each of the requested variances and are recommending support for the 
following reasons: 

1. Section 10.10.2.7: To reduce the minimum interior side yard setback from 4.5m to 3.0m. 

- 276 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 8 

a. The RM3 (Medium Density Multiple Housing) zone has minimum 4.5m interior side yard 
setbacks because this zone allows developments up to six-storeys in height. 

b. The impacts of a reduced interior side yard setback will be mitigated because the proposed 
townhouse buildings are only 3 storeys (12.4m) in height. 

c. The space created by these setbacks is often used to accommodate landscaping buffers and 
pedestrian pathways between properties. However, in this instance, the property is able to 
still provide a full 3.0m wide landscaping and does not require the pedestrian pathway due 
to it having street and lane frontage on the remaining three sides.  

d. The proposed interior side yard setback is the same as the setback requirement in the RM2 
(Low Density Multiple Housing) zone, which also typically permits townhouse-style 
developments, albeit with a lower maximum building height than the RM3 zone (12.4m 
proposed versus 24m permitted). 

e. The design provides rooftop patios facing east towards Brunswick St, with a separation from 
the west side of the building to reduce visual overlook concerns onto the neighbouring 
property (Figure 3) 

f. The neighbouring property to the west is also currently zoned RM3 (Medium Density 
Residential) and is designated Ground Oriented Residential, suggesting that similar future 
development could occur on that lot in the future (Figure 4). 

Given the reasons above, staff support the development variance permit application. Staff recommend that 
Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357” and direct staff to issue the permit. 

Development Permit 

The proposed 4-unit townhouse development is included in the Multifamily Residential Development 
Permit Area in the OCP. This development permit area applies to all multifamily development in the City, 
including multiplexes, cluster housing, rowhouses, townhouses and apartments. The intent of this 
development permit area is to enhance neighbourhoods and create sensitive transitions in scale and density 
by addressing issues such as privacy, landscape retention and neighbourliness. 

The applicant has submitted a letter of intent and development permit analysis (Attachment ‘D’). Staff have 
reviewed the applicable design guidelines in the OCP in relation to this proposed development (Attachment 
‘E’). The proposed 4-unit townhouse development is considered to be in keeping with the OCP design 
guidelines and an appropriate development form in this location at the periphery of the downtown. 

Figure 3 - Rooftop patio plans. Red line shows extent of railing along west 
side, setback to minimize visual overlook 

Figure 4 - This block of Nanaimo Ave W is 
designated 'Ground Oriented Residential' by 
the OCP. 

- 277 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 8 

Staff recommend that Council, subject to approval of the development variance permit, consider approval of 
“Development Permit PL2022-9357”. 

Alternate Recommendations 

Council may consider the requested variances are unnecessary and that the applicants should build within 
the Zoning Bylaw regulations. If this is the case, Council should deny “Development Variance Permit PL2022-
9357”. If this decision is made, the applicants would need to substantially redesign their proposal. If the 
applicant revises their plans to meet the Zoning Bylaw regulations, staff have delegated approval authority 
to process the Development Permit on its own. 

1. THAT Council deny “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357”. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Photos of Property 
Attachment D – Letter of Intent and Development Permit Analysis (applicant) 
Attachment E – Development Permit Analysis (staff) 
Attachment F – Draft Development Variance Permit PL2022-9357 
Attachment G – Draft Development Permit PL2022-9356 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Steven Collyer, RPP, MCIP 
Planner II 

 

Concurrence  

Director of 
Development Services 

GM of Infrastructure Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
KD  

DvD 
 

 

 

  

- 278 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 8 

Attachment A – Zoning Map

 
  

- 279 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 8 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map

 
  

- 280 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 8 

Attachment C – Photos of Property

 

 

Subject Property: 
303 Nanaimo Ave W 

Subject Property: 
303 Nanaimo Ave W 

Nanaimo Ave W 

The Rise on Nanaimo   
5 storey apartment 
285 Nanaimo Ave 

Brunswick St 

Nanaimo Ave W 

- 281 -



May 3, 2022 

Giroux Design Group Inc. 
23216 Garnett Valley Rd. 
Summerland BC, V0H 1Z3 

City of Penticton 
171 Main Street 
Penticton BC, V2A 5A9 

Re: 303 Nanaimo Avenue West - Development Permit Application 

To City of Penticton Mayor, Council, and Planning Department 

This letter is regarding the proposed development of the property located at 303 Nanaimo Avenue West. The 
property is zoned RM3. 

The proposal is to build a 3 storey, four-unit townhouse on the property. Access to the development is primarily 
from Brunswick Street with pedestrian access to the south unit from Nanaimo Avenue. Secure garage parking is 
provided for each unit with four additional guest parking spots along the rear lane. The townhouse units will be 
modest in size and will provide much needed family housing close to schools, parks, and shopping. The proposal fits 
within the City of Penticton’s Official Community Plan as the area is designated for Urban Residential development 
which allows for townhouses and stacked townhouses from 3-6 storeys. 

The bylaw requires a 4.5m minimum interior side yard setback. The proposed development requires a variance to 
the bylaw as we are requesting that the minimum setback for the west interior side yard be reduced from 4.5 m to 
3.0 m. This is consistent with the RM2 zoning which allows for 3 storey townhouses with a 3-meter setback. 

We believe the project meets the intent of providing modest densification to an area of town that has a mix of 
townhouses, and high-density apartment buildings. In contrast to nearby apartment buildings and low-density 
residences, this development will provide much needed increase in family housing in the area with private outdoor 
green areas and amenity space for families with children. We also believe this project will enhance the 
neighbourhood which is in need of new development. 

Thank you for considering our proposal. 

Best regards, 

Tony Giroux ASTTBC.RBD 
Owner/Registered Building Designer 
Giroux Design Group Inc. 

Attachment D - Letter of Intent and Development Permit Analysis (applicant)
- 282 -

https://girouxdesigngroup.com/


303 NANAIMO AVENUE WEST: DEVELOPMENT PERMIT ANALYSIS 

PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIVITY 
The development is on a road with pedestrian sidewalks and within walking and biking distance to the downtown 
business core and shopping. The location is central to parks and the community center, and is close to elementary, 
middle, and high schools. City Bus stops are also located nearby, allowing easy access to transit. 

PARKING 
Each unit has a driveway with outdoor parking for one vehicle accessed from Brunswick Street with four additional 
parking spots accessed from the rear lane for guest and overflow parking. No variances are needed for parking as 
the eight parking spots exceeds the five required spaces. 

DESIGN FOR CLIMATE 
Trees to be planted along three property lines are deciduous which will provide shade during the summer and 
sunlight during the winter as the leaves fall. Each property has its own private rear yard to allow for outdoor living. 

ORIENTATION & MASSING 
Each unit has its own entry door with a covered porch. The townhouses are three storeys tall and will nicely suit the 
neighbourhood which is comprised of duplexes, townhouses, and apartment buildings of varying size. At 12.4 meters 
tall the building is under the 24 m maximum height allowance. The style of the building is Modern style which will 
complement the neighbourhood and is in harmony with newer construction in the area. (Under BC Building Code 
definitions the roof access is not considered a storey.) 

LANDSCAPING (ENHANCING THE URBAN FOREST) 
The landscaping plan for the development includes the planting of eight trees along the surrounding property lines. 
Along Nanaimo and Brunswick planting beds border the sidewalk providing pleasing aesthetics and increased curb-
appeal. A grass area with surrounding planting beds containing low-maintenance plants will create a pleasing 
aesthetic and curb appeal for the development and a pleasant environment for occupants. In minimal selected areas, 
river rock is used to provide a clean, easily maintained utility spaces. A grass lawn at the front and rear of the property 
will provide pleasant green accents for the development. Grassed rear yards will provide private areas for each unit 
and will contain accent planting beds and Lilac trees.  

WASTE MANAGEMENT 
Garbage and recycling collection is provided for each unit by individual roll-out waste containers which will be stored 
in the garage of each unit. 

FENCES 
Six-foot-high wood privacy fences will be installed along the west property line and will be stepped down to four 
feet within the front yard setback. Six-foot-high privacy fences will also be between each of the townhouse rear 
yards. 

CLIMATE IMPACT 
The building will meet the requirements of Step 3 of the BC Building Code, and will be zero carbon buildings, using 
heat pumps and electrical appliances. Provision will be made for future installation of EV chargers and solar hot 
water heating systems. 

Thank you for considering our proposal. 

Best regards, 

Tony Giroux ASTTBC.RBD 
Owner/Registered Building Designer 
Giroux Design Group Inc. 

- 283 -



 

 

 

 

 

 



Attachment E - Development Permit Analysis (staff)
- 284 -



 

 
 

 

 

 

 



- 285 -



 

 

 

 

 

 



- 286 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DVP PL2022-9357 Page 1 of 3

DRAFT

- 287 -



DVP PL2022-9357 Page 2 of 3

DRAFT

- 288 -



Sch
edule 'A

' 

DVP PL2022-9357

DVP PL2022-9357 Page 3 of 3

- 289 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DP PL2022-9356 Page 1 of 11

DRAFT

- 290 -



 

 

 

 

 

DP PL2022-9356 Page 2 of 11

DRAFT

- 291 -



DP PL2022-9356 Page 3 of 11

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9356

- 292 -



DP PL2022-9356 Page 4 of 11

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9356

- 293 -



DP PL2022-9356 Page 5 of 11

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9356

- 294 -



DP PL2022-9356 Page 6 of 11

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9356

- 295 -



DP PL2022-9356 Page 7 of 11

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9356

- 296 -



DP PL2022-9356 Page 8 of 11

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9356

- 297 -



DP PL2022-9356 Page 9 of 11

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9356

- 298 -



DP PL2022-9356 Page 10 of 11

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9356

- 299 -



DP PL2022-9356 Page 11 of 11

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9356

- 300 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022     File No:    RMS/1603 Dartmouth Rd 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Nicole Capewell, Planner II 
Address: 1603 Dartmouth Road  
 
Subject: Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45  
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45”, a bylaw to add the following 
section to the M1 (General Industrial) zone: 12.1.4.4 “In the case of Lot 1 District Lots 250, 2710, 3429S and 
3821S Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 37288, located at 1603 Dartmouth Road, an indoor 
amusement, entertainment and recreation facility shall be permitted”; 

AND THAT Council forward the bylaw to the September 6, 2022 Public Hearing. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Mission: Penticton will serve its residents, businesses and visitors through good governance, partnership 
and the provision of effective and community focused services. 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing to operate a 7,000 sq. ft. indoor multi-use sport facility with over 5,000 sq. ft. of 
artificial turf (labelled as ‘future development’ building on Figure 1). The development is intended to serve as 
an indoor baseball facility. As the property is zoned M1 (General Industrial), recreational uses are not 
typically permitted and the applicant is requesting a site-specific zoning to allow for the use of ‘indoor 
amusement, entertainment and recreation’ to be permitted, in addition to the other M1 (General Industrial) 
uses.  

- 301 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 6 

 
Figure 1 - Conceptual Layout Plan of Property 

Background 

The subject property is located at 1603 Dartmouth Road, at the intersection of Dartmouth Road and Carmi 
Avenue. The property was recently rezoned from M3 (Wrecking Yard) to M1 (General Industrial) early in 
2022, to facilitate a new property owner who did not intend to operate a wrecking yard onsite. In 
anticipation of future development plans for the property, including potential subdivision for intensification 
of the industrial lands, they requested to rezone to M1 (General Industrial). 

The property is now zoned M1 (General Industrial) and is designated by the City’s Official Community Plan as 
‘Industrial’. The property was vacant until recently, at which time the property has begun seeing 
improvements for a self-storage business. The owner intends to operate self-storage, and provide additional 
leased spaces to suit various industrial users, and also has an interest to provide a possible home to the 
proposed indoor baseball facility as outlined in their Letter of Intent (Attachment ‘C’).  

Climate Impact 

The City of Penticton Community Climate Action Plan (CCAP) outlines a path towards a low carbon future: A 
future where City residents experience the benefits of a connected, healthy and economically prosperous 
community while taking action on climate change and adapting to climate impacts. The proposed 
development will help to achieve the Plan by being constructed as a new building, required to meet Step 1 
of the Energy Step Code. This can help to enhance energy efficiency and low carbon heating in new 
buildings.   

 

 

- 302 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 6 

Technical Review 

This application was reviewed by the City’s Technical Planning Committee. No outstanding items were 
raised regarding the proposed zoning amendment. Typical requirements were communicated for building 
permit processes. 

Analysis 

The applicant is proposing to introduce a new use of ‘indoor amusement, entertainment and recreation’ on 
the subject property, in addition to the M1 (General Industrial) uses that are already permitted. This is 
referred to as a ‘site-specific rezoning’, and is used to retain the industrial zoning on the property while 
allowing an additional use to exist. This additional use is only being considered on the subject property, 
1603 Dartmouth Road, and not all M1 zoned properties.  

Staff have reviewed the application and are supportive of the zoning amendment for several reasons. 

1. Compatibility with the land use designation 
The property is designated ‘Industrial’ by the OCP, which is anticipated to be used for a range of light 
and heavy industrial uses, including goods production, manufacturing, distribution and storage. The 
proposed baseball facility is well suited for this area as the interior space requirements for such a facility 
are unique and similar to industrial buildings.  
 

2. Maintaining industrial zoning 
Staff are recommending a site-specific rezoning, which allows for the property to retain all of the 
permitted uses that exist under the M1 zone. The property will remain as an industrial property, and staff 
understand the owner intends to continue to operate the self-storage use and also have industrial units 
available for lease in other portions of the proposed structure.  
 

3. Other recreational uses exist within the industrial area of the City 
In recent years, several other recreational uses have been permitted through similar zoning 
amendments or temporary use permits. These include: 
1. 1363 Commercial Way (2010) – site-specific zoning amendment to M1 zoning to allow for 

gymnastics facility. 
2. 647 Okanagan Ave E (2020) – temporary use permit (3 years) to allow for a parkour facility. 
3. 1340 Carmi Ave (2021) – temporary use permit (3 years) to allow for an indoor, off-ice hockey 

training facility. 
 

4. Minimize conflict 
The property is located at the intersection of Dartmouth Road and Carmi Avenue, and has street 
frontage on two of its property lines. It is also on the edge of the industrial area, as the northern side of 
Carmi Avenue contains residential uses. The anticipation of conflict with surrounding and on-site 
industrial uses is expected to be minimal for the proposed development. The applicant has been in 
discussion with the Penticton Industrial Development Association (PIDA) with regard to the proposed 
use on the property. The president of PIDA has submitted a letter of support for the proposed zoning 
amendment (Attachment ‘D’).  
The proposed indoor baseball facility will also be located completely indoors.  

- 303 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 6 

5. Limited availability of suitable space in the City 
Staff are aware that there is limited availability of suitable space for such businesses within the City. 
There are many recreation type businesses that require either large spaces, high ceiling, strong structural 
support, or a mix of these and other building criteria in order to operate their business. Unfortunately, 
there is just not enough suitable space existing in the City for such uses. As a result, many businesses 
turn to the industrial area, as the buildings offer suitable spaces.  

Further, staff consider that there is City policy to support the additional land use being permitted on the 
subject property including: 

OCP Goal 
4.3.5 

Business Retention and Expansion 
Create conditions for business to succeed and thrive as a long-term contributors to the 
economy. 

OCP Policy 
4.3.5.2 

Support business by fostering an environment that supports and encourages innovation, 
entrepreneurial thinking and entrepreneurial business. 

OCP Goal 
4.3.6 

Business and Labour Attraction 
Bring businesses, investment and labour to Penticton. 

Staff consider that the proposal is unique and offers to bring an exciting new baseball facility to Penticton. 
Further, there is policy support to encourage attracting new businesses to Penticton and creating a 
successful environment for business. The applicant has also collected and shared a number of letters of 
support for this unique proposal, including from PIDA, South Okanagan Minor Baseball Association 
(SOMBA), PacificSport Okanagan, Canadian Sport School Kelowna, Penticton Minor Fastball Softball 
Association, and several others (Attachment ‘D’). Further the operator of the proposed facility has provided 
further information on the development.  

Staff consider there is rationale to support this site-specific zoning amendment, and recommend that 
Council give first reading to the bylaw and forward it to the September 6, 2022 public hearing.  

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Letter of Intent 
Attachment D – Promotional Package and Site Plan 
Attachment E – Letters of Support 
Attachment F – Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Nicole Capewell, RPP, MCIP 
Planner II 

  

Concurrence  

Director of 
Development Services 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
DvD 

 

- 304 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 6 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 

 
  

- 305 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 6 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 

 

- 306 -



1603 Dartmouth Rd. 

RMF Development Properties Ltd. is proposing to amend the zoning at 1603 Dartmouth Rd. to 
include - #21; indoor amusement, entertainment and recreation - to the allowable uses for this site 
specifically.  


Objective 
RMF Development Properties Ltd intents to construct a 7,000 sq ft. indoor multi-use sports 

facility with over 5,000 sq ft. of artificial turf. This building will include a mezzanine viewing area & board 
room for off-field instruction, dry land training or for any organization to use for monthly meetings. This 
development will be the first ever indoor baseball facility of its kind in the South Okanagan and will be 
available to a multitude of field sport organizations as well.


Site Drainage 
Our Geotechnical Engineer - Brad Vandelft from Valley Geotechnical - will be handing our site 

drainage designs, as per the Schedule B that will be included in our permit application. After digging test 
holes, we noticed the soils are bony with fine sands which is optimal for drainage.


Architecture 
As this facility is located in the industrial area, this building will be constructed to suit the 

surrounding area. This building will be a constructed using precast concrete.


Thank you for your consideration, 


Rod Ferguson




Rod Ferguson

C: 250-490-1119

E: rod@rmfent.ca


RMF Development Properties Ltd. 
#232 113-437 Martin St. 

Penticton, BC 

Letter of Intent

Attachment C - Letter of Intent - 307 -



Attachment D - Promotional Package and Site Plan - 308 -



Grand Slam Baseball Okanagan (GSBO) located in Penticton, British Columbia, 

Canada is here to provide a fun and safe environment for all ages and levels of 

baseball/softball enthusiasts.  Enabling them to enjoy, grow and learn the 

greatest game on dirt. 

We are a family run indoor multi-activity facility in the South Okanagan that 

provides an all-round experience that no one will ever forget.  Whether you are 

on vacation and need a break from the heat or are a team at one of the many ball 

diamonds here in town, we have got something for you. 

Born and raised in the Okanagan, GSBO Owners Edgar & Tracy Yost are looking to 

help develop baseball and softball players in the South Okanagan.  Helping them 

to grow and learn this special game.  As owner/operators they will make sure they 

hire and fill the facility with the best staff available. 

Among this highly qualified staff will be Josh Snider.  Josh will be the Director of 

Programs and Head of Softball & Baseball Player Development at GSBO.  As well 

as working within the Penticton baseball community, Josh has also worked with 

the Moses Lake American Legion and Babe Ruth associations in the State of 

Washington, and he is currently working with Baseball BC and the Big League 

Experience Baseball Company owned by Marty Lehn. 

In recent years baseball and softball in the South Okanagan have taken a back 

seat to other youth sports.  With the push of numbers in the last two years, both 

sports have seen a very steady increase in time spent on the field.  By adding this 

new indoor facility, GSBO gives players, lovers of the game (and anyone new to 

the sport) an opportunity to participate during the winter months, as well as 

adding more fields with open practice time availability throughout the Spring, 

Summer and Fall. 

We will also be offering select times to other associations to rent and use the 

facility. These rental options will be open to activities and associations such as 

Lacrosse, Yoga, Birthday Parties, 55+ Indoor Softball, Slow Pitch Leagues, Public 

Hitting times, Tykes Body Training, introduction to baseball (all ages) and many 

more opportunities. 

 

 

- 309 -



Products Offered 
 
1(a) Baseball Academy: [Starting Before and After School] 
This program, in association with the Total Game Baseball Academy, will train 
year-round. The before school program will run from 6:15am to 7:45am and the 
after-school program will run from 3:30pm to 4:30pm on rotating days. Both 
programs will provide top coaching for ages 11 to 18 and will be taught by the 
coaching staff at GSBO.  
We will provide high level coaching staff to work with all types and styles of 
players to assist them in their various areas of need. As we progress, we would 
like to advance this to be a part of the School district 67 (Okanagan Skaha) 
physical education curriculum by providing a baseball class for baseball players of 
the area. Starting with the Middle Schools and High Schools, then eventually 
continuing down through 
the elementary groups. We would focus on skill and fitness along with team 
building and baseball theory for the older group. 
 
1(b) Pitching Seminars/Camps 
Saturday and Sunday mornings during the late fall through early spring, a 
pitching camp will be available for ages 11 to 18. These seminars/camps will 
include topics such as mechanical focus, pitching theory, arm care and video 
analysis.  
After having watched the youth baseball community, we have noted there is a 
great need to help and develop pitchers at the amateur levels here in the South 
Okanagan. By providing proper coaching to these ages, the amateur players of the 
South Okanagan may have an increased ability for growth in the association. 
 
1( c )   Hitting Seminars/ Camps 
Along with the Pitching Camps, we will provide hitting camps for ages 11 to 18. 
They will also be taking place Saturday and Sunday mornings during the late fall 
and early spring. These seminars/camps will address hitting theory, Mechanical 
focus, video analysis, and strike zone awareness for hitters to learn and expand 
their understanding. The objective of these camps is to help the youth of the 
Okanagan make their jump to the next level, while granting the entry level 
players a way to learn the proper fundamentals that every hitter from the 
Major leagues to T-ball should possess. 

 

- 310 -



Products Offered (Cont’d) 
 

1(d) Coaching Clinics (Somba)/ (BC Baseball) 

Coaches & Coffee is an idea that we have brought up to the local associations 

board and have received great support on.  This opportunity is to make a time 

available in the mornings, before any baseball activity has started, to help all 

levels of coaches.  Whether it is a new coach just beginning who is not sure where 

to start or what to do, or an older, more experienced coach who is having trouble 

finding new ideas for practices.  

Part of our objective for this program is to bring in the head of coaching 

development of BC Baseball to assist with these seminars and clinics to provide 

the level of training needed by Baseball Canada. We at GSBO feel that a lot of 

potential volunteers do not want to participate in youth baseball for any number 

of reasons, which currently are not being addressed. If we can bridge that gap and 

provide an opportunity to guide and answers any questions they may have, we 

will ensure that there will be more opportunities available for them and the 

intrinsic knowing that the coaching community will be there to support them. 

 

1 (e ) Camps 

Christmas Break Camp: 

These will take place multiple days over the kids Christmas break and be 

comprised of two sessions a day – morning and afternoon. They will include 

Hitting, Pitching, Fielding, Base Running, College Talk (with older kids), Strength & 

Nutrition and “the Mental Side of the Game”.  All will be followed with some kind 

of game at the end of the day. This camp is generally for ages 8 – 13 (depending 

on numbers of registered campers). 

 

 

 

 

- 311 -



Camps (Cont’d) 

Polar Bear Camp: 

Takes place three to four weekends from late February to early March each year.  

Here the kids can start ramping up their skills to prepare for the season. This 

camp will provide attention to mechanics in hitting, pitching, and fielding using 

video and high-level coaches. Intended to be split between two age groups 11-13 

and 15-18. 

BLE Camp: 

This camp will provide multiple days of coaching by the acclaimed coaching staff 

of the Big League Experience company which is owned by the former Canadian 

Olympic Coach and Milwaukee Brewers scout, Marty Lehn. Not only does he host 

one of the best amateur baseball camps just 30 minutes south of us (in the city of 

Oliver) during the month of August, but also participates in several camps 

throughout British Columbia, Alberta, and Saskatchewan. With the large number 

of players who head to the camp from Penticton (and its surrounding areas) there 

is no doubt that it will have fantastic numbers during the winter weekends as 

well. 

Softball Camps: 

These camps will provide the Fastpitch athletes of the South Okanagan Region 

with the opportunity to learn, train and progress with a coaching staff designed to 

help with pitching, hitting & fielding along with baserunning and a College Talk 

focusing on opportunities for Fastpitch in Canada and the Northwest United 

States.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 312 -



1(f) Memberships 

Monthly and yearly memberships will include programs such as discounted 

lessons, cage times, facility rentals and skill programs. Each level of membership 

will unlock different Members benefits and promotional discounts on in-house 

items. 

 
 
● Electronics 
  ○ Up to date computer systems w/ programs (in house & on-line 
     scheduling system, baseball specific programs, wifi, I-pads (for 
     video), office phone system 
  ○ TVs (Video watching for hitting and pitching, Hit trax/Diamond 
     Kinetics, baseball Watching (MLB games, College, International 
     games) 
  ○ Projector W/ screen for academy training details (School 
     studying, video, presentations, coaching and player clinics) 
     Classroom setting 
  ○ Sound System 
  ○ I-pad Tripod Mounts 
  ○ Radar Guns 
 
● Facility equipment 
  ○ Wall padding (Netex) 
  ○ Full enclosure net system w/ retractable batting cage system 
     (Netex) 
  ○ Fieldhouse turf (Netex) 
  ○ LED lighting (Nextex) 
  ○ Pitching Mounds (Baseball and Softball) 
  ○ Muliptle L-screens 
  ○ Square screens 
  ○ Mini soccer goals 
  ○ Lacrosse goals 
  ○ Turf Hitting Matts 
 
 
 

- 313 -



● Baseball/Softball Specific Needs 
  ○ Baseballs 
  ○ Softballs 
  ○ Machine Baseballs 
  ○ Machine Softballs 
  ○ Baseball Pitching Machines 
  ○ Softball Pitching Machines 
  ○ Batting Helmets 
  ○ Buckets w/ Lids 
  ○ Ball Carts 
  ○ Bats (Baseball & Softball: Youth to Adult) 
  ○ Tees 
  ○ Incrediballs 
  ○ Cones 
 
● Equipment Shop 
  ○ Baseball Bats: Adults (From company: Baum, Mark Lumber, 
     Sam Bat, KR3 Prairie Stick) 
  ○ Gloves (Rawlings, Wilson, 44 Glove (course), Mizuno, Nakona) 
  ○ Batting Gloves (Nike, Under Armour, Rawlings) 
  ○ Slow Pitch (Miken, Easton, Demarini) 
  ○ Fastpitch: Girls (Mizzuno, Demarini, Easton, Miken) 
  ○ Baseball Bats Youth: (Rawlings, Easton, Louisvillsluger, 
     Demarini) 
  ○ Apparel (Baseball, softball and Slowpitch) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 314 -



 ● Other opportunities 
  ○ Birthday parties 
  ○ Yoga 
  ○ Indoor Slow pitch league 
  ○ Lacrosse 
  ○ 55+ slow pitch league 
  ○ Tykes body training 
  ○ Baseball Camps 
  ○ Softball Camps 
  ○ Mental Training (Complete Athlete) 
  ○ BLE camps 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 315 -



BUSINESS DESCRIPTION 
 
 Opportunity: A strength and conditioning area within Grand Slam Baseball 
Okanagan’s indoor baseball facility will enable both teams and individuals to 
develop fitness, training, and sport-specific skills. With a lack of baseball-friendly 
facilities in the south Okanagan, the addition of a high-performance training 
facility will provide youth baseball players the ability to stay active and work on  
their skills during all four seasons. A facility of this caliber also has the potential for 
growing the game of baseball in the Penticton area, opening the door to host 
practices, developmental camps, and possibly a baseball academy.  This multipurpose 
fitness facility will not be only limited to the baseball community, it could potentially 
serve softball, lacrosse, soccer, and many more athletes living in the Penticton or greater 
Okanagan area. 
 
 Product overview: Beyond the open indoor turf field that Grand Slam Baseball 
Okanagan will offer, the strength and conditioning area will be a high 
performance training facility that offers its users the best opportunity to develop 
their abilities with high-level, collegiate grade equipment and providing a 
positive, productive, and safe environment for all. Passionate, experienced, and 
educated individuals will supervise the training area to ensure safety and 
provide guidance to teams and/or individuals who are using the space. Players 
and teams that train at Grand Slam Baseball Okanagan’s training facility will be 
thoroughly evaluated using an assessment process upon the first visit. The 
information from this first session will then be used to create an individualized 
training program for each athlete tailored to suit specific goals, needs, and abilities. 
Individuals can also expect to receive personalized warm-up plans catered to the 
needs of their specific sport, as well as guidance regarding nutrition and injury 
prevention. 
 
 Key participants: Thurman Matthews will oversee Grand Slam Baseball 
Okanagan’s training facility. He will have a Bachelor’s degree in Kinesiology and 
will be a Certified Strength and Conditioning Specialist (CSCS) through the 
National Strength and Conditioning Association. With this certification, he will 
apply scientific knowledge to train athletes for the primary goal of improving 
athletic performance. The strength and conditioning area will be dedicated to 
driven athletes looking to maximize and reach their potential, as well as individuals 
seeking to make a life-changing commitment to their long-term health. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 316 -



BUSINESS DESCRIPTION 
 
Weight Room Equipment: 
 
   Rubber flooring                      Deadlift platforms 
                                             
   Plyometric wall        Medicine balls 
 
   Squat racks        Resistance bands 
 
   Incline benches w/ wheels      TRX bands 
 
   Barbells         Stackable plyo boxes 
 
   Plates         Treadmills 
 
   Dumbbells         Stationary bikes 
 
   Kettlebells         Exercise mats 
 
   Trap bars/hex bars       Foam Rollers 
 
   Power sleds        Turf strip/area 
 
   Cable pulley machines 
 
 
Building Needs: 
 
 Weight room 
  – Strength training area 
  – Cardio area 
  – Stretching/warm-up area 
  – Turf area (separate for baseball) 

  – Plyo wall 
 
 Therapy/recovery room 
  – First aid gear 
  – Therapy tables 
  – Tape 
  – Ice machine 
  – Scale 
  – Water station 

- 317 -



Weight Room Layout 
 
Open concept: 
• Training area is separated from the baseball area by a net and/or other barrier 
• Can utilize the turf when baseball is not being played 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 318 -



 
Separate concept: 
 
• Training area is in its own section of the building away from the baseball area 
• Will need a long strip of turf in this area to perform certain exercises 
 

                  
 

  

- 319 -



 

- 320 -



March 30, 2022

City of Penticton

Anthony Haddad

Regarding: proposal by Brentview Developments for 1603 Dartmouth Road

Thank you for the opportunity for Ron Ryde and I to meet with Rod Ferguson of 
Brentview Developments and Edgar Yost of the sport training facility group and 
review their proposed site plan.

We understand that the property will be developed for storage units, buildings for 
commercial and industrial tenants, and a sports training facility; all with off street
parking. 

The proposal shown to us does not raise any significant concerns other than 
safety issues that we discussed.

We are in support of the development as proposed.

Sincerely,

Frank

Frank Conci
President

Attachment E - Letters of Support - 321 -



To whom it may concern 

I have known Edgar for over 20 years both on a personal, business and volunteer level. Edgar has been a 
strong part of what we call community supporter. I have had the chance to work along side Edgar during 
the BC winter games here in PenBcton and with his past company he recently sold for over 15 years. 
Baseball has always been his passion and this is his Bme to now give back to the community and open 
something that will allow more opportuniBes to learn the game in a safe indoor environment. Opening 
this facility will aFract players not just from PenBcton but from all over. This facility will also create more 
jobs in our community at all levels from customer service to coaching and training professionals. I would 
like to put my full support behind the facility both on a personal and business level.   

Doug MacMillan 

- 322 -



 

 

 

 

 

To whom it may concern; 

 

Our local Castanet office supports the first indoor baseball facility in the South 
Okanagan. With baseball being one of the fastest growing sports in our area this is very 
much needed to play and train year-round.  

It would be a great place for participants to stay fit year-round and develop their skills 
in a safe, indoor environment.  

It will also create more jobs and bring other baseball enthusiasts to Penticton for the 
use of the facility, which would help grow and strengthen our economy. 

Penticton has a lot of beautiful outdoor space – parks, sports fields, hiking paths, 
beaches etc – but in the rainy or cold season (or when it’s just too hot to be outside) it 
would be amazing to have an indoor venue to turn to.  

It would be a very unique addition to our City. 

 

Thank you for your time, 

 
--  

Jasmine Aantjes | General Manager / General Sales Manager 
Castanet Penticton 
C: 250-460-0121 | E: jasmine@castanet.net | W: www.castanet.net 
225 Main Street  Penticton BC   V2A 5B1 

- 323 -



 

To Whom it may concern:

My name is Brad Robinson, and I am the founder of a company called The Complete Athlete.  We work with 
athletes across BC, Alberta and the U.S.A, using a unique, wholistic, people first approach to development. Building 
Stronger People First, because if we build stronger people, as a result, we have stronger students, athletes, workers, 
etc, who are set-up for long term success on and off the field, in whatever they do in their lives.  Our main focus is 
with the sport of baseball and also work with all sports, athletes, coaches and parents.  I also work with the Coaching 
Association of Canada, Baseball Canada and Baseball BC as a High-Performance Coach, coaching TEAM BC and 
Summer Games Teams.  In my experience, one of the challenges with running a consistent, effective long term 
player development program is access to facilities.  Especially in climates like the lower mainland with rain and in 
the Okanagan with frozen winters.  Having access to indoor training facilities is what can help set players up for 
success and reach their long term goals.  Players in the United States, will have access to training, whether it is due 
to climate or access to facilities and will be years ahead of our same age players in terms of development.  These 
players who have access to training year round, are the competition for our players whose dreams and goals might 
be to compete in the US in College or professional baseball.  This makes it a level playing field for the players of 
today and even more so, the young players who will just be starting out with access to these amazing indoor training 
opportunities.   

I have worked closely with SOMBA and the Penticton Tigers for the past couple years and developed a close 
relationship with their players, coaches, and executive.  Having this facility in Penticton will create a culture and 
environment where players will feel supported, enabled, and set up for long term success.  It will allow for the 
Association to have workshops, training seminars and special guests to compliment existing training.  It will also 
allow for anytime training of coaches and umpires for professional development.  The possibilities are endless, and I 
am excited to bring my programs to Penticton to be part of this new culture and legacy centre being created and 
brought to life by Edgar Yost, SOMBA and supporters.

Sincerely,

Brad Robinson

Brad Robinson

brad@thecompleteathlete.ca


https://www.thecompleteathlete.ca


- 324 -

mailto:brad@thecompleteathlete.ca


To Whom this may concern,

I am writing this letter in support of Grand Slam Okanagan on the behalf of
Edgar & Tracy Yost. With this facility in the South Okanagan we would be able
to not only have a growth in a continuously growing sport, but will see more
interest in adding to the current tourism sector as well. I am currently coaching
and assisting all of the High performance baseball teams in the area and have
already started receiving interest from multiple associations, high level
coaches from around North America and scouts from multiple college and
professional teams to come and use/showcase and represent at this facility.
On top of that I have received a number of communication from the local
fastpitch and slowpitch leagues as well. I truly believe that this facility will not
only allow these teams and organizations to grow and compete at a higher
level of play but it will also grow the game amongst the youth in providing
them a safe place to be with fun activities. We will also be able to house and
tap into a high level of players who will be willing to bring friends and family
into the Penticton area on vacation knowing that they will be able to get their
work in along with enjoying family time. If you have any more questions please
do not hesitate to reach out to myself.

Sincerely,

Josh Snider

- 325 -



March 24, 2022 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

I am writing you this letter on behalf of PacificSport Okanagan and the Canadian Sport School Kelowna 

to show our support for building the Grand Slam indoor facility in Penticton.  

 

We believe that Penticton needs a new training facility that can help sport thrive in the Okanagan. 

Although there are other training facilities in Penticton, there are no facilities that have turf, a quality 

weight room and meeting rooms in one place. Having the turf, weight room, and meeting rooms under 

one roof will allow numerous teams and programs to enhance high-performance training programs and 

limit the need to work with multiple facilities to deliver quality training. When we're able to provide high-

performance training programs, we will be able to retain and produce more high-performance athletes 

with less feeling the need to travel to a major city to receive quality training opportunities. 

 

One of the main reasons we support building this new multi-purpose training facility is that we plan to 

expand the Canadian Sport School (CSS) program to Penticton in 2023. CSS is a multisport training 

program for high-performance student-athletes between grades 10-12. We will be partnered with SD67 so 

that student-athletes will spend half their day at their regular high school and the second half of their day 

at CSS. While at CSS, half of their time will be spent training Strength & Conditioning (S&C), Sprint & 

Agility or Gymnastics, and the second half of their time at CSS will be spent in a classroom setting with 

an SD67 Teacher. The purpose of CSS is to help develop basic movement skills and overall athleticism 

that can be transferred into whatever sport(s) they're playing. Additionally, it will help offset some of the 

school and training load that high-performance athletes face so they can focus on their sport-specific 

training after school and on weekends. 

 

With students coming in from all SD67 schools to participate in CSS Penticton, it would be ideal to have 

one location for S&C training, Sprint & Agility training and classroom space. Using different facilities 

makes transportation harder on student-athletes and, therefore, more challenging to get the program up 

and running. CSS Penticton is a fantastic opportunity for young athletes to access affordable high-

performance training that's incorporated into their everyday lives while receiving school credits. If the 

Grand Slam indoor facility is built, it will play a substantial role in getting the program off the ground. 

 

If you choose to allow the building of the Grand Slam indoor facility, not only will we use the facility for 

CSS Penticton, but PacificSport Okanagan will also have a location to facilitate numerous other programs 

in both sport development and high-performance sport in Penticton. Once again, we believe the Grand 

Slam indoor facility will be filling current facility gaps in Penticton and creating a home base for sport to 

flourish. 

 

For these reasons, I hope that you approve the building of the Grand Slam indoor facility. If you have any 

additional questions about PacificSport Okanagan or CSS, please don't hesitate to contact me 

at jlawther@pacificsport.com or call 778-583-0697. 

 

Thank you, 

Jackie Lawther 

Canadian Sport School Kelowna Director 

PacificSport Okanagan Sport Performance Program Coordinator 

 

- 326 -

https://www.pacificsportokanagan.com/
https://canadiansportschool.csipacific.ca/campuses/kelowna/
mailto:jlawther@pacificsport.com


To Whom it may concern 

 

Penticton Minor Fastball Softball Association is a non-profit youth fastball association. We are currently 
serving 105 athletes. We have 9 house teams starting with U7 through u19, we also  have one U15A 
team made up of athletes throughout the Okanagan. 

Lack of Indoor training facilities has always been a barrier for our association and our athlete 
development. We have limited indoor training space in Penticton, most facilities are shared with 
multiple sports leaving limited time for each association.  

Having a sports specific facility in Penticton would greatly benefit our association and player 
development. Many of our families are focused to drive to other communities in order to train for our 
sport.  

In conjunction with PMFSA, I personal lend my support for Edgar in developing this facility in Penticton. I 
believe it will help in the development of fastball within our community as well as help support a higher 
level of athlete development. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kenna Green 

President, PMFSA 

 

 

 

- 327 -



To whom it may concern,


We would like to take this time to offer our support in the development of a new indoor 
training facility for Penticton and the South Okanagan. While the facility is geared 
towards baseball, it will also better serve the youth and the athletes of the South 
Okanagan by providing another safe indoor training facility. It will be useable during the 
winter where we have limited space, but also in the summer during extreme heatwaves 
or smokey days while the air quality is poor. 


As a native of Penticton that spent my childhood playing youth sports, and now as 
someone who works in the community to help develop the athletes of tomorrow and 
promote a healthy lifestyle, this facility will only continue to provide more space for 
more youth to get involved. 


We believe this facility only adds value to the city and the residents of the area who will 
benefit from its addition. 


Regards,


Bob Pond | Founder

Certified Athletic Therapist | Certified Strength & Conditioning Coach

Pond Performance Ltd.

C: 250.488.6139

E: bobpond@pondperformance.com

W. www.pondperformance.com

- 328 -

mailto:bobpond@pondperformance.com


	
	
	
	

	
	
March	23,	2022	
	
	
To	Whom	It	May	Concern,	
	
	
Our	team	at	Skate	With	Power	is	in	full	support	of	Edgar	Yost’s	
proposed	baseball	training	facility.	We	have	known	and	worked	with	
Edgar	for	several	years	now.	His	passion	and	enthusiasm	for	youth	
sports	goes	beyond	just	baseball	and	we	have	always	known	him	to	
want	to	give	back	to	the	community.	
	
This	facility	would	be	an	awesome	addition	to	our	city,	as	there	is	
nothing	like	it	around.	Our	company	trains	and	develops	elite	hockey	
players.	Having	a	facility	like	this	available	would	provide	us	with	the	
opportunity	to	help	athletes	even	more.	For	those	days	that	the	weather	
doesn’t	cooperate,	this	indoor	facility	would	be	incredible.		
	
The	opportunities	this	facility	would	provide	are	endless,	not	only	for	
local	baseball,	but	for	all	athletics	in	the	South	Okanagan.	We	at	Skate	
With	Power	are	in	full	support	of	what	Edgar	is	doing,	and	we	look	
forward	to	using	the	space	in	coordination	with	him.	
	
	
	
Regards,	
	
	
	
Mark	MacMillan	
Vice	President	
Skate	With	Power	
	

- 329 -



 To Whom It May Concern,

 My name is Kevin Castelone and I am the President of SOMBA, (South 
Okanagan Minor Baseball Association). I am writing to you today to 
inform you that our association fully supports the opening of the indoor 
baseball facility that Edgar Yost is planning to open. This will be a big 
part of the organizations growth in the way of year round baseball. It will 
also provide an opportunity for athletes that has never been available in 
the South Okanagan. The baseball registrations will also increase 
steadily year over year with a facility that will allow the kids to train all 
year round.
 Edgar has been involved in the baseball community for many years 
offering his time and energy at the coaching level and administrative 
level. He is very passionate about this project and we at SOMBA are 
very excited to work with him.
 Please feel free to reach out with any questions.

Kevin Castelone
President
SOMBA
kevcas8@hotmail.com

- 330 -



To whom it may concern, 

Summerland Minor Baseball is an Association of 80+ members. In 2022 we are offering 7 teams across 6 

age divisions of minor baseball players. We would benefit greatly from having access to an indoor 

baseball facility such as the one Edgar Yost is proposing to build.  

I’ve known Edgar to be involved in minor baseball in Penticton for 10+ years, and I know he is a valuable 

member of South Okanagan Minor Baseball Association, and a reputable businessperson in the 

Penticton community.  

In conjunction with Summerland Minor Baseball Association, I personally lend my support to Edgar in 

building this facility in Penticton as it will help nurture and nourish the game of baseball in the South 

Okanagan and offer our youth space to productively and collectively use their time growing their 

personal skill and development in a healthy setting. 

Sincerely, 

Todd Thicke 

President, Summerland Minor Baseball Association 

250-328-8624 

summerlandminorbaseball@gmail.com  

- 331 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-45 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-45”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Add the following to M1 – General Industrial site specific provision 12.1.4.4: “In the case of Lot 1 
District Lots 250, 2710, 3429S and 3821S Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 37288, located 
at 1603 Dartmouth Road, an indoor amusement, entertainment and recreation facility shall 
be permitted.” 
 

2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this  day of , 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this  day of , 2022 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2022 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the __ day of ____, 2022 and the __ day of ____, 2022 in an online news 
source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

 
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
      

 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
 
  

- 332 -



�����
���	
��	����������	�
�	��������������

 	!�"�#$"	�%&'()*+,-.'/*)0*,/)123'4,1)*,5+,-4678)0)/-,592*),/)/7,*&45)/*'32/33):)*28-,59;%&'1,650'<2006520+2/30,948'*'/'11,-*&)1)/-,592*),/=25)'1;>125'168*<*&'()*+3,'1/,*?2552/*)/2/+?2+*&'9244)/:)/-,592*),/)/0863)/:*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-;%&'61'5,-*&)1)/-,592*),/3,'11,2**&')5,?/5)1@2/31&,683/,*5'8+64,/*&')/-,592*),/?)*&,6*)/3'4'/3'/*='5)-)02*),/21*,*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-; ABA<CDD D EDFDG'*'51����"�H�I����HH�H��JK�L M��!
����	��"�	��N�OHPQJM�R�$ L���	HHN

- 333 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                              Corporate Officer:  



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022      File No:    RMS/241 Nelson Ave 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Nicole Capewell, Planner II 
Address: 221 and 241 Nelson Avenue  
 
Subject: Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48 
 Development Variance Permit PL2022-9411 
  
Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48”, for Lot A District Lot 250 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347, located at 221 Nelson Avenue and Lot B District Lot 250 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347, located at 241 Nelson Avenue, a bylaw to rezone the 
subject properties from RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) to RD4 (Low Density Cluster Housing); 

AND THAT Council forward “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48” to the September 6, 2022 Public 
Hearing; 

AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48”, consider “Development 
Variance Permit PL2022-9411”, for Lot A District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347, 
located at 221 Nelson Avenue and Lot B District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347, 
located at 241 Nelson Avenue, a permit to vary Section 10.7.3.1 of Zoning Bylaw No 2021-01, to allow vehicle 
access to be from the street. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing to rezone the subject properties to allow for the development currently under 
construction to be permitted as 4 separate strata units on each property. The development is currently 
permitted as a duplex with suites on each property (total 4 units; 2 main units and 2 suites), and the owners 
have identified a desire to have each unit on a separate strata title to allow for more affordable units to be 
sold, without suites. In order to proceed with four separate titles per property, the applicants have applied 

- 334 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 10 

for a zoning amendment to rezone the property from RD2 
(Duplex Housing: Lane) to RD4 (Low Density Cluster Housing), 
allowing for 4 separate strata units on each property. The site 
plan, landscaping, parking, building layout and form and 
character are not changing. The applicant outlines their proposal 
in the Letter of Intent (Attachment ‘D’). 

Background 

The subject properties are located on the north side of Nelson 
Avenue between Main Street and Manitoba Street, in a residential 
neighbourhood (Figure 1). The property recently proceeded 
through the development application process, including a zoning 
amendment and development permit to allow for a duplex with 
suites to be constructed on each property which Council adopted 
on January 18, 2022. Through the construction, the applicants 
have identified a desire to strata each of the units on a separate 
title to be sold individually. This proposal does not align with the 
current RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) zoning on the property, and 
the applicant has applied for a zoning amendment to allow this 
to occur.  

The property is designated by the OCP as ‘Infill Residential” (Figure 2), which is described as transitional 
lower-height residential areas with new housing types compatible with existing single detached houses in 
character and scale, but providing mote units per lot. Building types that are supported by this OCP 
designation include single detached houses with or without secondary suites and/or carriage houses, 
duplexes with or without suites, triplexes, lower-density row houses, and small-scale neighbourhood 
commercial building. The proposed development is consistent with the OCP designation, providing 4 units 
per single lot. 

 Figure 2 - Infill Residential Designation 

Figure 1 - Property Location Map 

- 335 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 10 

The subject property is located within an established area of the City, with excellent access to sidewalks, the 
KVR Trail, Kiwanis Park, Penticton Secondary School, the Edmonton Ave Daycare, the Library and Museum, 
and is within walking distances to many necessary services including the Safeway Plaza, and the 
Government Street corridor. The existing zoning in the surrounding neighbourhood is diverse, with 
multifamily developments located to the rear of the subject property along Edmonton Avenue, commercial 
properties along Main Street, and single family residential, with some duplexes throughout the area. 

The subject property is currently zoned RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane). The property also contains a site-
specific statement that was originally put in place to limit the number of dwelling units permitted on the 
property to a maximum of two, and to allow for vehicle access to the street. In 2021, Council approved a 
zoning amendment to remove the maximum number of dwelling units permitted, to allow the proposal of a 
duplex with suites (4 dwelling units) on each lot. The provision regarding vehicle access from the street 
remained in effect. Following Council approval for the zoning amendment (January 2022), the owner now 
has a desire to have the 4 dwelling units be on separate strata titles for re-sale purposes and to allow for 
more affordable units. As such, the current application has come forward.  

Previous Applications 

In 2018, a previous owner of the property proceeded through a zoning amendment that changed the 
zoning from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane), with a site specific provision that if the 
lot is subdivided, there would be a limit of 2 dwelling units per lot, with vehicular access allowed from the 
street. In 2021, an application was received to remove the limit of 2 dwelling units per lot, and still allow for 
the vehicle access to be from the street. This was supported by Council in early 2022.  

The current proposal is to rezone the property from RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) to RD4 (Low Density Cluster 
Housing) to allow for the 4 proposed units to be on separate strata titles. During the construction, the 
owners determined that 4 separate titles would be more suitable for this development, in an effort to keep 
the units more affordable for buyers. Under the current RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) zone, each property can 
have a maximum of 2 strata titles, each of which also has a secondary suite. As a property that includes a 
principal unit, and a secondary suite is more valuable, with potential income sources for the future owners, 
these units would cost significantly more to sell, and likely price out the intended market for the 
development. In allowing each unit to be sold on a separate title (4 strata titles on each lot), the units will be 
able to be more affordable and offer options for those who may be downsizing, entering the market, etc. 

Climate Impact 

The City of Penticton Community Climate Action Plan (CCAP) outlines a path towards a low carbon future: A 
future where City residents experience the benefits of a connected, healthy and economically prosperous 
community while taking action on climate change and adapting to climate impacts.  

The development is representative of smart growth, adding housing in an area of the community without 
the need for infrastructure extensions and that is well serviced by amenities, sidewalks, and transit and 
bicycle routes.  This aligns with Shift 1.1 of the CCAP to optimize policies and bylaws for compact growth. 
The City’s Building Bylaw requires the proposed building to meet Step 3 of the Energy Step Code for this 
scale of a project, which the applicant intends to build to. 

 

- 336 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 10 

Technical Review 

This application was reviewed by the City’s Technical Planning Committee. The applicant has completed all 
subdivision requirements through the subdivision process, and are aware of adjustments needed for the 
building permit to accommodate the proposal to create four strata titles per property, should Council 
support the zoning amendment.  

Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 includes a provision that allows developers to pay cash-in-lieu of providing trees 
where the actual setback of the building is too narrow for the landscaping buffer. Section 5.3.4 allows buffer 
widths for multi-family developments to be reduced to the actual setback of the building. In this proposal, 
the east and west property lines would be required to pay in lieu of 10 trees not being planted within the 
setback area ($485.00 x 10 trees = $4,850.00). These funds are deposited into the Urban Forest Reserve Fund 
to be used for tree infilling in the City. This has been communicated to and agreed upon with the applicant. 

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics on the plans submitted with the 
development application. Staff note that no development statistics have changed since the previous 2021 
Zoning Amendment: 

 
RD4 Zone 

Requirement  
Provided on Plans – 

221 Nelson Ave 
Provided on Plans – 

241 Nelson Ave 
Minimum Lot Width: 18 m 12.17 m 12.17 m 
Minimum Lot Area: 540 m2 680.1 m2 680.1 m2 
Maximum Lot Coverage: 40% 39% 39% 

Maximum Density: 
0.8 Floor Area Ratio 
(FAR) 

0.68 Floor Area Ratio 
(FAR) 

0.68 Floor Area Ratio 
(FAR) 

Vehicle Parking: 
1.25 space per 
dwelling unit 
5 required per lot 

5 spaces provided* 5 spaces provided* 

Required Setbacks 
Front Yard (Nelson Ave): 
Side Yard (east): 
Side Yard (west): 
Rear Yard (lane): 

 
4.5 m 
1.5 m 
1.5 m 
6.0 m 

 
10.36 m 
1.8 m 
1.52 m 
12.99 m 

 
10.36 m 
1.53 m 
1.8 m 
12.99 m 

Maximum Building 
Height 

10.5 m 6.11 m 6.11 m 

Other Information: 

* 5th parking space is provided from the street. This has been included as a 
variance to allow parking to be from the street. Without approval for the 
variance, the proposal would be 1 parking space short of the requirement. 
The applicant currently has allowance for the parking space through a 
previous site-specific zoning amendment.  

 

 

- 337 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 10 

Analysis 

The Official Community Plan (OCP) designation for the subject property is ‘Infill Residential’, which supports 
single detached houses with or without secondary suites and/or carriage houses, duplexes with or without 
suites, triplexes, lower-density row houses, and small-scale neighbourhood commercial building (Figure 2).. 
The proposed development is a consistent building form with the ‘Infill Residential’ OCP designation.  

Staff consider that the proposed zoning amendment will allow for development that is supported through 
the following OCP goals and policies: 

OCP Policy 4.1.1.1 Focus new residential development in or adjacent to existing developed areas. 

OCP Goal 4.1.2 Housing Affordability 
Increase the availability of affordable housing across the housing spectrum, from 
subsidized social housing to home-ownership options. 

OCP Goal 4.1.3 Housing Diversity 
Ensure a range of housing types, sizes, tenures and forms exist throughout the city 
to provide housing options for all ages, household types, and incomes. 

OCP Policy 4.1.3.1 Encourage more intensive “infill” residential development in areas close to the 
Downtown, to employment, services and shopping, through zoning amendments 
for housing types compatible with existing neighbourhood character, with form 
and character guided by Development Permit Area Guidelines. 

OCP Policy 4.1.3.3 Foster diversity and create relative affordability while maintaining neighbourhood 
character in single-family areas by encouraging the creation of smaller-frontage lots 
in new neighbourhoods and subdivisions, and permitting the subdivision of larger 
lots in established neighbourhoods where access and servicing are adequate. 

OCP Policy 4.1.3.4 Encourage developments that include one-bedroom and two-bedroom units in 
suitable neighbourhoods to enable people to downsize as they age and to provide 
entry-level housing for those people entering the housing market. At the same time, 
provide 3-bedroom units, or larger, to accommodate families. 

OCP Policy 4.1.3.5 Ensure through the use of zoning that more-intensive forms of residential 
development are located close to transit and amenities, such as parks, schools and 
shopping. 

OCP Policy 4.1.4.1 Work with the development community – architects, designers and buildings – to 
create new residential developments that are attractive, high-quality, energy 
efficient, appropriately scaled and respectful of their context. 

OCP Goal 4.1.5 Housing and Neighbourhood Character 
Ensure that as neighbourhoods grow and change, a sense of place and character is 
maintained. 

OCP Policy 4.1.5.1 Recognize that some traditionally single-family neighbourhoods will see 
intensification as the city grows, but ensure that new forms of residential 
development are compatible with the neighbourhood in scale and design, and are 
appropriately located (e.g., greater density closer to collector roads, services and 
amenities). 

- 338 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 10 

OCP Goal 4.1.6 Complete and Healthy Neighbourhoods 
Provide opportunities to live, work and play in all of Penticton’s neighbourhoods. 

OCP Policy 4.1.6.1 Ensure all residential neighbourhoods in Penticton provide a range of 
appropriately-scaled housing types and tenures, employment opportunities such as 
home-based businesses, transportation options like walking and cycling, social 
supports such as childcare facilities, and access to green space and parks.  

OCP Policy 4.2.5.2 Encourage land use planning that results in neighbourhoods that can be easily 
serviced by transit.  

Support Development Variance Permit 

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourages Council to consider whether approval of the 
variance would cause a negative impact on neighbouring properties and if the variance request is 
reasonable. The applicant is requesting to increase the lot coverage on the property. 

1. Section 10.7.3.1: to allow vehicle access to be from the street. 
• The proposed development is exactly the same site layout as the current development that is 

under construction. The driveway from the street was permitted through the previous site-
specific zoning amendment under the RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) zone. Through the rezoning 
to RD4 (Low Density Cluster Housing), the applicant no longer has the site specific allowance for 
the driveways from the street, and the variance is required. However, the design is the same as 
the current proposal. Therefore, the impacts to the neighbourhood as a result of the variance are 
the same as the current development currently being constructed.  

• The lots are significant in length (55.8m or 183 ft.), creating a large lot that is narrow in width. 
The lot is large enough to accommodate the desired density, but is not wide enough to 
accommodate the 5 required parking spaces along the rear property line.  

• There are several driveways existing along Nelson Ave, especially as properties along the 
southern side of Nelson Avenue do not have a laneway to the rear. This means only properties 
along Nelson Avenue on the north side can have driveways from the laneway. Of the 12 other 
properties on the north side of this stretch of Nelson Avenue, 11 have driveways existing from 
the street.  

Given the length of the lots and the fact that there are several existing driveways along Nelson Ave, staff 
consider that the requested variance is reasonable in this instance. The variance is suitable to the area, and 
provides the parking spaces necessary to meet the Zoning Bylaw requirement. Staff recommend that 
Council consider the Development Variance Permit subject to adoption of the rezoning.  

Should Council support the proposed zoning amendment and Development Variance Permit, staff will 
amend the Development Permits previously issued by Council to reflect the changes proposed (amend from 
duplexes with suites to a 4-plex). 

Alternate Recommendations 

Council may consider that while the zoning amendment is aligned with the OCP, the development as 
proposed does not fit the character of the neighbourhood. If this is the case, Council may choose the 

- 339 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 10 

alternate recommendation. This would allow the development to complete build-out with two strata titles 
rather than four. 

1. THAT Council deny first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48”. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Photos of Property 
Attachment D – Letter of Intent 
Attachment E – Draft Development Variance Permit PL2022-9411 
Attachment F – Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-48 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Nicole Capewell, RPP, MCIP 
Planner II 

Concurrence  

Director of 
Development Services 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
 

DvD 
 

  

- 340 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 10 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 

 
 
  

- 341 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 10 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 

 
 
  

- 342 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 10 

Attachment C – Photos of Property 

 
Looking toward subject property from Nelson Avenue 

 

 
Looking toward subject property from rear laneway 

 

Subject Property 
241 Nelson Ave 

271 Nelson Ave 197 Nelson Ave 

Subject Property 
241 Nelson Ave 

271 Nelson Ave 

197 Nelson Ave 

- 343 -



BURGART PROJECTS lnc.

sutTE 389

7T3 _ 437 MARTIN STREET

PENTICTON, BC

V2A 511

778 93t2887

info@ burgartprojects .com

22L & 241 Nelson Avenue

Zoning Amendment Application

Letter of lntent

June L4,2022

Attention: City of Penticton - Planning Department

The intent is to rezone both 221and 241Nelson Avenue from the current RD2 Duplex to RD4

Low Density Cluster Housing. A development application project for these two properties was

approved in February 2022. The project is currently under construction at foundation stage. The
previous development approval was for a front-back duplex on each lot. Each duplex unit has a

lower-level suite. The rezoning from RD2 to RD4 will allow for the lower-level suites to
redesignated as individual strata units separate from the duplex unit above. The previous

development approval was for four dwelling units per property. Rezoning the property to RD4

will not change this. There will still be four dwelling units per property. The form and details of
the project will not change in any way from the previous development approval.

The design calls for the ground level units to be large, high-quality residences and not the
typical 'basement suite'. The lower floor level is set to minimize the number of steps down to
the patio entrance and allow for large windows with no window wells.

The center walk (shared by both properties) and the center courtyard are the focus of the
project. Based on feedback from residents from our 254/260 Orchard Avenue project, this
concept has proved to very successful in creating a sense of community with the residents. The

entrances to the suites come off this center courtyard allowing for a sense of security and the
landscaping and privacy screens between the ground level patios provide privacy for each unit.

All units will be three-bedroom units with private amenity space (porches and patios) and
private, secure exterior storage space (bikes). All the units are intended to be long-term rental
residences.

Attachment D - Letter of Intent - 344 -



The buildings will be L% storeys tallwith main floor residence entrances facing Nelson Avenue,

the two rear main floor residence entrances facing the lane and the four suite entrances off the

central courtyard. There will be parking for 8 vehicles off the lane and two vehicles off Nelson.

At over 10m long, the parking spaces off Nelson Ave could be used as tandem parking for two

smaller cars. The architecture of the building will be a traditional style with pitched roofs and

siding with shingle and board and batten accents. 241 Nelson will be a primarily soft grey with
white trim.22L Nelson will be white with white trim. The proposed front yard setbacks are in

keeping with the neighbouring existing homes.

The project willfeature extensive irrigated 'xeriscape' landscaping (no lawn). Plant species will

be chosen to colourful and the least attractive to deer. The rear main floor residences will have

an enclosed/fenced yard.

Although the economics of the proposed project is constrained by the typical factors - location,

size and form, as the property owner, designer and builder our intention is build a high-quality
project. We believe the scale and architectural quality of the project are complimentary to the

existing neighbourhood and works well as the neighbourhood transitions from older single-

family homes to a higher density community consistent with the long-term vision of the Official

Community Plan (OCP).

We are excited by the long-term prospects for the city of Penticton and for the potential re-

development of existing inner-city properties. We look forward to proceeding with this project

and the completion of many more in the future.

Regards,

Brendan Burgart

Burgart Projects lnc

President

- 345 -



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 

Development Variance Permit 

Permit Number: DVP PL2022-9411 

Owner Name 
Owner Address 

Conditions of Permit  

1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. This permit applies to:  

Legal: Lot A District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347; and 
Lot B District Lot 250 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan EPP116347 

Civic: 221 Nelson Avenue; and 
241 Nelson Avenue 

PID: 031-631-584; and 
031-631-592 

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 498 of the Local Government Act, to vary 
the following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to allow for the construction of a four-unit 
development on each lot, as shown in the plans attached in Schedule ‘A’: 

a. Section 10.7.3.1: to allow vehicle access to be from the street. 

General Conditions  

4. In accordance with Section 501 of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this permit shall 
be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached as Schedule ‘A’.  

5. In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit does not 
commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the date of this permit, this 
permit shall lapse. 

6. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the holder of 
this permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection Department.  

7. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The holder of 
this permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or provincial approvals prior 
to commencing the development authorized by this permit.  

8. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the building permit 
stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements and electrical servicing. 
There may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs payable at a later date. For more 
information on servicing and infrastructure requirements please contact the Development 
Engineering Department at (250) 490-2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, 
please contact the Electric Utility at (250) 490-2535.    

DRAFT

- 346 -



Authorized by City Council, the ____ day of ____________, 2022. 

Issued this ____ day of ____________, 2022. 

_________________________ 

Angela Collison 
Corporate Officer 

DRAFT

- 347 -



DRAFT

- 348 -



 
 

 

 

- 349 -



�����
���	
��	����������	�
�	��������������

 	!�"�#$"	�%&'()*+,-.'/*)0*,/)123'4,1)*,5+,-4678)0)/-,592*),/)/7,*&45)/*'32/33):)*28-,59;%&'1,650'<2006520+2/30,948'*'/'11,-*&)1)/-,592*),/=25)'1;>125'168*<*&'()*+3,'1/,*?2552/*)/2/+?2+*&'9244)/:)/-,592*),/)/0863)/:*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-;%&'61'5,-*&)1)/-,592*),/3,'11,2**&')5,?/5)1@2/31&,683/,*5'8+64,/*&')/-,592*),/?)*&,6*)/3'4'/3'/*='5)-)02*),/21*,*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-; ABCDE E FEAGH'*'51����"�I�J����II�������K L��!
����	��"�	��M�NIO�PL�Q�$ K���	IIM

- 350 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                              Corporate Officer:



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022      File No:    RMS/970 Dynes Ave 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Nicole Capewell, Planner II 
Address: 970 Dynes Avenue  
 
Subject: Development Permit PL2022-9352 
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve “Development Permit PL2022-9352”, for Lot A District Lot 3 Group 7 Similkameen 
Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan EPP92730, located at 970 Dynes Avenue, a permit to allow 
for the construction of a 26-unit, six-storey apartment building; 

AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Permit PL2022-9352”. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing to construct a six-
storey, 26-unit apartment building on the 
subject property (Figure 1). The property is 
zoned accordingly, and the applicant is 
requesting Development Permit approval for 
the form and character of the building, as the 
property is within the Multifamily 
Development Permit Area. The applicants 
have worked with staff to prepare a 
development package for Council’s 
consideration that is supported through the 
Official Community Plan. 

Background 

The subject property is located at 970 Dynes Avenue, between Sydney Street and Alberni Street (Figure 2). 
The property was previously 4 legal lots until they were consolidated in 2019 to facilitate a previously 

Figure 1 - Rendering of Proposed Development 

- 351 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 12 

proposed development. In 2019, Council approved a zoning 
amendment, development variance permit and development 
permit to allow for two rows of six-unit townhouses (total 12 
dwelling units). However, the development was never built 
and the owner has amended the plans to now propose an 
apartment style development with 26 units.  

The subject property was rezoned from R2 (Small Lot 
Residential) to RM3 (Medium Density Multiple Housing) in 
2019 and is designated as ‘Ground Oriented Residential’ by 
the City’s Official Community Plan (OCP) (Attachment ‘B’). 
There were two single family homes on the properties, which 
were demolished in 2021 to facilitate the development of the 
site. As indicated in the Zoning Map (Attachment ‘A’), the 
surrounding neighbourhood currently contains a diverse mix 
of residential zones, ranging from R2 (Small Lot Residential), 
to RM4 (High Density Residential). There are housing types 
including a mobile home park, single family homes, duplexes, 
townhouses, apartments, and tourist accommodations 
(hotels/motels). This area has been slowly transitioning from a 
low density neighbourhood to accommodate medium to 
high density units, as directed by the OCP. The site is also directly adjacent to the North Gateway Plan area.  

Climate Impact 

The City of Penticton Community Climate Action Plan (CCAP) outlines a path towards a low carbon future: A 
future where City residents experience the benefits of a connected, healthy and economically prosperous 
community while taking action on climate change and adapting to climate impacts.  

The development is representative of smart growth, adding housing in an area of the community without 
the need for infrastructure extensions and an area that is well serviced by amenities, sidewalks, and transit. 
This aligns with Shift 1.1 of the CCAP to optimize policies and bylaws for compact growth. The proposal 
encourages active transportation by providing Class 1 (secure) bicycle parking and Class 2 (racks) bicycle 
parking spaces. At this time, the applicants are exploring opportunities for electric vehicle charging stations 
and solar potential.  

The City’s Building Bylaw requires the proposed building to meet Step 1 of the Energy Step Code for this 
scale of a project, however incentives for City building permit fees are in place to encourage the applicants 
to build to Step 4 of the Step Code. At this time, the applicant has not determined which step they will be 
aiming for.  

Technical Review 

This application was reviewed by the City’s Technical Planning Committee (TPC). Typical servicing 
requirements have been identified for the Building Permit stage of the project, if the development permit 
application is supported by Council. These items have been communicated to the applicant. The applicant 
originally applied for a hard surfacing variance with their application, however they were able to remove it. 

Figure 2 - Property Location Map 

- 352 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 12 

Staff worked with the applicant to include alternative surface treatments on site to remove the variance 
request for hard surfacing. The plans show permeable surfacing including grass, gravel, permeable 
pavement and other treatments to be able to meet the Zoning Bylaw and not require any hard surfacing 
variances. 

As part of the 2019 development 
application package, an excess and 
extended service resolution was endorsed 
by Council that required the applicant to 
construct and extend curb, sidewalk and 
boulevard landscaping on Dynes Avenue 
from the front of the development to the 
west, to connect to Sydney Street (Figure 
3). This scope of work is not within the 
authority of the Subdivision and 
Development Bylaw, and therefore an 
excess and extended service resolution 
was completed and is still valid and tied 
to development of the subject property. 
This allows the developer to be eligible 
for ‘latecomer payments’ when a property 
that benefits from the works redevelops 
within a 15-year period.  

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics on the plans submitted with the 
development application: 

 RM3 Zone Requirement  Provided on Plans 
Minimum Lot Width*: 25 m 36.588 m 
Minimum Lot Area*: 1,400 m2 1,692.5 m2 
Maximum Lot Coverage: 50% 48.9% 
Maximum Density: 1.6 Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 1.6 Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

Vehicle Parking: 
1.25 spaces per unit 
32 spaces required 

30 spaces provided ** 

Bicycle Parking 

0.5 Class 1 (secure) spaces per unit 
13 Class 1 required 
0.1 Class 2 (rack) spaces per unit 
3 Class 2 required 

20 Class 1 provided (13 + 5 spaces 
in lieu of 1 vehicle space)  
3 Class 2 provided 

Required Setbacks 
Front Yard (Dynes Avenue): 
Side Yard (east): 
Side Yard (west): 
Rear Yard (lane): 

 
3.0 m 
4.5 m 
4.5 m 
6.0m 

 
5.6 m 
4.7 m 
8.95 m 
7.9 m 

Figure 3 - Excess and Extended Service Area 

- 353 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 12 

Amenity Space: 
20m2 per unit  
Total required: 520m2 (26 units) 

Total provided: 1,026.73m2 

Average 39.4m2 per unit 
Maximum Building Height 24 m 21.64 m 

Other Information: 

* Lot width and lot area are only applicable at the time of subdivision. 
** Proposal is 2 parking spaces short. 1 parking space will be provided 
with 5 additional bike spaces. 1 parking space will be provided through 
cash-in-lieu. Permitted as per Zoning Bylaw Section 6.1.2. 

Analysis 

Support Development Permit  

The proposed development is considered within the Multifamily Residential Development Permit Area, 
which is established to enhance neighbourhoods and create sensitive transitions in scale and density by 
addressing issues such as privacy, landscape retention and neighbourliness. Staff have completed an in-
depth analysis of how the proposed development conforms to the Development Permit Guidelines 
(Attachment ‘D’). As shown within the analysis, there is strong alignment between the plans and the intent 
of the Multifamily Residential Development Permit Area.. The applicant has also provided a comprehensive 
analysis of how the development meets the intent of the development permit area guidelines, which is 
attached as Attachment ‘E’. 

In addition to the design guidelines, the City’s OCP provides the following policies, which support the 
proposed development.  

OCP Goal 
4.1.1 

Ensure that Penticton retains its compact ‘footprint’ to help protect natural areas and 
environmental values and agricultural lands, avoid excessive infrastructure costs and 
hazard lands, and help create conditions that support transit and active modes of 
transportation. 

Policy 4.1.1.1 Focus new residential development in or adjacent to existing developed areas. 

Policy 4.1.1.4 Ensure all new developments fully cover the cost of the required infrastructure and 
services they require, including roads, water, sewer, storm water and provision of parks, 
schools, and emergency services. 

OCP Goal 
4.1.3 

Ensure a range of housing types, sizes, tenures and forms exist throughout the city to 
provide housing options for all ages, household types, and incomes. 

Policy 4.1.3.1 Encourage more intensive “infill” residential development in areas close to the 
Downtown, to employment, services and shopping, through zoning amendments for 
housing types compatible with existing neighbourhood character, with form and 
character guided by Development Permit Area Guidelines. 

Policy 4.1.3.5 Ensure through the use of zoning that more-intensive forms of residential development 
are located close to transit and amenities, such as parks, schools and shopping. 

Policy 4.1.4.1 Work with the development community – architects, designers and builders – to create 
new residential developments that are attractive, high-quality, energy efficient, 
appropriately scaled and respectful of their context. 

- 354 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 12 

Policy 4.2.1.5 Create ‘complete streets’ (designed for everyone) in suitable areas that provide safe and 
comfortable mobility (i.e. allow for access, movement and crossing) for all users: 
pedestrian, cyclists, drivers, commercial vehicle operators and transit users. 

Policy 4.2.2.2 Address gaps in the pedestrian network by providing sidewalks on at least one side of 
the street in residential neighbourhoods, and commercial and mixed-use areas, using 
excess street rights-of-way where possible or through land acquisition if necessary. 
Where possible, provide sidewalks by requiring their construction or upgrades from 
developers 

Policy 4.2.2.4 Require that vehicle access to parking in residential areas is from the laneway in 
neighbourhoods where laneways exist. 

Policy 4.2.3.8 Require adequate levels of secure bike parking in new multi-family, mixed-use and 
commercial development. 

Policy 4.2.5.2 Encourage land use planning that results in neighbourhoods that can be easily serviced 
by transit. 

Policy 4.4.4.5 Explore and support initiatives to produce renewable energy, such as photovoltaic/solar 
(solar gardens, large and small-scale installations), heat exchange, geothermal, and 
district energy systems. 

Further, staff are recommending that Council approve a minor variance to amenity area requirements 
through the issuance of “Development Permit PL2022-9352”. Section 5.1.4 of the OCP identifies variances to 
zoning standards that may be considered as a component of a Development Permit, provided that the 
resultant built form of the proposed building is consistent with the General OCP Development Permit Area 
Guidelines and the overall intent of the Zoning Bylaw. 

The RM3 (Medium Density Multiple Housing) zone requires 20m2 of amenity space per dwelling unit, with at 
least 25% of the required amenity space provided at the ground floor level. For the proposed 26-unit 
development, this results in a total requirement of 520m2 (5,597 sq. ft.) of amenity area, with 130m2 (1,399 
sq. ft.) provided at the ground floor level. The subject property is approximately 1,692.5 m2 (18,217 sq. ft.) 
and due to the size of the building, as well as the surface parking that is required and landscaping buffers, 
the site was limited in the amount of amenity space that could be provided at grade. The proposal includes a 
significant amount of landscaped space in the front and side yards of the property, to ensure the required 
landscaping buffers are provided on site. However, these areas are not necessarily spaces for residents to 
recreate in, and rather provide a buffer between the development and neighbouring properties and also 
add to the urban forest canopy. 

The following is a breakdown of amenity space that is provided through the development: 

Amenity Type Total Space Provided 

Private Decks 
25.95 m2 (279 sq. ft.) per unit (average) at 26 units  
= 675 m2 (7,264 sq. ft.) 

At-Grade Outdoor Space 
(Figure 4) 

71 m2 (764 sq. ft.) 

- 355 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 12 

Indoor Gym (2nd Floor) 45.53 m2 (490 sq. ft.) 

Roof Garden (5th Floor) 23.2 m2 (253 sq. ft.) 

Rooftop Patio (6th Floor)  
(Figure 5) 

212 m2 (2,281 sq. ft.) 

Total Amenity Space 
Provided 

1,026.73 m2 (11,052 sq. ft.) 

The development is required to provide a total of 520m2 (5,597 sq. ft.) of 
amenity area, and the table above shows nearly double the minimum 
requirement has been provided. While the 25% at-grade has not been 
provided, staff consider the ground level is appropriate, with a well 
landscaped ground level, and adequate parking provided. Further, as 
noted in the OCP, the amenity area is not reduced to less than 10% of 
the total amenity or reduce the total amenity, and it is visible from the 
public realm/buildings sidewalk. Requiring the applicant to provide the 
additional at-grade amenity area would likely result in a loss of the width 
of the landscaping buffers, including reducing tree and shrub counts. 
The intent of amenity space is to ensure that residents have adequate 
areas to recreate outdoors (and indoors) on the property. Staff consider 
the table above shows this is being achieved on the property. As such, 
staff recommend that Council consider the variance to at-grade amenity 
areas through the Development Permit.  

In summary, the proposed development demonstrates strong 
conformance with the City’s OCP Policies. Staff consider that the 
proposed development is a strong application in a desired area of the 
community that has been identified for increased density within the City’s OCP. The plans show 
conformance to the development permit area guidelines, and sufficient outdoor and indoor amenity areas 
have been provided. For these reasons, staff 
recommend that Council approve the 
Development Permit. 

Alternate Recommendations 

Council may consider that the applicant can 
change the design to more accurately reflect 
the development permit guidelines. If this is the 
case, Council should refer the permit back to 
staff to work with the applicant as directed by 
Council. 

1. THAT Council approve “Development 
Permit PL2022-9352” with conditions that 
Council feels are appropriate. 

Figure 5 - Rooftop Patio (north roof portion) 

Figure 4 - Ground Level Landscaping 

- 356 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 12 

2. THAT Council refer “Development Permit PL2022-9352” back to staff. 
3. THAT Council deny “Development Permit PL2022-9352”. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Photos of Property 
Attachment D – Development Permit Analysis (staff) 
Attachment E – Letter of Intent and Development Permit Analysis (applicant) 
Attachment F – Draft Development Permit PL2022-9352 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Nicole Capewell, RPP, MCIP 
Planner II 

Concurrence  

Director of 
Development Services 

GM Of Infrastructure 
 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL KD 
 

 
DvD 

  

- 357 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 12 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 

  

- 358 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 12 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 

  

- 359 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 12 

Attachment C – Photos of Property 

 
  

- 360 -



 
Council Report  Page 11 of 12 

Attachment D – Development Permit Analysis (staff) 

Development Permit Analysis 

The proposed development is located within the Multifamily Residential Development Permit Area. The 
following analysis demonstrates how the proposal is aligned with the applicable design guidelines. 

Guideline G1 Applications shall include a comprehensive site plan – considering adjacent context for 
building and landscape architectural design and neighbourhood character analysis - to 
demonstrate that the development is sensitive to and integrated within its context and 
surrounding uses and neighbours. 
• The applicant has included a survey with geodetic elevations, to show that they have 

reviewed the topography of the property, which is relatively flat.  
Guideline G4 Views through to the mountains and lakes should be carefully considered and 

incorporated into the design of new development 
 • The applicant has proposed a building that is unique with many variations to the 

exterior facade. The design utilizes roof overhangs, building features and balconies to 
create a unique and interesting building.  

Guideline G5 Siting of buildings should support strong street definition by minimizing front yard 
setbacks while sensitively transitioning to neighbouring building setbacks. 

 • The applicant has located the proposed building near the 3.0m front yard setback, at 
5.6m, which helps to maintain a connection with the street.  

Guideline G7 All designs shall consider Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) 
principles and balance the reduction of crime and nuisance opportunities with other 
objectives to maximize the enjoyment of the built environment.  

 • The proposed front yard fencing is limited to 1.2m (4ft.) in height, which is aligned with 
the Zoning Bylaw requirements and also helps to retain ‘eyes on the street’ by keeping 
sightlines open from private property to the public streetscape.  

• There are also many balconies that overlook towards the street as well as the laneway 
to provide casual and natural surveillance.  

Guideline G11 Barrier-free pedestrian walkways to primary building entrances must be provided from 
municipal sidewalks, parking areas, storage, garbage and amenity areas.  

 • The proposed development has a walkway connecting the development to the 
proposed sidewalk along Dynes Avenue. There are pedestrian connections to the 
parking, garbage and recycling areas, and shared outdoor amenity space. 

Guideline G16 Site and building access must prioritize pedestrian movement, minimize conflict between 
various modes of transportation and optimize use of space… 

 • The proposed parking meets Zoning Bylaw requirements (including 2 spaces provided 
with in-lieu options, as per the Zoning Bylaw), and provides all parking on site. The 
parking area is located and accessed from the rear laneway.  

Guideline G19 All multifamily developments should accommodate sustainable modes of transportation… 

 • Bicycle parking spaces are located near the main entrance for visitors of the 
development. There is also secure bicycle parking storage located on the second floor 

- 361 -



 
Council Report  Page 12 of 12 

of the building (which can be accessed by elevator), which also includes a bicycle 
service area.  

Guideline G21 Orientation of buildings should face public spaces (e.g., street and lane) with a preference 
for ground-oriented types (e.g., a front door for everyone or every business). 

 • The main orientation of the development is to the north (Dynes Avenue), however 
some units face towards the rear of the property.  

Guideline G23 Articulation of building mass should include horizontal (minor) setbacks and stepbacks 
(along upper storeys) to provide visual interest and enrich the pedestrian experience. 
Balconies and/or cantilevered upper floors may be considered as a means to breaking up 
the massing while promoting overlook and/or weather protection. 

 • The building has been designed with many offsets to break up the elevations of the 
building. This includes unique shapes, colours, and locations of the balconies and 
features of the building. 

Guideline G28 Entries should be visible and clearly identifiable from the fronting public street. 

 • The main entrance to the development fronts the street, Dynes Avenue. The entrance 
is prominent, with a large lobby with glass walls looking towards the street.  

Guideline G29 Development should orient windows, porches, balconies and patios toward the public 
realm, allowing for casual overlook of parks, open spaces, and parking areas.  

 • The development provides outdoor balconies, as well as windows overlooking the 
north street, Dynes Avenue, and the rear laneway.  

Guideline G33 Water Conservation and Plant Maintenance: Xeriscaping, Irrigation & Mulching 
 • The proposed development includes a landscaping plan that provides adequate and 

appropriate designs, including landscape buffers along each side of the building and 
the street.  

• The plans indicate a fully automatic underground irrigation system, which helps to 
reduce overwatering and utilizes a drip system. 

Guideline G35 Tree planting…  

 • Trees and shrubs have been provided at the front of the property as well along the east 
and west property lines at the minimum rate of 1 tree per 10 linear meters and 1 shrub 
per 1 linear meter. 

Guideline G41 
and G42 

Softscapes and Hardscapes 

 • The proposed development was redesigned through the review process to ensure that 
the hard surfacing will meet the Zoning Bylaw requirement.  

Guideline MF4 Visitor parking should be in public view, easily accessible near the main entrance of the 
site, and clearly indicated by pavement markings and/or signs 

 • The visitor parking is located towards the rear of the property, easily accessed from the 
laneway, where all vehicle parking is accessed.  

• The visitor parking will be delineated with signage, and can access through the rear 
main entrance of the building, or use the side pathway to access the main front 
entrance. 

 

- 362 -



 

1 
 

 
 

Proposal for Development Permit and Development Variance Permit 
970 Dynes Ave 

 
    

 
Introduction 

 

This application is for a form & character Development Permit, with Development Variance Permit 
to facilitate the construction of a 26-home apartment building. 
 

 
 
 
Site Context and Land Use 
 

The subject site consists of 1 parcel, which is already zoned RM3 Medium Density Multiple Housing. 
There are 2 existing single-family homes on the site, which will be demolished to make way for the 
new development. 
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 Site Context 
Source: City of Penticton 

 

Site Location 
Source: Google Map 

Attachment E - Letter of Intent and Development Permit Analysis

- 363 -



 

2 
 

 
Proposal Overview 
 

 
The owner of these properties would like to undertake a Development Permit to construct a 6-storey 
apartment building consisting of a mix of 1 bedroom, 2 bedroom, and 3-bedroom homes. 
 
Inspired by the 60’s highway resorts and beachside community living, this multi-residential complex 
provides a soft and elegant addition to the community that harkens back to the mid-century vacation 
aesthetic. Organic, overlapping balcony corners and vertically linear wood finishes complement each other 
to help create a natural feel to the building akin to the Ponderosa pine forests that are located throughout 
the region. Residences are separated into two low-rise towers helps to ensure homes still receive morning 
and evening light. This is achieved due to the stepped building core that includes a glass breezeway 
connecting the towers.  
 
 

 
 
 
Designed to appreciate the wonderful Okanagan Lake and surrounding mountainsides, the complex 
includes large balconies with expansive views that provide shade for spaces below. These balconies allow 
the residents to expand their living area in the summer months. Vertical screens combine with overhangs to 
strategically ensure privacy, reduce summer heat loading, and minimize snow build-up in winter months. 
 
A mix of 1-, 2- and 3-bedroom open plan living units encourage a diverse building demographic that families, 
singles, and couples from varying backgrounds can call home. There will be plenty of private amenities, 
including quiet rooftop corners, open plan rooftop patio space for large entertaining, as well as a gym for 
the fitness conscious. The inclusion of solar panels to the rooftop helps reduce the financial, energy and  
 
climate burdens that may typically come with a development of this nature and helps to future-proof the 
building for the many decades to come. 
 

- 364 -



 

3 
 

 

 
 
At- Grade Amenity Space Variance 
 
The RM3 zone requires a minimum of 25% of the required amenity space to be provided on the first level (at 
grade). With the overall development requiring 520m2 amenity space, the at-grade requirement would 
equate to 130m2.  The proposal allocates 65.58m2 of amenity space at grade, however, it provides over 
double the total require amenity space when considering the gym, flex space, roof garden, and rooftop 
balcony. Based on the extensive provision of amenity space with a variety of uses, it is not expected that this 
proposed variance will pose any inconvenience for future residents. 
  
 
Development Permit Analysis 
The proposal meets the following guidelines and policies within the Official Community plan: 
 

G3. Private and semi-private open spaces should be designed to optimize solar access. 
➔ Decks and rooftop patios have been oriented to optimize sunlight exposure. The indoor 

gym area has also been designed with significant glass on 2 walls to allow natural light.  
 
G4. Views through to the mountains and the lakes should be carefully considered and incorporated into the 
design of new development. 

➔ Decks/Rooftop patios have been designed to maximize lake views to the North, and Mountain 
views to the East and West. 

 
G7. All designs shall consider Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) principles and 
balance the reduction of crime and nuisance opportunities with other objectives to maximize the enjoyment 
of the built environment. 

➔ The unit/deck designs consider view lines 360 degrees around the building to enhance public 
safety. The open air parking area also maximizes safety with few areas hidden from view. 

 

- 365 -



 

4 
 

 
G11. Barrier-free pedestrian walkways to primary building entrances must be provided from municipal 
sidewalks, parking areas, storage, garbage and amenity areas. 

➔ Pedestrian walkways are prioritized, with clear access to the front lobby via a public plaza. 
There is also a dedicated walkway from the lobby to the garbage area. 

 
G16. Site and building access must prioritize pedestrian movement, minimize conflict between various 
modes of transportation and optimize use of space: 

• Off-street parking and servicing access should be provided from the rear lane (where one exists) to 
free the street for uninterrupted pedestrian circulation and boulevard landscaping. 
➔ All vehicle access is via the rear lane to allow a pedestrian-centric front yard. 

 
G28. Entries should be visible and clearly identifiable from the fronting public street. 

➔ The building entry is clearly the focus along the Dynes frontage. Access via the public plaza 
is easily identifiable for pedestrians. 

 
G29. Development should orient windows, porches, balconies and patios toward the public realm, allowing 
for casual overlook of parks, open spaces, and parking areas. 

➔ Decks are located on every building elevation, allowing 360 degree overlook of ground level 
area, including the open parking area. 

 
G58. Garbage/recycling areas and other similar structures should be located out of public view in areas that 
mitigate noise impacts and which do not conflict with pedestrian traffic. 

➔ Garbage is located in a screened enclosure at the rear of the site, away from public view. 
 
G35. Tree planting 

• Where space permits, landscaped areas, boulevards and setback areas adjacent to streets should be 
planted with trees with appropriate soil volumes to ensure longevity 
➔ Trees will be provided along the front yard and both side yards as per the landscape plan. 

 
MF1. All multifamily developments should incorporate community amenity spaces that provide opportunity 
for recreation and play and address the needs of all age groups likely to reside within the development. 

➔ This development includes a shared Gym, indoor flex space, shared rooftop terrace, and 
shared passive roof garden on the 5th floor. 
 

MF3. Amenity spaces should incorporate vegetation for the purposes of active and passive recreation and/or 
visual interest, and incorporate safe play areas in interior courtyards. 

➔ Both the rooftop terrace and 5th floor roof garden are heavily landscaped and included 
within the attached landscape design. At-grade landscaping is also robust around the 
courtyard area. 

 
MF4. Visitor parking should be: 
• in public view, 
• easily accessible near the main entry to the site, and 
• clearly indicated by pavement markings and/or signs 

➔ Visitor parking is easily accessed from Riverside Drive and clearly allocated as surface 
outdoors stalls (separated from resident parking via gate). 

 
MF5. Electric vehicle charging stations should be provided in larger developments 

➔ Several electric vehicle chargers will be provided within this development. 
 

- 366 -



 

5 
 

 
MF9. To increase their attractiveness, taller buildings should demonstrate: 
• high-quality cohesive design of form, materials and color. 

➔ Only high-quality materials are used in this development, and profiles/colors have been 
carefully chosen to present a cohesive look. 

 
 
Conclusion 
 
This project will provide a range of new home options within walking/biking distance of jobs, shopping, 
and services. Focusing this type of low impact medium density on the periphery of the downtown core 
enhances the variety of housing stock available in the City. The variance requested is minor in nature and 
mitigated with functional, creative design elements. The applicant kindly requests support from staff and 
council on this application. 

 

- 367 -



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 

Development Permit 

Permit Number: DP PL2022-9352 

Owner Name 
Owner Address 

 Conditions of Permit  

1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. This permit applies to:  

Legal: Lot A District Lot 3 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) 
District Plan EPP92730 

Civic: 970 Dynes Avenue 

PID: 030-802-202 

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 489 of the Local Government Act, to permit 
the construction of a 26-unit, six-storey apartment building as shown in the plans attached in 
Schedule ‘A’. 

4. In accordance with Section 489 of the Local Government Act, the following provisions of the City of 
Penticton Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 are varied by this permit: 

a. Section 10.10.3.2: to reduce the minimum amenity space required at the ground floor level from 
25% to 13%. 

5. In accordance with Section 502 of the Local Government Act a deposit or irrevocable letter of credit, 
in the amount of $_______________ must be deposited prior to, or in conjunction with, an 
application for a building permit for the development authorized by this permit. The City may apply 
all or part of the above-noted security in accordance with Section 502 of the Local Government Act, 
to undertake works or other activities required to:  

a. correct an unsafe condition that has resulted from a contravention of this permit,  

b. satisfy the landscaping requirements of this permit as shown in Schedule ‘A’ or otherwise 
required by this permit, or 

c. repair damage to the natural environment that has resulted from a contravention of this permit.  

6. The holder of this permit shall be eligible for a refund of the security described under Condition 5 
only if: 

a. The permit has lapsed as described under Condition 9, or 

b. A completion certificate has been issued by the Building Inspection Department and the Director 
of Development Services is satisfied that the conditions of this permit have been met.    

 

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 368 -



7. Upon completion of the development authorized by this permit, an application for release of 
securities (Landscape Inspection & Refund Request) must be submitted to the Planning Department. 
Staff may carry out inspections of the development to ensure the conditions of this permit have been 
met. Inspection fees may be withheld from the security in accordance with the City of Penticton Fees 
and Charges Bylaw (as amended from time to time). 

General Conditions  

8. In accordance with Section 501(2) of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this permit shall 
be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached as Schedule ‘A’.  

9. In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit does not 
commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the date of this permit, this 
permit shall lapse. 

10. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the holder of 
this permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection Department.  

11. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The holder of this 
permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or provincial approvals prior to 
commencing the development authorized by this permit.  

12. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the building permit 
stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements and electrical servicing. There 
may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs payable at a later date. For more information on 
servicing and infrastructure requirements please contact the Development Engineering Department 
at (250) 490-2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, please contact the Electric Utility 
at (250) 490-2535.    

Authorized by City Council, the ____ day of ____________, 2022. 

Issued this ____ day of ____________, 2022. 

_________________________ 

Angela Collison 
Director of Development Services 

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 369 -



F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

7/26/22 2:13:10 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

REVISED IF DP,  2022-07-26

DYNES CONDO

A0.00D

COVER PAGE

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

DYNES MULTI-FAMILY DEVELOPMENT

ARCHITECTURAL
NEW TOWN ARCHITECTURE & ENGINEERING
200-1464 ST. PAUL STREET
KELOWNA, BC V1Y 2E6
e: roman@newtownservices.net t: (250) 860-8185

LANDSCAPE
CTQ CONSULTANTS
1334 ST PAUL STREET
KELOWNA, BC V1Y 2E1
e: BDouglas@ctqconsultants.ca t: (250) 979-1221

A0.00D COVER PAGE

A0.01D SYMBOLS, ABBREVIATIONS & NOTES

A0.02D ZONING & BYLAW

A1.01D SITE PLAN

A1.02D EXISTING SITE PLAN

A3.01D LEVEL 1 FLOOR PLAN

A3.02D LEVEL 2 FLOOR PLAN

A3.03D LEVEL 3 FLOOR PLAN

A3.04D LEVEL 4 FLOOR PLAN

A3.05D LEVEL 5 FLOOR PLAN

A3.06D LEVEL 6 FLOOR PLAN

A3.07D LEVEL 7 FLOOR PLAN

A3.08D ROOF PLAN

A4.00D MATERIALS

A4.01D BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A4.02D BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A4.03D BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A5.01D BUILDING SECTIONS

A5.02D BUILDING SECTIONS

A5.03D BUILDING SECTIONS

A8.01D UNIT PLANS

A8.02D UNIT PLANS

A8.03D UNIT PLANS

A8.04D UNIT PLANS

A9.01D RENDERINGS

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

LDP 1 LANDSCAPE PLAN - ON SITE
LDP 2 LANDSCAPE PLAN - OFF SITE
LDP 3 LANDSCAPE PLAN - 5TH FLOOR
LDP 4 LANDSCAPE PLAN - ROOFTOP

CIVIL
McELHENNEY
290 NANAIMO AVE
PENTICTON, BC V2A 1N5
e: rchauhan@mcelhenney.com t: (250) 492-7399

C00 COVER SHEET
C01 EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS & REMOVALS PLAN
C02 DYNES AVENUE OFFSITE WORK PLAN & PROFILE
C03 SITE SERVICING PLAN
C04 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN
C05 MMCD STANDARD DETAILS
C06 CITY OF PENTICTON STANDARD DETAILS

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 370 -



PROJECT NAME BUILDING CODE REVIEW
ADDRESS:
970 DYNES AVENUE, PENTICTON, V2A 1E8, BRITISH COLUMBIA, CANADA

LEGAL ADDRESS:
LOT A, DISTRICT LOT 3, GROUP 7, SIMILKAMEEN DIVISION YALE (FORMERLY YALE LYTTON), DISTRICT PLAN EPP92730

GRADES:
EXISTING: FLAT w/ SINGLE DETACHED PROPOSED: FLAT w/ APARTMENTS

NUMBER OF BUILDINGS:
1x 6-STOREY BUILDING (26 UNITS)

BUILDING CLASSIFICATIONS

MAJOR OCCUPANCIES:
GROUP C; ANY HEIGHT, ANY AREA, SPRINKLERED.
SECTION 3.2.2.47

1. EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY ARTICLES 3.2.2.48. TO 3.2.2.54., A BUILDING CLASSIFIED AS GROUP C SHALL CONFORM TO
SENTENCE (2).

2. EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY ARTICLE 3.2.2.16., THE BUILDING REFERRED TO IN SENTENCE (1) SHALL BE OF 
NONCOMBUSTIBLE CONSTRUCTION, AND
a. EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY SENTENCES 3.2.2.7.(1) AND 3.2.2.18.(2), THE BUILDING SHALL BE SPRINKLERED 

THROUGHOUT,
b. EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY SENTENCE (3), FLOOR ASSEMBLIES SHALL BE FIRE SEPARATIONS WITH A FIRE-

RESISTANCE RATING NOT LESS THAN 2 H,
c. MEZZANINES SHALL HAVE A FIRE-RESISTANCE RATING NOT LESS THAN 1 H, AND
d. LOADBEARING WALLS, COLUMNS AND ARCHES SHALL HAVE A FIRE-RESISTANCE RATING NOT LESS THAN 

THAT REQUIRED FOR THE SUPPORTED ASSEMBLY.
3. IN A BUILDING THAT CONTAINS DWELLING UNITS THAT HAVE MORE THAN ONE STOREY, SUBJECT TO THE 

REQUIREMENTS OF SENTENCE 3.3.4.2.(3), THE FLOOR ASSEMBLIES, INCLUDING FLOORS OVER BASEMENTS, WHICH 
ARE ENTIRELY CONTAINED WITHIN THESE DWELLING UNITS, SHALL HAVE A FIRE-RESISTANCE RATING NOT LESS 
THAN 1 H BUT NEED NOT BE CONSTRUCTED AS FIRE SEPARATIONS.

ZONING ANALYSIS
EXISTING: PROPOSED:
RM3 - MEDIUM DENSITY MULTIPLE HOUSING RM3 - MEDIUM DENSITY MULTIPLE HOUSING

RM3 ZONING REQUIREMENTS
REQUIRED: PROPOSED:

SITE AREA (m²)

1,400.00m² 1,692.58m² (18218.78 SF)

SITE WIDTH (m)
25.0m 36.58m

SITE DEPTH (m)
N/A 45.59m

MAXIMUM SITE COVERAGE FOR BUILDINGS (%)
50.0% (846.29m²) 48.15%

MAXIMUM SITE COVERAGE INCLUDING PARKING & DRIVEWAYS (%)

60.0% (1,015.55m²) 52.34% (TOTAL COVERAGE)

SITE COVERAGE BREAKDOWN

BUILDING (TOTAL) 48.15% 814.97m² (8,772.28 SF)
SOFT LANDSCAPING 21.04% 356.13m² (3,833.35 SF)
GRAVEL (TRANSFORMER) 0.49% 8.45m² (90.98 SF)
NON-PERMEABLE PAVED 4.19% 71.03m² (764.63 SF)
PERMEABLE PAVED 22.25% 376.67m² (4,054.46 SF)

GRASS / SOD 3.88% 65.33m² (703.20 SF)

DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS
REQUIRED: PROPOSED:

TOTAL NUMBER & TYPES OF UNITS:
26 UNITS

6x 1-BED
10x 2-BED
10x 3-BED

FLOOR AREA (GFA/NFA)(m²):

2,708.13m² (29,150.05 SF) MAXIMUM (BASED ON 1.6 FAR) 2,683.23m² (28,882.12 SF)

FLOOR AREA RATIO:
1.6 1.58

BUILDING HEIGHT (m):
24.0m MAX 21.64m

SETBACKS (m):
FRONT (NORTH - DYNES) 3.0m 3.0m (REFER TO PLANS & ELEVATIONS)
SIDE A (EAST) 4.5m 6.0m
SIDE B (WEST) 4.5m 5.8m
BACK (SOUTH - LANE) 6.0m 6.0m (REFER TO PLANS & ELEVATIONS)

PRIVATE OPEN SPACE (m²):

LEVEL 1 25% OF TOTAL (140m²) 65.58m²
LEVEL 2 120.00m² 148.68m²
LEVEL 3 120.00m² 148.68m²
LEVEL 4 100.00m² 162.44m²
LEVEL 5 100.00m² 179.72m²
LEVEL 6 80.00m² 171.93m²
LEVEL 7 N/A 211.93m²
TOTAL 520.00m² 1,088.96m²

PARKING STALLS:
REGULAR 26 (1 PER DWELLING) 20
SMALL N/A 6
SUB-TOTAL 26 25

ACCESSIBLE 2 2
VISITOR 6.75 (0.25 PER DWELLING) 5
LOADING 0 0  
TOTAL 32 30

(-1 STALL FOR +5 LONG TERM STALLS)
31 TOTAL REQUIRED
(-1 STALL PAID-IN-LIEU)

BIKE STALLS:
CLASS 1 13 (0.5 PER DWELLING) 20
CLASS 2 3 (0.1 PER DWELLING) 3

FIRE RATINGS
* THE FOLLOWING TABLE IS BASED ON THE MOST STRINGENT REQUIREMENTS OF THE BRITISH COLUMBIA BUILDING CODE 
2012.

ROOF FIRE RATING: N/A BCBC 3.6.2.1.10.
FLOOR/CEILING ASSEMBLIES RATING: 120min BCBC 3.2.2.47. (2) a)
LOAD BEARING WALLS/COLUMNS/ARCHES: 120min BCBC 3.2.2.47. (2) c)
ELECT. ROOMS: 60min BCBC 3.6.2.1. (6)
FUEL FIRED APPLIANCES (MECH ROOM): 60min BCBC 3.6.2.1. (1)
GLASS BLOCKS: 60min BCBC 3.1.8.16. (1)

TABLE 3.2.3.1.C UPROTECTED OPENING LIMITS FOR A BUILDING OR FIRE COMPARTMENT
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE OPENING: #m²
OPENING PROVIDED: #m²

EXIT REQUIREMENTS
BCBC SECTION: DESCRIPTION:

3.2.7.3. EMERGENCY LIGHTING REQUIRED.
3.2.7.5. EMERGENCY POWER REQUIRED.
3.2.8.4 INTERCONNECTED FLOOR SPACES SHALL BE SPRINKLERED THROUGHOUT
3.4.2.5.1) c) MAXIMUM TRAVEL DISTANCE TO EXITS IS 45 M (148 FT.).TRAVEL DISTANCE 

BASED ON FIRE PROTECTION SPRINKLER SYSTEM INSTALLED.
(SEE ALSO SECTION 3.3.3.5.7).

3.6.2.1.10. A FIRE SEPARATION IS NOT REQUIRED BETWEEN A ROOF-TOP APPLIANCE AND 
THE BUILDING IT SERVES

SITE LOCATION

STREET VIEW - DYNES AVENUE LOOKING SOUTH

STREET VIEW - DYNES AVENUE LOOKING SOUTH/EAST

STREET VIEW - RIVERSIDE DRIVE LOOKING NORTH

STREET VIEW - NEIGHBOURS DRIVEWAY LOOKING WEST

NORTH

FAR CALCULATIONS
No. NAME AREA (m²) AREA (SF)

LEVEL 1:
101 LOBBY 46.06m² 495.80 SF
102 FOYER 10.68m² 115.02 SF
103 MAIL 6.16m² 66.39 SF
106 VEST. 4.87m² 52.52 SF
107 CORR. 15.01m² 161.58 SF

82.78m² 891.31 SF

LEVEL 2:
201 CORRIDOR 52.44m² 564.48 SF
202 UNIT 3A 107.39m² 1,155.97 SF
203 UNIT 1A 54.46m² 586.21 SF
204 UNIT 2A 79.45m² 855.21 SF
205 UNIT 2B 76.41m² 822.51 SF
206 UNIT 1A 54.58m² 587.51 SF
207 UNIT 2B 79.19m² 852.49 SF

503.92m² 5,424.38 SF

LEVEL 3:
301 CORRIDOR 52.44m² 564.48 SF
302 UNIT 3A 107.39m² 1,155.97 SF
303 UNIT 1A 54.46m² 586.21 SF
304 UNIT 2A 79.45m² 855.21 SF
305 UNIT 2B 76.41m² 822.51 SF
306 UNIT 1A 54.58m² 587.51 SF
307 UNIT 2B 79.19m² 852.49 SF
308 GYM 44.58m² 479.92 SF

548.50m² 5,904.30 SF

LEVEL 4:
401 CORRIDOR 52.23m² 562.27 SF
402 UNIT 3B 134.37m² 1,446.40 SF
403 UNIT 3C 103.98m² 1,119.26 SF
404 UNIT 2B 76.41m² 822.51 SF
405 UNIT 1A 54.58m² 587.51 SF
406 UNIT 2B 79.19m² 852.49 SF
407 FLEX 44.58m² 479.92 SF

545.34m² 5,870.36 SF

LEVEL 5:
501 CORRIDOR 52.23m² 562.27 SF
502 UNIT 3B 134.37m² 1,446.40 SF
503 UNIT 3C 103.98m² 1,119.26 SF
504 UNIT 2B 76.41m² 822.51 SF
505 UNIT 1A 54.58m² 587.51 SF
506 UNIT 2B 79.19m² 852.49 SF

500.76m² 5,390.44 SF

LEVEL 6:
601 CORRIDOR 48.94m² 526.79 SF
602 UNIT 3B 134.37m² 1,446.40 SF
603 UNIT 3C 103.98m² 1,119.26 SF
604 UNIT 3D 100.43m² 1,081.12 SF
605 UNIT 3D 104.90m² 1,129.21 SF

492.62m² 5,302.78 SF

LEVEL 7:
701 FOYER 9.15m² 98.56 SF

9.15m² 98.56 SF

TOTALS: 2,683.23m² 28,882.12 SF

BALCONY CALCULATIONS
NAME AREA (m²) AREA (SF)

UNIT 1A 14.87m² 160.08 SF
UNIT 2A 20.18m² 217.28 SF
UNIT 2B 24.06m² 259.06 SF
UNIT 3A 36.93m² 397.60 SF
UNIT 3B 44.37m² 477.64 SF
UNIT 3C 27.62m² 297.32 SF
UNIT 3D 31.50m² 339.10 SF

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

1 : 10

7/27/22 8:16:58 AM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A0.02D

ZONING &
BYLAW

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 371 -

drafter



DYNES AVENUE

RIVERSIDE DRIVE

WATER SUPPLY

STORMWATER

ELECTRIC
(OVERHEAD)

87° 31' 25" 36.588 m

2
° 

2
3
' 
4
5
"

4
6
.9

3
5
 m

89° 37' 21" 36.604 m

2
° 

2
4
' 
1
6
"

4
5
.5

9
3
 m

A4.02D 2

A4.01D2

A4.02D

1

A4.01D

1

A4.03D

2

A4.03D

1

PRIVATE OPEN 
GRASS AREA

PUBLIC PLAZA

PUBLIC OPEN 
GRASS AREA

TR
AN

SFO
R
M

ER

NEW FIRE 
HYDRANT

EXISTING POLE 
TO BE REMOVED

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

3
.0

 m

SETBACK

4.5 m

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

GARBAGE

BIKE PARK
3x CLASS 2

MECH.

VISITOR 
PARKING (x4)

1
.8

m
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 B

L
O

C
K

 F
E

N
C

E

1
.8

m
 P

A
IN

T
E

D
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 B

L
O

C
K

 F
E

N
C

E

1.8m PAINTED CONCRETE BLOCK FENCE

1.8m PAINTED CONCRETE BLOCK FENCE
1.8m PAINTED CONCRETE BLOCK FENCE

1.8m SLIDING VEHICLE GATE1.8m SLIDING VEHICLE GATE

OPEN AIR 
PARKADE (x27)

NEW SIDEWALK

NEW ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

1
.2

 m
1
.2

 m

NEW LANDSCAPE 
STREET BUFFER

SECONDARY 
ENTRY

NEW ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

PROPOSED 
BUILDING

LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE
LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

17

18

20

19

PARKING
(NON-PERMEABLE)

PARKING
(PERMEABLE)

PARKING
(NON-PERMEABLE)

PARKING
(NON-PERMEABLE)

01

12

13

V01
V04

SMALL

SM
ALL

SM
ALL

SM
ALL

SM
ALL

SM
ALL

SM
ALL

25

ELEV.

STAIRS

STAIRS

ELEC.

FOYER

1.8m PAINTED CONCRETE BLOCK FENCE

MAIL

MAIN 
ENTRY

DEMOLISH EXISTING 
SERVICE LINES

(T
Y

P
)

2
.7

 m

(TYP)

5.8 m
7.0 m

ACCESSIBLE

5.8 m 1.7 m

ONE WAY DRIVE AISLE

4.1 m

(S
M

ALL
)

4.
8 

m

(S
M

A
LL)

2.5 m

2
.5

 m

0
. 7

 m

O
N

E
 W

A
Y

 D
R

IV
E

 A
IS

L
E

4
.1

 m
2
.7

 m
0
.3

 m

1
.1

 m

0
.4

 m

0.3 m

0.3 m

2
.7

 m
0
.3

 m

0
. 5

 m

LANDSCAPE

3.9 m

LANDSCAPE

3.0 m

LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

0
.3

 m

A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
L
E

3
.7

 m
0
.7

 m

A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
L
E

3
.7

 m
0
.3

 m

FIRE ALARM & 
ANNUNCIATOR 
PANELS

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
CONNECTION &
KEY BOX

A4.03D

3

PARKING
(PERMEABLE)

PARKING
(PERMEABLE)

0
.3

 m

NORTH

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

1 : 100

7/26/22 2:13:14 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A1.01D

SITE PLAN

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

KEYNOTES - SITE
I.D DESCRIPTION

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 372 -



DYNES AVENUE

WATER SUPPLY

STORMWATER

EXISTING POLE

ELECTRIC
(OVERHEAD)

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

1 : 100

7/26/22 2:13:15 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A1.02D

EXISTING SITE
PLAN

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 373 -



AREA: 220 SF
MECH.

104

3047

10' - 0"

5800

19' - 0 3/8"

7010

23' - 0"

5800

19' - 0 3/8"

2
7
0
0

8
' -

 1
0
 1

/4
"

2
7
0
0

8
' -

 1
0
 1

/4
"

PUBLIC PLAZAPUBLIC OPEN 
GRASS AREA

BIKE PARK
3x CLASS 2

EXISTING POLE 
TO BE REMOVED

BIKE / DOG WASH

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

3
.0

 m

SETBACK

4.5 m

SETBACK

4.5 m

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

6
.0

 m

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

GARBAGE

16

17

20

19

PARKING
(NON-PERMEABLE)

PARKING
(PERMEABLE)

PARKING
(NON-PERMEABLE)

PARKING
(NON-PERMEABLE)

01

13

V01

V04

SMALL

S
M

A
LL

S
M

A
LL

S
M

A
LL

S
M

A
LL

S
M

A
LL

S
M

A
LL

25

AREA: 130.5 SF
ELEC.

105

AREA: 500.94 SF
LOBBY

101

ELEV.

EV01

AREA: 114.3 SF
FOYER

102

STAIRS
ST01

STAIRS
ST02

NEW FIRE 
HYDRANT

FIRE ALARM & 
ANNUNCIATOR 
PANELS

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
CONNECTION &
KEY BOX

AREA: 43.14 SF
MAIL

103 PRIVATE OPEN 
GRASS AREA

4.5 m

PUBLIC OPEN 
GRASS AREA

LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE LINE OF FLOOR ABOVE

343.00 m

TR
A
N
S
FO

R
M

E
R

TD: 12.35 m

MAX: 15m

T
D

: 
9

.8
9
 m

4.7 m

7
.9

 m

5
.6

 m

CORR.
107

VEST.

106

PARKING
(PERMEABLE)

NORTH

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

1/8" = 1'-0"

7/26/22 2:13:17 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A3.01D

LEVEL 1 FLOOR
PLAN

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

KEYNOTES - FLOOR PLAN
I.D DESCRIPTION

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 374 -



AREA: 1119.18 SF
UNIT 3A

202

AREA: 574.2 SF
UNIT 1A

203

AREA: 824.18 SF
UNIT 2A

204

AREA: 780.52 SF
UNIT 2B

205

AREA: 573.13 SF
UNIT 1A

206

AREA: 816.37 SF
UNIT 2B

207

ELEC.

AREA: 571.69 SF
CORR.

201

TRAVEL DISTANCE: 5.39 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE: 5.24 m

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

3
.0

 m

SETBACK

4.5 m

SETBACK

4.5 m

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

6
.0

 m

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

ELEV.

M
E

C
H

 R
IS

E

STAIRS

ST02

STAIRS

ST01

AREA: 607.28 SF
BIKE STORE (20)

208

BIKE SERVICE

0.6 m

0.6 m

0
.6

 m

0
.2

 m

346.35 m

(TYP)

0.6 m

1
.8

 m
1
.3

 m
0
.8

 m
1
.3

 m
1
.8

 m
4.3 m 1.8 m

4
.5

 m

5.4 m

7
.2

 m

8.8 m

NORTH

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

1/8" = 1'-0"

7/26/22 2:13:19 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A3.02D

LEVEL 2 FLOOR
PLAN

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

KEYNOTES - FLOOR PLAN
I.D DESCRIPTION

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 375 -



S
E

T
B

A
C

K

3
.0

 m

SETBACK

4.5 m

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

6
.0

 m

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

AREA: 1119.18 SF
UNIT 3A

302

AREA: 574.2 SF
UNIT 1A

303

AREA: 824.18 SF
UNIT 2A

304

AREA: 780.52 SF
UNIT 2B

305

AREA: 573.13 SF
UNIT 1A

306

AREA: 816.64 SF
UNIT 2B

307

AREA: 579.89 SF
CORR.

301

ELEV.

M
E

C
H

 R
IS

E

STAIRS

ST02

STAIRS

ST01

TRAVEL DISTANCE: 5.39 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE: 5.24 m

0.6 m

0
.6

 m

0
.3

 m

SETBACK

4.5 m

0.6 m

349.40 m

AREA: 488.39 SF
GYM

308

DATA

4
.5

 m

5.4 m

7
.2

 m

8.8 m

NORTH

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

1/8" = 1'-0"

7/26/22 2:13:21 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A3.03D

LEVEL 3 FLOOR
PLAN

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 376 -



SETBACK

4.5 m

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

6
.0

 m

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

AREA: 572.06 SF
CORR.

401

ELEC.
ELEV.

M
E

C
H

 R
IS

E

STAIRS

ST02

STAIRS

ST01

TRAVEL DISTANCE: 5.39 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE: 5.19 m

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

3
.0

 m

SETBACK

4.5 m

0
.2

 m

AREA: 780.52 SF
UNIT 2B

404

AREA: 573.13 SF
UNIT 1A

405

AREA: 816.64 SF
UNIT 2B

406

0
.6

 m

0.6 m

0.6 m

352.45 m

AREA: 488.39 SF
FLEX

407

AREA: 1080.18 SF
UNIT 3C

403

AREA: 1383.86 SF
UNIT 3B

402

5
.4

 m

5.4 m8.8 m

7
.2

 m

NORTH

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

1/8" = 1'-0"

7/26/22 2:13:23 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A3.04D

LEVEL 4 FLOOR
PLAN

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 377 -



SETBACK

4.5 m

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

6
.0

 m

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

AREA: 572.29 SF
CORR.

501

AREA: 780.52 SF
UNIT 2B

504

AREA: 573.13 SF
UNIT 1A

505

AREA: 816.64 SF
UNIT 2B

506

AREA: 253.03 SF
ROOF GARDEN

507

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

3
.0

 m

0.6 m

SETBACK

4.5 m

0
.6

 m
0.6 m

0
.3

 m

ELEV.

M
E

C
H

 R
IS

E

STAIRS

ST02

STAIRS

ST01

TRAVEL DISTANCE: 5.39 m

355.50 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE: 5.19 m

AREA: 1080.18 SF
UNIT 3C

503

AREA: 1383.86 SF
UNIT 3B

502

DATA

5
.4

 m

5.4 m8.8 m

7
.2

 m

NORTH

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

1/8" = 1'-0"

7/26/22 2:13:25 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A3.05D

LEVEL 5 FLOOR
PLAN

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 378 -



AREA: 1086.19 SF
UNIT 3D

605

AREA: 1029.13 SF
UNIT 3D

604

SETBACK

4.5 m

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

6
.0

 m

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

AREA: 1080.18 SF
UNIT 3C

603

AREA: 554.54 SF
CORR.

601

AREA: 1384.12 SF
UNIT 3B

602

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

3
.0

 m

SETBACK

4.5 m

0.6 m

0.6 m

0
.2

 m

0
.6

 m

ELEC.
ELEV.

M
E

C
H

 R
IS

E

STAIRS

ST02

STAIRS

ST01

TRAVEL DISTANCE: 4.41 m

TRAVEL DISTANCE: 3.97 m

358.54 m

5
.4

 m

5.4 m8.8 m

8
.1

 m

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

1/8" = 1'-0"

7/26/22 2:13:27 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A3.06D

LEVEL 6 FLOOR
PLAN

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 379 -



AREA: 100.93 SF
FOYER

701

AREA: 2281.18 SF
ROOFTOP BALCONY

703

SOLAR PANELS

704

VIEWING 
DECK

BBQ

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

3
.0

 m

SETBACK

4.5 m

SETBACK

4.5 m

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

6
.0

 m

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

0
.5

 m

ELEV.

M
E

C
H

 R
IS

E

STAIRS

ST02

STAIRS

ST01

0.5 m

0.6 m

0.6 m

0.4 m

0
.5

 m

0
.6

 m

361.59 m

MECHANICAL 
EQUIPMENT

SINK

8.8 m

1
7

.3
 m

15.8 m

1
3
.5

 m

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

1/8" = 1'-0"

7/26/22 2:13:29 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A3.07D

LEVEL 7 FLOOR
PLAN

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 380 -



S
E

T
B

A
C

K

3
.0

 m

SETBACK

4.5 m

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

6
.0

 m

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

PROPERTY LINE

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

0
.5

 m

0.6 m

0.6 m

0.5 m

0
.5

 m

0.4 m

0
.6

 m

NORTH

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

1/8" = 1'-0"

7/26/22 2:13:31 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A3.08D

ROOF PLAN

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 381 -



MANUFACTURER: T.B.C
PRODUCT: COMPOSITE PANEL
COLOUR & CODE: WHITE
I.D NUMBER:

SAMPLE FOR COLOUR 
PURPOSES ONLY

MANUFACTURER:
PRODUCT: GATES & FENCES
COLOUR & CODE:
I.D NUMBER:

SAMPLE FOR VISUAL 
PURPOSES ONLY

MANUFACTURER:
PRODUCT: PERMIABLE PAVING
COLOUR & CODE:
I.D NUMBER:

SAMPLE FOR VISUAL 
PURPOSES ONLY

MANUFACTURER:
PRODUCT: GLASS BALUSTRADE w/ WOOD HANDRAIL
COLOUR & CODE:
I.D NUMBER:

SAMPLE FOR VISUAL 
PURPOSES ONLY

MANUFACTURER: NEWTECHWOOD
PRODUCT: WALL SIDING
COLOUR & CODE: PERUVIAN TEAK
I.D NUMBER: UH61

SAMPLE FOR COLOUR 
PURPOSES ONLY

MANUFACTURER: T.B.C
PRODUCT: COMPOSITE PANEL
COLOUR & CODE: BLACK
I.D NUMBER:

SAMPLE FOR COLOUR 
PURPOSES ONLY

MANUFACTURER: T.B.C
PRODUCT: GLASS STOREFRONT/CURTAIN WALL
COLOUR & CODE:
I.D NUMBER:

SAMPLE FOR COLOUR 
PURPOSES ONLY

MANUFACTURER:
PRODUCT: BIKE RACK
COLOUR & CODE: GALVANISED
I.D NUMBER:

SAMPLE FOR VISUAL 
PURPOSES ONLY

MANUFACTURER:
PRODUCT: LANDSCAPE SEATING
COLOUR & CODE:
I.D NUMBER:

SAMPLE FOR VISUAL 
PURPOSES ONLY

MANUFACTURER:
PRODUCT: GARBAGE ENCLOSURE
COLOUR & CODE:
I.D NUMBER:

SAMPLE FOR VISUAL 
PURPOSES ONLY

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

1 : 10

7/26/22 2:13:32 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A4.00D

MATERIALS

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 382 -



1. WOOD SIDING

2. COMPOSITE PANEL - WHITE

3. COMPOSITE PANEL - BLACK

4. GLASS CURTAIN WALL

5. GLASS BALUSTRADE

6. PAINTED CONCRETE

7. CONCRETE COLUMN

8. WINDOW w/ PREFINISHED WHITE FRAME

9. EXTERIOR GLAZED DOOR w/ PREFINISHED WHITE FRAME

10. PREMANUFACTURED GATE

11. PLANTER BOX - WOOD FINISH

12. PLANTER BOX - PAINTED FINISH

13. GLASS BLOCKS

14. VERTICAL WOOD SCREEN

MATERIAL LEGEND

LEVEL 1
343 m

LEVEL 2
346.353 m

LEVEL 4
352.449 m

LEVEL 3
349.401 m

LEVEL 5
355.497 m

LEVEL 6
358.545 m

LEVEL 7
361.593 m

ROOF
364.641 m

2
1
6
4
1

7
1
' -

 0
"

1
6
7
6

5
' -

 6
"

4500

14' - 9 1/8"

4500

14' - 9 1/8"

5. 12.7. 7.2. 9.

0.4 m

LEVEL 1
343 m

LEVEL 2
346.353 m

LEVEL 4
352.449 m

LEVEL 3
349.401 m

LEVEL 5
355.497 m

LEVEL 6
358.545 m

LEVEL 7
361.593 m

ROOF
364.641 m

1
6
7
6

5
' -

 6
"

2
1
6
4
1

7
1
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
3
5
3

1
1
' -

 0
"

3000

9' - 10 1/8"

6000

19' - 8 1/4"

1.3. 5.7.

7.

7.7. 7. 2.9.6.

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

As indicated

7/26/22 2:13:41 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A4.01D

BUILDING
ELEVATIONS

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

KEYNOTES - ELEVATION
I.D DESCRIPTION

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

A1.01D 1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION1

A1.01D 1/8" = 1'-0"

EAST ELEVATION2

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 383 -



1. WOOD SIDING

2. COMPOSITE PANEL - WHITE

3. COMPOSITE PANEL - BLACK

4. GLASS CURTAIN WALL

5. GLASS BALUSTRADE

6. PAINTED CONCRETE

7. CONCRETE COLUMN

8. WINDOW w/ PREFINISHED WHITE FRAME

9. EXTERIOR GLAZED DOOR w/ PREFINISHED WHITE FRAME

10. PREMANUFACTURED GATE

11. PLANTER BOX - WOOD FINISH

12. PLANTER BOX - PAINTED FINISH

13. GLASS BLOCKS

14. VERTICAL WOOD SCREEN

MATERIAL LEGEND

LEVEL 1
343 m

LEVEL 2
346.353 m

LEVEL 4
352.449 m

LEVEL 3
349.401 m

LEVEL 5
355.497 m

LEVEL 6
358.545 m

LEVEL 7
361.593 m

ROOF
364.641 m

1
6
7
6

5
' -

 6
"

2
1
6
4
1

7
1
' -

 0
"

4500

14' - 9 1/8"

4500

14' - 9 1/8"

3. 1.7. 7.

7.7.

13.

0.6 m

LEVEL 1
343 m

LEVEL 2
346.353 m

LEVEL 4
352.449 m

LEVEL 3
349.401 m

LEVEL 5
355.497 m

LEVEL 6
358.545 m

LEVEL 7
361.593 m

ROOF
364.641 m

2
1
6
4
1

7
1
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
3
5
3

1
1
' -

 0
"

3000

9' - 10 1/8"

6000

19' - 8 1/4"

7.12.7.

7.

F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

As indicated

7/26/22 2:13:48 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A4.02D

BUILDING
ELEVATIONS

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

KEYNOTES - ELEVATION
I.D DESCRIPTION

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

A1.01D 1/8" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION1

A1.01D 1/8" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION2

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 384 -



1. WOOD SIDING

2. COMPOSITE PANEL - WHITE

3. COMPOSITE PANEL - BLACK

4. GLASS CURTAIN WALL

5. GLASS BALUSTRADE

6. PAINTED CONCRETE

7. CONCRETE COLUMN

8. WINDOW w/ PREFINISHED WHITE FRAME

9. EXTERIOR GLAZED DOOR w/ PREFINISHED WHITE FRAME

10. PREMANUFACTURED GATE

11. PLANTER BOX - WOOD FINISH

12. PLANTER BOX - PAINTED FINISH

13. GLASS BLOCKS

14. VERTICAL WOOD SCREEN

MATERIAL LEGEND

LEVEL 1
343 m

LEVEL 2
346.353 m

LEVEL 4
352.449 m

LEVEL 3
349.401 m

LEVEL 5
355.497 m

LEVEL 6
358.545 m

LEVEL 7
361.593 m

ROOF
364.641 m

4500

14' - 9 1/8"

4500

14' - 9 1/8"

CUT BUILDING

2
1
6
4
1

7
1
' -

 0
"

7.

0.6 m

2. 5.9. 1. 3.

LEVEL 1
343 m

LEVEL 2
346.353 m

LEVEL 4
352.449 m

LEVEL 3
349.401 m

LEVEL 5
355.497 m

LEVEL 6
358.545 m

LEVEL 7
361.593 m

ROOF
364.641 m

4500

14' - 9 1/8"

4500

14' - 9 1/8"

1
6
7
6

5
' -

 6
"

2
1
6
4
1

7
1
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
0
4
8

1
0
' -

 0
"

3
3
5
3

1
1
' -

 0
"

13.5.6.7.

3.

CUT BUILDING

6. 1.2.

1
.8

 m

14.6. 10.6. F
O

R
 P

E
R

M
IT

 O
N

L
Y

Seal

ALL CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO PERFORM 
THEIR WORK AND SUPPLY THEIR PRODUCTS IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL BUILDING CODES AND 
LAWS OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

This drawing is an instrument of service and the 
property of New Town Services. The use of this 
drawing shall be restricted to the original site for which 
it was prepared and publication thereof is expressly 
limited to such use.

This drawing must not be scaled

Verify all dimensions and datums prior to 
commencement of work.

Report all errors and omissions to the Architect.

file no.

drawing title

checked

drawn

designed scale

drawing no.

plotted

project title

project no.

project address

Revisions

As indicated

7/26/22 2:13:53 PM

C:\Users\drafter\Desktop\4179-Dynes-Central_NT_Dale.rvt

DYNES CONDO

A4.03D

BUILDING
ELEVATIONS

4179

970 DYNES AVE

PENTICTON, BC V2A 1E8

DR

DR

RY

No. DATE DESCRIPTION

1 2022-03-25 ISSUED FOR DP

2 2022-06-30 REVISED IF DP

3 2022-07-22 REVISED IF DP

4 2022-07-26 REVISED IF DP

KEYNOTES - ELEVATION
I.D DESCRIPTION

A1.01D 1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH MID-ELEVATION1

A1.01D 1/8" = 1'-0"

SOUTH MID-ELEVATION2

A1.01D 1/8" = 1'-0"

GARBAGE ENCLOSURE3

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 385 -



DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 386 -



DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 387 -



DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 388 -



DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 389 -



Rozměry výrobků mají informativní charakter. Výrobce si vyhrazuje právo na změnu technické specifikace bez předchozího upozornění. Rozměry spodní stavby a způsob osazení výrobku jsou závazné. Rozteče kotev rozměřovat dle rozměrů dodaného výrobku.
All product sizes have an informative character. The producer reserves the right to amend the technical specification at any time without previous warning. The size of foundantion baseplate and the method of mounting of the product are imperative. Anchor spacing measure out by measurements of supplied product.
Die Abmessungen der Produkte sind informativ. Der Hersteller behält sich das Recht an Änderungen der technischen Spezifikationen vor, ohne vorher darauf hinzuweisen. Abmessungen der Fundamentierung – Unterbau und Art des Produkteinbaus sind verbindlich. Ankerabstand gemäß der gelieferten Produktabmessungen dimensionieren.
Dimensions des produits sont à titre informatif seulement. Le fabricant se réserve le droit de modifier les spécifications techniques sans préavis. Dimensions des fondations et manière de  l’implantation du produit sont obligatoire. Ancre écartement dimensions á partir des dimensions du produit livré.
Las dimensiones de los productos tienen carácter informativo. El fabricante se reserva el derecho de cambio de la especificación técnica sin aviso previo. Tanto las dimensiones de las bases de cimentación como el sistema de fijación son inalterables. Hay que medir el espaciamiento de anclajes según las dimensiones del producto suministrado.

dimensions in mm

All rights reserved. Protection of industrial design. 

ILLUSTRATIVE PHOTO 

DATE: 30. 10. 2017     V: 01

ILLUSTRATIVE PHOTO 

  BBQ110 - BIKEBLOCQ 

540185

71
0

DRAFT 

DP PL2
02

2-9
35

2

- 390 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: August 16, 2022      File No:    RMS/93-3245 Paris St 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Jordan Hallam, Planner I 
Address: 93-3245 Paris Street  
 
Subject: Development Variance Permit PL2022-9351 
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9351” for Lot 4 District Lots 189 and 372 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 43502, located at 93-3245 Paris Street, a permit to vary Section 
10.13.2.7.b of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01, to reduce the minimum interior side yard from 6.0 m to 2.1 m, in order 
to facilitate the placement of a mobile home; 

AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9351”. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Community Vitality: The City of Penticton, guided by the Official Community Plan, will promote the 
economic wellbeing and vitality of the community.  

Proposal  

The applicant has placed a mobile home on concrete pad in the White 
Water Mobile Home Park as shown by the light dashed line in Figure 1. 
This variance application has come forward to the City of Penticton as 
there is an active enforcement file for the mobile home being placed 
without active building permits. Furthermore, the mobile home was 
placed on a Fortis easement and Fortis has requested the mobile home 
be moved slightly in order for utilities to be connected. The proposed 
location requested by Fortis is the dark dashed line in Figure 1. 

 

Figure 1 – Mobile Home Location 

- 391 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 11 

Background 

The subject property is located on the west side of Paris St, 
in a primarily residential neighbourhood (Figure 2). The 
property contains the White Water Mobile Home Park. The 
property is designated ‘Ground Oriented Residential’ by 
the Official Community Plan (OCP) and is zoned RSM 
(Mobile Home Park Housing) in the Zoning Bylaw. 

Pad #93 in the White Water Mobile Home Park became 
vacant after a fire burnt down the previous mobile home. 
What was left of the unit after the fire, was removed 
through a demolition permit. The applicant states in their 
letter of intent (Attachment D), that they had to have the 
lot cleaned up prior to the placement of the current mobile 
home due to the site being used as a dumping ground for 
garbage. The mobile home is slightly larger being 14 ft 
wide by 68 ft long compared to other mobile homes in the 
park being 12 ft wide x 54 ft long. The applicant has stated 
however that a number of the other mobile homes have 
additions along the rear and side, making them equivalent in size, 
if not bigger than the one placed at pad #93. 

The mobile home was relocated to the subject property on March 10th, 2022 with no transport, install, or 
work permit posted. In order to place the mobile home on the location, a building move permit, a report on 
environmental issues or hazards, and a Schedule G from the Public Works Department would have been 
required. Staff received a complaint and attended the mobile home to complete an inspection and found 
the mobile home to be placed without permits and within setback. A stop work order was posted on the 
mobile home on March 17th, 2022. Staff have since worked with the applicant and property owner to get a 
land survey completed, and to get a Development Variance Permit submitted to allow the placement of the 
mobile home within the interior setback. 

Climate Impact 

Approval of the variance does not have a climate impact.     

Technical Review 

This application was reviewed by the Technical Planning Committee (TPC). No comments were brought 
forward by the TPC in regards to this application. The applicant will be required to apply for a building 
permit for the proposed mobile home, should Council approve the requested variance. 

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics on the plans submitted with the 
development application: 

 

Figure 2 – Location Map 

Location of 
mobile home 

- 392 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 11 

 
RSM – Mobile Home Park Housing 

Requirement  
Provided on Plans 

Minimum Lot Area*: 2.0 ha 4.2 ha 
Required Setbacks * 
Front Yard (Paris St): 
Side Yard (north): 
Side Yard (south): 
Rear Yard (south): 

 
6.0 m 
6.0 m 
6.0 m 
6.0 m 

 
> 10.0 m 
2.1 m – variance requested 
> 10.0 m 
> 10.0 m 

Comments 
*Regulations apply to the entire mobile home park, not individual pad 
areas. 

 

Analysis 

Development Variance Permit 

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourage Council to consider whether there is a hardship 
that makes meeting the bylaw difficult or impossible, whether approval of the variance would cause a 
negative impact on neighbouring properties and if the variance request is reasonable. The applicant is 
applying to vary Section 10.13.2.7.b of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01, to reduce the minimum interior side yard from 
6.0 m to 2.1 m, in order to facilitate the placement of a mobile home. Staff have reviewed the requested 
variance and are recommending support for the following reasons: 

1. Existing mobile homes along the same property line were placed within the required 6.0 m setback. 

Multiple mobile homes are already located within the interior side yard setback, where the applicant is 
has placed their mobile home. The location requested by Fortis will have the mobile home placed in 
line with the existing mobiles on the subject property. The mobile home to the east is located 1.7 m 
from property line, and the mobile home to the west is located 2.6 m from property line according to 
the land survey provided by the applicant as part of their application. The City of Penticton has aerial 
photos dating back to 1994 showing that existing mobile homes were placed within the side yard 
setback. The placement of this mobile home at pad #93 will have minimal impact to immediate 
neighbours surrounding the mobile home. 

2. Support from neighbours within the mobile home park. 

The applicant has provided two letters of support from neighbours within the White Water Mobile 
Home Park (Attachment E). When applicants propose a variance, staff recommend that the applicant 
contact their neighbours early in the process to obtain their feedback. The immediate neighbours 
within the mobile home park would be most impacted from the location of the mobile home, and 
having their signatures indicates that negative impacts on neighbours is not anticipated. Letters of 
support from neighbours directly to the north on Blairmore Cres., were not submitted with this 
variance application. 

- 393 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 11 

Given the above reasons, staff support the application to allow the placement of the mobile home with a 
2.1m interior side yard setback. Staff recommend that Council approve the development variance permit, 
and direct staff to issue the permit.  

Alternate Recommendations 

Council may consider the requested variance is undesirable and that the applicants should build within the 
Zoning Bylaw regulations. If this is the case, Council should deny “Development Variance Permit PL2022-
9354”. If this decision is made, the applicant would need to move their mobile home to meet the Zoning 
Bylaw regulations. Staff are recommending against this option, as the requested variance is considered 
reasonable in this instance and the letter of intent and letters of support indicates that there will be minimal 
impacts on surrounding properties. 

1. THAT Council, after hearing from the applicant deny “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9351”. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Photos of Property 
Attachment D – Letter of Intent 
Attachment E – Letters of Support 
Attachment F – Draft Development Variance Permit PL2022-9351 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Jordan Hallam 
Planner I 

 

Concurrence  

Director of 
Development Services 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
 

DvD 
 

 

  

- 394 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 11 

Attachment A – Zoning Map

 

  

Location of 
mobile home 

- 395 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 11 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 

  

Location of 
mobile home 

- 396 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 11 

Attachment C – Photos of Property 

 

 

Subject property: 
#93 – 3245 Paris St 

Subject property: 
#93 – 3245 Paris St 

#95 – 3245 Paris St 

- 397 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 11 

 

 

Subject property: 
#93 – 3245 Paris St 

Subject property: 
#93 – 3245 Paris St 

#95 – 3245 Paris St 

#91 – 3245 Paris St 

- 398 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 11 

Attachment D – Letter of Intent 

 

  

- 399 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 11 

Attachment E – Letters of Support 

 

  

- 400 -



 
Council Report  Page 11 of 11 

 

- 401 -



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 

Development Variance Permit 

Permit Number: DVP PL2022-9351 

Owner Name 
Owner Address 

Conditions of Permit  

1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. This permit applies to:  

Legal: Lot 4 District Lots 189 and 372 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 43502 

Civic: 93 – 3245 Paris Street 

PID: 016-295-552 

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 498 of the Local Government Act, to vary 
the following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to allow for the placement of a mobile home, as 
shown in the plans attached in Schedule ‘A’: 

a. Section 10.13.2.7.b: to reduce the minimum interior side yard from 6.0 m to 2.1 m. 

General Conditions  

4. In accordance with Section 501 of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this permit shall 
be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached as Schedule ‘A’.  

5. In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit does not 
commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the date of this permit, this 
permit shall lapse. 

6. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the holder of 
this permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection Department.  

7. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The holder of 
this permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or provincial approvals prior 
to commencing the development authorized by this permit.  

8. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the building permit 
stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements and electrical servicing. 
There may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs payable at a later date. For more 
information on servicing and infrastructure requirements please contact the Development 
Engineering Department at (250) 490-2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, 
please contact the Electric Utility at (250) 490-2535.    

DVP PL2022-9351 Page 1 of 3

DRAFT

- 402 -



Authorized by City Council, the ____ day of August, 2022. 

Issued this ____ day of August, 2022. 

_________________________ 

Angela Collison 
Corporate Officer 

DVP PL2022-9351 Page 2 of 3

DRAFT

- 403 -



DVP PL2022-9351 Page 3 of 3

Sch
ed

ule
 'A

' 

DVP PL2
02

2-9
35

1

- 404 -



 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2021-35  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2021-35 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted an Official Community Plan Bylaw pursuant to the Local 
Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend “Official Community Bylaw No. 2019-08”;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting assembled, 
hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2021-35.” 
 
2. Amendment: 

 
“Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08” is hereby amended as follows: 

 
2.1 Amend Map 1: Future Land Use designations from Industrial and Urban Residential to only Urban 

Residential, as shown on Schedule ‘A’ for Lot 2 District Lots 1, 2 and 4 Group 7 Similkameen 
Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District Plan 36021, located at 955 Timmins Street.  

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
 

READ A FIRST time this 5 day of October, 2021 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 19 day of October, 2021 

READ A SECOND time this 19 day of October, 2021 

READ A THIRD time this 19 day of October, 2021 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
 
 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 12 day of October, 2021 and the 13 day of October, 2021 in the Penticton 
newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter. 

 
 
 
       
John Vassilaki, Mayor 

 
 

       
Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 

- 405 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’

Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2021-35

Date: Corporate Officer:  _____________________________

955 Timmins Street
To amend the Official Community Plan (OCP) future land use designation on the 

subject property from ‘Industrial’ and ‘Urban Residential’ to only ‘Urban Residential’

- 406 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2021-36  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2021-36 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2021-36”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot 2 District Lots 1, 2 and 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Yale-Lytton) District 
Plan 36021, located at 955 Timmins Street from M1 (General Industrial) to RM3 (Medium Density 
Multiple Housing) as shown on Schedule ‘A’. 

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 5 day of October, 2021 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 19 day of October, 2021 

READ A SECOND time this 19 day of October, 2021 

READ A THIRD time this 19 day of October, 2021 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

10 day of August, 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 12 day of October, 2021 and the 13 day of October, 2021 in the 
Penticton newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 
 
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 

 
 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 

- 407 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2021-36

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________

955 Timmins Street
To amend the zoning on the property from M1 (General Industrial) 

to RM3 (Medium Density Multiple Housing)

- 408 -



Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-07   Page 1 of 1 
 

 
The Corporation of the City of Penticton 

 
Bylaw No. 2022-07 

 
A bylaw to amend the Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 2014-07 

 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Fees and Charges Bylaw pursuant to the Community 
Charter; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend “Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 2014-07”; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton in open meeting assembled, 
hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Title: 

 
 This Bylaw may be cited as “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-07”.  
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Amend “Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 2014-07” by deleting and replacing the following 
appendices in their entirety: 

  
Appendix 4 Building Department Fees 
Appendix 6 Cemetery 
Appendix 7 Electric Utility 
Appendix 11 Garbage Rates 
Appendix 18 Parking 
Appendix 19  Parks and Sports Fields 
Appendix 20 Planning and Development 

 
2.2 Appendices 4, 6, 7, 11, 18, 19, 20 attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
 
 
 

READ A FIRST time this 5 day of July, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this 5 day of July, 2022 

READ A THIRD time this 5 day of July, 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

    
 

       
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
 
 
 
        
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer   

- 409 -



BUILDING DEPARTMENT FEES 2021 2022
Building Application Fees
A non-refundable fee is required at time of building permit application  (applied to final 
Building Permit Fee total)

$185.00 $190.00

Building Permit Fee Calculations

$1.00 - $10,000 $185.00 Included in application fee

for every $1,000 of permit value from $10,001 to $500,000
$185.00 + $12.00 per $1,000 of 

Construction Value (between $25,001 
and $500,000)

$12.00

for every $1,000 of permit value from $500,001 to $1,500,000
$6185.00 + $11.00 per $1,000 of 

Construction Value (between 
$500,001 and $1,500,000)

$11.00

for every $1,000 of permit value over $1,500,000
$17,185.00 + $10.00 per $1,000 of 

Construction Value (above 
$1,500,000)

$10.00

Security Deposits 
Foundation Only Permit Security (Complex Buildings only) $25,000.00 $25,000.00
Relocating a home, including a manufactured home $530.00 $530.00

Temporary Building Permit Security 
the greater of $500.00 or 10% of the 

value of the temporary building. 
the greater of $500.00 or 10% of the 

value of the temporary building. 

Partial Occupancy security (maximum $10,000)
the greater of $500.00 or 10% of the 
original value of the building permit 

fee. 

the greater of $500.00 or 10% of the 
original value of the building permit 

fee. 
Plumbing Fees
Minimum application (up to 10 Fixtures - including water/sanitary/storm service
replacement)

$82.00 $84.00

Per Fixture thereafter $10.50 $10.50
For Alteration to an existing system where there are no fixture count changes $82.00 $84.00

Site Plumbing
Single and Two family dwellings
Water service  inspection fee per unit $36.00 $37.00
Sanitary service inspection fee per unit $36.00 $37.00
Storm service inspection fee per unit $36.00 $37.00
Combined water and sewer service inspection fee per unit NA NA
Combined water, sewer and storm service inspection fee per unit NA NA
Water service inspection fee, except single and two family dwellings

First 15 m, or part thereof, plus $36.00 $37.00

Each additional 15 m, or part thereof $25.50 $26.00

Sanitary service inspection fee, except single and two family dwellings
First 15 m, or part thereof, plus $36.00 $37.00

Each additional 15 m, or part thereof $25.50 $26.00

Storm service inspection fee, except single and two family dwellings
First 15 m, or part thereof, plus $36.00 $37.00

Each additional 15 m, or part thereof $25.50 $26.00

Each storm catch basin, sump or oil/grease interceptor $25.50 $26.00

Sprinkler Permits (Including site works)
For first ten (10) sprinkler heads $185.00 $190.00

For each additional sprinkler head $2.25 $2.25

For each Siamese connection, standpipe, hose cabinet, hose outlet $25.50 $26.00

First 15 m of underground fire lines of portion thereof, plus $77.50 $79.00

    each additional 15 m of fire lines of portion thereof. $25.50 $26.00

Each private fire hydrant on private property $25.50 $26.00

Mechanical Permits (Building)
New or Replacement of Mechanical System in a Single or Two Family Dwelling $85.00 $87.00

New installation or replacement of a spray booth or commercial cooking ventilation system $265.00 $270.00

Appendix 4

- 410 -



BUILDING DEPARTMENT FEES 2021 2022

Appendix 4

Demolition Fees
Removal of Building(s) on a property $185.00 $190.00
Security Deposit - refunded upon completion of works and confirmation of hazardous
material assessment and appropriate disposal of waste

$500.00 $500.00

Security Deposit - pre-utility disconnect agreement- refunded upon completion of works
and confirmation of hazardous material assessment and appropriate disposal of waste

$1,000.00 $1,000.00

Locating/Relocating a Building or Structure

Minimum Fee for relocating/placement of mobile home or accessory structure, plus $265.00 $270.00

Minimum Fee for relocating/placement of an existing building or manufactured home, plus $1,070.00 $1,090.00

Additional Building Permit Fee for new work on site for foundations, cribbing, etc.
Calculated as per building application 

fees above
Calculated as per building application 

fees above

Permit Reductions and Additional Charges
Reductions

Complex (Part 3) Building Projects - Where the City has stated in writing that it is relying on 
the Certification by a Professional Engineer or Architect, registered as such under Provincial 
Legislation, that the plans or the aspects of the plans, complied with the Building Code or 
other applicable enactment. 

5% 5%

Simple (Part 9) Building Projects - Where the City has stated in writing that it is relying on the
Certification by Professional Engineers, registered as such under Provincial Legislation, that
the plans or the aspects of the plans, complied with the Building 

10% for every Registered Professional 
Discipline up to 20% maximum. 

10% for every Registered Professional 
Discipline up to 20% maximum. 

Plumbing Permit Homeowner Surcharge

$50 or 25% (whichever is greater) 
surcharge for Single Family new 

construction and renovation projects 
completed by home owners

$50 or 25% (whichever is greater) 
surcharge for Single Family new 

construction and renovation projects 
completed by home owners

BC Energy Step Code - building permit refund for residential projects designed and certified
to Step 04 at time of Occupancy.

5% 5%

Mid-construction blower door test refund for all new Simple (Part 9) residential projects,
issued as of January 01, 2020.

$250 (per residential building) $250 (per residential building)

Permit Fee reduction for delay in permit issuance denial notice. 5%

Additional Fees

Plan Check Fee - For review of revised drawings where more than two plan checks have
been submitted or substantial changes to the approved design during construction that
requires additional Building Code or Zoning Reviews

$110.00 (Plus GST) $110.00 (Plus GST)

Re-Inspection Penalty

$185.00 where more than two 
inspections have been called for.  Fee 

must be paid in full prior to any 
additional inspections or completion 

certificate granted. (Plus GST)

$190.00 where more than two 
inspections have been called for.  Fee 

must be paid in full prior to any 
additional inspections or completion 

certificate granted. (Plus GST)

Alternative Building Code Solutions Review
$215.00 per alternate solution or 
substantial revision to approved 

alternate solution. (Plus GST)

$220.00 per alternate solution or 
substantial revision to approved 

alternate solution. (Plus GST)

After hours inspections or permit application review (minimum one hour)
$185.00 for first hour and $85.00 for 
every subsequent hour. (Plus GST)

$190.00 for first hour and $85.00 for 
every subsequent hour. (Plus GST)

Preliminary Application Reviews - For Stratifications and potential change of use inquiries,
file searches and / or site inspections prior to permit applications.

$265.00 $270.00

Earthworks $265.00 $270.00

Annual Backflow test filing fee per device
Backflow Solutions Incorporated (BSI 

Online) fee plus $5 handling fee
Backflow Solutions Incorporated (BSI 

Online) fee plus $5 handling fee

Blasting Permit $265.00 $270.00

- 411 -



BUILDING DEPARTMENT FEES 2021 2022

Appendix 4

Other Miscellaneous Building Permit Fees

Permit to install a fireplace/stove or chimney $185.00 $190.00

Swimming Pool Permit (Private) $185.00 $190.00

Foundation Permit - Additional Application to above grade Building Permit, plus $185.00 $190.00

Additional Fee shall be charged based on the estimated cost of construction Calculated as per Section 3 Calculated as per Section 3

Secondary Suite $410.00 $420.00

Crane Permits $185.00 $190.00

Change of Use or Occupancy when a Building Permit is not required $185.00 $190.00

Permit Extension Fee - when existing Building Permit has expired
$110 or 10% of original permit fee(s), 

whichever is greater
$110 or 10% of original permit fee(s), 

whichever is greater

Permit Transfer Fee $110.00 (Plus GST) $110.00 (Plus GST)

Solar Panel Permit $190.00

Development Application Refunds

Refunds with respect to development application are to be addressed in the following manner:

Building and Plumbing Permit Fee Refund: 

Building and or Plumbing Permit application submitted, permit not issued – Upon 
cancellation of the Building and or Plumbing Permit application, refund Building Permit and 
or Plumbing Permit fees less an administrative fee of: 

For Single Family, Duplex and smaller developments
$510.00 plus $215.00 for each 
Alternative Solution requested

$520.00 plus $220.00 for each 
Alternative Solution requested

For all other larger developments   
$1020.00 plus $215.00 for each 
Alternative Solution Requested

$1040.00 plus $220.00 for each 
Alternative Solution Requested

Building and or Plumbing Permit issued, no construction started as determined by the 
Director of Development Services – Upon cancellation of the Building and or Plumbing 
Permit, refund Building Permit and or Plumbing Permit fees less an administrative fee of: 

For Single Family, Duplex and smaller developments
$775.00 plus $215.00 for each 

Alternative Solution Requested
$790.00 plus $220.00 for each 

Alternative Solution Requested

For all other larger developments 
$1550.00 plus $215.00 for each 

Alternative Solution
$1575.00 plus $220.00 for each 

Alternative Solution

Building and or Plumbing Permit issued, construction started as determined by the Director 
of Development Services – No refund.

City infrastructure1 requirements as part of Building Permit:

Building permit and/or plumbing permit application submitted, permit not issued – Upon 
cancellation of the building permit and/or plumbing permit application refund City 
infrastructure costs paid by the developer less an administrative fee of: 

For Single Family, Duplex and smaller developments $490.00 $500.00
For all other larger developments $1,025.00 $1,050.00

Building permit and/or plumbing permit issued, construction not started as determined by 
the Director of Development Services and the City infrastructure has not been installed – 
Upon cancellation of the building permit and or plumbing permit refund City infrastructure 
costs paid by the developer less an administrative fee of: 

For Single Family, Duplex Triplex and smaller developments $490.00 $500.00
 For all other larger developments $1,025.00 $1,050.00

Building permit and/or plumbing permit issued, construction not started as determined by
the Director of Development Services and the City infrastructure has been installed – No
refund.

No Refund No Refund

- 412 -



BUILDING DEPARTMENT FEES 2021 2022

Appendix 4

Building permit and/or plumbing permit issued, construction started as determined by the
Director of Development Services and the City infrastructure has not been installed – The
person seeking a refund must make a submission for a refund in the prescribed form to the
Director of Development Services or the designate who will prepare a report for Council’s
consideration.   

Council consideration Council consideration

Council will consider the matter and may by resolution:
a.       authorize the density bonus refund subject to conditions as; or
b.       refuse the request for a density bonus refund; 
c.       refer the matter to staff or a future Council meeting; or
d.       such other determination as Council may direct.
As a requirement of any density bonus refund the development permit and building permit
must be cancelled and the development Permit must be discharged from the title of the
lands. 
Admin. Fee for Single Family, Duplex, Triplex and small Development $490.00 $500.00
For all larger Developments will be held $1,025.00 $1,050.00

Building permit and/or plumbing permit issued, construction started as determined by the
Director of Development Services and the City infrastructure has been installed. 

No Refund No Refund

Notes:
1.       City Infrastructure is defined as:
a.       Any items related to the City of Penticton water, sanitary, storm system including main 
line pipe, appurtenances, services etc.

b.       Any items related to roads, sidewalks, curb, gutter, signs etc.

Sidewalk Uses*
Type 1 Sidewalk Café- Annual Fee $310.00 (Plus GST) $310.00 (Plus GST)
Type 2 Sidewalk Café - Annual Fee $310.00 (Plus GST) $310.00 (Plus GST)
For each parking space or portion thereof occupied by a temporary sidewalk café - Annual 
Fee

$210.00 (Plus GST) $210.00 (Plus GST)

Sidewalk Sales Area or sidewalk seating area - (maximum of 2 tables and 8 seats) $105.00 (Plus GST) $105.00 (Plus GST)

Martin Street and Westminster Avenue Revitalization Project Area - Storefront sales/seating $105.00 (Plus GST) $105.00 (Plus GST)

Martin Street and Westminster Avenue Revitalization Project Area - Storefront Café $310.00 (Plus GST) $310.00 (Plus GST)

Main Street Revitalization Project  Area - Storefront Sales/Seating (100 & 200 blocks) $105.00 (Plus GST) $105.00 (Plus GST)

Main Street Revitalization Project  Area - Storefront Café (100 and 200 blocks) $310.00 (Plus GST) $310.00 (Plus GST)
Main Street Revitalization Project  Area - Storefront Sales/Seating (300 block) n/c to 2022 $310.00 (Plus GST)
Main Street Revitalization Project  Area - Storefront Café (300 block) n/c to 2022 $310.00 (Plus GST)

Vacant Building Registration Fees
Fee for special safety inspection prior to registration permit $520.00 (Plus GST) $520.00 (Plus GST)
Fee for subsequent inspections not related to Vacant Building Registration Permit $180.00 (Plus GST) per inspection $180.00 (Plus GST) per inspection

Fee for Vacant Building Registration Permit (12 months maximum) for each building or
structure located on a single and two family zoned properties

$2,600.00 $2,600.00

Fee for Vacant Building Registration Permit (24 months maximum) for each building or
structure located on all other zoned properties.

$5,200.00 $5,200.00

Fee for additional Vacant Building Registration (12 month maximum) $2,600.00 $2,600.00

Attendance by City of Penticton Fire Services 
Actual costs incurred by the City for 

related labour, materials and 
equipment

Actual costs incurred by the City for 
related labour, materials and 

equipment

Refund

75% of Vacant Building Permit Fee 
may be refunded if it is remediated or 
demolished within first six (6) months 

of registration.

75% of Vacant Building Permit Fee 
may be refunded if it is remediated or 
demolished within first six (6) months 

of registration.

- 413 -



CEMETERY 2021 2022
Grave Space
Standard Size Plot - Flat Marker Section

Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $1,507 $1,582

Non-Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $2,034 $2,136

Standard Size Plot - Up-Right Marker Section

Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $2,193 $2,303

Non-Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $2,961 $3,109

Small Size Plot (includes infants less than 2 years) - Flat Marker Section
Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $491 $516
Non-Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $663 $696

Small Size Plot (includes infants less than 2 years) - Up-Right Marker Section
Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $716 $752
Non-Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $966 $1,014

Cremation Size Plot - Flat Marker Section 
Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $483 $507
Non-Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $652 $685

Cremation Size Plot - Up-Right Marker Section 
Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $705 $740
Non-Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $951 $999

Green Burial Plot  
Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $1,507 $1,582
Non-Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $2,034 $2,136

Family Estate Plot - Traditional In-ground 
Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $30,450 $31,973
Non-Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $41,108 $43,163

Family Estate Plot - Cremation  
Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $2,415 $2,536
Non-Residents (including Care Fund contribution of 25%) $3,260 $3,423

Services Internment 
Standard size - Traditional In-ground or Green Burial - First Interment per Plot $1,515 $1,561
Standard size - Traditional In-ground or Green Burial - Second Interment $1,034 $1,065
Small size $514 $529
Infant under 2 years $514 $529
Cremation size $321 $331
Green Burial - Memorialization  - Name and Dates etched into communal marker stone (optional) $236 $248

Opening and Closing Grave for Exhumation
Standard size $1,964 $2,023
Small size $790 $814
Infant under 2 years $790 $814
Cremation size $416 $429

Less than 24 Hours Notice – Charge $254 $262

Installation of Memorials (each time) - including care fund contribution of 25% $297 $306

Reset Fee $202 $208
Reservation of Side by Side Graves for Extended Family

One time Administration Fee $79 $82

Annual Reservation Fee $30 $31

Any plots reserved as per The Corporation of the City of Penticton Cemetery Management Bylaw No. 2010-09, may be bought back by 
the Corporation at 80% of the purchase price.

Appendix 6

- 414 -



CEMETERY 2021 2022

Appendix 6

Fairview Internment

Fairview Cemetery Fee $400 $412

Goods
Grave Liners – Regular $500 $510
Grave Liners – Child $211 $215
Concrete Slab for Lanterns $211 $215

Columbarium 
Resident

Level I $3,342 $3,443
Level I Care Fund Per Niche Unit Sold (10% of above) $344
Level II $3,230 $3,327
Level II Care Fund Per Niche Unit Sold (10% of above) $333
Level III $3,119 $3,212
Level III Care Fund Per Niche Unit Sold (10% of above) $321

Non-Resident
Level I $4,512 $4,648
Level I Care Fund Per Niche Unit Sold (10% of above) $465
Level II $4,361 $4,492
Level II Care Fund Per Niche Unit Sold (10% of above) $449
Level III $4,211 $4,337
Level III Care Fund Per Niche Unit Sold (10% of above) $434

The rates include a one-time opening/closing rate, and initial engraving

Care Fund Per Niche Sold
Columbarium $453 $467
Marker $28 $29

Other Charges
Additional Opening/closing (includes 2nd engraving) $321 $331
Niche Flower Vase $81 $81
Exhumation $352 $363
Overtime $450 $464
Mausoleum
Basic Rate per unit
Resident

Level I $21,651 $23,816
Level I Care Fund Per Mausoleum Unit Sold (10% of above) $2,382
Level II $20,819 $22,900
Level II Care Fund Per Mausoleum Unit Sold (10% of above) $2,290
Level III $19,986 $21,984
Level III Care Fund Per Mausoleum Unit Sold (10% of above) $2,198

Non-Resident
Level I $29,230 $32,153
Level I Care Fund Per Mausoleum Unit Sold (10% of above) $3,215
Level II $28,105 $30,916
Level II Care Fund Per Mausoleum Unit Sold (10% of above) $3,092
Level III $26,981 $29,679
Level III Care Fund Per Mausoleum Unit Sold (10% of above) $2,968

The rates include a one-time opening/closing rate, and initial engraving

Care Fund Per Unit Sold
Mausoleum $2,781 $2,864
Marker $28 $29

Opening and Closing for Exhumation
Level I , II and III $1,865 $1,921

- 415 -



CEMETERY 2021 2022

Appendix 6

Ossuary / Scattering Garden / Green Burial Memorials
Basic Rate per Unit:
Ossuary - Resident $453 $467
Ossuary - Non-resident $612 $630
Bronze Memorial Wall Name Plaque $345 $355
Green Burial & Ossuary Memorial Inscription NA $300

Lakeview Cemetery – Cost of Saturday burials is the same as on weekdays
Fairview Cemetery – cost of Saturday burials is subject to additional labour charges
No Sunday or Statutory Holiday Burials

- 416 -



2021 Effective January 
2021 Cycle Billing

2022

Utility Administration Rates
$17.50 $17.50
$31.00 $31.00
$17.50 $17.50

10% per annum 10% per annum
$41.50 $41.50
$41.50 $41.50

AMR Opt Out
$17.46 $17.46
$18.36 $18.36

$17.46 for the first meter and 
$1.00 per read for each 

additional meter in the meter 
bank per meter read.  The total 
cost for the electric meter bank 

read is to be equally split 
between all customers serviced 

by the bank meter

$17.46 for the first meter and 
$1.00 per read for each 

additional meter in the meter 
bank per meter read.  The total 
cost for the electric meter bank 

read is to be equally split 
between all customers serviced 

by the bank meter

$18.36 for the first meter and 
$1.00 per read for each 

additional meter in the meter 
bank per meter read.  The total 
cost for the combined electric 

and water meter bank read is to 
be equally split between all 

customers served by the meter 
bank.

$18.36 for the first meter and 
$1.00 per read for each 

additional meter in the meter 
bank per meter read.  The total 
cost for the combined electric 

and water meter bank read is to 
be equally split between all 

customers served by the meter 
bank.

$153.00 $153.00
$47.50 $47.50

$105.00 $105.00
$59.50 $59.50
$83.00 $83.00
$41.50 $41.50

$445.25 $445.25
$41.50 $41.50
$83.00 $83.00

$290.00 $290.00
$12.75 $12.75

$448.75 $448.75
$29.00 $29.00

Electric Rates

Rate Code 10 - Residential
$16.34 per billing plus $16.34 per billing plus
$0.1121 per kWh for all 

consumption during the billing 
period

$0.1121 per kWh for all 
consumption during the billing 

period

Rate Code 20 - General - Secondary metered and City owned Transformation
$16.34 per billing plus $16.34 per billing plus

$0.1248 per kWh $0.1248 per kWh
$0.0983 per kWh $0.0983 per kWh
$0.0689 per kWh $0.0689 per kWh

$8.81 per KVA of billing demand 
which is the greater of a) the 

maximum KVA demand in 
excess of 45 KVA for the current 

billing or b) 75% of the 
maximum kVA billable demand 

in excess of 45kVA recorded 
during the previous 364 days to 

the current billable demand 
read

$8.81 per KVA of billing demand 
which is the greater of a) the 

maximum KVA demand in 
excess of 45 KVA for the current 

billing or b) 75% of the 
maximum kVA billable demand 

in excess of 45kVA recorded 
during the previous 364 days to 

the current billable demand 
read

Utility credit references (current or recent account)
Archived account
Utility account history
Interest rate on delinquent utility accounts
Special electric meter reading
Special electric meter inspection fee

AMR Opt Out manual electric meter reading for an individual meter
AMR Opt Out manual combined electric and water meter reading for an individual for an individual meter read

AMR Opt Out manual electric meter reading for a meter bank installation

AMR Opt Out combined electric and water meter reading for a combined electric and water meter bank installation

AMR Opt Out electric meter use of a digital non radio frequency electric meter

Electrical disconnect or re-connect or site visit (cost per visit after hours with call-out)
Electrical disconnect or reconnect or site visit (cost per visit during City Hall hours) 
Electrical disconnect or reconnect or site visit (cost per visit after hours without call-out)
Illegal reconnection administration charge
Utility fee - Leave on Authorized

Utility application fee – next day service
Utility application fee – same day service (accounts with combined electric and water)
Utility application fee (electric only) same day service 
Non-Payment: Electric disconnect and re-connect(during City Hall hours only)
Non-Payment: Site visit without a disconnect (during City Hall hours only)

First 10,000 kwh per billing 
Next 90,000 kwh per billing
Additional kwh per billing

Demand Charge

Electrical Disconnect and reconnect from pole
Special Administration charge per service

Basic Charge

Energy Charge

Basic Charge

Appendix 7

ELECTRIC

Energy Charge

- 417 -



2021 Effective January 
2021 Cycle Billing

2022

Appendix 7

ELECTRIC

Rate Code - 25, 30 and 35

1.5% discount on consumption 
and demand charges.  

Customer-owned 
transformation - 9.0% discount 

on demand charges only

1.5% discount on consumption 
and demand charges.  

Customer-owned 
transformation - 9.0% discount 

on demand charges only

Rate Code 25 - General - Primary metered and City owned Transformation
$16.34 per billing plus $16.34 per billing plus

$0.1229 per kWh $0.1229 per kWh
$0.0968 per kWh $0.0968 per kWh
$0.0678 per kWh $0.0678 per kWh

$8.67 per KVA of billing demand 
which is the greater of a) the 

maximum KVA demand in 
excess of 45 KVA for the current 

bulling; or b) 75% of the 
maximum kVA billable demand 

in excess of 45kVA recorded 
during the previous 364 days to 

the current billable demand 
read

$8.67 per KVA of billing demand 
which is the greater of a) the 

maximum KVA demand in 
excess of 45 KVA for the current 

bulling; or b) 75% of the 
maximum kVA billable demand 

in excess of 45kVA recorded 
during the previous 364 days to 

the current billable demand 
read

Rate Code 30 - General - Secondary metered and customer owned Transformation
$16.34 per billing plus $16.34 per billing plus

$0.1248 per kWh $0.1248 per kWh
$0.0983 per kWh $0.0983 per kWh
$0.0689 per kWh $0.0689 per kWh

$8.01 per KVA of billing demand 
which is the greater of a) the 

maximum KVA demand in 
excess of 45 KVA for the current 

billing; or b) 75% of the 
maximum KVA demand in 
excess of 45 KVA recorded 

during the previous 364 days to 
the current billable demand 

read

$8.01 per KVA of billing demand 
which is the greater of a) the 

maximum KVA demand in 
excess of 45 KVA for the current 

billing; or b) 75% of the 
maximum KVA demand in 
excess of 45 KVA recorded 

during the previous 364 days to 
the current billable demand 

read

Rate Code 35 - General - Primary metered and customer owned Transformation
$16.34 per billing plus $16.34 per billing plus

$0.1229 per kWh $0.1229 per kWh
$0.0968 per kWh $0.0968 per kWh
$0.0678 per kWh $0.0678 per kWh

$7.89 per KVA of billing demand 
which is the greater of a) the 

maximum KVA demand in 
excess of 45 KVA for the current 

billing; or b) 75% of the 
maximum KVA demand in 
excess of 45 KVA recorded 

during the previous 364 days to 
the current billable demand 

read

$7.89 per KVA of billing demand 
which is the greater of a) the 

maximum KVA demand in 
excess of 45 KVA for the current 

billing; or b) 75% of the 
maximum KVA demand in 
excess of 45 KVA recorded 

during the previous 364 days to 
the current billable demand 

read

Rate Code 45 - General - City Accounts

$0.0832 per kWh for all 
consumption

$0.0832 per kWh for all 
consumption

Are subject to the same base rates for consumption and demand as set out in Rate Code 20 with the following discounts:

Primary Metering

Demand Charge

Basic Charge
Energy Charge
First 10,000 kwh per billing
Next 90,000 kwh per billing

Basic Charge
Energy Charge
First 10,000 kwh per billing
Next 90,000 kwh per billing
Additional kwh per billing

Next 90,000 kwh per billing
Additional kwh per billing

Demand Charge

Energy Charge

Additional kwh per billing

Demand Charge

Basic Charge
Energy Charge
First 10,000 kwh per billing

- 418 -



2021 Effective January 
2021 Cycle Billing

2022

Appendix 7

ELECTRIC

Rate Code 55 - Street Lighting, Traffic Lights & Other Un-metered Loads

$0.0935 per fixture kWh or kVAh 
per billing

$0.0935 per fixture kWh or kVAh 
per billing

$0.1767 per kWh $0.1767 per kWh

$16.34 per billing plus $16.34 per billing plus

Net Metering Rate Code (aka Micro-DR)

Electrical Service Calls
$224.80 $224.80
$393.40 $393.40

Electrical Service Connections

Temporary Service Connection
$380.40 $380.40

Actual Cost Actual Cost

Service Relocate
$452.10 $452.10

Service Upgrade
Actual Cost Actual Cost
Actual Cost Actual Cost

Service Connection
$511.10 $511.10

Actual Cost Actual Cost
Actual Cost Actual Cost
Actual Cost Actual Cost
Actual Cost Actual Cost
Actual Cost Actual Cost
Actual Cost Actual Cost

$445.25 $445.25

Electrical Pole Contacts
As per Contract As per Contract
As per Contract As per Contract
As per Contract As per Contract

Actual Cost Actual Cost

Power Factor Surcharge: Power Factor Surcharge Surcharge
Between 90% and 100% Nil Nil

Between 88% and 90 89.99% 2% 2%

Between 85% and 87.99% 4% 4%

Between 80% and 84.99% 9% 9%

Between 75% and 79.99% 16% 16%

Between 70% and 74.99% 24% 24%

Between 65% and 69.99% 34% 34%

Between 60% and 64.99% 44% 44%

Between 55% and 59.99% 57% 57%

Between 50% and 54.99% 72% 72%

Less than 50%
90% and electrical service may 

be disconnected
90% and electrical service may 

be disconnected

a) Every Customer must regulate their load to maintain a Power Factor of not less than ninety 
(90%) percent.

b) If customers have equipment or install equipment that results in poor power factor (less than 
90%) a power factor surcharge may be applied and it is the Customer's responsibility to install 
equipment to correct or improve power factor.

c) The surcharge shall be added to the Customer's bill after the rates or minimum charges have 
been calculated and the surcharge will remain in effect until the Penticton Electric Utility is 
satisfied that the Power Factor has been corrected.

d) Electrical Service shall not be provided to any customer whose Load Power Factor is less than 
fifty (50%) percent. 

When paying Net Metered Customers for any excess Energy generated by the Customer, the Penticton Electric Utility shall use the 
applicable Rate Code under which the Customer is receiving Service from the Penticton Electric Utility.  Customers will be responsible 
for all costs of their Distribution Generation System including, but not limited to, design, permits, installation, inspection fees, 
connection fees, repairs and maintenance. 

Service Call – 1 stop (1 hr. max)
Service Call – 2 stops (1.75 hr. max)

1 Phase up to 200 amps

Per fixture watt or volt ampere per billing subject to Electric Utility Services Bylaw No. 2017-44 

Bell Canada JU Contacts
Recoverable Sign Installations 

Installation of electrical poles, vaults, road-crossings, etc
Electrical Call Out Rate

Telus (JU Contacts, WiFi, Power Point Contact + Energy at appropriate rate code(s))
Shaw Cable (JU Contacts, WiFi, Antenna, Power Point Contact + Energy at appropriate rate code(s))

Additional meters
1 phase overhead and underground  over 200 amps
3 phase overhead and underground (all)
Primary Underground Cable
Terminate and Energize underground -   Per lot

 all except 1 phase up to 200 amps

1 phase up to 200 amps

1 phase over 200 amps
3 phase overhead and underground (all)

1 phase per unit (200 amps max -includes 1 meter) overhead and underground

Per watt or volt ampere per billing based on equipment name plate data or customer information, or where data is insufficient, the 
City will determine by appropriate measurement and calculation what equipment kilowatt-hour or kilovolt ampere-hour loading shall 
be used for billing purposes.

Monthly minimum charge per fixture or service connection

- 419 -



2021 Effective January 
2021 Cycle Billing

2022

Appendix 7

ELECTRIC

Notes:

Electric Vehicle Charging Stations

$2.00 per hour
First two hours are free then 

$2.00 per hour

     - If Micro-DR, receipts must be submitted from the contractor performing the work; and

     - Protection: Any defaults on the Payment Plan will be subject to the normal City of Penticton utility collection procedures, including service disconnect and ultimately transfer of outstanding 
amount to taxes.  Any outstanding payment plan amounts must be paid in full upon sale of the property.

     - Must be for a new or an upgrade to an Electrical Service;

     - Must be a City of Penticton Electric Utility customer;

     - Must have a credit score of: 650 or greater for an individual, or less than 25 for a business;

     - Must have a maximum of 19 City of Penticton Utility Credit Points;

     - The customer must own both the land and building where the service is required; and

Eligibility requirements:

#1. Any applicable Federal or Provincial taxes are in addition to the above charges.  Penalty interest at the rate of two percent (2%) per bill for current charge amounts remaining unpaid after the 
passage of the due date denoted on the bill will be applied.

#2. Basic charges will be applicable to accounts that are disconnected from electric for seasonal or temporary purposes when the electric is being turned off at the account holders request but the 
account holder(s) is not altering.

#3. City Electrical Infrastructure is defined as:  Any items related to the City of Penticton Electrical Utility distribution system including but not limited to primary duct and secondary duct, street 
lighting, power cables, transformers and associated appurtenances.

#4.  All customers are eligible to access the "Electrical Service Payment Plan" for the installation of City Electrical Infrastructure and/or customer owned Micro-DR equipment that supplies power to their 
properties.  The details of this program are summarized as follows: 

- Payment Plan range: A customer can put a minimum amount of $2,000 up to a maximum amount of $50,000 on a Payment Plan;

- Payment Plan terms: 5 year payback in equal monthly amounts on the Electric Utility Bill plus interest calculated at the Prime Interest Rate +0.5%; and

- The customer has the ability to end the Payment Plan at any time by repaying the balance owing in full at any time without penalty.

Level II electric vehicle charging (Bylaw No.2020-47; 2022-15)

- 420 -



GARBAGE RATES 2021 2022

Annual Fee - Solid Waste Collection 
Includes one (1) 120L Garbage Cart and one (1) 240L Yard Waste Cart  

$146.00 $149.00

Annual Fee - Recycling Collection - Bi-Weekly
Includes one (1) 240L Recyclable Cart

$33.00 $34.00

Annual Fee - Multi-Family Weekly Recycling Collection (per unit, per year $66.00 $68.00

Administration Fee for Sewer and Garbage Extension - for first unit $16.00 $16.25

    - Each Additional Unit in same complex $5.25 $5.50

Tag a Bag - Additional Curb Side Collection bag - price per tag $3.75 $3.57

25 Tag a Bag Coupons $65.00 $68.75

Application for Curb Side Collection from a Multi-Family Dwelling $83.00 $85.00

Application fee for Multi-Family Residential Weekly Recycle Collection $83.00 $85.00

Base Cart Program

Cart Change Administration Fee
Per property visit, any quantity of carts (Commences January 1, 2017)

$31.00 $31.50

Disability Exemption Application No charge No charge

Garbage Cart - upgrade to two (2) 120L Carts
In addition to the Annual Fee - Solid Waste Collection

$124.00 $126.00

Garbage Cart - upgrade to a 240L Cart
In addition to the Annual Fee - Solid Waste Collection

$124.00 $126.00

Recyclables Cart - upgrade to a 360L Cart
No charge, 

part of Annual Fee
No charge, 

part of Annual Fee

Recyclables Cart - upgrade to two (2) 240L Carts
No charge, 

part of Annual Fee
No charge, 

part of Annual Fee

Recyclables Cart - upgrade to two (2) 360L Carts
No charge, 

part of Annual Fee
No charge, 

part of Annual Fee

Recyclables Cart - downgrade to a 120L Cart
No charge, 

part of Annual Fee
No charge, 

part of Annual Fee
Yard Waste Cart - upgrade to 360L Cart 
In addition to the Annual Fee - Solid Waste Collection

$35.50 $36.00

Yard Waste Cart - upgrade to two (2) 240L Carts
In addition to the Annual Fee - Solid Waste Collection (max 2 carts allowed) 

$71.00 $72.00

Yard Waste Cart - upgrade to two (2) 360L Carts
In addition to the Annual Fee - Solid Waste Collection (max 2 carts allowed)

$71.00 $72.00

Yard Waste Cart - downgrade to 120L Cart
No charge, 

part of Annual Fee
No charge, 

part of Annual Fee

Yard Waste Cart - opt out of Yard Waste Program
No charge, 

part of Annual Fee
No charge, 

part of Annual Fee

Wildlife Resistant Cart Upgrade - 120L Garbage Cart only (one time fee) $75.00/Cart $75.00/Cart

Repeated or willful damage to Carts will be charged to property owner
Actual Cost of replacement 

and Cart Change 
Administration Fee

Actual Cost of replacement 
and Cart Change 

Administration Fee

Screened Compost  Sales*
Bulk / Wholesale - (greater than 5 tonnes) $12.50 / tonne $12.50 / tonne

Less than 5 tonnes $20.00 / tonne $20.00 / tonne

Individual Bags $2.50 / bag $2.50 / bag

* Compost fees may be waived at the discretion of the Public Works Manager or their 
designate in the event of site congestion or operational necessity.

Base Cart Program includes: one (1) 120 Litre Garbage Cart, one (1) 240 Litre 
Recyclables Cart, and one (1) 240 Litre Yard Waste Cart

The scale of charges by The Corporation of the City of Penticton for the collection, removal and disposal of solid waste and recyclable materials as 
provided for in the City of Penticton Garbage "Solid Waste Collection and Recyclable Materials Disposal Bylaw",  shall be as follows and will be billed 
by the City as current taxes on the property for which the premises were served by solid waste and recycling collection.

Appendix 11

- 421 -



PARKING 2021 2022

Off Street Scramble Parking permit (unassigned stall lots) per month $50.00 $50.00

Off Street Reserved Parking Permit - monthly rate $60.00 $60.00

Meters Bagged, No Parking or Reserved Parking - first day $11.00 $11.20

 - each day thereafter $11.00 $11.20

Sidewalk closure and parking meter rental permit* $11.00 $11.20

 - administration fee per application $25.00 $25.50

Resident Only Parking Areas

Resident Parking Only Application - non refundable deposit $175.00 $175.00

Resident Parking Only Sign and Each Timed Parking Sign $90.00 $90.00

Resident Parking Only Permit $0.00 $0.00

Replacement Parking Only Permit $0.00 $0.00

Parking Meters

For one (1) hour $2.00 $2.00

Ticket Spitters

For one (1) hour $2.00 $2.00

Daily maximum rate (excluding Downtown) $10.00 $10.00

Parking Lot Rental

Not for Profit - Stall rate per day $11.20

Commercial - Stall rate per day $14.00

 - administration fee per application $25.50

Proration for partial day rental may be requested

Electric Vehicle Charging Stations

Level II electric vehicle charging (Bylaw No.2020-47; 2022-15) $2.00 per hour
First two hours are free 

then $2.00 per hour

Appendix 18

- 422 -



PARKING 2021 2022

Appendix 18

Boat Trailer Parking (South Main & Skaha Parking Lot)

Half Day Permit (up to 5 hours) $5.00 $5.00

Full Day Permit (5 or more hours) $10.00 $10.00

Annual Permit for Residents of Penticton $70.00 $70.00

Annual Permit for Non-Residents $105.00 $105.00

Parking Violations

Towing and Impound Charges (made payable to the “Contractor” as
designed in the Municipal Towing Contract)

As set under:
Motor Vehicle Act 

Regulations, or
ICBC Payment 

Schedule

As set under:
Motor Vehicle Act 

Regulations, or
ICBC Payment 

Schedule

Administration Fee: collected by the "Contractor" payable to the City of
Penticton

$50.00 $50.00

Storage of Materials or Impounding per 30 days $50.00 $50.00

Bike Lockers

Bike Locker rental (Monthly) $10.00

Permit Parking Sign Installation Fees

 Supply of Placard (each) $2.00 $2.00

Supply of sign post (each) $20.00 $20.00

Supply of sign post sleeve (each) $10.00 $10.00

Supply of Residential Parking Only or Special Event Parking Only sign (each) $10.50 $10.50

Labour to erect a sign and post (each) $21.00 $21.00

Labour to erect and remove a sign from existing infrastructure (each) $7.00 $7.00

Note:  i) In all instances Public Works Staff will endeavor to erect permit Parking Signs on existing sign posts; ii) In instances 
where Special Event Permit Parking signs are being erected in areas where it is likely that multiple or re-occurring Special 
Events will occur there will be no charge for the sign, or post of sleeve.  The only charge will be for the labor to erect and 
remove the sign.

- 423 -



Parks & Sports Fields Hourly Rate per Field
Effective

April 1, 2021
Effective

April 1, 2022
Sports Fields
Non Profit/Local
Child/Youth $3.98 $4.05

Adult $11.91 $12.15

Non School District 67 Schools* $2.98 $3.04

Local Private $15.89 $16.21

Local Commercial $27.80 $28.36

Non-Resident $39.71 $40.50

Kings Park

Non Profit/Local

Child/Youth $5.21 $5.31

Adult $13.37 $13.64

Non School District 67 Schools* $3.91 $3.99

Local Private $20.08 $20.48

Local Commercial $35.14 $35.84

Non-Resident $50.21 $51.21

Major Event Park
Non Profit/Local

Child/Youth $6.36 $6.49

Adult $19.07 $19.45

Non School District 67 Schools* $4.77 $4.87

Local Private $25.43 $25.94

Local Commercial $44.48 $45.37

Non-Resident $63.56 $64.83

Major Event Park (duplicate event - non prime - Before May 1 and After Sept 30
Non Profit/Local

Child/Youth $5.09 $5.19

Adult $15.25 $15.56

Non School District 67 Schools* $3.82 $3.89
Local Private $20.34 $20.75
Local Commercial $35.59 $36.30
Non-Resident $50.85 $51.87
Major Event Parks:  Okanagan Lake Park, Gyro Park/Bandshell, Rotary Park, Skaha 

Minor Event Park
Non Profit/Local
Child/Youth $5.66 $5.78
Adult $16.98 $17.32
Non School District 67 Schools* $4.25 $4.33
Local Private $22.64 $23.09

Local Commercial $39.62 $40.41

Non-Resident $56.60 $57.73

*Major event users $23.91 $24.39

Appendix 19

- 424 -



Parks & Sports Fields Hourly Rate per Field
Effective

April 1, 2021
Effective

April 1, 2022

Appendix 19

Minor Event Park (additional/second event - non prime - Before May 1 and After Sept 30)
Non Profit/Local

Child/Youth $4.53 $4.62

Adult $13.59 $13.86

Non School District 67 Schools* $3.40 $3.47

Local Private $18.11 $18.47

Local Commercial $31.69 $32.33

Non-Resident $45.28 $46.19

*Major event users $19.13 $19.51

Minor Event Parks:  Penticton Youth Park, Lakawanna, Gyro South Lawn, Rose Garden and Marina Way

Wedding Ceremony Rate - Minimum 4 hour booking
(additional hours subject to hourly park rates)

$234.33 $239.02

Passive Parks and Play Courts

Passive Parks

Non Profit/Local

Child/Youth $3.45 $3.51

Adult $10.34 $10.54

Non School District 67 Schools* $2.58 $2.64

Local Private $13.76 $14.04

Local Commercial $24.08 $24.56

Non-Resident $34.42 $35.10

Admin Rate User $9.40 $9.59

Passive Parks (additional/second event - non prime - Before May 1 and After Sept 30)

Non Profit/Local

Child/Youth $2.76 $2.81

Adult $8.27 $8.44

Non School District 67 Schools* $2.07 $2.11

Local Private $11.01 $11.23

Local Commercial $19.26 $19.65

Non-Resident $27.53 $28.08

Admin Rate User $7.52 $7.67

Passive Parks:  Neighbourhood parks, Parking lots with park rental, Riverside and Beaches

Play Courts

Non Profit/Local

Child/Youth $1.80 $1.84

Adult $5.41 $5.51

Non School District 67 Schools* $1.35 $1.38

Local Private $12.59 $12.84

Local Commercial $14.40 $14.69

Non-Resident $18.00 $18.36

Penticton Pickleball Society seasonal court usage (per player) $14.83 $15.12

- 425 -



Parks & Sports Fields Hourly Rate per Field
Effective

April 1, 2021
Effective

April 1, 2022

Appendix 19

Play Courts (additional/second event - non prime - Before May 1 and After Sept 30)
Non Profit/Local

Child/Youth $1.44 $1.47

Adult $4.32 $4.41

Non School District 67 Schools* $1.08 $1.10

Local Private $10.07 $10.27

Local Commercial $11.52 $11.75

Non-Resident $14.40 $14.68

Non School District 67 Schools* are defined as grade schools (K-12) located within City of Penticton 
boundaries and Penticton Indian Band lands.   The Non School District 67 Schools rates are 
applicable during school hours.

Parking Space Rental (per parking space/per day) $5.86 $5.97

Specialty Vehicle Event Parking Permits (minimum 50 permits); per vehicle; per day $2.12 $2.16

Sportsplex Indoor Turf (Prime Time)

Weekdays, 3:00pm-11:00pm; Weekends, 8:00am-11:00pm $140.00 $140.00

Sportsplex Indoor Turf (Non-Prime Time)
Weekdays, 6:00am-3:00pm; Weekends, 6:00am-8:00am $140.00 $90.00

Misc. Park Fees 

Garbage Removal Actual Cost Actual Cost

Beach Cleaning Services - Regular Working Hours - Min 4 Hour Charge (incl. admin fees) $1,050.00 $1,100.00
Beach Cleaning Services - Regular Working Hours - Hourly Rate After 4 Hours
(incl. admin fees) 

$265.00 $270.00

Beach Cleaning Services - Outside Regular Working Hours - Min 4 Hour Charge
(incl. admin fees) 

$1,475.00 $1,550.00

Beach Cleaning Services - Outside Regular Working Hours - Hourly Rate After 4 Hours
(incl. admin fees) 

$370.00 $380.00

Double Cut and Tournament Preparation for Sports Fields on Weekends Actual Cost Actual Cost

Field Mowing  - Regular Time - Soccer / Field $87.00 $89.00

Field Mowing - Over Time - Soccer / 2 Fields  -  First 2 Fields $260.00 $265.00

Field Mowing  - Over Time - Soccer / Additional Field $127.00 $129.50

Field Lining  - Regular Time - Soccer / First Field $215.00 $219.50

Field Lining  - Regular Time - Soccer / Additional Field $165.00 $168.50

Field Lining - Over Time - Soccer / First Field  $300.00 $306.00

Field Lining  - Over Time - Soccer / Additional Field $205.00 $209.00

Rates listed are per day

Picnic Table (per table) $8.79 $8.96

Picnic Table Delivery & Return (per table) $34.46 $35.15

Garbage/Recycling Cans (per pair of 2) $8.78 $8.96

Garbage Can/Recycling Delivery (per pair of 2)**** $34.45 $35.20

All other Parks Delivery, Connect, Disconnect, Return $516.90 $527.24

Note:  Additional washroom cleaning charges are applied (when required for an event) as set by 
contracted cleaning company.

- 426 -



Parks & Sports Fields Hourly Rate per Field
Effective

April 1, 2021
Effective

April 1, 2022

Appendix 19

Rates listed are per day

Three - Five Tiered Bleacher Rental

Non Profit/Local $11.22 $11.44

Local Private/ Commercial $25.50 $26.01

Moving and Set Up One Time Fee $204.00 $208.08

Rates listed are per day

Ten Tiered Bleacher Rental

Non Profit/Local $25.50 $26.01

Local Private/ Commercial $56.10 $57.22

Moving and Set Up One Time Fee $428.40 $436.97

*Moving and set up costs are in addition to rental fees.  A damage deposit may be required.

Mobile Stage (Rates listed are per day)
Non Profit/Local $163.20 $166.46

Local Private/ Commercial $346.80 $353.74

Moving and Set Up One Time Fee $209.10 $213.28

Mobile Stage with Awning (Rates listed are per day)

Non Profit/Local $188.70 $192.47

Local Private/ Commercial $438.60 $447.37

Moving and Set Up One Time Fee $1,152.60 $1,175.65

**Mobile stage daily rates to be calculated annually as part of the City Fleet and approved by 
Council.  Moving and set up costs are in addition to rental fees.  Actual Costs of labour and 
equipment to be added.  Prior to confirmation of the booking, users will receive a quote for the 
estimated moving charges.  Users may receive permission to move on their own.  A damage deposit 
may be required.

Delivery/Removal 1-10 Barricades/Signs*** (one-time fee) $96.90 $98.84

Delivery/Removal 11-20 Barricades/Signs*** (one-time fee) $142.80 $145.66

Delivery/Removal 21-40 Barricades/Signs*** (one-time fee) $188.70 $192.47

Delivery/Removal 40+ Barricades/Signs*** (one-time fee) Actual Cost Actual Cost

Delivery/Removal Garbage Cans & Bags**** (one-time fee) $34.46 $35.14

***No charge if paying for delivery/removal of picnic table or bleachers

****No charge if paying for delivery/removal of picnic tables or bleachers

Park Donation Program
Park Bench Donation - New Bench - 15 year - Council Policy 1037 - December 17, 2012 as amended 
from time to time.

$2,600.00 $2,650.00

Park Bench Donation - Refurbished Bench - 10 year renewal - Council Policy 1037 - December 17, 
2012 as amended from time to time.

 50% of  current 
donation 

 50% of  current 
donation 

Picnic Table Donation - New Table - 15 year - Council Policy 1037 - December 17, 2012 as amended 
from time to time.

$3,100.00 $3,160.00

Picnic Table Donation - Refurbished Table - 10 year renewal - Council Policy 1037 - December 17, 
2012 as amended from time to time.

 50% of  current 
donation 

 50% of  current 
donation 

Plaque Addition or Replacement $425.00 $435.00

Tree Donation $425.00 $435.00

Bike Rack - New Rack - 15 year - Council Policy 1037 - December 17, 2012 as amended from time to 
time.

$1,060.00 $1,100.00

Bike Rack - Refurbished Rack - 10 year renewal - Council Policy 1037 - December 17, 2012 as 
amended from time to time.

 50% of  current 
donation 

 50% of  current 
donation 

Pet Stand - New Pet Stand - 5 year - Council Policy 1037 - December 17, 2012 as amended from time 
to time.

$325.00 $335.00

Hanging Basket Sponsor - 1 season - location determined by City $255.00 $260.00

- 427 -



Parks & Sports Fields Hourly Rate per Field
Effective

April 1, 2021
Effective

April 1, 2022

Appendix 19

Park Stewardship - contribution towards favorite park, trail or beach $205.00 $210.00

Floral Display Sponsor - 1 season - Sponsor one of the City's garden displays $2,550.00 $2,600.00

Park Improvement Projects - Platinum Sponsor $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Park Improvement Projects - Gold Sponsor $2,500.00 $3,000.00

Park Improvement Projects - Silver Sponsor $500.00 $750.00

Electrical Fees

Gyro Park - seasonal per 50 amp receptacle $331.22 $337.85

Gyro Park - seasonal per 15 amp receptacle $165.61 $168.92

Gyro Park - Saturday market only (seasonal) per receptacle $112.57 $114.82

Nanaimo Square - Saturday market only (season) per receptacle $56.29 $57.41

- 428 -



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 2021 2022 (as of Oct 5) 2022 Updated

Subdivision and Development Costs

d) any subdivision or building permit where offsite works exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars (50,000);

OCP Amendments

OCP Amendments $2,200.00 $2,245.00 $2,333.00

OCP Amendments (where in conjunction with a Rezoning Application) $1,430.00 $1,460.00 $1,460.00

OCP Amendment  in conjunction with Public Engagement $5,500.00 $5,610.00 $5,610.00

Rezoning

All other stand alone Rezoning applications. $1,925.00 $2,053.00 $2,053.00

Zoning Bylaw Text Amendments $1,375.00 $1,400.00 $1,488.00

Comprehensive Development Zone $5,500.00 $5,610.00 $5,698.00

Public Notice Signs (OCP and Zoning Amendments)

Initial OCP or Zoning Bylaw Sign $275.00 $280.00 $280.00

Repair of Damaged Signs $275.00 $280.00 $280.00

Replacement of damaged signs $275.00 $280.00 $280.00

Additional Public Hearing Fee $550.00 $560.00 $648.00

Development Permit Application per lot

Major Development Permit (Council Decision) $1,320.00 $1,345.00 $1,345.00

Minor Development Permit (Staff issuable) $770.00 $785.00 $785.00

Major Amendments to Development Permits (Council Decision) $660.00 $670.00 $670.00

Minor Amendments to Development Permits (Staff issuable) $385.00 $390.00 $390.00

Appeal to Council of a Staff Decision on a Development Permit $770.00 $780.00 $780.00

Hillside Development Permit $1,320.00 $1,340.00 $1,340.00

Riparian / Environmental Assessment Development Permit $660.00 $670.00 $670.00

Development Variance Permit Application or Board of Variance Application

Major Variance (3+ Variances per development) $1,320.00 $1,433.00 $1,433.00

Major Variance (3+ Variances per development) if in conjunction with a Development Permit Application $770.00 $785.00 $873.00

Minor Variance (1 or 2 Variances per development) $770.00 $785.00 $873.00

Minor Variance (1 or 2 Variances per development) if in conjunction with a Development Permit Application $550.00 $560.00 $648.00

Board of Variance $550.00 $560.00 $560.00

Every person who obtains:

a) approval of the subdivision of a parcel of land under the "Land Registry Act" or the "Strata Titles Act" for any purpose 
other than the creation of three (3) or less lots to provide sites for a total of three (3) or less self-contained dwelling units; or

b) a Building Permit authorizing the construction or alteration of buildings or structures for any purpose other than the 
construction of three (3) or less self-contained dwelling units; or

c) a building Permit authorizing construction, alteration or extension of a building or structure, other than a building or 
portion of it used for residential purposes, where the value of the work exceeds Twenty-five Thousand Dollars (25,000) or; 

Shall:
1) prior to commencement of the construction or installation of any works or services required under the Subdivision and 
Development Bylaw 2004-81, the owner shall pay to the City an administration fee of 3% of all works and services to be 
provided;

2) prior to commencement of the construction or installation of any works or services required under the Subdivision and 
Development Bylaw 2004-81, as amended from time, the owner shall pay to the City a Rectification and Repair Contingency 
fee of 2% of the estimated cost of construction.  This fee shall be used to repair or replace existing City infrastructure that 
has been altered or damaged by activity related to the installation of the works and services for the development.  The 
remainder of the fee will be returned to the owner upon issuance of the Total Performance Certificate.

Note: No additional fee is required for a Variance where it is issued under  Section 490 (1)(a) of the Local Government Act.

Appendix 20

- 429 -



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 2021 2022 (as of Oct 5) 2022 Updated

Appendix 20

Temporary Use Permit

Temporary Use Permit $880.00 $983.00 $983.00

Temporary Use Permit Renewal $440.00 $450.00 $450.00

Cannabis Retail Store 

Application for local government support or relocation of a Cannabis Retail Store $2,750.00 $2,800.00 $2,800.00

Subdivision (Fee Simple & Bareland Strata)

Preliminary Layout Approval Review

1-2 Lots $1,100.00 $1,125.00 $1,125.00

3-10 Lots
$1100.00 + $330.00 per lot in 

excess of 2 lots
$1125.00 + $330.00 per lot in 

excess of 2 lots
$1125.00 + $330.00 per lot in 

excess of 2 lots

11-20 Lots
$3,300.00 + $240.00 per lot in 

excess of 10 lots
$3,765.00 + $240.00 per lot in 

excess of 10 lots
$3,765.00 + $240.00 per lot in 

excess of 10 lots

21-30 Lots
$5,700.00 + $220.00 per lot in 

excess of 20 lots
$6,165.00 + $220.00 per lot in 

excess of 20 lots
$6,165.00 + $220.00 per lot in 

excess of 20 lots

31-40 Lots
$7,900.00 + $200.00 per lot in 

excess of 30 lots
$8,365.00 + $200.00 per lot in 

excess of 30 lots
$8,365.00 + $200.00 per lot in 

excess of 30 lots

41 Lots or Greater
$9,900.00 + $120.00 per lot in 

excess of 40 lots
$10,365.00 + $120.00 per lot in 

excess of 40 lots
$10,365.00 + $120.00 per lot in 

excess of 40 lots

Preliminary Layout Approval (PLA) Renewal or Amendment $240.00 $245.00 $245.00

Legal Plan Approval Fee $60.00 $60.00 $60.00

Early Registration Agreement (Applicable to Fee Simple Subdivisions) $875.00 $890.00 $890.00

Latecomer Agreement (Applicable to any excess or extended services as a result of Subdivision or Building) $825.00 $840.00 $840.00

Strata Conversion

First lot $550.00 $560.00 $560.00

Each Additional Lot
$500 + $150 per strata lot to a 

max. of $2,000.
$560 + $150 per strata lot to a 

max. of $2,060.
$560 + $150 per strata lot to a 

max. of $2,060.

Report Inspection Fees $275.00 $280.00 $280.00

Third Party Review of Professional Reports submitted with an Application Actual Cost Actual Cost Actual Cost

Phased Strata

Phasing Approval Fee $660.00 $670.00 $670.00

Form P Approval $110.00 $110.00 $110.00

Preliminary Layout Approval (PLA) Renewal or Amendment $240.00 $245.00 $245.00

Legal Plan Approval Fee $60.00 $60.00 $60.00

ALR

ALR Exclusion/Inclusion/Subdivision/Non Farm Use
As established by the 

Agricultural Land Commission
As established by the 

Agricultural Land Commission
As established by the 

Agricultural Land Commission

Other Administrative Fees

Boulevard Trees - Planted within a soft scape environment such as a park or turf boulevard.  

All trees planted within a hardscape boulevard such as a sidewalk or other hard surface shall be charged at estimated actual 
cost.

$480.00 $485.00 $485.00

Ministry of Environment-Site Profile Referral $100.00 $100.00 $100.00

Address Number Change Request (owner initiated) $153.00 $156.00 $156.00

Road Name Change Fee (owner initiated) $510.00 $520.00 $520.00

Land Title Search (when not provided at time of application) $20.00 $20.00 $20.00

File Search or comfort letter initial fee for first hour $255.00 $260.00 $260.00

File search hourly rate (minimum 1/2 hour charge $30) $61.00 $62.00 $62.00

- 430 -



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 2021 2022 (as of Oct 5) 2022 Updated

Appendix 20

Property File review request  - Basic $26.00 $27.00 $27.00

Property File Review Request - Commercial/Multi-family NA $54.00 $54.00

Developer initiated address change affecting other properties (fee charged per unit affected) $255.00 $260.00 $260.00

Landscape inspection fees 

First inspection No charge No charge No charge 

2nd inspection $76.00 $77.00 $77.00

Additional inspections $152.00 $154.00 $154.00

Map and Bylaw Rates

Plotter Printing Fees for all documents over 11" X 17"/ per sq/m (A1 page = 0.5 sq/m) $13.00 $13.00 $13.00

Bylaws (OCP, Zoning, Subdivision and Development)/page (note: large bylaw maps shall be charges separately as above)
As outlined in Appendix 1 

Administrative Rates
As outlined in Appendix 1 

Administrative Rates
As outlined in Appendix 1 

Administrative Rates

Land Administration Services

Prepare document and register with Land Titles Office $1225 min or actual cost 1 $1250 min or actual cost 1 $1250 min or actual cost 1

Prepare amended document and register with LTO $855 min. or actual cost 1 $875 min. or actual cost 1 $875 min. or actual cost 1

Prepare discharge document and register with LTO $855 min. or actual cost 1 $875 min. or actual cost 1 $875 min. or actual cost 1

Prepare document (lease, licence, sub-licence) not registered with LTO $305.00 $310.00 $310.00

Amend or renew document (lease, licence, sub-licence) $153.00 $156.00 $156.00

Location Certificate (Licenced BC Land Surveyor prepared) Actual Cost Actual Cost Actual Cost

Use of City Owned Lands Market Value Market Value Market Value

Application for Unsolicited Acquisition of City Property $2,473.00

Appraisals Actual Cost Actual Cost Actual Cost

To raise title on Park or Road for the purposes of Disposition $1225 min or actual cost 1 $1250 min or actual cost 1 $1250 min or actual cost 1

Road Closure Permit (excluding GST) $143.00 $145.00 $145.00

City Survey Costs Actual Cost Actual Cost Actual Cost 

Removal of Section 57 Notice on Title $510.00 $520.00 $520.00

Development Applications Refunds

Development Cost Charges, DCC, Refund:

Council will consider the matter and may by resolution:

As a requirement of any density bonus refund the development permit and/or building permits must be cancelled and the
development permit must be discharged from the title of the land – all density bonus paid shall be refunded less an
administration fee of:

  $250.00  and a discharge 
notice of fee of $250.00

  $250.00  and a discharge 
notice of fee of $250.00

  $250.00  and a discharge 
notice of fee of $250.00

City infrastructure1 requirements as part of Subdivision:

Density bonus paid as part of building permit issuance, construction beyond the footings started as determined by the 
Director of Development Services – The person seeking a refund must make a submission for a refund in the prescribed 
form to the Director of Development Services or the designate who will prepare a report for Council’s consideration.   

Subdivision not approved and infrastructure not installed – Upon cancellation of the preliminary layout approval, refund 
infrastructure charges less an administrative fee of: 

1 Any additional city legal and/or survey costs which are required in the processing of any of the applications listed in this 
Application Fee Schedule will be borne by the applicant including but not limited to the preparation and registration of 
restrictive covenants, land use Contract Amendments, Statutory Rights-of-Way, Road Closure and Disposition, etc.

Refunds for development cost charges are to be addressed as per City of Penticton Development Cost Charges Bylaw No. 
2007-79 as amended or superseded.

Density Bonus Refund: 

a.       authorize the density bonus refund subject to conditions as; or

b.       refuse the request for a density bonus refund; 

c.       refer the matter to staff or a future Council meeting; or

d.       such other determination as Council may direct.

Density bonus paid as part of building permit issuance, construction beyond the footings not started, as determined by the 
Director of Development Services – Upon cancellation of the building permit or building permit application refund all 
density bonus paid less an administrative fee of $250.

- 431 -



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 2021 2022 (as of Oct 5) 2022 Updated

Appendix 20

For Single Family, Duplex and smaller developments $517.00 $530.00 $530.00

For all other larger developments $1,089.00 $1,110.00 $1,110.00

Subdivision not approved and infrastructure installed No Refund No Refund No Refund

Subdivision approved No Refund No Refund No Refund

City infrastructure1 requirements as part of Zoning:

For Single Family, Duplex and smaller developments $517.00 $530.00 $530.00

For all other larger development $1,089.00 $1,110.00 $1,110.00

Zoning Bylaw amendment not adopted and infrastructure installed No Refund No Refund No Refund

Zoning Bylaw Amendment adopted No Refund No Refund No Refund

Development Variance Permit Application Fee:

$550.00 $560.00 $560.00

$275.00 $280.00 $280.00

No Refund No Refund No Refund

Development Permit Application Fee:

$550.00 $560.00 $560.00

$275.00 $280.00 $280.00

No Refund No Refund No Refund

Rezoning Application Fee:

$1100.00 + associated Public 
Hearing signage fees

$1125.00 + associated Public 
Hearing signage fees

$1125.00 + associated Public 
Hearing signage fees

$660.00 + associated Public 
Hearing signage fees

$675.00 + associated Public 
Hearing signage fees

$675.00 + associated Public 
Hearing signage fees

No Refund No Refund No Refund

Official Community Plan, (OCP) Amendment Application Fee:

$1100.00 + associated Public 
Hearing signage fees

$1125.00 + associated Public 
Hearing signage fees

$1125.00 + associated Public 
Hearing signage fees

Cancellation of an OCP amendment without Public Engagement
$2000.00 + associated Public 

Hearing signage fees
$2000.00 + associated Public 

Hearing signage fees

$660.00 + associated Public 
Hearing signage fees

$675.00 + associated Public 
Hearing signage fees

$675.00 + associated Public 
Hearing signage fees

No Refund No Refund No Refund

Subdivision Application Fee Refund

75% of original application fee 75% of original application fee 75% of original application fee

50% of original application fee 50% of original application fee 50% of original application fee

No Refund No Refund No Refund

Landscaping Security Refund:

full refund minus a $350.00 
administration fee

full refund minus a $350.00 
administration fee

full refund minus a $350.00 
administration fee

Agriculture Land Reserve (ALR) Application Fee:

As per the Agricultural Land 
Commission 

As per the Agricultural Land 
Commission 

As per the Agricultural Land 
Commission 

Development permit application considered by Council

Cancellation of a development permit application not reviewed at a  Technical Planning Committee meeting 

OCP amendment application considered by Council

Development variance permit application scheduled for Council consideration 

Subdivision has been issued or refused Preliminary Layout Approval (PLA)

Cancellation of a subdivision application reviewed by the  Technical Planning Committee but has not been issued 
preliminary layout approval (PLA) 

Cancellation of a rezoning application discussed at a Technical Planning Committee meeting but has not considered by 
Council 

Rezoning application considered by Council 

Cancellation of an OCP amendment application not reviewed at  a Technical Planning Committee meeting 

Cancellation of an OCP amendment application reviewed by the  Technical Planning Committee but not considered by 
Council

Zoning Bylaw amendment not adopted and infrastructure not installed – Upon rescinding all readings of the Zoning Bylaw
amendment refund infrastructure charges less an administrative fee of: 

Cancellation of a development variance permit application not reviewed at a Technical Planning Committee meeting  

Cancellation of a development variance permit application, discussed at a Technical Planning Committee meeting but not 
scheduled for delegations and submissions at Council 

Cancellation of a subdivision application that has not been reviewed at a Technical Planning Committee meeting

 In the case where a development has paid a landscape bond, but the development has not proceeded.

Cancellation of an ALR application that has not been forwarded to the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC)

Cancellation of a development permit application discussed at a Technical Planning Committee meeting but not scheduled 
for Council consideration.

 Cancellation of a rezoning application not reviewed at a Technical Planning Committee meeting  

- 432 -



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 2021 2022 (as of Oct 5) 2022 Updated

Appendix 20

No Refund No Refund No Refund

Notes:

1.       City Infrastructure is defined as:

a.       Any items related to the City of Penticton water, sanitary, storm system including main line pipe, appurtenances, 
services etc.

b.       Any items related to roads, sidewalks, curb, gutter, signs etc.

Sign Permit Fees:

For the purpose of calculating the fee for a sign permit, the value of construction shall be the total contract price for the 
work, including all subcontractors, or the value of construction as determined by the Building Inspector on the basis of the 
plans, specifications and information available, whichever value shall be the greater.

for enlargement, conversion, alteration or relocation of a sign for which a permit has been issued $31.00 $32.00 $32.00

signs with a value of $1,000 or less (per sign) $51.00 $52.00 $52.00

for each $1,000 of part thereof, by which the value exceeds the sum of $1,000 (per sign) $10.00 $10.00 $10.00

Variance to the Sign Bylaw $710.00 $725.00 $725.00

Where any sign has been erected without a permit having previously been obtained, the fee for obtaining such permit shall 
be double the amount of the regular permit fee

minimum $100 fine minimum $100 fine minimum $100 fine

Cancellation of an ALR application that has been forwarded to the Agricultural Land Commission 

- 433 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-10  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-10 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-10”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot B District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 4224, located at 585 
Jermyn Avenue, from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing).  

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 15 day of February, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 1 day of March, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this 1 day of March, 2022 

READ A THIRD time this 1 day of March, 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 22 day of February, 2022 and the 23 day of February, 2022 in the 
Penticton Herald newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 
 
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
      

 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 

- 434 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-10

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________

Rezone 585 Jermyn Avenue
From R2 (Small Lot Residential) To RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing)

- 435 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-36  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-36 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-36”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot B District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District 
Plan EPP119095 located at 169 Maple Street, from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RD4 (Low 
Density Cluster Housing) as shown on Schedule ‘A’.  
 

2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 5 day of July, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 19 day of July, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this 19 day of July, 2022 

READ A THIRD time this 19 day of July, 2022 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

21 day of July, 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 8th day of July, 2022 and the 13th day of July, 2022 in an online news 
source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  
 
 
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
      

 
       

 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 

- 436 -



�����
���	
���	������

�����	��	���	����	����	 !	"�#��$� #	�%	&	'�( %�� )�	 !	(*+,�$	�#! )-&�� #	�#	+ ��	()�#��'	&#'	'�.��&,	! )-/	���	% *)$�0&$$*)&$�	&#'	$ -(,���#�%%	 !	���%	�#! )-&�� #	1&)��%/	2%	&	)�%*,�0	���	����	' �%	# �	3&))&#�	�#	&#�	3&�	���	-&((�#.�#! )-&�� #	�#$,*'�#.	���	&$$*)&$�	 )	%*��&+�,���	���)� !/	���	*%�)	 !	���%	�#! )-&�� #	' �%	% 	&�	����)	 3#	)�%4	&#'%� *,'	# �	)�,�	*( #	���	�#! )-&�� #	3��� *�	�#'�(�#'�#�	1�)�!�$&�� #	&%	� 	���	&$$*)&$�	 )	%*��&+�,���	���)� !/ 56789 9 :;5:/;<���)%	=>?�	@AB	@C@@	���D��EC	F
 G���HI?���	�J�����	KFL	��MA	G�N�	��
	O�?�	��K

- 437 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
                 Zoning Amendment Bylaw 2022-36

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                           Corporate Officer:



 
 

Road Closure (Nanaimo Ave E between the left and right banks of Penticton Creek) Bylaw No. 2022-39 Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
Bylaw No. 2022-39 

  
A Bylaw to close a portion of Nanaimo Avenue East to all vehicular traffic. 

WHEREAS Section 40 of the Community Charter provides that a Council may, by bylaw, permanently close all or 
part of a highway that is vested in the municipality to all or some types of traffic; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the City of Penticton deems it necessary and expedient to close 
a portion of road along Nanaimo Avenue East to facilitate the restoration of Penticton Creek; 
 
AND WHEREAS before adopting this bylaw, the Council has given notice of its intention in accordance with 
section 94.2 of the Community Charter; 
 
AND WHEREAS before adopting this bylaw, Council has provided an opportunity for persons who consider 
themselves affected by the bylaw to make representation to Council; 
 
AND WHEREAS before adopting the bylaw, Council has delivered notice of its intention to the operators of 
utilities whose transmission or distribution facilities or works will be affected by the closure; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
  

 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Road Closure (Nanaimo Ave E between the left and right 
banks of Penticton Creek) Bylaw No. 2022-39”. 

 
2. Purpose: 

 

Authority is hereby given to the Corporation of the City of Penticton to close a portion of the road as 
shown in detail on Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto and forming part of this bylaw. 

 
READ A FIRST time this 19 day of July, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this 19 day of July, 2022 

READ A THIRD time this 19 day of July, 2022 

ADOPTED this   day of , 2022 

Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 5th day of August, 2022 and the 10th day of August, 2022 in an online 
news source and a Penticton newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  
 
 
 

       
John Vassilaki, Mayor 
 
 
       
Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 

- 438 -



- 439 -



 
 

Road Closure (Kinney Ave between South Main St and Skaha Lake Rd) Bylaw No. 2022-40 Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
Bylaw No. 2022-40 

  
A bylaw to close a portion of Kinney Avenue to improve overall transportation network capacity.  

WHEREAS Section 40 of the Community Charter provides that a Council may, by bylaw, permanently close all or 
part of a highway that is vested in the municipality to all or some types of traffic; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the City of Penticton deems it necessary and expedient to close 
a portion of road along Kinney Avenue between South Main Street and Skaha Lake Road to vehicular traffic to 
improve overall transportation network capacity; 
 
AND WHEREAS before adopting this bylaw, the Council has given notice of its intention in accordance with 
section 94.2 of the Community Charter; 
 
AND WHEREAS before adopting this bylaw, Council has provided an opportunity for persons who consider 
themselves affected by the bylaw to make representation to Council; 
 
AND WHEREAS before adopting the bylaw, Council has delivered notice of its intention to the operators of 
utilities whose transmission or distribution facilities or works will be affected by the closure; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
  

 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Road Closure (Kinney Ave between South Main St and Skaha 
Lake Rd) Bylaw No. 2022-40”. 

 
2. Purpose: 

 

Authority is hereby given to the Corporation of the City of Penticton to close a portion of the road as 
shown in detail on Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto and forming part of this bylaw. 

 
READ A FIRST time this 19 day of July, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this 19 day of July, 2022 

READ A THIRD time this 19 day of July, 2022 

ADOPTED this   day of , 2022 

Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 5th day of August, 2022 and the 10th day of August, 2022 in an online 
news source and a Penticton newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  
 
 
 

       
John Vassilaki, Mayor 
 
 
       
Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 

- 440 -



- 441 -



- 442 -



- 443 -



- 444 -



- 445 -



- 446 -



- 447 -



 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-41  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-41 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted an Official Community Plan Bylaw pursuant to the Local 
Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend “Official Community Bylaw No. 2019-08”;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting assembled, 
hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-41.” 
 
2. Amendment: 

 
“Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08” is hereby amended as follows: 

 
2.1 To change the following designations as follows:    

 
Amend Map 1: Future Land Use, by changing the future land use designation for Lot E District Lot 
202 Similkameen Division Yale District and of District Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale 
(Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 584, located at 770 Argyle Street, from ‘Detached Residential’ 
to ‘Ground Oriented Residential’ as shown on Schedule ‘A’.  
 

2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 

READ A FIRST time this 19 day of July, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 16 day of August, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2022 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 5th day of August, 2022 and the 10th day of August, 2022 in an online 
news source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  
 
 
 

       
John Vassilaki, Mayor 

 
 

       
Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 

- 448 -



�����
���	
��	�������	�
�	��������������

�	 �!"#$!	�%&'()*+,-.'/*)0*,/)123'4,1)*,5+,-4678)0)/-,592*),/)/7,*&45)/*'32/33):)*28-,59;%&'1,650'<2006520+2/30,948'*'/'11,-*&)1)/-,592*),/=25)'1;>125'168*<*&'()*+3,'1/,*?2552/*)/2/+?2+*&'9244)/:)/-,592*),/)/0863)/:*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-;%&'61'5,-*&)1)/-,592*),/3,'11,2**&')5,?/5)1@2/31&,683/,*5'8+64,/*&')/-,592*),/?)*&,6*)/3'4'/3'/*='5)-)02*),/21*,*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-; ABCDE E DEFEG'*'51H�����I�������J�KK�L �"" 
M���	��!�	��N�O�PQK��R�$�LS"�	��N

- 449 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                      Corporate Officer:



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-42  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-42 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-42”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot E District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District and of District Lot 4 Group 7 
Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan 584, located at 770 Argyle Street 
from RD1 (Duplex Housing) to RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing) as shown on Schedule ‘A’. 
 

2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 19 day of July, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 16 day of August, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2022 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 5th day of August, 2022 and the 10th day of August, 2022 in an online 
news source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

 
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
      

 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
 
  

- 450 -



�����
���	
��	����������	�
�	��������������

�	 �!�"#!	�$%&'()*+,-&.)(/)+.(012&3+0()+4*+,3567(/(.,+481)(+.(.6+)%34(.)&21.22(9()17,+48:$%&0+54/&;1//541/*1.2/+837&)&.&00+,)%(0(.,+481)(+.<14(&0:=014&057);)%&'()*2+&0.+)>1441.)(.1.*>1*)%&8133(.9(.,+481)(+.(./752(.9)%&1//541/*+405()16(7()*)%&4&+,:$%&50&4+,)%(0(.,+481)(+.2+&00+1))%&(4+>.4(0?1.20%+572.+)4&7*53+.)%&(.,+481)(+.>()%+5)(.2&3&.2&.)<&4(,(/1)(+.10)+)%&1//541/*+405()16(7()*)%&4&+,: @ABCD D CDEDF&)&40G���H�I������H��JKLM N�� 
����	��!�	��O�PHQRSN�T�#�M���	HHO

- 451 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                              Corporate Officer:



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-43 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-43”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot 49 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District 
Plan 1049 and Lot 48 District Lot 2 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) 
District Plan 1049, located at 747 and 755 Revelstoke Avenue from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to 
RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) as shown on Schedule ‘A’.  
 

2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 19 day of July, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 16 day of August, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2022 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2022 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

 day of , 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 5th day of August, 2022 and the 10th day of August, 2022 in an online 
news source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

 
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
      

 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
 
  

Approved pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the Transportation Act 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2022 

 
 
____________________________________ 
for Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 

- 452 -



�����
���	
��	����������	�
�	��������������

 	!�"�#$"	�%&'()*+,-.'/*)0*,/)123'4,1)*,5+,-4678)0)/-,592*),/)/7,*&45)/*'32/33):)*28-,59;%&'1,650'<2006520+2/30,948'*'/'11,-*&)1)/-,592*),/=25)'1;>125'168*<*&'()*+3,'1/,*?2552/*)/2/+?2+*&'9244)/:)/-,592*),/)/0863)/:*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-;%&'61'5,-*&)1)/-,592*),/3,'11,2**&')5,?/5)1@2/31&,683/,*5'8+64,/*&')/-,592*),/?)*&,6*)/3'4'/3'/*='5)-)02*),/21*,*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-; ABCCD E FEAEG'*'51H���I�J������I���IKL M��!
����	��"�	��N�OIPQ�M�R�$ L���	IIN

- 453 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                             Corporate Officer:



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-44  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-44 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-44”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot 2 District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 1030, located at 561 
Jermyn Avenue from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing) as shown 
on Schedule ‘A’.  

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 19 day of July, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 16 day of August, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2022 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2022 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2022 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 5th day of August, 2022 and the 10th day of August, 2022 in an online 
news source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

 
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 
      

 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
 
  

- 454 -



�����
���	
��	����������	�
�	��������������

�	 �!�"#!	�$%&'()*+,-&.)(/)+.(012&3+0()+4*+,3567(/(.,+481)(+.(.6+)%34(.)&21.22(9()17,+48:$%&0+54/&;1//541/*1.2/+837&)&.&00+,)%(0(.,+481)(+.<14(&0:=014&057);)%&'()*2+&0.+)>1441.)(.1.*>1*)%&8133(.9(.,+481)(+.(./752(.9)%&1//541/*+405()16(7()*)%&4&+,:$%&50&4+,)%(0(.,+481)(+.2+&00+1))%&(4+>.4(0?1.20%+572.+)4&7*53+.)%&(.,+481)(+.>()%+5)(.2&3&.2&.)<&4(,(/1)(+.10)+)%&1//541/*+405()16(7()*)%&4&+,: @ABCC C DCECF&)&40G���H�I������H����JK L�� 
����	��!�	��M�NHOPQL�R�#�K���	HHM

- 455 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                             Corporate Officer:



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 

Development Variance Permit 

Permit Number: DVP PL2022-9395 

Owner Name 
Owner Address 

Conditions of Permit  

1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as specifically 
varied or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. This permit applies to:  

Legal: Lot 2 District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 1030  

Civic: 561 Jermyn Ave  

PID: 011-604-981  

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 498 of the Local Government Act, to vary 
the following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to allow for the construction of a four unit 
townhouse, as shown in the plans attached in Schedule ‘A’: 

a. Section 10.9.2.8.a of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to reduce the exterior side yard setback 
from 4.5 m to 1.8 m, in order to facilitate the construction of a townhouse. 

General Conditions  

4. In accordance with Section 501 of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this permit shall 
be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached as Schedule ‘A’.  

5. In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit does not 
commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the date of this permit, this 
permit shall lapse. 

6. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the holder of 
this permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection Department.  

7. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The holder of 
this permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or provincial approvals prior 
to commencing the development authorized by this permit.  

8. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the building permit 
stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements and electrical servicing. 
There may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs payable at a later date. For more 
information on servicing and infrastructure requirements please contact the Development 
Engineering Department at (250) 490-2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, 
please contact the Electric Utility at (250) 490-2535.    

DVP PL2022-9395 Page 1 of 3

DRAFT

- 456 -



Authorized by City Council, the ____ day of July, 2022. 

Issued this ____ day of July, 2022. 

_________________________ 

Angela Collison 
Corporate Officer 

DVP PL2022-9395 Page 2 of 3

DRAFT

- 457 -



DVP PL2022-9395 Page 3 of 3

Sch
ed

ule
 'A

' 

DVP PL2
02

2-9
39

5

- 458 -


	1. Call to Order
	The Mayor called the Regular Council Meeting to order at 1:01 p.m.
	3. Adoption of Agenda
	4. Adoption of Minutes:
	5. Consent Agenda:
	6. Staff Reports:
	7. Public Question Period
	8. Recess into a Closed Meeting
	9. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting following the Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m.
	10. Bylaws and Permits:
	11. Notice of Motion
	12. Business Arising
	13. Public Question Period
	14. Council Round Table
	15. Adjournment
	5.1 - 2022-07-19 Public Hearing Minutes - Package No. 1.pdf
	1. Call to order

	5.1.a - 2022-07-19 Public Hearing Minutes - Package No. 2.pdf
	1. Call to order

	5.1.b - 2022-07-19 Public Hearing Minutes - Package No. 3.pdf
	1. Call to order

	5.2 - 2022-08-03 - HMAC Minutes - Draft.pdf
	Heritage & Museum Advisory Committee Meeting

	6.5.a - Attachment A - Q2 Economic Development Update.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28

	6.6.a - Attachment A - Recreation & Culture Services - Q2 2022 Update.pdf
	Recreation & Culture Services �2022 Q2 Update
	Overview
	Q2 Highlights
	Aquatics
	Sport Fields
	Museum & Archives
	Cleland Theatre
	Cleland Theatre
	Cleland Theatre
	Sports & Events
	Financial Forecast
	Coming Up
	Coming Up
	Staff Recommendation

	6.8.a - Attachment A - Q2 BP Updates - July 8 2022.pdf
	2022 BP Initiatives 

	6.10.a - Attachments D-H.pdf
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment F_Page_1
	Attachment F_Page_2
	Attachment F_Page_3

	Attachment G
	Attachment H

	6.10.b - DRAFT DP PL2022-9296.pdf
	DRAFT DP PL2022-9296
	Schedule A
	2022-04-14 Plans_Page_2
	2022-04-14 Plans_Page_3
	2022-04-14 Plans_Page_4
	2022-04-14 Plans_Page_5
	2022-04-14 Plans_Page_6
	2022-04-14 Plans_Page_7


	6.11.c - DRAFT DVP PL2022-9357.pdf
	DRAFT DVP PL2022-9357
	Schedule A

	6.11.d - DRAFT DP PL2022-9356.pdf
	DRAFT DP PL2022-9356
	Schedule A

	6.14.b - Attachment F - 2022-08-16 DRAFT DP (970 Dynes).pdf
	220722_Dynes Re-IFDP_compressed.pdf
	Sheets
	A0.00D - COVER PAGE
	A0.01D - SYMBOLS, ABBREVIATIONS & NOTES
	A0.02D - ZONING & BYLAW
	A1.01D - SITE PLAN
	A1.02D - EXISTING SITE PLAN
	A3.01D - LEVEL 1 FLOOR PLAN
	A3.02D - LEVEL 2 FLOOR PLAN
	A3.03D - LEVEL 3 FLOOR PLAN
	A3.04D - LEVEL 4 FLOOR PLAN
	A3.05D - LEVEL 5 FLOOR PLAN
	A3.06D - LEVEL 6 FLOOR PLAN
	A3.07D - LEVEL 7 FLOOR PLAN
	A3.08D - ROOF PLAN
	A4.00D - MATERIALS
	A4.01D - BUILDING ELEVATIONS
	A4.02D - BUILDING ELEVATIONS
	A4.03D - BUILDING ELEVATIONS
	A5.01D - BUILDING SECTIONS
	A5.02D - BUILDING SECTIONS
	A5.03D - BUILDING SECTIONS
	A8.01D - UNIT PLANS
	A8.02D - UNIT PLANS
	A8.03D - UNIT PLANS
	A8.04D - UNIT PLANS
	A9.01D - RENDERINGS


	22026-LA-DP_2022-07-21.pdf
	Layout1-TITLE
	1/LDP 5

	LDP 1-LANDSCAPE PLAN - ON SITE
	1/LDP 1
	1/LDP 6

	LDP 2-LANDSCAPE PLAN - OFF SITE
	1/LDP 2
	1/LDP 7

	LDP 3-LANDSCAPE PLAN - 5TH FLOOR
	1/LDP 3
	1/LDP 8

	LDP 4-LANDSCAPE PLAN - ROOFTOP
	1/LDP 4
	1/LDP 9

	LDP 5-DETAILS
	Viewport-2
	Viewport-5
	Viewport-6
	Viewport-7
	Viewport-8



	7.1.a - 2021-35 - Schedule A (Bylaw 2021-35).pdf
	Slide Number 1

	7.1.c - 2021-36 Schedule A (Bylaw 2021-36).pdf
	Slide Number 1

	7.2 - 2022-07 Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw.pdf
	2022-07 Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw - Appendices.pdf
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 11
	Appendix 18
	Appendix 19
	Appendix 20


	7.3.a - 2022-10 - Schedule A.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	7.4.b - 2022-35 - DRAFT DVP PL2021-9198 (650 Eckhardt Ave W).pdf
	2022-05-03 Plans.pdf
	Sheets: A0.0 - COVER SHEET
	Sheets: A0.1 - SITE INFO + SURVEY
	Sheets: A1.0 - SITE PLAN + ZONING
	Sheets: A1.1 - SITE DETAILS
	Sheets: A2.1 - FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1
	Sheets: A2.2 - FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 2
	Sheets: A2.3 - FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 3
	Sheets: A2.4 - FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 4
	Sheets: A2.5 - FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 5
	Sheets: A2.6 - FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 6
	Sheets: A2.7 - ROOF PLAN
	Sheets: A3.0 - BUILDING PERSPECTIVE + COLOUR SCHEME
	Sheets: A3.1 - BUILDING ELEVATIONS
	Sheets: A3.2 - BUILDING ELEVATIONS
	Sheets: A4.0 - BUILDING SECTIONS





